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IMI

We are a specialist engineering company Qur business has many
that designs, manufactures and services strengths. First and -
highly engineered products that control foremost, we employ
the precise movement of fluids. We great people. We are

. . . renowned for delivering
aim to deliver great solutions that world-closs engineering

tackle the most demanding engineering expertise wnd sot
challenges. We help some of the world's and our operational

.. leading industrial companies operate ... ... platforr and processes
their processes safely, cleanly, efficiently - are amongst the

and cost effectively. We operate . verybest

through three divisions - IMI Precision

Engineering, IMI Critical Engineering
and IMI Hydronic Engineering — and
employ around 11,000 people in over
50 countries around the world.

Find out migra,
www.imiple.com

Roy Twite
Chief Exec

o)

EMI Precision Engineering
Brno, Czech Republic




Our purpose Ovr vision

Qur purpose is our reason for Qur viston explains more
being. It's what motivates us about how we want to
all and makes us proud to achieve our purpose.

work for IMI.

Breakthrough oy g ey o
Englnee"ng industry problemsin

for a better attractive markets and
world. working with the best.

“We deliver our sustainable, custorner-focused solutions
ever mindful of our responsibilities to our employees, our
suppliers, our wider communities, and the environment.-
And we constantly reference and reinforce IMl's core
values throughout our business, . . .

Ej Qur busmess model’
Turn topage 12




IMI

Group overview

We create
tremendous value
by solving key
industry problems in
attractive markets
and working with
the best.

Revenue by
division

Adjusted
revenve by
geography

Gender mix across the Group’

200

Senior 100
managers

Board

02 IMlplc v v T ol 85

2019 highlights

Adjusted revenue

v £1.873m

Adjusted profit before tax

- ‘251m

Adjusted operating margin

prs 14. 2%

Adjusted basic earnings per share

-~ 73.2:

Statutory revenue
v £1,873
v €1, m

Statutory profit before tax

v. £189m

Adjusted operating cosh flow

2 f299m

Statutory basic EPS

~ 57.6;

» Results ahead of market expectations

» Profit improvement initiatives help 60bps second

half margin improvement

» Operating cash flow 35% higher than 2018

» £27m rationalisation savings for 2019, ahead of expectations

» Final dividend increased 1%, making a 1% increase

for the full year

» Structural re-organisation plans progressing well

» Rationalisation charges for 2020 expected tobe c.£45m;

savings ¢.£25m

» Commercial culturol shift driven by Growth Accelerator

gaining traction

» New customer-focused organisational structures

bedding-down well




l M | Precision
Engineering

IMi Precision Engineering specialises in developing
motion and fluid contro] technologies for
applications where precision, speed and

reliability ore essential.

DOperationol rewv.ewy
Turn to poge 42

Critical
Engineering

IM

IMI Critical Engineering’s highly spectalised valves and

octuators help contrel the flow of stearn, gas and
liquids in some of the world's harshest environments.
Qur engineered solutions are designed to withstand
extreme temperatures and pressures, as well as
intensely obrosive or corrosive cyclical operotions,

@ Operational review:
Tum to poge &&

Hydronic
Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading global supplier
of products for hydronic distribution systems which
deliver optimal and energy efficient heating and
cooling systems to the residential and commercicl
building sectors.

Key brands

Norgren, Bimba, Buschjost, Herion,
Kloehn, Maxseal, Thompson Valves

Adjusted revenue

e ‘907m

Key brands

iMI Bopp & Reuther, IMI CCl, M| Fluid Kinetics,

IMI InterAtiva, IMI NH, IMI Orton, IMi PBM,

iMI Remosaq, 1ML STI, IMI Th Jansen, IMI Trufle Marine,
IMI Truflo Rona, IMI Truflc Italy, IMI Z&J, IMI Zikesch

ey brands

IMI Pneumatex, IMI TA, IMI Flow Design,
IM) Heimeier, IMI Aero-Dynarmiek

Adjusted revenue

4 ‘651m

Adjusted operating profit

£
M 148m

5,800

Number of employees

54%

Revenue by
geography

1 Europe 5%

2 Americas 38%

3 Asio Pocific 17%

4 Middle Eost & Africa 0%

Motion Control
2019 revenue: £369m

Commercicl Vehicle
2019 revenue: £194m

Energy
2019 revenve: £81m

Life Sciences
2019 revenue: £81m

0 Fluid Technologies
2019 revenue: £140m
e Rail

2019 revenue: £42m
1 Motion Control 41%
2 Cornrrercal Vebucle 21%
3 Fhad Techrologies 15%
L Erergy 9%
5 Life Sorences 9%
& Rait 5%

Adjusted operating profit

o ‘90m

Number of employees

3,200

30%

Revenue by
geography

1 Europe 22%

? Amerncas 25%

3 Asia Poufic 37%

4 Middle East & Africa 16%

Revenve by
market

Fossil Power
2019 revenue: £206m

R Oii & Gas
2019 revenue: £189m

Petrochemical
2019 revenue: £129m

Nuclear
2019 revenue: £51m

Marine
2019 revenue: £30m

@ Pharmaceutical

2019 revenue: £4m

Fossit Power 32%
) Gus 29%
Petrochernical 20%
Nuclear 8%

Marine 5%

Other 5%
Pharmaceutcal 1%

[

- W

Adjusted revenue

o ‘315m

Adjusted operating profit

-gi:L
- 57m

1,800

Number of employees

16%

e ..
Revenue by : P
geography
1 Europe B6%

2 Amencas B%
3 Asie Paofic 5%
4 Middle Bost & Africa 1%

Revenue by
market

Balancing & Control
2019 revenue: £152m

. Thermostatic Control
2019 revenue: £97m

. Pressurisation & Water Quality
2019 revenue: £50m

1 Balan: ing & Control 48%
2 Thermostehe Control 31%

3 Pressunsgtion
& Water Quarty 16%

4 Other 5%
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Chairman's
statement

We appointed a new Chief Executive,
adopted a new strategy and took further
steps to ensure our culture is aligned with
our ambition to deliver increasing value for
all our stakeholders.

New Chief Executive

In May 2019 Roy Twite became Chief
Executive of IMI plc. Roy, who joined
IM{in 1988, is a strong and experienced
leader who has been pivotal to the
Group's continued success. He has
extensive operational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and
outstanding leadership qualities.

Strategy

Much of the Board’s time during the
year was spent considering and debating
the outputs from the strategic review
undertaken dunng the year. In November
2019 the Boord cpproved our new
strategic plan thatis being deployed
during the next phase of the Group's
development This pian is focused on
accelerating growth and increasing
value for all cur stakeholders Further
infermation about our strategy is
provided on pages 12 to 21

Aside from long-term strategy actions,
I am pleased to say that the businesses
have alsa made important ecrly strides
improving both commercial focus and
immediate profitability. Our divisions

04 IMI plc Arnual Report & Accounts 2019




have shown considerable ingenuity

in deploying some of ther new
initiatives - particularly when some

of our end-markets have been weaker.
The operational reviews that follow
on pages 42 to 47 of this Report
describe more about both our trading
performance and those initiatives.

Culture and purpose

The culture of a business starts with the
Beard. iMl enjoys a long-held reputation
for being an open and diverse business
that operates ethicaily and fairly at all
times rrundful of its responsibilities to
its stakeholders and society. This is the
right thing to do. Good governance

and responsible business also underpin
long-term value creation.

During 2019, we have introduced o
formal process to review our cuiture
that will build upon the successful IMI
Way campaign cf recent yvears. Good
governance and responsible business
are not merely characteristics to check
but are rather prerequisites to both
sustainobility and commercial success.
Further mformation abaut this new
process Is set out on page 64.

We welcome the changes Roy has
introduced to enhance our culture,

in particular his focus on making (M|

an even more diverse and inclusive
meritocracy. Encouraging an innoveotive,
growth and commercial mindset

will have o positive impact on how

we do business and support our
strategic ambitions.

Value creation for all
stakeholders

At all times we must operate ina
responsible way. Further information
about our sustainable approach i1s
included an pages 22 to 35.

In our discussions and decision-making
processes we always take into account
our various stakeholders, all of whom
contribute to the success of cur
business. Dunng the year the Board
reviewed how we engage with the
Group's stakehaolders. Further
information about our stakeholders
and this review process s set out on
pages 36, 70 and 71

The Board

Having served on the Board since
2012, Birgit Nergaord steps down as a
non-executive director and as Chair of
the Remuneration Committee at the
end of February 2020. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to wish Birgit well for
the future and express our thanks for
her valuabte contribution to IMI

Following her retirement Carl-Peter
Forster will succeed Birgit os Chair of
the Remuneration Committee. At the
same time, Thomas Thune Andersen
will become the non-executive director
responsible for employee engagement
and for Environmental, Sociol and
Governance matters. Thomas will aiso
join the Audit Comrmuttee and will cease
to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee from 1 March 2020.

In January 2020, Caroline Dowhing joined
the Board as o non-executive director.
Coroline brings considerobie relevant
skills and experience to our Board having
enjoyed a long and successful career

in the technology industry. Further
information about Coroline, and

the other members of our Board,

is included on page 62 and 63.

Dividend

Reflecting the continued confidence in
the Group's prospects, as well as our
ambition to build dividend cover, the
Board is recommending that the final
dividend 1s increased by 1% to 26.2p
(2018: 26.0p) making « total dividend
for the year of 41 1p, an increase of
1% over last year's 40.6p.

Our people

Ml is proud to employ the best pecple.
During times when business can face
challenging markets, and when
significant internal change is being
made, their loyalty and efforts are
especially appreciated On behalf of
the Board, | would like to thank all of
them for their continuing dedication.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

o)

Lord Smith of Kelvin and the
iMI plc Board visited facilities
in Shanghoi and Seoulin
Qctober 201%




How do you keep a
laparoscope camera

lens clean, whilst
conducting procedures
inside the human body?

Working in portnership with the customer, IMI Precision
Engineering developed a unique pneumatic circuit that controls
the pressure and delivery of measured 'puffs’ of CO; and saline,
that clean the camera iens whilst inside the body, making
surgery safer and more accurate. The established expertise
and close collaboration of IMI Precision engineers were
instrumental in their and their customer’s success.

06 Ml ple im o




Environmental, Social & Governance

36

Qur stakeholders

37

Eco-system

42

Operational review

48

Financtal review

52

Key Performance Indicators

54

How we manage risk




Chief Exec
review

I'm delighted to report good results for 2019,
given the anticipated market headwinds.
We have also made a solid start in the
pursuit of a new purpose: Breakthrough
Engineering for a better world.

08 M) plc Annuo! Report & Accounts 2019

Results overview

2019 was ayear of important change for
the Group. | was appointed Chief Executive
in May, measures to improve short-term
profitability were iniboted immediotely
thereafter, and a new strategy was
launched in Novernber. Updates on progress
with the strategy appear in the relevant
divisional reviews (see pages 42 10 47)

Trading environment

IM| Precision continues to deal with cyclical
headwinds in Factory Automation and
Commercial Vehicle markets, whilst other
markets have continued to grow. IMI Critical
operates in mixed markets While some are
experiencing good conditions, including LNG
and Naval, others are undergoing structural
change, ke Fossit Power. And IMI Hydronic
operates in markets whose prospects
remain stable, supported by its significant
exposure to environmental legislation,
building refurbishment and improvement



PBM acquisition

The acquisition of PBM was completed
on 20 September 2019, Acguired for a
cost of £69m, PBM s a manufacturer
of high-guality industnal valves and
Flow control products and sells into the
Pharmaceutical, Chernical and Food
Processing industries. The business 1s
already making an impact on the division,
Integrotion is proceeding well and

PBM offers exciting opportunities for
IMI Critical to expand profitably into
new, growth markets,

Environmental,
Social & Governance
(ESG)

Avery substantial proportion of the
products we make have a direct and positive
impact on the world. All efements of £5G
have formed an impertant part of our
management ethos and strategy for many
years. Diversity, heglth & safety, community
support and well-established protoco!s

for governance and risk management,

all contribute to IM¥'s robust, sustoinable
and ethical business model. We also take

gregt care around our own ImMpact on
the environment. And we support the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Dhsclasures (TCFD) recommendations in
relation to the disclosure of information
about the risks and opportunities
presented by chimate change.

Moare information about those various
praducts and solutions - as well as on all
of our ESG policies and practices - can be
found on our website: www imiplc.com
and on pages 22 to 35.

Adjusted revenue

v

e “1,873m

Adjusted profit before tax

~ f251m

Investment case

» Clear customer-focused
strategy delivering
Breakthrough Engineering
with the best people,
renowned expertise
and strong brands

» Increasingly exposed to
attractive global markets,
including through our Growth
Accelerator programme

» Robust social and governance
policies, for a stronger, more
responsible business

» Differentiating environmental
profile — particularly through
our customer solutions
targeting energy efficiency
and safety

» A clear business model
committed to delivering
sustainable value to all
our stakehoiders

» Strong balance sheet offering
strategic flexibility

o9



Strategic progress

In all cases, the divisions are progresaing

well waith therr strategies to improve both
growth and profitability. In particular, the
divistons have clear plans to reach ther
respective margin targets, as detalled i

our IMS presentation in November Those
measures include complexity reduction,
material cost savings, productivity gains and
value-pricing, all of which have already had @
positive impact on results across the Group.

Also fundamental tc the Group achieving
its strategic ambitions are the initiotives
designed to effect a change in culture
across the business, drving inmovation,
customer intimacy and greater cormmercial
accountability throughout the organisation,
Our Growth Accelerator programme is
already having an impact, stimulating
innovation and identifying early
commercial oppertunities.

Raticnalisation charges for 2020 are
expected to be c. £45m, with savings
of ¢ £25m in the year (including some
impact from prior year projects).

10 IMj plc Annual Report & Accounts 2019

IMI Precision Engineering

The IMl Precision strategic initiatives
continyve to advance well, with the new
customer-facussed business unit structure
n place n both Europe and America. Much
greater commercial accountability 1s being
driven throughout the organisation, and the
introduction of value-added new products
is supporting the division's margin delivery.
The integration of Bimba remains on-track,
with significant benefits expected in 2020
from footprint consolidation.

The previcusly announced, multi-year
£75m restructuring programme is on-track
to deliver £35m of annualised benefit. Two
factories hove aiready been consolidated,
with two more planned for the first half of
the year For 2020, the charge is expected
to be ¢.£30m, with savings of £20mto be
delivered in the year

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI Critical's strategic re-gignment
continues to progress weli. The introduction
of a simpler organisation structure,
remowving a layer of complexity and cost,

is already delivering benetits. The PEM
acguisition, which completed in Septamber,
1s progressing well and provides the division
with access into the faster growing
Pharmaceutical and Food Processing
markets. IMI Critical has aiso successfully
secured its first orders generated through
the Growth Acceleratar programirne which,
although still early in the process, hughlights
the oppeortunities availlable as customer
intimacy improves. The 20% to 30% of

IMI Criticai's lower margin business 1s still
under review, with focal leadership pursuing
rapid improvement actions

The division's restructunng activity in 2019
supported its performance ond delivered
In excess of the planned savings. In 2020,
additional actions will be taken to further
restructure cur operations, leading to a
charge of c £10m, and providing savings
of c £5min 2020




Executive
Committee

Roy Twite
Chief Executive

Danie! Shook
Finence Director

Massime Grassi
Dwisional Maneging Director
M| Precision Engineening

Jackie Hu

Divisienal Managing Director

M| Critical Engineering

Phil Clifton

Dsronal Monoging Director

IMI Hydromie Engineering

Geoff Tranfield
Group Human Resources
Director

John O'Shea
Group Legal Director
and Company Secretary

IMI Hydronic Engineering

IMI Hydronic continues to rnake good
progress toward its published margin
targets. As with the other divisions,
considerable work has been done to improve
customer focus In @ business that already
enjoys very strong brands and reputation

The business recently announced plans

to optimise 1ts footprint and supply chain.
The charge for these initiatives is expected
to be ¢ £5m in 2020 which will generate
annualised savings of c.£3m

People

2019 has been a year of important
change for IMI, as we take our first
steps delivering our new purpose —
Breakthrough Engineerning for a better
world. Having capavle, diverse and
engaged people is essential to our
success and | would like to thank all of
our employees for their commitment
and efforts during the year.

O}

in October 2019, the Board visited
WM Precision Engineering
o Shangoda, Chna -

Outlook

It 1s difficult to predict the uitimate
impact the corenavirus will have on global
supply chains and demand. Based onno
worsening of the current situction, we
expect first half organic revenues to be
lower than the first half of 2019, given
the end rmarket weckness inthe Foctory
Automation and Commercial Vehicle
sectors. Our continuing business
improvernent initiatives are expected

to enable us to maintain our margins

in the first half of the year.

Roy Twite
Chief Executive




Business model

Ovur values |
Integrity

We do the right thing
and keep people safe
as we do it.

- g company that
designs, manufactures and
services highly engineered
products that control the
precise movement of fluids.

Excellence

We aim to achieve
industry best practice
and to continuously
fearn and improve.

Inputs

Our key resources

Talented, committed people

Industry renowned fluid
engineering expertise
focused on solving
industry problems

Long-term customer
relationships

Technology and applications
engineering iP

Premium brand portfolio
and strong, differentiated
market positions

Sales, marketing and
distribution network focused
on growth markets

Strong operational
platform with continuous

improvement culture

Financial strength

Environmental,

Strategic objectives
How we create value

To drive sustainable profitable growth
we focus on:

1. Customer focus

Turn to page 15

2. Growth acceleration

Turnto poge 17

3. Operational excellence

Torn te page 18

4. Commercial excellence

Turn te poge 21

How we operate

Social & Governance

12 Miplc e o Lones




Customer focus Innovation Collaboration

We put customers at We understand customers' We believe in working
the centre of everything changing needs and create together to deliver

we do. new solutions.

Priorities
How we maximise value

Health & safety
Keeping people safe is our first priority

Employee engagement
An engaged, collaborative and diverse
workforce

Customer satisfaction
Delight our customers by solving industry
problems

Continuous business improvement
Focusing on key deliverables

Profitable growth
Growth Accelerator; New Product
Development and M&A each piay a key role

Sales effectiveness and

operational excellence

Highly competitive businesses generating
appropriate returns

Margin improvement
A key indicator of value delivery for
customers and business health

Operating sustainably
Operating our business in a sustainable
way for the long-term

better resulits.

Outputs

The value we create

Customers

We solve customer problems
with cleaner, safer, more
efficient solutions

Environment

Delivering solutions targetting
energy eftficiency, safety and
reliability

Employees
A workforce thaot is proud
and inspired to work for M|

Shareholders
Long-term supportive
shareholders, rewarded
for their investment

Ovur business partners
Building close and mutually
beneficial relationships with
our supplers

Community
Local teams supportive of
their wider communitics

Effective risk Robust corporate
management governance
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stomer focus

fing customers at the centre of
rganisation means customer
rements and our businesses
otally aligned to deliver
eptional value.

Our ambition is to get even closer to our customers. Our reportmg
structures have changed to reflect that ambition.

In IMI Precision, the business is now fully aligned with our key sector
verticals. Each business segment enjoys control of all the functions

. that combine to deliver world-class solutions. Sales, marketing, new
Mo roduct development and operations — alf in one co-ordinated unit.

cal, a new, flatter regional structure has been introduced
creased customer intimacy. It also allows greater focus
g the Aftermarket business.

yic is further improving its customer focus and
ing its sales and commercial relationship functions.




-
<

IMI Critical Engil
Paju, Repubiit of




Growth
e sevt Accelerator
‘ on |dent|fytng speaﬁc industry Programme
ye solved using IM| expertise.
ontinuous process to build long-

ket-led growthis the principle
vely encouraging and embedding
ire based on innovation, teamwork
stomer engagement is another. When
Fing new ideas and applying expertise
inatively, teams are encouraged to learn
“QUickly and fail fast. They will ultimately
‘,.succeed earlier as a consequence.

We also aim to leverage solutions across
mdustr;es, not just single customers. If we
avy truck manufacturer to

Growth Accelerator order:
'urn to page 60




Strategy

Operational excellence

Continuing to promote a culture of
rapid, continuous improvement help
us boost competitiveness, enhance
customer service and optimise our:
financial performance.

+ All of our operations have benefitted from the adoption of -
operational best practices, including Lean and Value- Engmee\ﬂng
We work hard to retain those gains.

First among the benefits is sustaining the safest and cleanest
environment for our employees, our supply-chain partners, our
customers and our communities. The standards to which we hold
to are non-negotiable. Those standards are continuously chollenged
and raised. e

The benefits of excellence are also commercial. DISCIpImed
continucus improvement delivers competitive opergtions
world-class supply partners for our custormers, Si

structures have also been supported with specific training ¥
managers. Not only will they enjoy greater occountob:hty, they will
be empowered to make faster, more eﬂ‘ectlve dec Sl

businesses and their profitability. :

IMI Precision Engineering
Alpen, Oermany

18 Miplc " -







IMI Precision Engineering
Srrp, Crech Republic




heaxirnise the
d stakeholders, we greigiply
greatest opportunity. A
arkets, butthey als@:have
are being targeted. Acqulgitions
have shown.

An excelle < icnce comes from service as well g&from
products. BRI <t orers value. Renowned customer and
cpplications txcmplified by our Engineering Advantage teams
in IM! Preci Valve Doctors® in IMI Critical and by The Hydronic
College in ||

But we ca "_'- better. Bimba aims to gquote for customised
products w B = cnd deliver within days. IMI Precision is now working
to achieve t brimance across its business.




& Governanc

| 'Our sustainabléat
atguUr business in a'f
way. This apprigach enhances the
strength and resilience of our busi
over the long-term.

We impiement a number of policies and procedures to support our
sustainable approach and we monitor our progress using a range
of metrics. These metrics are regularly reviewed by the Board and
our Executive Committee. In line with ocur purpose, we will continue
to work to identify opportunities to enhance the sustainability of
our operations and the value we create for our customers, people,
shareholders and society.

o)

IMI Precision Engineering,

Alpee CGotmans

22 IMiple <




We focus on the
following priorities:

Operating
ethically at all times

@ Turn to page 24

Living our values to
build a culture of
excellence and
customer-led innovation

Q Turn to page 26

Attracting, developing
and retaining the best
people

Turn to page 29

Delivering for our
customers and
society

Turn to page 31

Running our business
in a safe and
sustainable way

@ Turn to page 32

Contributing to the
communites where
we operate

B
Turn to page 35




Environmental, Social & Governance

Operating
ethically
at all times

It is essential that we act with integrity
and at ail times run our business in an
ethical way. Integrity is one of our core
values and underpins everytning we do.
It i1s a cornerstone of our culture.

Our Code of Conduct {"Code™) sets out the standards we
expect cur employees to adhere to. it covers a range of issues
including anti-bribery and anti-corruption.

During the year we updated the Code primarily to simplify and
make it @ more relevant and effective guide for our employees.

Evervemployee receives a copy of the Code upon joining the
Group and specific training about the Code 1s provided as part
of our employee induction pragramme. On an annuel basis
we provide refresher Code training to our workforce and,
throughout the year, updates on specific compliance issues
to relevant employees

Ml Code of Conduct
www.imiplc.com/esg fethics

IMI Critical Engineering
R, e Saena Murgaritg, USA

24 IMiplc = -




We alsoumnpieiment a number of poboes,
and procedures including regule on site
leqel ond complignee reviews, whick gre
designed to helpirstil the highest ethical
standards and regulat oy complicnoe:
Trese policies ard pracedures are
embeddec in oo gk assessment
processes, further getoals of which

are provided cn pace 5%

We encourage all employees to repont
any naident that 1s not i keenirg with
our values and behaviours ard we
operate o corfidential ndepeicent
hotine i 12 lenguages, which
ananyimaus repocting The Group's
Fihics and Carmpliance Coromut tee
reviews hatline activity on o manthly
boos and reports are investigated
thoroudghly and, where roqured,
apprepriate octon s taker to resohve
1Issbes Doring 2019, 271 cases were
repartec vial the Fotline which
compared to 4510 2018

LS

We corduct cadvariced due diligence on

our business partners mcluding our agoerts
and distributors with whom we skare our
anti cerruption requirernents and policies

Ethics ot M1

wWwwimiplc.com/esg/ethics

Irvezddmion, alt our businesaes carmy out
checks Grclucing sanctions woreeniog) to
understand notential custorners actieties
ed todentify ruks that may be mvolved
insupplying to them We also conduet
recp ; it chibd

or Torced labowr s not used in our supaly
arnand that suppliers’ workplaces
are safe I suppiers are uiroble to
comply with: our sir.ol responsibie
Brosess racin emnents we teerminote

oL relationstup vt them

We Lse o combunationr of gerer
corpusate respoansibity pelices ang
specfu supply cham comphance actions
o avort any potertial for modern
slavery in cur supply char Our ful
Moderr Slavery Act statemert inclizding
detal chout the steps we rake toersure
that slavery and huimas tratticking

cdo rot take place withun nur supply
chenoor ony part of our business s
avalable at the ink neiow The other
policies referred 1o th & section,
includag ous Anti-Bribery, Compliance
and Whistlely owing pohces, are also
avilabie te all errployees

e T R
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Qur purpose now explains in o tangible
and succinct way the vatue we create
for all our stakeholders and society.
And our vision statement and values
express our key objectives, including our
customer centric focus, in o clear and
simple way. These changes wilt have

d positive impact. In particular they
will help us establish and strengthen a
culture of excellence and customer-led
innovation. They also suppart our new
operational approach which is focused
on reducing complexity, becoming
more agile and enhancing our ability
to respond quickly to customer needs
and market opportunities in ocur fast
changing worid.

We launched our new purpose

across the Group in August 2019 and
during the balance of the yvear we
have embedded it in everything we
da. For example, our leadership ond
development programmes all include
modules that focus on our purpose
and the metrics we use to measure
performance now reflect our Galues
and purpose. e -

rt B Accounts 2019




How do you create a culture
of customer-led innovation?

S o

oss each of our divisions we have estabiished diverse
multi-functional Growth Accelerator teoms that are working
together to generate innovative

clutions that solve significgnt

industry problems. Based on indWESEAMREMNEdge and infilg

from customers, we identify solutiens th

Within a short time-scale, the te

t will create 1
ropositit

which is tested with customers to dr’tcrm\m engineering a

commercial effectiveness.
by custormers and satisfy

1,500 customer interactid

Turn to page &0 for more informetion on
our first Growth Accelerator order win

[ HEUS . |

Human rights and
equality

Our ambition s to create ar inclusive
organ=ation which operates as a
dhiverse moentocracy within which
everyone s treated fairly and with
respect We deploy pohoes and
procadures whirh set out how people
shauld be freated and haw we should
conduct aur business

Hurnan Rights / Diversity and Inclusion;

www.imiplc.com/esg/people

L AR A 0 L R

Diversity and inclusion

We boliove 1t essentiol that across

all parts of our business we ermploy
peaple from different backgrourds and
coltures to murror our global footprint
and our diverse customer bose To
ensure that our workploce s ncucive
and that ail eimployess ond workers are
feniby i anm enviran rent whick
1 free fromiary forir of dscnmination,
as bighhghbieo above, we operate a
Grrowp waide Diversity ard inelesion
Palicy ("D&IPolicy™, covering all (anects
of diveraity Its prne ples are embedded
i all cor Fuomin resouroe processes
and procedures We aiso implernent o
rurber of soec fic imtiatves aimeca at
roreasing drversity and iclusion aorass

treated

all zarts of our busness including

e [Dversty awareness romning
nirograrmmes, including an e-lear
rmrodels (ronslated into core
languages) whick employees car
access via our globalirtranet

g

» Shorthets for internal and externai
vacancies st reflect our D&I Policy
This aonandatony regurerient

o We monior, set metnics, such as
diverse recruits to the businesses,
measure ove perforimance to encure
we matke progress mthes key area Qor
mtereal rnanageinent performan:
piocess sats each Pivisional Managing

{at mpioving

Drector obyject ves oimed at
diveraity in ther divisicr ard our

Groun wide by o noal talert review
orocess tracks the dversity of our
talent pineline Usimg dota Srom ths
Teview PIOCESSs, Wa re-exXamine our
gevelopment piar s ond racke any
recpuired changss 1o ensure thot we
rontinue to focus on recrusing and
developing the best talent regardless
of gender, race, age or any other
charceterstic

In Septomber 2019 we estabhshed
uumibren of aross-dwvisionag teaims
to qooelerate oor key ebjecuves and
business prionties One of thege
Lesirs s rando!
drseraity agenda and i the coming

ad te dhve o

year thev will be leading a seties of
cross duisanal diveraty and inclusion
irtictives i line wet b oor &l Policy
Fach of our drysiors operate o range
of civersity and mclusion Imtatives
across ther operations For examble,
aoross its LS bus ness (M Precision
tas establshed a diversity counal ond,
aurnieg the vear, cll cvisions e rgaged
in G range of aotivities in sppport of
the \ﬂtemo‘u(m(‘-\ YWomer's Day

campragn ‘Balance tor Better”

See page 28 for further irformaton
ahicut dwersity nbiatives at VL
Critical Fogimeenng's IMI Trofle
Marine business
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Qur gender mix across the Group i1s
shown in the table below We support
the Hampton-Alexander Review and
the requirement that 33% of our
senior managers should be women by
2021, As at year end 2019, although
17% of our senicr moncgement

team were fernale, direct reports to
the Executive Committee were 20%
femnale, reflecting progress towards
the Hampton-Alexander requirements.
To support the achievement of the 33%
target, in addition to continuing to drive
the intiatives described above, using
our br-annual review process we have
identified o pool of high-performing
ferngle talent who are participating

in @ mentoring and high potential
development programme. In addrtion
our divisions are mapping diverse talent
across key geographies and developing
a pipeline of external talent which we
can draw on when recruiting A number
of recent appontments have been
made as a resuit of this intiative

We are ¢ global business and to

sucCeed we must properly serve our
diverse customer base Accordingly
across all our geographies we focus
onrecruiting and developing local
employees to ensure thot our businesses
are aligned with our customers and the
communities in which we work.

Gender mix across

the Group’
Female Femole% Male Male%
Alt 3,104 27% 8335 73%
employees
Managers 200 19%  Bé&b 21%
Senior 130 17% 499 837,
managers

Board 3 38% 5 63%

* Inchuding agency and contractors

As a result we have a very small
expatriate employee population.

As explamned above our ambition s

to create o culture of exceilence and
customer-led innovation. As diversity of
thought is key to innovation we ensure
that our Growth Accelerator teams are
as diverse as possible. To date individual
teams have included men and wamen,
employees at different stages of their
career, including graduates and long-
serving employees, and representatives
from all our key geographies and
functions inciuding both operational
and support roles.

Creating a diverse and inclusiv
working environment

We are active supporters of the WISE Campeign, UK
initiative focused on increasing the participation, contrlbutton
and success of women in science, technology, engineering
and mathematics. Read more about the WISE campaign

at www.wisecampaign.org.uk. During the year, in line with
WISE's TEN steps campaign our Mt Critical Engineering

IMI Truflo Marine business established a diversity and inclusion
discussion forum to understand employees’ opinions and
identify areas for improvement. As a result of this forum .
IMI Truflo Marine has introduced a number of key initiatives.
including introducing training for managers to raise awareness
of the importance of creating a diverse and inclusive working
environment, introducing a mentoring scheme for female:
emp!u ees and exploring the benefits of different flexible:

king arrangements.
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UK gender pay gap summary
as at 5 April 2019°
2019 2017
Meon Gop 345 365
Median Gap 224 251

' We are @ giohal business employing around 11,600
people arouna the world The obove summary only
covers our 1,111 UK employees and shows the
comparator since the reqgulations were Introduced
N 2017 Further mformation cbout our UK gender
pay gap, together with an explanation of these
figures and the steps we are toking to norrow the
gop s iIncluded on our website at the ink below




IMI

Group overview

We create
tremendous value
by solving key
industry problems in
attractive markets
and working with
the best.

Revenue by
division

Adjusted
revenue by
geography

Gender mix across the Group’

All
employees
Managers

Senior
managers

Board

02 IMlple =

2019 highlights

Adjusted revenue
v 1,873
v, *1, m

Adjusted profit before tax

— f251m

Adjusted operating margin

prs 14. 2%

Adjusted bosic earnings per share

- 73.2,

Statutory revenue
v. 1,873
Y. *1,873m

Statutory profit before tax

Y. *189
1% m
Adjusted cperating cash fiow

~ f299m

Statutory basic EPS

M 57.6:

» Results ahead of market expectations

» Profit improvement initiatives help 60bps second

half margin improvement

» Operating cash flow 35% higher than 2018

» £27m rationdlisation savings for 2019, ahead of expectations

» Final dividend increased 1%, making a 1% increase

for the full year

» Structural re-organisation plans progressing well

» Rationalisation charges for 2020 expected to be c.£45m;

savings c.£E25m

» Commercial cultural shift driven by Growth Accelerator

gaining traction

» New customer-focused crganisational structures

bedding-down well




Precision
Engineering

iMi Precision Engineering specialises in developing
maotion and fluid centrel technologies for
applications where precision, speed and

reliobility are essential.

@ Operationa! review
Ture to page 42

Key brands

Norgren, Bimba, Buschjost, Herion,
Klgehn, Maxseal, Thempson Vaglves

Adjusted revenue

v “907m

£
- 148m

54%

Revenue by E
geography

1 Eurcpe 45% 1
7 Arnericas 38%

3 Asio Poohic 17%

4 Middle East & Afnca 0%

Revenue by
market

Motion Control
2019 revenue: £369m

Commercial Vehicle
2019 revenue: £1%4m

Fluid Technologies
2019 revenve: £140m

Energy

2019 revenuve: E81m

iife Sciences

2019 revenue: £81m

Rail

2019 revenue: £42m

L)

1 Motien Control 41% s
2 Commerciol Vehicle 21% .
3 Fiud Technotoges 15% *
4 Energy 9%
5 Life Soences 99% 2
6 Ral 5%

Critical
Engineering

IM

M Critical Engineering’s highly specialised valves and

actuator's help control the flow of steam, gos and
liquids in some of the warld's harshest environments,
Our engineered solutions are designed to withstand
extreme temperatures and pressures, as well as
intensely abrasive or corrosive cyclicol operations.

Operational review; '
Torn to page b

Key brands

IMi Bopp & Reuther, IMi CCI, IMI Fluid Kinetics,

IMl interAtiva, IMI NH, IM} Grton, IMI PBM,

IMI Rernosg, 1MI 5T, 1M Th Jansen, 1M1 Truflo Marine,
M Truflo Rona, 1M1 Trufio Italy, IMI 28, IM! Zikesch

Adjusted revenue

M ‘651m

Adjusted operating profit

N
2%

30%

Revenue by
geography
1 Europe 22%
2 Armancos 25%
3
&

3 Aswo Ponfc 37%
Middle East & Afnca 16%

Revenue by
market

Fossil Power
2019 revenve: £206m

Qil & Gas
2019 revenue: £189m

Petrochemical
2019 revenue: £129m

Nuclear
2019 revenue: £5im

Marine
2019 revenue: £30m

Pharmaceutical
2019 revenue: £4m

0000

Fossil Power 32%
Ol & Gus 29%
Petrocharmicol 20%
Nucioa: B%

Marnine 5%

Other 5%
Pharmaceuticol 1%

WO e

~ o w

Hydronic
Engineering

M1 Hydronic Engineering is a leading global supplier
of products for hydronic distribution systems which
deliver optimai and energy efficient heating and

cooling systems to the and ial
building sectors.

Key brands

M1 Preurnatex, IMi TA, iMI Flow Design,
M1 Heimeter, IMI Aero-Dynamiek

Adjusted revenue

o *315m

Adjusted operating profit

-~ BT

1,800

Number of employees

16%

Revenue by
geography

1 Evrope B&%

2 Americas 8%

3 Asa Pactic 3%

4 Middle East & Afrcs 1%

Revenue by
market

Boloncing & Controf
2019 yevenue: £152m

Thermostatic Control
2019 revenue: £97m

% Pressurisation & Water Quality
2019 revenue: £50m

1 Bolonang & Centro! 48%
2 Thermostatie Control 31%
3 Pressunisotion

& Water Quoity 16%
4 Other 5%




Attracting, developing and
retaining the best people

Qur people are key to our su

ccess. If v

/e are to create value for our

all stakeholders by solving key industry problems we must employ
the best people. People who are curious, who listen, learn, innovate
or themselves

and execute effectivel
but for IMI, their tec

Recruitment

We operate ¢ robust process for
selecting and integrating new
employees and follow the principles
ernbedded in our Recruitment Policy
which aims to ensure our process is
fair and transparent.

To support our new strategy and,

in particular our customer centric
approach and focus on innovation,
our recruitment search process covers
a broad base. We consider potential
recrutts from ol sectors, including
consumer facing businesses and sectors
beyond our own engineering space
that are leading the way in terms

of innovation and value creation

for all stakeholders.

Development and
succession planning

We operate a wide and advanced range
of training and development programmes
specifically tallored te our business and
reflective of external best practice. They
enable cur employees to enhance their
skills and progress their careers and they
support our ambition to develop cur own
talent and future leaders. Inrecent years
we have made significant progress in
achteving this ambrtion. in 2019 over 60%
of senior vacancies were filled internaclly
compared to 40% in 2018.

During the year our training and
develocpment programmes were
updated to reflect our purpose, ocur vision
statement and support our strategic
initiatives. In particular cur semor
rmanagement programme now includes
rmodules dedicated to specific growth
intiatives and margin improvement
and our management development
programme is focused on delighting
the customer and profitability.

Training and
development in 2019

» 530 employees participated
in our most advanced
leadership programmes

» 21,000 hours dedicated to
learning and development
activities




Environmental, Social & Governance

20th ar

Niversary year. |’

The proqrcmme which connects iMI Critical

Glr‘eer |P
ith dpﬂﬂamdmg engir

s top technical expert

s to customers
Hﬁrmg challenges, diso serves

as o mentoring and development scheme which
helps us attract and retain some of the very best
engineering talent in the world. The programme
takes onaverage s ears to complete and
encompasses valve design, plant operation and
system layout and control. Currentiy we have

80 Valve Doctors:

working in partnership with

our customers across the world deploving their
deep application knowledge to solve proc
flow problems and eptimise plant performaence.

Qur other divisions also have well es

tablished

programmes which support the develeoment
of expertise in key areas. Within IMI Precision

our Ignite programme tocuses on dev

ol

effective sales technigues and, within iM: Hydronic
Engineering, the division's Hydronic Cellege
provides world-leading troining ond knowledge

sharing procgrammes.

In addition to our centrat training
and development prograrmmes, all
employees participate in on-the-job
training and where appropriate,
persona! mentoring. We also support
our employees’ participation in
appropriote externat prograrmmmes

to supplement the deveiopment
opportunities we provide in-house.

We run a robust perfarmance
rmanagement process which enables
employees to discuss their personal
development objectives and contribute
their ideas and feedback. This
mechanism alse enables us to provide
qudlity feedback which is essential

if we are to drive performonce
improvement and help our people
understand the contribution they

are making to our success.
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Bi-annually we undertake an extensive
review of our management succession
plans to ensure that we hove strength
and depth of leadership talent across
the Group. As part of this review

we assess the performance of our
monagers against a number of criteria
including leadership skills, values

and behaviours and their business'
perfarmance. Key output from this
review is used to build individual
development plans and inform our
future planning which helps ensure that
we continue to maintain a pipeline of
high calibre tolent across the Group.

Further information about the career
opportunities we offer including
interviews with some of our people

is mcluded ot the link below.,

Careers:

iplc.com/careersfjoining-our-tearn

Engagement

Given how important our pecple are

to our success we must maintamn an
active dialogue with them. Some of
the channels we use ta facilitate this
diglogue are described on page 31

and below, and include our annual
employee survey which 1s undertaken
during the course of our IMI Way Day.
in 2019 over B4% of our warkforce
participated in this survey and once
ogain the feedback was encouraging.
Key gquestions, an exarmple of which

is shown below, are scored out of ten
and show us ot strong and improving
levels. We use the data generated from
this survey to continuaily improve our
organisation. In particular if specific
local issues are identified, we undertake
further work to gather more detail and
then implement appropricte rmedasures
to drive improvernent.

*

100

%0

B0

70

40

sp

o

0

20

10
EmTanyees see Ml as Recomimend our 7
@ great pface to work business os a good

employer
2017 ‘2018 019

However, output from the survey
indicated that there are still sorne
areas where we need to improve
including helping our employees
better understand our strategic and
operational priorities. To address
this feedback we have strengthened
aur Group [nternal Communicatians
function and hove introduced regular
Group and Dwisional cascades of
information. We are also refreshing
our global intranet to ensure updates
and information are most rapidty
avallable digitally.



We also engage with our people on

a reguiar basis throughout the year.
Qur Eurgpean Communications
Forurm, which is made up of employee
representatives from cround ten
European countries, meets regularly
with senior management, including
Birgit Nergaard, the non-executive

for employee engagement, to discuss
health and safety, strategic progress
and performance ond following each
meeting minutes and newsletters are
produced and used by the employee
representatives to share information
with their colleagues. Qur Divisional
Managing Directers hold quarterly
online town hall meetings, which cover
recent results and current instiatives,
and employees are imvited to ask
Glwstiong und provide Teadback un ther
own concerns and share best practice
ideas on all topics. Where required,

we undertoke quick and effective
localised real-time pulse surveys to
gather specific nsights from employees
and we use the findings to inform

our plans for improvement.

Ml

leye]

We pubhsh our Group magazine, the
IMi Eye bi-annually and via our Group-
wide intranet we alsa share infarmation
about key developrments and best
practice quickly and effectively.

A wide range of functional, regicnal
and dvisional conferences are also

held annually to provide o further

key mechamsm for tearn ard

individual engagement.

Delivering for our
cystomers and society

Qur purpose is to deliver innovative Breokthrough
Engineering for a better world. Our products help our
customers operate their systems and processes safely,
cleanty and cost effectively. They also help address
some of the biggest global challenges facing the world
today including climate change and resource scarcity.
Throughout this repaort we have included specific
examples of ocur innovative solutions which are helping
our customers address these and other significant
modern day challenges.
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Running our

business in a safe
and sustainable way

We recognise our responsibility to respect and care
for the people and locations we impact.

Prioritising health and safety

Keeping cur employees and any
individuat entering any of our sites safe is
our number one priority. To achieve this
ambition, we take a proactive approach
and strive to continuously improve our
performance. To demonstrate this, our
Group functional head of health and
safety is a direct report of the Chief
Executive, who has Board responsibility
for health and safety. The Executive
Committee reviews health and safety
matters every rmonth and regular reports
are made to the Boord. The importance
atteched to health and safety by the
leadership is reflected at site, regional
and divisional level.

Health and sofety monitoring and
improvement is a core metric that is
embedded ot multiple levels across our
entire reporting system. All parts of
our business continuously assess their
operations and ot least once a year,
we undertake a formal Group-wide
health and safety audit at every major
operation to moniter the progress
against our formal improvement actions,
We also conduct due diligence regarding
heaith, safety and environment when
establishing new operations or when
acquiring businesses.

In line with our established policies and
procedures we strive to ensure that
accidents are avoided and that our
operations are as safe as possible. All
employees, as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training

32 IMipic

relevant to their role in line with heolth,
safety and environmental compliance: .
principles. Further on-site training

in refation te hazard identification,

risk assessment and action plannin

is provided to employees engaged in
manufacturing operations. Followin,
the success of the initial "Learning ¢
See” training that was introduced i
2018, the programme continues to
delivered throughout the business in -
addition to ongoing refresher training

We report and record every safety
incident and fully investigate those
cases requiring more then first aid. In
addition, a full root cause analysis of
every Lost Time Accident ("LTA"}is
presented to the reievant Divisional
Managing Director. Fo ng a formal
review at divisional level, o remediation
plan is agreed and impiemented, and
safety alerts are issued to share lessons
learned and increase safety awereness
across the Group.

Curing the year the total number of
LTAs reduced to 15 compaored to 18 in
2018, with no fatalities in either year.
Ml Critical En g reported only
two LL.TAs in the year which is a 60%
reduction compared to the crior year.

The number of locations reporting
LTAs reduced from 14 to 11 and thr
of the LTAs were to employees not at
an Ml lacation.




Protecting the environment

We operate globally with manufacturing facilities in more than 20 countries

We are committed to operating these faciities in a sustainable way to minimise
therr impact on the environment by reducing energy and water use, pollution and
waste. We moniter and repert our environmental performance at the monthly
Executive meetings with a view to delivering continuous improverment, including
reducing cur CO, ernissions and CCe intensity year-on-year

Energy efficiency

Given the nature of our production
processas, our main focus 1s Improving
energy efficiency Historically we have
undertaken internal reviews of cur
energy consurmption. However in 2019,
in accordance with the European Union
Energy Directive, we commissioned
independent enargy assessment surveys
across our major European operations.
The surveys were managed by a
specialst environmental consuitant and
detailed findings and recommmendations
were reviewed by our Executive
Committee Recommendations will

be evaluated on a site-by-site basis

and for locations where actions will be
implemented, progress will be regularty
rmonitored with best proctices being
shared across the Group.

To underpin our commitment to
reducing our environmental impact,
several of our large manufacturing
faciities are certified to the international
standard for Energy Management

1SO 50001. This management system
provides a framework of requirements
for organisations to!

» Develop a pohcy for more efficient
use of energy

» Fix targets and objectives to meet
the policy

» Use data to better understand and
make decisions about energy use

» Measure the results
» Review how well the policy works, and

» Continually improve energy
manogement

33




Environmental, Social & Governance

CO, emissions

We support the Carbon Disclosure
Progect ("CDP") chmate change initiative
and submit ennual CDP reperts which
cover our risk management approach

to chimate change and our emissions
performance.

Since 2015, on alike for ke basis, we have
reduced our CO, emissions by aver 5%.

In line with our continuous iMprovement
culture and investment in our operations,
we are committed to further reducing
our ennssions In the future,

5o

o 2015 2016 2017 2018

reduce scrap

We updated the design of
our STAD menual balancing

valve, which delivers accurate
systems balancing across a
range of heating ond cooll
systems. The resulting

more compact design

has significantly reduced

our scrap rate.

2019

Woaste

As autlined on page 18, operational
excellence is one of our key strategic
priorities. By running our business
more efficiently we enhance our
competitiveness, save costs and
reduce waste and scrap levels.

Other environmental
initiatives

Across our Group a range of other
initiatives are being implemented by aur
businesses to rminirmise therr environmental
impact. These initiatives include reducing
the use of plastic, designing and utilising
Apps to manage internal processes and
limit paper consumption and purchasing
consumables, such as protective gloves,
that are manufactured vsing eco-
friendly materials.

Qur recently constructed (Mt Precision
site in India included technologies to
reduce their environmental impact

such as: energy efficient and motion
controlled iighting, new paper packaging
equipment £o remove the use of plastics
when shipping our products and the
mnstallation of a rainwater harvesting
system to reduce the volume of mains
water needed by the facility

At our new IMI Critical Engineering
facility in Japan, as in other IMI Critical
facilities, o water reclamation system
has been installed for the Hydrostatic
testing operation. Following the testing
process, the water is filtered, cleaned
and returned to holding tanks for reuse
in the testing processes. These systems
minirmsse the requirement for additional
water for each test.




to the communities,

where we operate

During the course of the 2019 IMi Way,
Day employees across the Groug tolicil
part ina sapge of cormmuni ctiv
including valunteering with thi Siélvg
Army, visiting and donating it

a iocal orphanage, plantingt

logal pork, volunteering at a chi
‘respite centre and gardening.

ormmunity project. ;

Contributing to the communities
where we operate

We recognise our responsibility to the communities around the world in
which we operate.

We recegnise our résponsibility to the also participate n discussions about Non-finonciul information
communities around the world In which the Ml Way of doing business in line
we operate We suppert a range of with our values and our Code. statement

local charties and contribute funding to
organisations who provide emergency
support 1N ¢risis situgtions, Dunng

our IMI Way Day employees spend
time supporting a lacal community
charity or preject. This day s an annual
event and, in addition to undertaking
community activities, our em ployees

Qur statement, which sets out where
information that relates to non-
financial matters can be m found in this
Annual Report, is included on page 99

The support we provide to the local
communities where we operate helps
build trust and renforces our team
bullding and ¢clicborative approach
it also helps us both recruit and
retain people who share our

values and purpose.




Fold out:
IMI Eco-system

Our ability to fulfil our purpose and generate
sustainable value is dependent on a wide range
of stakeholders. We run our business in a
responsible way and proactively engage with
and consider them when making decisions.

iMI Critical Engineering
birmo (Ureer S
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The table below shows our key stakeholder groups and summarises their key 1ssues and how we engage with them.
For information about how stokeholder interests are addressed by our business modet, see pages 12 and 13

Our statement pursuant to Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, which references stakeholder consideration
and other factors in Board decision-making appears on pages 70 ang 71,

Our stakeholders  Their priorities How we engage Further information
Customers Innovative solutions Ongoing commercial dialogue and our Growth Accelerator Our Growth Accelerator
and value programme programme - see page 17
Excellent products and Customer satisfaction and service data including "voice of industry rencwned experts
customer service the customer” feediback, on time delivery metrics and net - see page 30
Long-term relationship promoter score
Traiming and knowledge sharing programmes including aur
Hydronic College’s world renowned training programme
Active sales and marketing imitiotives including particpation
at industry trade fairs ond exhibitions
Employees Positive culture ond good Annual Group-wide IMI Way Day M| Way Day survey -

Shareholders

Suppliers

Community

Governments

work environment
Reward

Development opportuhities

Performance
Strategy and execution
Sustainable appreach

Capital allocation

Long-term partnerships

Fair and timely payment/
commercial terms

Colloborative approach
Limited impact from
aparations

Positive social impact
Employment opportunities
Environmental impact gn
neighbourhood where we
operate

Employment

Tax incorne

Sustainabie appreach to
business

Annual Group-wide ermployee survey
Workforce engogement at Board and management levels
Traring and development programmes

Euwropean Commumications Forum involving employee
representatives frorn ten European countries

Management and functional conferences

Town hofl meetings

Union representation ond participation (where relevant)
Group bi-onnuol magazine

Intranet

Independent confidential hothne

Corporate website

Annual General Meeting
Active Investor Relations programme
lnvestor and analyst engagement

Chair and senior independent director
available to shareholders

Investor communications and corporate website

Remuneration related consultation

Ongoing commercial dialogue
Supplier audhts
Suppler sumimits

Lotal community cutreach activities
Partcipguon in and support of charitable initiatives

Published environmental policy and metnics demonstrate a
responsible approach

Engagement in relation to specific issues on an od hoe basis

Good corporate citizen with on tume tox fings and other
submissions ta regulators and governments

see page 30

Workforce engagement
pragramme - see pages
30and 31

Tramning and development
programmes - pages 29
and 30

Investor Relations
programme

- see page 70
Remuneration related
consultation - see page B1

Modern slavery statemeant
on our website www imiplc,
com/esg/ethics

Community activities -
see page 35

Taox policy on our website
www imeple com/esg/ethics
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IMI Eco-system

Our products and expertise are used ina
wide range of industries to help solve our
customers' problems and aliow them to
operate safely, cleanly and efficiently.
Breakthrough Engineering for a better world.
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How can an offshore oil
and gas platform avoid
the need for dangerous
and wasteful flaring?

By applying technologies to keep
assaciated gas underground, including
inflow control devices in oil wells and
gas breakthrough control at the
surface, IMI's use of high integrity
pressure protection systems (HIPPS)
avoids the need for floring in case

of over pressurisation. IMI CCl's
extensive experience in installing

and maintaining HIPPS is a refiable,
cost effective solution which reduces
customer's capital expenditure

and never compromises on safety.
Thot expertise and close customer
collaboration ensures success for IMI.
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How can a refiner ensure
reliability of application
when it is constantly
changing its feeds?

in a dynamic and rapidly changing
economy, a refiner can be required to
refine dozens of different feed stocks in

o single year, each one requiring different
process parameters, including flue gas
rates. IMI Critical's Variable Orifice
Valves allow an upgrade to a version thaot
provides a precise flow control, regardless
of the flue gas rate. Warking closely with
customers, IMI Critical used its leading
technology and engineering expertise

to deliver the solution.

How do you support a
customer who's having a
problem with a competitor's
actuator?

A company in North America was having
difficulty with a competitor's actuator
where the compressed air system wasn't
draining water effectively, leading to
corrosion problems. Bimbao was cble to
provide a replacerment, with a stainless
steel spring, in less than 4 weeks. Bimba's
distribution partner also supported the
customer with new and more flexible
stocking arrangements that more
closely matched the customer’s usage,




Our role
in the world.
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How does a large shopping
centre manage many
tenants’ heating demands,
efficiently?

Kongahdllg, is a new large shopping
centre close to Gothenburg, To
accommeoedote tenants moving in at
different times and each tenant's specific
temperature control requirements,

IMt Hydronic crected an adaptable
heating and cooling system to
accommodate tenants’ changing needs,
whilst optimising energy efficiency.
Established expertise ard close customer
support heiped to win this project.

How does a Swedish
medical centre manage
temperatures over a multi-
building site?

Te monitor and control temperatures

for the Sodra Hospital in Sweden,

which includes 35 buildings spread over
50 acres, engineers from IMI Hydronic
developed a complex solution thot reliably
and accurately monitors and controls
the indoor temperature across the entire
hospital. The unique expertise of iMI
Hydronic and close customer support
ensured suecess for IMIL

How do you make a
groundbreaking portable
diagnostic instrument
compaoct and reliable?

An instrument being developed by

a customer that allows diagnosis of
illnesses within hours, as opposed to days,
is truly groundbreaking and potentially
life-saving. IMI Precision worked alongside
the customer to develop a minute
manifold assemly that creates multiple
reliable flow paths. Collaboration and
quick turnoround of a prototype were

key factors in M Precision’s success.




-
Our expertise ranges from
emission controls in trucks

to micro-components in life-

saving diagnostic equipment.
Everywhere, adding value.

-

Massimo Grassi

in both established and
targeted markets, customers
rely on IMI to improve safety,

increase efficiency and
reliability and reduce waste.

Jackie Hu

Divisional Managing Director
iMI Pracision Engineering

Divisional Managing Director
iMI Critical Engineering

How do you guarantee a
reliable and safe journey
for 240 million passengers
each year?

A metro service provider in Australia
found that their gir system was causing
premature failure to criticel components,
voiding their warrenty. Tackling this issue
has seen IMi Precision work closely with
the custarner to develop an innovative
compressed air dryer sofution that
enhances the operationat efficiency

and ongoing reliability of their fleet.

This innovative technology and the
ability to provide a bespoke solution

for the customer played o key role in

IMI Precision’s success.

How can a large apartment
complex reduce energy
consumption and costs?

As part of the refurbishment of the De
Viever Roermond apertment complex in
the Netherlands, IMI Hydronic products
were specified to change the heating
systemn from a crude "on/off” system
to ane with a modulating function. As

a result, the complex's annual energy
consumption was greatly reduced. IMi's
expert knowledge of the whole system
and close collaboration with the customer
delivered success for both.

How does a large office
development achieve gold
level green building status?

Orhideea Towers is a large office
development in Bucharest for which
IMI Hydronic has developed tailored
heoting and cooling solutions that
deliver enhanced energy efficiency and
performance and contributed to the
development achieving “green building”
status and LEED Gold certification.
Technical expertise and close customer
support helped IMI to win.




customers

We waork closely with our
ta solve
Chdifef‘f}hﬁ‘i most particulary to
reduce energy usage in buildings,
whilst improving comfort.

industry

Phil Clifton
Divisional Managing Director
IMI Hydronic Engineering
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How do commercial vehicle
operators comply with
regulations and avoid costly
maintenance or fines for
ineffective lift-axles?

Federc! and state regulations have
strict lift-axle requirements for load
carrying and weight limits on commercial
vehicles. The IM! Intelligent Lift Axle
Control Module eliminates load weight
guesswork and offers automatic and
consistent deployment and retraction
of lift axtes based on configurable

load settings through an app. Close
collaboration with key fleets and
distributors — as well os established
expertise — delivered a

high quality salution.

How can a LNG piant
operator be confident the
compression valves are
reliable and safe?

nder cryogenic temperatures and

in the harshest of environments,
traditional ball valves can be problematic,
inefficient and unreliable. IMi has a
perfect solution, where traditional ball
valves are failing. The unique C-Rex
cryogenic ball valve design offers friction
free operation, and more cost-effective
automation and maintenance. It is also
fire-sofe and suitoble for hazardous
operations. This also makes it a perfect
candidate for long #ife service and high
endurance processes. Our technical
expertise and ability to engineer
solutions to customers’ specific
problermns help ensure that we win.

How does a Power Plant
operator evaluate and
resolve an unreliable and
leaking control valve?

After contacting IMI Critical for advice,
an IMI Critical Valve Doctor developed
a re-configured solution, drawing from
renowned technology but engineered
specificolly for the customer’s
application. The new IMI CCI Drag
Valve was duly specified. IMI won the
commitment of the customer through
a combination of existing expertise and
close customer support, to create o
clean, efficient and safe solution.
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Operational review

Precision
Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering specialises in the design and
manufacture of motion and fluid control technologies
where precision, speed and reliability are essential to
the processes in which they are involved.

Adjusted revenue Adjusted operating profit

907m - ‘148m =

How does a manufacturing customer
lmprove competitiveness by ellmmatmg time
consuming tool changes.

significantly reduce recurring tooling costs and replace manuai:
with the instant tool changeover between applications the new system
provides. The combination of a proven solution, originally deployed by

M1 in Automotive manufacturing, with excellent application engmeerm '
ensured early success with this exciting opportunlty ok

IMi Pracision Engineering
Anen SGermany
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Key achievements

» European and Americas
customer-focused
organisation structure
successfuily established

» Immediate profit
improvement actions
limited the margin decline
from revenue reduction

» Structural reorganisation
plans on track to streamline
operations

2019 performance

2019 has been a year of mixed end markets
for IMI Precision, but one where the business
has nonetheless delivered a robust result

The division continued to be impacted by
weakness in the early-cycle Industnal
Autormation markets as volurnes declined
throughout the year, with revenues of
£509m being 6% lower thanin 2018 on
an organic basis. Both Europe and the
Americas experienced declineg, while

Asia Pacific delivered modest growth
Comrmercial Vehicle revenues grew in

the first half but ended the year 2%
lower than 2018 on an arganic basis

at £194m. As expected, the business saw
a progressively weakening order and sales
pattern during the year, with Comrercial
Vehicle sales down 13% on an organic basis
in the fourth quarter. The Life Sciences,
Energy and Rail segments did, however,
delver growth in the year.

Continuing progress is being made with the
integration of Bimba into IMi Precision’s
North American operations and we remcin
on-track to deliver our targeted returns

Lower revenue led to the decline in profits
for the year. The margin impact was
minimised by the successful execution of
material cost reductions, value-pricing
and restructuring inittatives in the year.

Outlook

Reflacting the current market headwinds
in Factory Automation and Commercial
Vehicle segrnents, we currently expect
organic sales and profits in the first half
of 2020 to be ¢.7% to 10% lower than

in the same period in 2019,




L. Operational review
' M Critical
Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is a world-leading provider
of flow control solutions that enable vital energy and
process industries to operate safely, cleanly, reliably
and more efficiently. Our products control the flow
of steam, gas and liquids in harsh environments and
are designed to withstand temperature and pressure
extremes as well as intensely abrasive or corrosive
cyclical operations.

Adjusted revenve Adjusted operating profit

‘651m -: “90m :




2019 performance

Critical Engineening has made good

progress in the year, whilst successfully

balancing the improving conditions in @

number of sectors with the expected,

. Con continuing structural decline in New
7 Jeckie Hu Construction Power.

Divisiong)

Qrder Input for the year increased by 5%, on
an organic basis. New Construction orders
were £333m, 10% higher when compared
to 2018 on an organic basis. The business
continues to capitalise on the current LNG
investment wave, which has helped Oif & Gas
orders to return to growth Fossil Power New

Key achievements

»n Order intake growth includes
LNG and Marine strength

»n Growth Accelerator Construction orders fell by 25% on an organic
programme delivers basis as expected, although IMI Critical
early wins Engineering continues to win the mare

attractive projects within the segment.
Growth in Marine was particularly strong in
the year, which helped offset anticipated
dechnes in Petrochemical and Water

» Good progress with profit
improvement initiatives

Aftermarket order input was £364m, 2%
higher than in 2018 on an organic basis.
Both Petrochermical and Nuclear segments
performed well, while the il & Gas segrent
delvered modest growth Power Aftermarket
declined 8% on an crganic basis, principaliy
because the business could not offset the
one-off parts orders which came with New

By

Construction bookings in the prior year.
Upgrade Aftermarket orders were
particularly strong n the year, delivering
9% organic growth The closing order book
for 2019 was £516m, 9% higher than the
previous year, with the mix of orders slightly
favouring New Construction.

Orgonic revenue at £651m was 6% lower
than in the previous year — m-line with the
opening 2019 order boeok and with our own,
earlier guidance When the three-month
contribution of PBM and a £3m currency
benefit are included, adjusted revenue

was 5% lower

Operating profit of £20rm was 1% lower
than 2018 on an organic basis. The
successful execution of the division's
reorganisation and profit improverment
nitiatives contributed to this autcome.

The dvision's margins improved ?0bps

in the vear, despite the fall in overali revenue.

Outlook

In the first half of the year we expect some
organic sales growth, compared with the
same period last year. Margins are also
expected to improve, supported by the
growth in revenue and further benefits
from restructuring.

$ tanks drain

sely and cleanly?

gormaceutical manufacturer had problems
P valves, reducing the efficiency and reliability
s gean process. Ml PBM recently developed a
je Solution to this specific industry issue. Its draining
Frormance is significantly better. More importantly,

itis demonstrably ‘clean’. Close collaboration with the
customer, and the ability to deliver such a specialist
solUtion quickly, ensured IMI PBM's success.




Operational review

Hydronic
¥ Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading provider of
technologies that delivers energy efficient water-based
heating and cooling systems for the residential and
commercial building sectors.

Adjusted revenue Ad]usted operating profit

¢315m : 57m

How cana buildl 1g
confident that a h
system meets per
carbon emission a

The heating and cooling
are many and varied demands foi
different rooms, needs bo

effective control system:

successfully developed and supported a solution that met
both comfort and efﬁcnency expectations for the Bocconi
University campus in Milan, italy. The sgnowned expertise
of Hydronic College and close custg pport from
design to commissioning were kéy |
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Phil Clifton
Crussionot Managing Direc: -

Key achievements

» Solid growth in core German,
Swiss and Nordic markets

» Continued good progress
towards 20% margins

» Supply chain and
manufocturing reorganisation
to generate £3m annual
savings

2019 performance

The majonty of the markets in which IM!
Hydronic Engineering cperates continue
to be stable. The division has made further,
good progress executing its plans to
improve prafitabihity and re-invigorate

its platform for sustamnable,

profitable growth.

Organic revenue was £315m, 3% higher
than in 2018 Including the impact of
foreign exchonge, adjusted revenue

was 2% higher. Core markets including
Germany, Switzerland and the Nordic
region delivered good growth in the year,
offsetting some softness elsewhere.

Within the business segments, sales for
IM} TA Balancing & Control increased 1%,
compared to 2018 on an organic basis
Furope delivered good growth, countering
the impact of our exit from lower

margin projects.

IMI Heimeier thermaostatic centrol
products also grew sales by 1% versus
2018 on an organic basis - again reflecting
goad growth in the core German market
offset by the closure of our low margin
Jurkish business. There was alse good
progress for IMI Pneumatex woter quality
products in Switzerland, and successful
cross-selling of the Pneumatex range
across Europe, supporting 6% higher
revenue than in 2018

The continuing focus on improving
profitabiity delivered an operating margin
of 18.0%, 120bps higher thanin 2018
Operating profits of £57m for the year
were 5% higher than the prior year,

Outlook

Gen prevailing market conditions, we
expect first half organic revenue to show
some growth when compared to the same
period in 2019, with margin improvement
delivered through further efficiency gains




Key highlights

Continving Adjysted: Stotutory

operations: 2019 FY* 2018 FY Change Organict 2019 FY 2018 FY Change
Revenue £1,873m £1.907m -2% -3%h £1,873m £1,207m -2%
Operating profit? £266m £266m 0% -3% £204m £232m -12%
Operating margin? 14.2% 14 0% +20bps

Profit before tax £251m £251m 0% £189m £213m -11%
Basic EPS? 73.2p 732p 0% 57.6p &2 5p -8%
Operating cash flow* £299m £222m +35%

Dividend per share 41.1p 40 4p +1%

Net debt £438m £405m

" Excluding the offect of adjusting terms o3 reported in the ncome staternent
~ Qperating profit and maram in 2018 excludes £0 8m nen-adjusting
restructunng costs
Statutory amounts tor Basic EPS inclide both conunuing and
discontinued operations

Resuits summary 2019

To facditate a more meaningful review of perforrmance, certain
alternative performance measures (APMs') have been included
within this Annual Report. These APMs are used by the
Executive Committee to monitor and manage the performance
of the Group. We consider that the presentation of adjusted
results allows for improved insight to the trading performance
of the Group. Movements in adjusted revenue and adjusted
operating profit are given on an organic boss (see definition in
Note 3) so that performance is not disterted by acguisitions,
disposals and movements i exchange rates A tabie
summarising the reconciliotion of adjusted measures to
statutory measures s included 1 Note 4

The Group delivered a good finanaici result in the year, as both
marging and cash flow improved despite the difficuit trading
conditions expenenced in certain end markets. Revenue
decreased by 2% to £1,873m (2018 £1,907m). After adjusting
for the favaurable exchange rote impact of £12m, the £8m
contribution of IMI PBM in 2019 and £9m to represent a full
year of Bimba sales in 2018 {as the business was acquired on
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s Operaung cash flow, as descnibed in Note 19 to the hinanciol statements

Including IFRS 16 and notional rent accounting changes, see Note & for
further detruls

* After adjusting for exchange rates and excluding the impact of ccquistions
and disposals and lease accounting changes (see Note 4)

31 January 2018, see Note 23), crganic revenue was 3% lower
and refiects the challenging econormic markets in IMI Critical
and IMI Precision. Statutory revenue decreased by 2% to
£1,873m (2018 £1,907m).

IMi Critical completed the acquisition of PBM in September
2019, providing the division access into the growing
pharmaceutical and food processing rmarkets. Given the
acquisition timing, the impact on the Group's results for
the year was minimal

Adjusted operating profit of £266m (2018, £266m) was

flot and after removing the impact of exchange rates, the
acquisitions of PBM and Bimba, was lower by 3%. The adjusted
operating maorgin was 14.2% (2018: 14.0%) as the Group

wuas able to improve margins despite the market headwinds
Beth iMI Critical and {MI Hydranic grew margins in the year,
supported by cost and value-pricing initiatives. IM| Precision
saw o small margin reduction due to revenue declines in its
two largest market segments. Statutory operating profit

waos £204m (2018: £232m).



Adjusted net financing costs on net borrowings were £14 9m
{2018 £12.9m) and includes in 2019 the impact of £2.3m
interest cost following the adeption of the new IFRS 16
cccounting standard on leases. Adjusted net financing costs
were covered 24 times (2018: 25 times) by continung adjusted
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amertisaticn,
mpairment and edusting items of £357m (2018, £320m)
and included £32m of depreciation on our legsed assets in
2019. The net pension financing expense under IAS 19 was
£0.5m (2018: £1 4m expense).

Adjusted profit before taxation was £251m {2018 £251m),
which is flat corpared to 2018. Stotutory profit before
taxation declined 11% to £18%9m (2018 £213m) as the
Group increased 1ts restructuring activities to address current
market realtties and improve long-term competitivenass,

Adjusting items and
discontinued operations

Adjusting Items 2019 2018
£m £m
Reversal of net economic hedge contract 4 2
lesses
Restructurmg costsy (52) (12)
Gains on specal pepsion events 9 7
Imparment losses (2) (v
Acquired intongible gmortisation and other (2n (29
acquisition items
Gainon disposal of subsidiaries - 1
Gar on disposal of gropertes - 3
Indirect taxes ansng on reprgonsation - (3
Not finanmng income/(costs - (5)
Toxin Lonnection with the abave adusting items 17 9

Adjusting items that are excluded from profit before tox are
listed below:

» Changes in the fair value of economic hedges which are not
designated as hedges for accounting purposes, together with
the gains and losses on therr settlements, are included in the
adjusted revenues and operating profit of the relevant
business segment with the net gain at £4m (2018: £2m).
The adjusting iterms at the operating level reverse this
treatrnent. The net financing adjusting items refiect the
chonge in value or settlement of these contracts with the
financial institutions with whom they were transacted.

» The restructuring costs of £52m (2018 £12m) are as a result
of a number of significant restructuring projects across the
Group. These include a cost and feotprint raticnalisation
program within IM| Precision, £25m in Europe ond £5m in the
Arnericas, and cost reduction action within the Central team
of £1m.InIMI Critical, adjusted restructuring costs related
to a divisional reorganisation of £9m and restructure of the
EMEA region of £9m. In addition, there were restructunng
costs relating to the Corporate head office and IMi Hydronic
of £3m.

s In 2019, gains on special pension events were £9m (2018
£7m) Againinrespect of an accounting adjustment for
Swiss disability benefits was recognised for £5m. In addition,
within Switzerland there was a gain of £3m in respect of a
restructure of the pension benefits and curtallment and
settlement gains of £1m.

In 2019 the Group recorded an adjusting impairment charge
of £2m associoted with the restructuring programme
ongoing in IMI Precision and IMi Critical. in 2018, an
impairment of £2m was recognised against the goodwill
assaciated with the IMI Hydronic services companies CGU
(Cash Generating Unit) in the IMI Hydronic division.

Acquired intangible amertisation is excluded from adjusted
profits, to allow for better comparability of the performance
across divistons. This allows users of the finoncio! statements
to gain a clearer understanding of the performance of the
business, with the impact of amortisation identified
separately in line with internal reporting to management.
Acquired intangible amortisation reduced to £20m (2018
£25m). The decrease in 2019 refiects the amortisation of the
mtangible assets recognised on the acquisition of Bimba in
2018, including the full amortisation of the Bimbo order book
which contributed F4m to the charge. Also included s a
release of the fair value uplift to inventory, recognised as part
of the PBM acquisiticn accounting in accordance with IFRS 3
'‘Business Combinations’, of £1m (2018: £4m relating to the
Bimba acquisition).

» A net gain arose on the revaluation of financiot Instroments
and derwvatives under IFRS @ of £0.4m (2018: £5m loss).

» There was a pre and post-tax gain of £3m (2018 nil) from
discontinued operations in 2019 reloting to the release of an
indernnity provision for a historical discontinued operation
There was no cash impact of this.

Taxation

The adjusted effective tax rate for the Group remained at 21%
(2018, 21%). The total adjusted tax charge for the year on
continuing operations was £53m (2018: £53m) The Group
seeks to manage its tax affairs within its core tax principles of
compliance, fairness, value and transparency, in accordance
with the Group's Tax Policy which is available on the Group's
corporate website.

Earnings per share

The Board considers that a more meaningful indication of

the performance of the Group is prowvided by adjusted earnings
per share. Adysted basic EPS was 73 2p, flat on last year.
Statutery basic EPS decreased by 8% at 57.6p (2018: 62.5p)
and statutory diluted EPS decreased by 8% at 57.4p

(2018: 62 4p).



Financial review

Cash flow

Movement in net debt 2019 2018
£m Em

Adjusted EBITDA* from continuing operations 3573 320.1
Worlk:ng cap:tal moverments 129 (50.2)
Copitoi and developrment expenditure {65 8) (58 4)
Provisions and empioyes benefit movements™* a5 23
Peincipal elernents of lease poyments (313
Other 19.2 78
Adjusted operating cash flow™*** 298.8 2215
adpusting items*"*" (26:2) (89
Operating cash flow 2726 212.6
Interest (14 9) 1z
Darvatives 161 (18 4)
Tax pand (40 2) (411)
Cash generction 233.6 140.2
Additionat pension scheme funding (70} (10 1)
Free cash flow before corporate activity 226.6 130.1
Dividends paid to equity shareholders {1108) (107 9}
Acquisition of subsidiories (69 0) (122 6)

"ﬁf\l’srwchuse of own shares ) (3 4) %HH
Net cash fiow (excluding debt ws) : 434 (1057
Reconciliation of net cash to movement
in net borrowings

Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash eguivaiepts {19.5) (197}

excluding foreign exchange

Net repayment/{drawdown) of borrowings excluding - &62.9 (86 0y
foreign exchange and net debt -

disposed/ocquired

Decrease/(increase) in net debt befere acquisitions, 434  (105.7)
disposals and foreign exchange :

Net cash/(debt) acquired : 10 (15
Currency translation differences 127 (1846)
Movemnent in lease creditors (%0 4)

Movement in net borrowings in the year (33.3) (139.3)
Net barrowings ot the stort of the year {404 5} (265 2)
Net borrowings ot the end of the year (437.8) (404 5)

* Adjusted profit after tax (E198 Im) before nterest (£15.4m), tax (£52 &m),

depreciation (£76 2r) and amortisation (£15 0m)

“* Movement :n provisions and employee benefis, as per the statement of
cash flows (£29 2m) adjusted for the movement in the restructuring and
discontinued operaticn provisions (£22 7m)

** Adjusted operating cash flow s the cash genergted from the operations
shown in the staterment of cash flows less cash spent acguinng property.
plant and equipment, non-acquired intang:ble assets and investments, plus
cash receved from the sale of preperty, plant and equipment and the sole
of investments, excluding the cash impact of adjusting items This measure
best reflects the operating cash flows of the Group

** Cosh mpoct of adusting items

Adjusted operating cash flow was £299m (2018 £222m)
After the £26m cash outflow from adjusting items (2018:
£2rm outflow), the operating cash flow was £273m (2018
£213m). This represents a conversion rate of total Group
adjusted operating profit against aedjusted operating cash
flow of 112% {2018. 83%).
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Net working capital balances decreased £13mdue toa
reduction in recevables of £45m s a result of good cash
collection across the Group. This was partially offset by a
decrease in payabies of £17m due to overall payment timing
and an increase in inventory of £15m. The increase in 2018 of
£50m was due to an increase in receivables of £8m, a decrease
in payables of £47m offset by o decrease ininventory of £6m.

Cash spent on property, plant and equipment and other
nen-acquired intangibles in the year was £66m (2018: £58m)
which was equivalent to 1.1 times (2018: 1.1 times) depreciation
and amortisation thereon. Research and development spend
including capitalised intangible development costs of £6m
(2018: £7m) totalled £49m (2018; £49m).

In 2019 the Group paid tax of £40m (2018: £41m) which was
76% (2018, 78%) of the adjusted tax charge for the year

Diwvidends paid to shareholders totalled £111m (2018: £108m)
and there was a cash outflow of £3m (2018: £5m outflow)
for net share purchases to satisfy employee share options.

Balance sheet

Net debt at the year-end was £438m compared to £405m

at the end of the previaus year The increase reflects the
acquisition of PBM during the year of £69m and lease labilities
recognised of £90m, partly offset by strong cash generation
The net debt 1s composed of a cash balance of £88m (2018
£132m), a bank overdraft of £60m (2018 £83m), interest-
bearing loans and borrowings of £376m (2018: £454m) and
lease habilities of £G0m (2G18: nil}.

The year-end net debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio was 1.2 times
(2018 1 3 times) based on continuing adjusted EBITDA. At the
end of 2019, loan notes totalled £358m (2018 £454m), with
aweighted average maturity of 6.3 years (2018: 6.2 years)
and other loans including bank overdrafts totalled £78m
(2018: £83m). Total commutted bank loan focilities avallable
to the Group at the year-end were £300m (2018: £300m),

of which £17m (2018: £nil) was drawn.

At 31 Decernber 2019, the value of the Group's intangible
assets was £619m (2018: £607m). The increase of £12m over
the prior year was predominately due to the recognition of
intangible assets following the PBM acquisition, offset by the
amortisation and impairment charges for the year of £35m
and a decrease ansing from exchange movements of £27m

The net beok vaiue of the Group's PPE at 31 Decermnber 2019
was £271m (2018 £284m). Capital expenditure on PPE
amounted to £47m (2018: £38m), with the main caprtal
expenditure focused on a new Japan faality in iMI Critical,
which was funded from the sale of the existing older facility
in 2018, Including capitalised intangtble assets, total capital
expenditure was £66m (2018: £58m) and was 1.1 times
(2018 1.1 times) the depreciation and amaortisation charge
(excluding acquired intangible amortisation and lease asset
depreciation) for the year of £55m (2018: £55m).

The net deficit for defined benefit obligations at 31 Decemnber
2019 was £31m (2018 £52m deficit). The UK surplus was
£48m (2018 £28m surplus) and constituted 76% (2018: 75%)
of the total defined benefit labilties and 88% (2018: 87%) of




the toto! defined benefit assets. The deficit in the overseas funds
as at 31 Decernber 2019 was £79m (2018 £80m deficit).

Return on capital employed ('ROCE")

The Group uses ROCE as an indication of IMI's ability to deploy
capital effectively. The Group's definition is Adjusted Cperating
Profit after tax divided by Average Capital employed. Caopital
employed is defined as net assets adjusted to remove net debt,
dervative assets/liabilities, defined benefit pension posrtion
(net of deferred tax) and to reverse historical impairments of
goodwill and amortisation of acquired intangibles. ROCE was
11 4% n 2019 (2018: 12 8%) with the reduction partly due to
the new IFRS 14 leasing accounting standard, which reduced
the measure by 60bps. The figure was also impacted by the
acquisition of PBM in September 2019,

Impact of IFRS 16

The Group adopted the modified retrospective approach
regarding the new leasing accounting standard {FRS 14.
Therefore, the Group has not restated comparative disclosures
for the impact of IFRS 16, which came into effect from 1
January 2019. The impact of IFRS 16 1s hrghiighted throughout
as required, with further details included in Note 4 and Note 13.

Acquisitions

Acquisitions are an important part of our strategic growth
plans, On 20 September 2019, the Group acguired 100% of
the share capital, and essociated voting rights, of PBM Inc.
(PBM) for a cash consideration of £69 Om_ PBM i1s o market
leading manufacturer of ball valves and flow control solutions
based in North Amernica and provides IMI Critical with key
access into the growing pharmaceutical and specialty chemical
markets. The acquisition was funded from our exssting banking
facilities. PBM contributed sales of £7.5m and profits of
£1.1mn 2019 to the Group's results.

In January 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital,
and associated voting rights, of Bimbo Manufacturing Company
(Bimba) and its subsidiaries for cash consideration of £138.4m.
Bimba 1s a market leading manufacturer of pneurmnatic, hydrauhc
and electric motion solutions bosed in North Amenca. Bimba is
now well integrated into the Group and will provide a great
strategic fit with cur North American business

Foreign exchange

The income statements of overseas operations are translated
into sterling at average rates of exchange for the year, balance
sheets are translated at year end rates. The most significant
currencies are the eurc and the US doltar — the relevant rates
of exchange were:

Average Balance Sheet
Rates Rates
Foreign Exchange 2019 2018 2019 2018
Turo 1.14 113 1.18 111
US Dollar 1.28 133 1.32 128

The movernent in average exchonge rates between 2018 and
2019 resulted in our adjusted 2019 revenue being 1% higher
and adjusted operating profit being 1% higher as the average
US dollar rate was 4% stronger and the Euro rate was

1% weaker.

If the average exchange rates for January 2020 of US$1.31
and €1 18 were projected for the full year and applied to cur
2019 results, it 1s estimated that both adjusted revenue and
profits (including corporate costs) would be 3% lower

Treasury

IMI has a centralised Treasury function that provides treasury
services to Group companies including funding liquidity, credit,
foreign exchange, interest rate and base metal commedity
monagement. The Group Treasury function effectively
manages financial nsks in complignce with Beard-approved
polices. An external audit of the Group Treasury function in
2019 confirmed the effectiveness of controls in the Group
Treasury function. Further details of the Group's financial

risk management are included in Note 18.

Brexit

The Group generates 5% of sales in the United Kingdom.
Whilst not a significant percentage of the Group's revenue,
the Group has taken steps to fully prepare for any potential
irpacts following the UK's withdrawal from the EU on 31
January 2020, We have fine-tuned our Brexit mitigation plan
and continue to held o Brexit contingency stock of £3m at the
year end. Developments are being monitored and further
mitigation actions may be taken as appropriate. Brexit is

also considered within cur principal risks, see page 56.

Capital allocation & dividend policy

The Board determines the appropricte capital structure for the
Group, specifically, how much cash 1s raised from shareholders
(equity) and how much is borrowed from financial institutions
(debt) in order to finance the Group's activities both now and

in the future.

The Beoard considers the Group's capital structure and dividend
policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing results in the
context of 1ts ability to continue as a going concern and deliver
1ts business plan.

The Board 1s mindful that eguity capital cannot be easily flexed
and raising new equity would normally be Jikely only in the
context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased
more easily, but frequent changes lead to high transaction
costs and debt holders are under ne obligation to accept
repurchase offers.

At 31 December 2019, IMI plc {the company) had distnbutable
reserves of £303m (2018 £320m).

Daniel Shook
Finance Director
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Key Performance Indicators

The Key Performance Indicators (‘"KPIs') set out below represent
financial and non-financial measures which are integral to the
delivery of our strategy and are used to track progress.

Lost Time
Accidents

Par
100,000
havre

oz

o1

LED

011 .08
T2017 T 2018

Organic
Sales
Growth

2017 2018

o e,
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0.072

2019

201%

Why is this a KPI?
The heaith and safety

of all who work at IMl s
pargmount. Ensuring a
safe working environrment
s closely inked to our
operationdl progress.

It 15 alse important for
attracting ond retaining
the best talent.

Definition
We rmeasure our progress
in this area by tracking our
>1 daylost time accident
frequency rate ('LTA rate”)
per 100,000 hours. This
includes visitors and
contractors.

Performance
In 2012 our LTA rate
reduced to 15 with no
fatalities, reflecting the
Group's continued focus on
identifying and reducing
workplace hazards.

Why is this a KPI?
Delvering consistent growth
s animportant part of
building sustainable value
for sharehoiders.

Definition

Orgarnic sales is stated at
constant exchange rates
and excludes the
ncrernental effect of
acquisitions and disposals.
For 2019 that means we
are including 12 months of
Bimba sales in 2018 and
excluding PBM sales in 2019.

Performance

The dechine since 2018

is mainly driven by the
impact of Fossil Power
New Construction
slowdown in IMI Critica!
and the wider econormic
inpact on the IM] Precision
European industriaf
Automaction sector

Why is this a KPI?

The engagement of our
employees is key to retaining
the existing skills and
promoting and attracting
employees who bring new
ideas ond capabihities

Employee
Engagement

Definition
We carry out an annual
employee survey as part
of our IMI ' Way Doy’ and

- use the response to certain

questions as the gauge of
employee engagement. This

- score I1s In response to the

percentage of employees
so who would recomrmend

IMI as a good employer

to family and friends.

Performance
o Based an the feedback

across the questionnaire

this increased to 4% from
the prior year of 71%

&7

n

T4

TT017 T s’ 20198

Why is this a KPI?
Growing our profits will
ultimately genercte value
for our shareholders and
crecte more opportunty
to invest further

Adjusted
Operating
Profit

o Definition
00 The Group's Operating
- Profit before the adjusting
items described in Note 3,
which ensures @ consistent
basis for comparisen.

= Performance
We have maintained the
Adjusted Operoting Profit
from 2018, despite lower
sales, through our self-help
Initiatives in response to
the econormic trading
o0 environment, which also
rmeans we have increased
our Operating Margin by
20bps to 14 2%

ok gt

239.2 265.5

2017 2018 2019 -

Adjusted Operating Profit is a torget for the 2020 Annuel Bonus. Return an

Capital Employed and Adjusted Earnings per Share are performance targets
for the 2020 IIP. See poge 93 for further details.




Cash
Conversion

b2} 83

T 017 T a01s

Adjusted
Earnings
Per Share

Why is this a KPI?
Cash generation supports
Investment in our business
and enables the Group

to provide returns to
shareholders through
dmvidends. Strong cash
generation also ensures a
strong balance sheet, gving
customers and suppliers
confidence in the future
of the Group.

Definition

Cash Conversion ts the
Adjusted Cpercting Cash
flow as a percentage of the
Adjusted Operating Profit,

Performance

The increase from prior
year reflects the increased
focus on debtor recoveries
durning 2019,

Why is this a KPi?
Creating consistent
fong-term vaive for
sharehalders

Definition

Adjusted Profit after tax
divided by the wexghted
average nimber of basic
ordinary shares.

Performance
Performance was flot
year over yeor, despite the
reduction in sales, due to
our margin Improverment
imtiatives.

Return on
Capital
Employed

15
Reflects praforme

adyustment for [FRS 16

v
-
— 11.8 12.2 11.4

2017 2018

Why is this a KPi?

The measure provides an
indication of IMl's ability to
deploy capital effectively.

Definition

Adjusted Operating Profit
after tax divided by Average
Capital employed Capital
employed s defined as ret
assets adjusted to remove
net debt, derivative assets/
liabilities, defined benefit
pension position (net of
deferred tox) and to reverse
historical impairments of
goodwill and amortisation of
acquired intangible assets

Performance

The reduction from prior
year reflects the similar
profit level, an adverse
impact of 0.6% from the
new leases accounting
standard and higher capital
frorn the PBM acquisition.

Our KPIs have been designed

to drive the Group towards
meeting our strategic objectives
outlined in our business model.
See pages 12 and 13 for details.

Business model:
Turn to page 12

Annuc! Directars' Remuneration Report:
Turn to page 80




How we manage

risk

Our risk management processes are embedded in all of

our businesses and are designed to identify, evaluate and
manage the risks which could impact our performance, our
reputation or our ability to successfully execute our strategy.

Ovur risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that we
manage our rsk exposure appropriately to achieve our
strategic objectives and build sustainable shareholder value.
This nvolves assessment of principal risks and emerging risks.

The Board determines our nisk appetite and moniters and reviews
the nsk management processes we operate. The Board delegates
responsibility for implementing and monitoring internal controls
and other elements of risk management to the Chief Executive
and the Executive Committee. The Board has alse tasked its
comrmittees with responsibility for key areas of rnisk, as follows:

» oversight of financiat reporting, internal financial controls

and assurance processes — the Audit Cormmuttee;
» talent and succession risk - the Nominations Committee: and
» remuneration and mecentive structure risk - the Remuneration

Committee.

Further information about the roles ond responsibiltties of the
Board and each Committee is set cut on poges 62 to 69

Our principal risks

The Board assesses the Group's principal risks which are
detailed on pages 56 to 59. Cur analysis of the likelihcod
of each of these risks occurning and its potential iImpoct s
llustrated in the graphic below. The Board also review and
discuss this analysis

Principal risk matrix

Low

. Global economic or political Instabiity

. Increasingly competitve markets
Fallure to deliwer majer projects on time
. Quuality 1ssues

. Failure to integrate acquisitions

Unauthorised access to IT system

Some

Failure to comply with legislation

. New product development

Size = impact of risk

Amount of control

High
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Our risk appetite

In deterrmining the nature and level of risk we are prepared
to accept te achieve our strategic objectives, the Board takes
into account a number of factors including our strategic
opportunities, the risks that could affect our business and
our abllity to mitigate theiwr impact. During the year we
updated our risk appetite ratings as follows

Risk appetite  Definition

rating

Very prudent  No/very low tolerance to nsk, regardless of the
cast of the required controls

Prudent A low risk approach via sufficient ond proportional
controls and mitigabion, in the knowledge this will
lirmit any potential reward.

Balonced Appled in circumstonces where there s a high
chance of success, equal consideration s given
to the achievement of strategic objectives and
potential negative risk impact.
Risk reduction not carried out in instances of
disproportional cost

Receptive Elevated levels of risk accepted in the case of
opportunities that offer improved returns

Very High tevels of risk accepted in the case of

receptive unproven or new projects that offer significant

returns or growth potentiol

56&8
Remote Possible Probable
Likelihood



Emerging risks

The Board aiso assesses the rnisks that could impaoct the
Group which have not yet occurred but ore at an early stage
of becoming known and are expected to become more
significant We maonitor and review emerging risks as part
of our monthly operational and Executive Committee review
processes. Consideratian of ermerging risks also forms port
of our strategy review process.

Emerging risks that could be relevant to our business include
new technological advances including the “Internet of Things'
and in particutar digital capabilities embedded in products
that enable predictive maintenance and reduce unplanned
downtime. These advances could impact our business model
particularly if we are slow to respond to customer demand.

Climate change

Climate change is one of the global megatrends that s driving
demand for our products and services. Increasingly customers
are looking to us to prowvide fluid control engineering solutions
that help them minimise their impact on the environment and
operate their businesses efficiently and effectively Exomples of
some of our innovative solutions are set out on pages 38to 41
and 46. As explained on pages 32 to 34 we are committed to
running our own operations In a responsible way to minimise
our impact on the planet,

Climate change also creates potential risk for our business,
For example extrerne weather and natural hazards, which
are becarning mare common, could impact cur day-to-day
operaticns We have contingency plans in place et each of
our manufacturng plants and key commercial operations to
mitigate the impact of our business being adversely affected

Strategic risk management process

by cimate events. Specifically in relation to our IT systems,
we have disaster recovery plans and implement stringent
back up procedures in all cur businesses. We alsc maintain
comprehensive property damage and business insurance
interruption cover.

We suppert the Task Force on Chmate-reloted Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD") recommendations in relation to the
disclosure of information about the risks and eppertunities
presented by climate change. In the coming year we will
enhance our governance and risk management processes to
ensure that climate issues, and their impact on our business,
are reguiarly assessed, considered and managed.

How we approach risk management

Across the Group we aperate a “top-down, bottom-up
approach” to nsk management which is illustrated in the
graphic below This approach aliows the Board and the
Executive Committee to actively assess strategic nisks and
monitor the measures used to rmitigate, transfer or avoid
such risks. It also ensures that operational risks are identified
and mancged at multiple levels and that key risk information
is communicated effectively across the Group.

Our rnisk management process 1s embedded in all our
businesses and I1s a core elernent of our strategy review and
monthly operational meetings. It provides guidance in relation
to the identification, evaluation and managerment of ricks,
including emerging risks, which could impact our performance
and ocur ability to implement our strategy.

Operational risk management process

» Determines nsk appetite. Board AN\ Reviews br-annually o detailed analysis of the Group's risk profile including
P supporting disional data and the actions undertaken
» Reviews principal risks.
» Reviews annually the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls.
» Manrtors and reviews risk managerment
processes
» Respansible for ensuring nsk management Divisional » Develops bi-annually a detaled Group and dwvisional risk profile which
culture 1s integrated across their division and Group s based on infermation uploaded to the Group intraret by each
and alignad to the Group's cbjectives. Executive manufacturing operation. This profile analyses each dvision’s most
significant risks and outlines mitigation strategies
» Deterrmines pnncipal nsks and mitigation
strategies » Hornzon scons for new emerging risks using o number of mechonsms
including divisional strotegic and manthly reviews and market, competitor
» Monitors changes in the risk profile and product deveiopments
» Monuters quality and effectiveness of » Publish risk profiles for each manufacturing operation to the Group intranet
business level risk mantgement processes either once or twice a year depending on the operation's nsk profile
» Operates and momtors an active and Operating » Mamtains an up-to-dote nisk profile which identifies the key risks facing
effective nsk management process. companies the business, assesses mitigating processes and controls, operates key
performance indicators to validate the effectiveness of those controls and
» Operates reporting systems that increase identifies areas for improvement
management ownership
and accountabihity. » Prowides monthly updates on key risks, mitigation and controls through
v incorporation of risk profie data in monthly management reporting process.

ES



Our principal risks

The principal rsks facing the Group are shown in order of priority in the table below. This analysis covers how each risk coutd
Impact our strategy, our risk appetite to the particular risk, how our assessment has changed during 2019 and expiains what
we are doing te monitor and mitigate each risk area.

Risk, link to strategy and risk appetite Change Risk mitigation including specific 2019 actions
1. Global economic or pofitical o Qur divisions ensure therr forecasting processes provide,
uncertainty whenever possible, early indications of reduced customer
Increased dernand to allow proactive management of plant cutput.

The Group operates in diverse glebal
markets and demand for our products
1s dependent on economic and sector-
speahic environments. A downturn

in the global or a regional economy,
brought on by economic cycles, palitical
instability, health or environmenta!
ermergencles, could impact end market
demand and as a result negatively
impact revenue and our ability to
delver our strategy and cchieve
market expectations

Link to strategy
Growth acceleration

Commercial excellence

Risk appetite

Balanced

2. Competitive markets

Increased competition in our core
rmarkets, from both existing and new
competitors, including new entrants
from markets in dechine as a result of
econormic slowdown This could create
strong pricing pressures, potenbiolly
resulting in lost sales and

reduced profits

Link to strategy
Customer focus
Growth acceleration
Operational excellence

Cormmercial excellence

Risk appetite

Receptive

IM| Critical continues to face
highly competitive markets
and a continued slow-down

in the new construction fossi
power sector. Whiist stillin a
strong position, IMI Precision
has also seen a decline In
markets, particuarly industrial
automation and predominately
inits largest European market.
IMI Hydrenic has seen some
growth opportunities but s
operating in relatively flat
markets

Health or clmate emergencies
can impact regional or global
economic demand and disrupt
supply and delwery chains

Although the UK forrmally exited
the EU in January, uncertainty
remains regarding the fong-
term economic arrangements

Increased

tn 2019 we saw o sales
downturn in the industriat
markets (in particular Industrial
Automation and Commercial
Vehicle) and continued

rmargin pressure 0 the

Fossil Power sector.

We have maonaged the economic instability during the year
through restructuring programmes ond footprint changes.
IMI Precision is engaged in a significant cost restructuring
programme {MI Critical is continuing to right-size its business
and reduce cdministrative and manufacturing overheads The
division has also mtroduced a flatter regional management
structure which will enable it to be more efficient and agie

While IMI Hydronic's markets are less sensttive to global
macro-econormic factors, the division s continuing to
challenge its cost structure and grow market share through
commercial and technology partnerships and by focusing on
faster growth adjacent markets (for example radiant heating
and control/actuation).

We maintain a balanced portfolio operating across a range of
markets, sectors and geographies with no single dependency.

We undertake enhanced stress testing and sensitivity analys:s
of business plans and regularly review key market and sector
metrics.

We haove fine-tuned our Brexit mitigation and established,
chead of the evenrt, Brexit contingency stack, Developments
are bemng monitored and further mitigotion actions may be
taken as appropnate

We momitor competrtion nsk via selected indicators during
the monthly operational reviews undertaken by each of
our businesses.

Qur Growth Accelerator programrme (see page 17) ains to
create significont customer-pult by solving industry problems
threugh applications engineering.

Cur Volue Engineering activities in all of our divisions are
helping us deliver more competitive products.

We cantinue to develop our market leading applications
engineering expertise and, in particular, our Valve Doctors in
IM! Critical, our Hydronic College and Engineering Advantage
teams in iMi Precision.

Strategy
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Risk mitigation including specific 2019 actions

Risk, link to strategy and risk appetite Change

3. Failure to deliver major ° We have deep and extensive restructuring and integration
transformational projects on expertise
time and on budget Increased

The Group is continually eveiving and
taking opportunities in response to
external conditions and maorket pressures.
Qur current strategy includes large
restructuning programmes and complex
IT systern instollations. Failure to delver
the expected objectives on time and on
budget, could have an adverse revenue
and profit impact on the Group.

Link to strategy
Customer focus
Growth acceleration
Operational excellence

Commercial excellence

Risk appetite
Prudent

4. Quality issues leading to product
recall, warranty issues, injury,
damage or disruption to
customers’ business

Developing innovative and
technologically advanced products is
at the heart of IMI. The quality and
safety of our products and services s
of the highest importance and failure
to deliver the quality required could
resuit in negative financial and
reputational damage

Link to strategy
Customer focus
Growth acceleration
Operational excellence

Commercial excelience

Risk appetite
Very prudent

With the recent acquisition

of PBM and the intiation

of significant restructuring
progrommes, project execotion
nisks have increased in 2019,
particularly given the pressure
that these projects impose on
management capacity and
resources.

@

No change

Inherent risk in this area has
increased primartly due to the
sale of more products with
graeater complexity 0cross a
larger geographic footprint if
unmanaged this could resutt in
products being sold In terrtores
without the necessary in-depth
sales support and experience,
which could lead to higher
warranty claims.

However, year on vear, the risk
profile remans sirmlar due to
a continuing focus on praduct
quality and detailed mapping
of our engineering resources
across our customers and
geographies

We opercte robust and proven processes to manage

and monitor major projects, mcluding setting clear and
measurable milestones which are reviewed regularly by our
Executive Committee and divisional management teams.

Divisional restructuning costs and the associated benefits
are tracked against targets on a monthly basis.

Standarised documentation ond core processes underpin
all IT prajects to support efficient ERP system roll out.

Across our operationat platform we hove well embedded
Lean Assessrment quality improvement programmes, Obeya
reviews and Advanced Product Quality Planning processes
Qur most criticol projects include extensive testing of the
finished product and customer sign-off.

IM| Hydrorue 15 focusing on developing a smaller number
of new products to ensure its product development and
engineering resources are not overburdened.
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Ouvr principal risks

Risk, link to strategy and risk oppetite Change Risk mitigation including specific 2019 actions

5. Failure to integrate acquisitions @ We have in-house M&A expertise and, os highlighted
successfully and deliver the required previously, operate o proven structured integrotion
synergies No change process

Underperforming acqussitions deliver
below expectation synergies and
reduced profit If matenal, this can
ssgnificantly impact shareholder value

Link to strategy
Growth acceleration
Cperatiocnal excellence

Commercial excellence

Risk appetite

Receptive

6. Unauthorised access to our
IT systems

Unapproved access to our T systems
could result in loss of intellectual
property, fraudulent actvity, theft
and business interruption.

As the digital ond secunity threat
envirenment 15 quickly evolving we
cannot guarantee that our actions
are keeping pace with the constantly
eveolving threat environment.

Link to strategy
Operational excellence

Commercial excellence

Risk appetite
Very prudent

The acquisition of PBM (which gives us
access to the Pharmareutical and Food
Processing markets) in the year was
completed quickly and efficiently PBM
and divisional integration management
teams are well resourced and the
Integration process is pragressing well

The recent integration of Birba (which
15 on track to dehver its acquisition case)
and the phased roll out of divisional
ERP systems demonstrates that we
have effective INtegration expenence
and processes In place

<>

No change

During 2019, we continued to detect,
block and rermediate threats on an
ongoing basis These included maolware,
ransomware, attempted data theft,
credential theft, phishing and external
hacking attempts.

The complexity and the frequency

of the speculative attacks observed
ncreased i 2019, although we have
no evidence that we were speafically
targeted.

To counter the increase in threat
actwity in 2019 we have continued the
significant investment in our detective
and preventative IT meagsures by

» further improving our Group-wide
Security Operatiaons Centre ("SOC")
monitoring service, which operates
24 hours a day;

» rolling out a wide programme of
new IT security protocols across the
Group's infrastructure; and

» holding secunity comphance
workshops and 1T security
awareness programmes.

The Annual Strategic review process helps identify
value enhancing acquisitions which would align with
the Group's strategy Once identified, a formalised
acquisition approval, due diligence and integration
process s followed. Upon completion, a detailed
100-day process is used to ensure adequate resources
are in place, progress s on schedule and the identified
synergies (both hard and soft) are being reahsed

We have a well-developed IT security strategy,

which ts reviewed manthly, We continue to implement
improvements to cur T infrastructure to keep
abreast of new threats.

We continue to strengthen our security baseline
through the enablement of autormated global
software updaotes and automatic lockdown
capabilities. We have aiso strengthened our digtat
forensic capabilities and remediation processes in
the event of o cyber secunty noident occurring.

We regularly test our disaster recovery plans to ensure
we have stringent system back up procedures in place.
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- %

Risk, link to strategy and risk appetite

Change

Risk mitigation including specific 2019 actions.

7. Failure to comply with legisiation or
a breach of our own high stondards
of ethical behaviour

We have established o fremework
which demands the highest standards
of ethics ond reguiatory compliance
across all of our businesses As we
expand our operations to achieve
growth, 1t 1s essential that we maintain
these standards A breach of Jegislotive
requirerments in relotion to tax, anti-
bribery, fraud and cormpetiticn low
could result in financial and reputationat
damage. The markets in which [MI
operates, particularly in IMI Critical,
make the risk of regulatory breach

an area of focus

Link to strategy
Customer focus
Growth acceleration

Risk appetite

Very prudent

8. New Product Development

Failure to deliver maorket leading
products, on time and on budget,
could impact our ability to grow

Link to strategy
Customer focus
Growth acceleration

Commmercial excellence

Risk uppetite

Receptive

<>

No change

We continue to operatein
sirmilar markets as lost vear,
with no significant changes in
legislation

<>

No change

Whiie we continue to introduce
new products, launches are
planned to avoid new product
concentration risk and timed to
ensure relevant teams have the
bandwidth to deliver effectively

Integrity s o cornerstone of our culture It s one of our core
values and underpins everything we do. Read more about our
culture on poges 26 to 35

Dedicated resourcas at both the Group and Bivisional! level
ensure employees are provided with the necessary training,
guidelines and standard operating policies to ensure that
everybody s aware of the conduct expected from them, in
particular in relation to the key nsk areas of anti-bribery &
corruption, anti-trust ond economic & trade sanctions. During
the year our Code of Conduct was updoted (see page 24).

Each division assesses its own compliance risk and formulates
an annual dvisional comphance plan which s implermented by
each Dmision's General Counsel, who report to the respective
Dwisional Managing Director. Due diligence on third parties,
trade sanctions and customers are the subject of standard
cperating procedures and carned out by the divisions using
Group-wide software. In 2019 around half of the entire
workforce - some 5,635 employees - completed online traning
rmodules on third party risk via eLearning In addition, detailed
training 1s given to stoff in more commeraic roles who

have significant outonomy to contract with customers

and suppliers.

We operate a confidenticl independent hotline to report
concerns {see page 25)

Each division has @ New Product Development strategy
which is regularly revewed, with divisional engineering teams
reporting on the performance of our existing products and
new market or competitor developrments,

We implement a robust New Product Development Process
which covers market analysis, design, prototyping, testing
ond costing.

We have establshed centres of design ond technological
excellence gcross our businesses.

Qur Growth Accelerator programme, previously mentioned,
1s enhancing our mnovation and development copabilities.
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How does a Power
Plant manager fix
poorly performing
competitor valves?

A Power Plant operator in North America was having
problems with competitor valves in severe applications.

He needed a solution that could be conceived and delivered
within a normal outage cycle. IM| used its extensive
expertise in critical volves and designed and built, by additive
manufacturing, a solution fitted inside the competitor's
vaive body, thus reducing time cost of the upgrade. Listening
to what the customer needed and applying best-in-ciass
expertise delivered a successful outcome for both parties,
This was the first order to success to come from IMI's
exciting Growth Accelerator Programme.

Engineering's

e
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Board of Directors

Nationolity Committee Date of
membership appointment
Briush Meminations 2015
Committee  Char
Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charrman {75)
British Executive 2019 os Chief
Committes Executive
and 2007
as director
Roy Twite
Chief Executive (52)
Amencan British Executive 2015
Cormruttee
Danief Shook
Finance Director (52)
Darish Narminations 2018
Committee
Remuneration
Committee
(unts 29 February
20720)
Audit Committee
(from § March 2020)
. Non- executrve director
Thomas Thune responsible for
Andersen employee engogemnent
Independent Noh-executive and ESG motters
director {64) (fram 1 March 2020)
Internationol Public
business company boord
responsibility
Enginoering Finance

Board
experience
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Expertise

Sgnificant LiK and
nternanonal baard
experence

Extenswve knowledge of
beth engineenng and
manufactunng

Strong trock record in
private equity, mergers
and acguisitens

Soecialst capability
infinance

Praven grgenisational and
engineenng expertise

Management capability
having run oil of IMI's
drwisions

Extenuve knowledge
of ena-rmarkets and
customrer base

Extencve finanaal
managﬁment experience

Extensve knawledge

of complex process
manufactunng across a
range of industrigl sectors

Strong nternational
parspective, having

weorked . a number of key
gecgraphies during his time
with two leading globa!
businesses

Exper.enced international
business leader in sectors
ncluding oll, energy, marine
and critical infrastructure

Broad exper ience as
non-executive director of
various public companies

Key external
appeointments

Non-executive Charman
of Scotten Enterprse
MNon-executive Charman
of the British Business
Bank ple

MNon executive directar
of Halma pic”

Non-executive director
af Ultro Electronics
Haldings plc”

Charrman of Lloyds
Register Group
Chenrran of Orsted
AfST

Memier of the Danish
Committee tor Good
Corporate Governance
Non-executive director
of BW Group Ltd

Mergers &

acquisitions E

& legal

nvironmental,
Health & Safety




Nationality
Irisk:
Caroline Dowling
Independent non-executive
director (53}
German
Carl-Peter Forster
Semor independent non-
executve director (65)
British
Katie Jackson
Independent non-execut ive
directaor (46)
Danish

Birgit Nergaard
Independent non-executive

director {61)
Retures fram the Board on 29 Feb 2020

British

Isobel Sharp
Independent non-executive
director (64)

Dote of
appointment

Committee
membership

MNominations 1 Janvary 2020
Committee

Remuneration

Commuttee

Audit Committee 2012
Nominations

Compnittoe

Remuneratiaon

Commuittes

Norminations 2018
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Remuneration 2012
Committee - Chaw

Audit Committee

MNormmations

Committee

Non executive director
tor employee
engogerment

Acdit Commttee - 2015
Charr

Nominptions
Commnittee

Expertise

Career in the technology
mdustry

Serior executive leadarstup
af wnter natienal operations

Experenced mternational
husiness feader

In-depth knowledge of the
automative sector

Expert .« operaticnal
excellence gnd Lean
morufacturng

Sigruficant experience in
technology maoragement

Senior exccutive expenence
1IN Maor aif coMmpanies and
wwestment banking

Speciahst krowlodge
of the Ol & Gas sector
and excellent corporate
finance expenence

Experenced non-executwve

Hald sermar executive
2UstaAns Iin Emgrﬂew‘mg
consultaney

Wide ranging sectoral
experience INCuding epergy.
water, mifrastructurs ang
buttding industries

Expenence in strategy
os well as finance and
geeounting

Censiderable accounting,
audit, gavernance and
transactions experience
incleding time as the
Senor Techmeal Portner
at Delaitte :n London,
President of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
Scotland and membership
of the UK Accounting
Standards Boord ond the
Reperting Rewew Panel

Key external
appointments

MNan-execut ve director
of DCC gic”

Charman of Chemnag Group plo”
Member of the PWC Adwisory Board
Chairman of the Shareholder

Committee of HELLA GmbH & Co
KGaA

Executive Vice Prewdent of
Commercial ond New Business
Development at Royal Dutch Shell

Non-executive directar of
DSV A/S™ and NCC AR
Non executre director
of WSP Globai inc *

Non-executive director and
Audit Cormmuttee Char of The
Bankers Irvestment Trust PLC®
Non-executive director and
Avudit Commuttee Charr of
Winton Group Linmited
Honorary Professor ot
Edinburgh University

Business School

~ Listed company directorshup
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Chairman’s g

Dear Shareholder

During the year we successfuily transitioned
to a new Chief Executive and developed a
fresh strategy for the Group. At such times
it is particularly important that the Board
provides effective leadership and maintains
the highest standards of corporate
governance. In the Corporate Governance
section of this Annual Report on pages 62
to 100, we describe our governance
arrangements and the practical workings
of the Board and its committees.

Leadership

am now in my fifth year as Chairman and have enjoyed an
Interesting year in the Group's development. We welcomed
Roy Twite ta his new role as Chief Executive and oversaw the
smpoth transition from his predecessor, Mark Selway.

The Boord 1s fully engaged, able to both support and chaflenge
the executive team, and haos the skills and experience to oversee
governance, strategy and risk management. The quality of
debate at meetings 1s excellent and we get valuable input

from all of our non-executive directors | know Roy well and

as Chairman [ vaiue my close working relationshig wath furn

Strategic review

Once Roy assumed his new role in May 2019, the Board worked
with him and his Executive team to formulate the future
strategy for the Group which received final Board approval
and was announced in Novernber 2019,

Culture

The Board sets the tone at the top and during the year we
conducted a review of the Group's purpose, values and culture
alongside the strategy review. The Board hes estailished clear
leadership values and behaviours which are underpinned by
our refreshed code of conduct and built into cur leadership
development programmes and performance assessmant
processes. Excellent leadership behaviours are requirements
for career advancerment in the Group.
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The Board's review of culture looked at a range of indicators of
culture including Group-wide employee survey data, customer
satisfaction ratings and other stakeholder feedback. We alsc
reviewed stakeholder engagement and found indicators of
culture in the process

During the year the Board adopted a new statement of
purpose for the Group and reaffirmed the IMI values which
were expanded to include “customer focus” For further
information on customer focus, please refer to page 15

of this Report

The Board wilt continue to oversee the Group's culture to
ensure that it continues to develop in a way that s aligned
with our purpose and strategy.

Stakeholder engagement

During the year the Boord reviewed the Group's key
stakeholders and the engagement mecharisms and processes
we operate to engage with themn. The Group's key stakeholders
and engagement channels are summarised on page 41

Board level engagement is conducted with shareholders (see
page 70) and employees (see page 68) including through the
non-executive director for employee engagement.

Management regularly updates the Board about the state of
relations and engagement with customers and employees and
there are active engagerment and feedback processes in place
which form part of the Board's regular review activity

Governance highlights

» Oversaw the transition to Roy Twite as the new Chief
Executive with effect from @ May 201%

» Worked with the new Chief Executive and his team to
refine the Group's strategy and fully endersed the strategy
announced in November 2019 ond set cut inthis
Annual Report.

» Succession plans for Birgit Nergaard's retirement from the
Board were put in place

» Following an extensive search process led by the Neminations
Committee, Caroline Dowling was appointed to the Board as
a non-executive director.

» Approved and completed the acquisition of PBM for £69m.



Compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code")

| am pleased to report that we complied with all of the
principles of the Code during the yeor and provide the following
summary with eross-references to other sections of this
Annual Report.

Independence

Over half of the Board comprises independent non-executive
directors and the composition of all Board commuttees
complies with the Code. Additionally, the Board considered
me to be independent on my appointment as Chairman.
More information about the Board members i1s provided

on pages 62 and 63.

Senior independent director

Our senior independent director 1s Carl-Peter Forster and
more information on his role appears in the IMI Corporate
Governance Framewaork which can be found on our website.

Accountability and election

There is a clear separation of duties between the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive. All of the directors stond
for re-election at each Annual General Meeting after their
first election.

Evaluation

An internally facilitated evaluation was undertaken in 2019 in
accordance with the requirements of the Code. Further details
appear on page 67 of this Annual Report.

Attendance

All directors have attended an acceptable level of Board and
committee meetings, details of which appear on page &6 for
the Board and in each of the Committee Reports.

Committee choir experience

The Audit Commuttee chair has been in post since 2017 and
meets the specific Code requirements with regard to recent
and relevant financial experience.

The Remuneration Committee chair has been in post
since 2017 and a member of the Committee since 2012
The successor as chair from 1 March 2020 has been a
member of the Committee since 2012

The Nominations Committee chair has been in post since 2015,

Governance Framework and
Section 172 Statement

We have a detailed framework documenting the various roles
of the Board members, the Board and its commuittees and
the matters reserved to the Board. Further information
appears on poge 69 of this Annual Report ond the 1M}
Governance Framework.

A statutory Section 172 Stotement pursuant to the
Companies Act 2006 appears on peges 70 and 71,

Auydit tenure and independence

EY continued as the Group's external auditor in 2019 following
an audit tender process. In line with statutory requirements,
the Audit Committee led an audit tender process in 2018
which resulted in the decision to re-appornt EY as the

external auditor.

EY is considered to be independent and recewves £0.1m income
from non-audit work for the Group as detailed on page 75.

Internal audit
Details of the internal audit function are provided on page 74.

Culture

During the year the Board has reviewed the Group's culture

in paraliel with its work to formulate with the new Chief
Executive a fresh statement of IMI's purpose, vision and values.
This was done alongside the development of the Group's new
strategy. Further information with respect to culture is to be
found on pages 24 to 35

Executive remuneration

Qur remuneration pehey was approved by shareholders in
2018 and its operdation in practice complies with the Code as
dermcnstrated by the terms of appointrnent for the new Chief
Executive which are detailed :n the Remuneration Report on
pages 78 to 93. The Remuneration Committee's remit extends
to remuneration for the Chairman, Executive Directors and
other members of the Executive Committee.

Engagement with the workforce and

other key stakeholders

We have appointed a non-executive director for employee
engagerment and information about that role 1s provided on
poge 68 of this Annual Report. Other stakeholder engogement
15 summarised on page 41

Diversity

Information about the diversity of the Board appears on
pages 66 and 77 The Group’s Diversity Policy and what the
Group 1s doing to promote diversity in areas like management
succession and development is reported on pages 27 to 30.

Yours farthfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

27 February 2020
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Code compliance statement

The Board is commutted to maintaming good governance and
confirms that threughout the year-ending 31 December 2019
the Company has applied the principles contained in the Code
and complied with 1ts best practice provisions. Highhghts of
our compliance with the Code are given in the Chairman's
governance letter on poges 64 and 65 Further details of how
we have applied the Code appear below, in the Directors’
Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annugl
Repart, all of which are incorporated by reference into this
report A description of the main features of the Company's
internal control system and disclosures on other regulatory
matters including statements on going cancern and viability
can be found 1n the Directors’ Report on pages 74 to 100,

A summary of our risk management systems and information
about the risks and uncertainties that relate to cur business

1s detalled on pages 54 to 59. Information on corporate
responsibility can be found in the Environmental,

Soriat and Governance section on pages 22 to 35

Board composition

Eight directors served on the Board throughout 2019 the
Chairman, the Chief Executive; four independent non-executive
directors and the Finance Cirector. The former Chief Executive,
Mark Selway, retired as a director on 31 July 2019 In addition,
anew non-executive director was appointed with effect from

1 January 2020. Birgit Nergaard will step down on 29 February
2020 and the Board will then comprise eight directors. Al
continuing directors will stand for re-election at each Annual
General Meeting (or election if oppeinted since the previous
Annual General Meeting)

Independence of non-executive directors

The Board considers that all of the non-executive directors
are free from ony business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of therr ndependent
judgement and all meet the criteria for independence under
the Code. All of the non-executive directors are regarded by
the Board as independent. The Chairman was also regarded
as independent at the date of his appointment.

Board diversity

The non-executive directors are o diverse group from different
backgrounds and naticnalties and bring with them o wide
range of skills and experience in commerce, finance and
industry from arcund the world. Half the Boaord are non-British
and there are five different notionalities on the Board Three
of the eight continuing directors are female. Qur approach

to diversity is set out in more detail on pages 27 and 28 and

i the Nominations Committee Report on pages 76 and 77,
The chorts below represent the Board membership excluding
Birgit Nergaard who retires on 29 February 2020.

v Gender T

Non-executive /
executive directors*®

DI

5 Mole
2 Fernale

5 [ndependent non-executive drectors
2 Executive directors

“ Under the 2018 Code. the Chairman s excluded when considening the
mdependent nan executve composition of the Boared

Nationality Age
4
& &
& Other 3 40-49
4 British 2 50-59
& &0+

Dates of appointment

Length of tenure at 31 December 2019

Thornas Thune Andersen
Caroline Dowling

—
Carl-Peter Forster
Katie Jockson s
I
kel i

Birgit Nergaard
Isobel Sharp
Lord Rabert Smith

2 3 4 5 & 7
Years
Date of first Date of current letter
appointment of appointment
Thomas Thune Andersen 1 July 2018 25 February 2020

1 Januory 2020

1 October 2012

1 July 2018

& Novernber 2012
1 September 2015
7 May 2015

25 February 2020
25 February 2020
25 February 2020
23 September 201%
25 February 2020
25 February 2020

Caroline Dowling
Cori-Peter Forster
Katie Jackson
Birgit Nergaard
Isobel Sharp

Lord Robert Smith
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Share ownership for the Chairman and
non-executive directors

The Charrman and non-executive directors are encouraged 1o
hold some shares in IMbwithin a reasonable period after their
appointment. As at 31 December 2019, the Chairman and
serving non-executive directors all held IMI shares as set out
in the table on page 90

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six occasions during the year including
two results reporting meetings, o doy dedicated to strotegy
discussions and regular review meetings ot which updates
are provided as appropriate covenng health and safety,
operational and financial matters, investor relations, risk
and legal offars In addition, there were several days

spent on Board site visits and attendance at other everts.
Ali Board meetings during the year included significant

tirme dedicated to the strotegy review process.

2019 Board cycle

In additien to the regular agenda items for operational
rmatters, business perforrmance and corporate affairs including
nvestor relations, the following matters were dealt with ot
Board meetings in the year:

February

Approval of the prebmnary results anncuncement and Annual Report
Approvat of the final dwidend recommendation

Approvol of the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Review of the first monthly phased foracast for 2019

Strategy review process

Updote traiming on governance and directors' duties

May

Review of trading and cther updates

Review of the Q2 Forecost

Approval of the interm monagement statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy review process

IT and cyber security update

July

Approval of the half year results enncuncement
Approvaf of the iIntenim dividend

Review of the Q3 Forecast

Interim risk review

Strategy review process

September

Strategy review process

Growth Accelerator prasentation
Five-year business plan review

October

Site visit to operations in Ching and the Republic of Korea

Approval of the Company’s purpose, values and culture

Rewew of stakeholder engugement

Review of the Q4 Forecast

Review of current trading and outloak

Strotegy review process

Approval of the intenm management statement and strotegy announcement

December

Budget for 2020

Annual risk review
Strategy review process
Board evaluation report
Annual compliance review

Board attendance

Director Board meetings % attended

where eligible
Thomas Thune Andersen 6/6 100
Carl-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Katie Jackson &6/6 160
Birgit Nergaard &6 100
Isobel Sharp 8/ 100
Lord Smith &/6 1C0
Murk Selway! 2/3 b6
Daniel Shook /6 100
Roy Twite &/6 100

- Retired 31 July 2019

In 2020 to date the Board has met once with all members in
attendance.

Board roles and reserved maotters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is inciuded in
the IMi Carporate Governance Framework and is surnmarised
in the Directors’ Report on pages 96 and 97

Induction and continuing development
programme

A formoal induction process for new non-executive directors 1s
well established and is the responsibility of the Chairman wath
support from the Chief Executive and Company Secretary.

Business familiarisation 1s at the core of induction and
continuing developrment for non-executive directors at IMl and
15 centred around ganing an understanding of the business
and getting to know the wider management teaem. Caroline
Dowling has had induction meetings with ofl of the members
of the Executive Committee and the auditor. In addition, all
new non-executive directors attend a corporate induction

day for senior managers held ot head office. There s also o
committee induction process designed to brief new committee
members on the relevant committee and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are expected to visit business units
around the Group and te meet face-to-face with senior
operating management and key corporate staff Site visits
are also a good cppertunity to engage with a wider range of
employees. There is regular contact between management
and nan-executive directors during site visits, formal meetings
and other Company events

During 2019 the non-executive directors made several
indmdual site visits and the whole Board visited operations in
China and the Republic of Korea. Feedback on Board and
indwvidugt site visits 1s discussed with the Board

Appropricte tramning and other contimuing professional
development 15 available to all non-executive directars and
regular updates are given during the year where relevant to
the business arising at Board and committee meetings. For
example, appropriate best practice updates were provided to
the Rermuneration Commuttee and to the Board during 2019
including sessions on elements of the Code and Section 172
of the Companies Act 2006. Non-executive directors are
encouraged to undertake appropriate external traming and
severdl did attend external training during the year

&7
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Board visits to operations

Site wisits are an important, regular feature of the Board
calendar. They provide an excellent opportunity for the Board to
engage with a wide group of employees and they also faclitate
the non-executive directors' understanding of the businesses.

IMI has o substantial presence In China which is home to
business units across all three divisions, In Cctober 2019,

the Board visited IMI Precision Engineering’s manufacturing
facihty In Shanghai, the division's largest business unit in China,
The Board also visited IMI Critical Engineering's state-of-the-
art manufacturing site in Paju, the Republic of Korea During
both site visits members of the Board had the opportunity to
review the manufacturing process and meet local staff. in
paorticular, graduate trainees on placement in China joined the
Board for an informal lunch and sentor managers from the
businesses met the Board

Board evaluation

The Charrman arranged an internally facilitated evaluation
process in 2019, which was carred out through a questionnaire
process run by the Company Secretary and by the Charrnan
canvassing the views of directors individualiy in face to face
meetings. While the overall outcome of the mternal evaluation
was highly positive, the Board reviewed the findings and
agreed to the following improvement actions:

» the Boord to do selected deep dive reviews as part of its
monttoring of culture; and

» increased support for directors’ knowledge and effectiveness
through further targeted training and updates.

The evaluation acticns from the prior year, ds reported in
the 2018 Annual Report, have been carried cut resulting in
particular in more Board meeting time being dedicated to
the strategy process.

October 2019 Board visit to China and the Repubhc of Koreo

Board-led employee engagement

Birgit Nargeard has been the non-executive director for
employee engagement since 1 January 2019 and has reported
to the Board in respect of employee views presented to her.

In addition to engagement on site visits and at the annual
management conference, Birgit attended the European
Communications Forum at which representatives from the
Group's European businesses were present. She also held an
employee forum event in Chuna for local employees Overall the
views expressed to Birgit were positive and constructive and
the new role of employee engogement non-executive director
will be further developed in 2020. Thomas Thune Andersen

will assume the role from 1 March 2020 following Birgit's
retirement from the Board. In addition, Thomas will at the
same time become non-executive director for ESG matters.

As senior independent director, Carl-Peter Forster conducted
review of the Chairman with the other non-executive directors
and shared the results with the Chairman. During the year

the Chairman also met with the non-executive directors
indmidually for performance review and feedback sessions and
as a group to review the performance of the Chief Executive
The Chairman passed on to the Chief Executive appropriate
feedback from the review of his performance.

The Chairman is satisfied that the Beard is fulfilling its
responsibilities appropnately and that the Board and its
committees are effective and that each director demonstrates
o voluable contribution and 15 committed to their role.

An externally facilitated evaluation process in conjunction
with Egon Zehnder s planned for 2020
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Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committee, the Nominations Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of these cormmittees operates under written terms of reference which clearly set out their respective delegated
responsibilities and authorities The full terms of reference of these committees are port of the IMI Carporate Governance
Framework. The committees report to the Board on their work, normally through therr respective char, following each meeting

Reports from each of these committees appear in this Annual Report as foliows. Audit Committee on pages 72 to 75;
Nomingtions Committee on pages 76 and 77 and Remuneration Committee on pages 78 to 93,

Audit Committee

Isobel Sharp
Chaer

Membership

Thomaos Thune Andersen
(from 1 March 2020)
Cail-Peter Forster

Burgit Nargaard
(until 29 February 2020)

Main responsibilities
» Oversight rote in relation to financal
staterments

» Revievuing sigmificont areas of judgement
and accounting policies

» Revievang the proposed statements on
going concern and wability to appear in the
Annual Report

» Adwising the Board oh whether the droft
Annuai Report 1s foin, balanced and
understandoble

» Monrtonng announcerments in respect of
financial performance

2 Monitoring the effectiveness of internal
financial controls

» Reviewing finanaal risks including fraud nisk

» Cwversight of mternal cudit and other key
processes for monitoring internal financial
control

n Overseaing the external audit pracess, s
obectivity, effectrveness and cost with
responsibility for setting the audit fee

» Making recommendations to the Board for

the oppointment of the guditor mcluding
oversight of any audit tender process

Nominations Committee

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
Caroline Dowhng
Carl-Peter Forster

Katre Jacksan

Birgit Nergoord
(until 29 February 2020)

isobel Sharp

Main responsibilities

» Boord ond committee composition

» Oversight of succession plans for the Boord
and the Executive Committee

» Search for and recommendation of candidates
for appointment as non-executive directors,
Chief Executive and other executive director
positions

» Diversity policy, prometion of diversity and
morutorng of progress

Remuneration Committee

Birgit Nergaard
Chair
(until 29 February 2020)

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
{until 29 February 2020)

Carohne Dowling

Carl-Peter Farstar
(Char from 1 March 20200

Katie Jackson

Main responsibilities
» Define and recommend the rerruneration
policy for the Chairmaon and members of the

Executive Comnmittee

» Deterrmne the indnadual remuneration
packages for the Charrman and members of
the Executive Cormmittee within the policy
cpproved by shareholders

» Set annuat and fong-term ncentive metncs
and awards and determine the outcomes for
the members of the Executive Committee

» Report on remungrotion matters and
canstructively engage with shareholders

» Assese risk in respect of remuneration and
Incentive structures in particular
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee js chaired by the Chief Executive
and the other members are shown on page 11. The Committes
meets monthly and more often as may be required.

The Commuttee is the senior management body for the

Group and as part of the broad remit set by the Chief
Executive it monitors and manages business performance,
reviews progress against strategic objectives ond formulates
budgets and proposals on strotegy and resource allocation for
consideration by the Board. The Committee tokes its authority
fram the Chief Executive and 15 not ¢ committee of the Board.

The Cormmittee plays a key part in risk assessment and risk
management and monitonng processes and recerves reqular
reports on human resources, health and safety, internal audit,
compliance, legal, investor relations and other corporate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board oversees sharehalder engagement and maintains a
balanced understanding of the issues and concerns of major
shareholders. The Chief Executive and Finance Director have
primary responsibility ot Board level for investor relations and
they, and the Head of Investor Relations, report to the Board
on shorehotder 1ssues at every Board meeting during the year.
Financia! analysts' notes are arculated to the directors, and
the Boaord receives regulor investor feedback reports from the
Company's brokers and public relations advisers as well as
from management.

Dialogue is maintained with the principat shareholders and the
executive directors meet regularly with institutional investors.
Additional iInvestor meetings were arranged in 2019 to ensure
approgriate engagerment between the new Chief Executive
and major investors and he 1s committed to continuing
meaningful engagement with nstitutional sharehalders.
During 2019 there were over 100 such meetings with
institutional and other shareholders The Chairman and the
senior Independent director also are available to sharehelders
as needed. The Chairman has actively engaged with several
major sharehplders ot specifically arranged meetings.

The 2019 Annual General Meeting was presided over by the
Charrman and attended by afl of the serving directors. The
Chairman and the other directors met shareholders informally
afterwards Each substantively separate 1ssue was put to the
Annual General Meeting as an individual motion. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting was issued rmore than twenty working
days in advance of the meeting and the level of votes lodged
for and against each resciution, together with details of
abstentions, are shown on the IMt website. The Board values
the support of sharehoiders and the poll results for all
resclutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting

were well above 80% in favour in each case.
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In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues
preliminary results and half year results annocuncements,
as well gs two interim management statements between
results announcements. The IMI website includes recordings
of results presentations made by senior management,
recent annual and half year reports, intenm managerment
staterments, other corporate announcements and links to
the websites of the Group's businesses.

Stakeholder voice and Section 172
statement

A statement pursuant to Section 172 of the Companies

Act 2006 15 required content for the first tirme in this Annual
Report. The primary duty of the directors under Section 172 15
to act in the way they consider would be most [ikely to promote
the success of the Company for the benefit of its sharehalders
as ¢ whole and to do so hoving regord os appropriate to
certain statutory factors and other relevant matters.

All Board decisions are made with the Group's long-term
success in mind and, as can be seen from this Annual Report,
the Board has regard to o broad range of matters including the
voice of stakeholders. The oversight and monitoring activity of
the Board includes maintaining an understanding of key
stakeholders and being receptive to the voice of stakeholders.
In particular, during the year the Board adopted a new strategy
focused on accelerating growth through the execution of o
plan which includes extensive operational change and a
significant restructuring programme. In considering the
strategy progosals the Board had regard to the relevant
statutory factors, which were helpfully referenced in specific
Board papers and in discussions. The strategy review looked

at capital allecation including the desirability of mamtaining a
progressive dividend policy. After due and careful consideration
of other options and relevant factors, the Board concluded
that approving and implementing the new strategy 1s most
likely to promote the success of IMI for the benefit of its
shareholders as a whole

Set out below is specific commentary in relation to each
of the Section 172 factors:

a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long-term

The Board has adopted a five-year business planning

penod and sets strategy with o view tolong-term success.
As highlighted above a strategic review process was
undertaken during the year with that in mund. Long-term
considerotions had a particular influence in assessing which
are the most attractive markets for IM! to focus on and
how to optimise the businesses’ geographic footprint.

Our strategy drives cur key investrnent decisions.

For example, the aequisition of PBM Inc, in September
2019 reflects the strategy of expanding into attractive
growth market segments and the Board's thinking
arcund the longer-term trends. The acquisition case
for PBM submitted to the Board included a specific
section on Section 172 factors to inform the Board's
deaision-rmaking process.



b}

<)

The Board alsa reviews whether any businesses ought to
continue to be a focus for investment given longer-term
strategic considerations.

the interests of the Company’s employees

The Group depends on its employees for its success and
nvests considerable time and resources on employee
engagement, training and development as summarised
on pages 25 to 27. Investment decisions inciuding
rationalisation and refocation of activities are considered
with due regard to the interests of employees. For example,
the decision to invest in moving IMI CCl Japan to a new
purpose-built facility offered various benefits including

a more comfortable working environment for employees
Consultations with employees are conducted in relation
to the significant site closures and headcount reductions
which are underway as part of the active and proposed
rationalisation projects. The Board approves and tracks
the progress of these programmes with regular updates
being provided at Board meetings.

Health and safety of our employees 1s of paromount
importance dnd receives appropriate Board and
rnancgement attention and investments. Reflecting
this importance we measure and track our performance
See our key performance indicators on pages 52 and 53
for an update on our progress in this area.

Group pension scheme participants benefit from the
Group's approach to pension provision and financial
prudence in regucing the funding deficit in relation to
defined benefit obligations. Further informaticn on
employee benefits and pensions is on pages 144 to 150.

the need to foster business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

Customer service and value are at the core of our business
model and strotegy. The Board monitors indicators of the
customer experience and welcomes the increased emphasis
on the customer which management s building. For
example, the Board has received presentations and regular
updates on our Growth Accelerator programme. Further
information about this key strategic programme 1s included
on page 17. Locating facilities nearer to customers in the
mest attractive growth markets is o key element in the
Board's thinking cbout the footprint of the businesses,

as reflected in the Strategic Report.

Qur businesses work closely with partners including
suppliers, distributors and egents who are closely managed
from a commercial and compliance perspective. Further
information can be found on page 25.

d)

e)

the impact of operations on the community and
the environment

Our business units are positive contributors to therr local
communities as employers and through apprenticeships
and employee training and community activities including
the annual IMI Way Day, charitable activity and donations.
The Group supports such community invelverment, more
detail on which can be found on page 35.

The Board approves and monitors the Group policy on
minirising our impoct on the environment, which is
outlined on pages 33 and 34 with examples of energy

and waste initiatives. Our continued progress depends

upon the Board driving such initiatives and channelling
investment to projects with due regard for the environment.
For example, our recent investments in new, state of the
art facilities 1in Japan and India have improved the Group's
environmental footprint as well as prowviding modern,

safer working conditions for our employees.

the desirability of maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct

The Board s carefui of the reputation of the Group

and its decisions reflect this and the great importance
attached to the Group's reputation by all key stakeholders.
The Board demands high standards of conduct from

all directors and Group employees and expects
management to be mindful of how and with whom
business is conducted. For example, the Group has
declined to have dealings with third parties who display
poor business conduct Further information about how
we ensure we gperate ethically at all times and sur purpose,
values and culture, which were specifically reviewed by the
Board in 2019 alongside the strategy, can be found on
pages 24 to 26

the need to act fairly between shareholders
of the Company

The Board understonds the importance of treating
shareholders fairly. IMi has only one class of share in
issue and all shareholders individually enjoy the same
shareholder rights as the others. Further infermation
on shareholder engagement is provided on page 70.

By order of the Board

John O'Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

27 February 2020
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Audit Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

| present my third report as Chair of the
Audit Committee. Qur Committee's role

is to monitor the integrity of the Group's
financial reporting and financial
statements, to review the effectiveness of
internal financial controls, to monitor and
review the effectiveness of internal audit,
and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of our external
auditor whose independence, objectivity
and effectiveness is reviewed by us. The full
terms of reference of the Committee can
be found in the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework on the Company’s website and
was revised with effect from 1 January
2019 to take account of the Code.

In addition to our regular cycle of challenge
and oversight activity, we have reviewed
the accounting treatment for the 2018
acquisition of Bimba, for which the
assessment of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired was finalised in February
2019. We also reviewed the September
2019 acquisition of PBM and the initial
assessment of fair value is included in the
2019 financial statements. Other particular
features this year have been considering the
adoption of IFRS 16 on leases and reviewing
the format changes in the annual report
and financial statements. We have also
reviewed the significant rationalisation
spend and the provisions for rationalisation
at the year end and satisfied ourselves

that the treatment of those disclosed

as adjusting items is appropriate.
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Members of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster and | were members of
the Audit Committee throughout the year. Thomas Thune
Andersen joins the Committee on 1 March 2020 following the
retirement of Birgit Nergaard All of the Committee members
are regarded by the Board as independent non-executive
directors. | have chaired the Audit Committee since 1 October
2017 and became o member on 1 September 2015. | spent
my early career in the accounting and audit profession and the
Commuttee, and the Board, is satisfied that | have significant
recent and relevant financial experience | also currently chair
the audit committee at The Bankers investment Trust PLC cnd
Winton Group Limited. In my role as Charr, | have significant
interactions with key senior executives, attended the Group's
Senior Finance Executives Conference held in June 2019,
review in advance selected papers and agendas for meetings
of the Committee and meet wiath our external auditor prior

to Committee meetings

The Board is also satisfied that the Commuittee members
have experience at gudit committee level and collectively the
Committee has the financial and commercial and auditing
skills, experience and objectivity to be an effective Audit
Commuttee During the year, Committee members receved
updates covering key developments far 2019 annual reports,
changes 1n accounting and other key topics such as reviews
of the audit market. Furthermore, Committee members
attend as appropriate external training sessions to update
our knowledge.

Birgit Nergaard retires from the Committee at the end of
February 2020. Birgit has provided incisive and challenging
comments and we thank her for her work on the Committee,
We look forward to welcorming Thomas Thune Andersen to the
Committee on 1 March 2020. He has been a regular attendee
at our meetings since he joined the Board in July 2018

The Committee invites the following to join all or part of its
meetings; the Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Finance
Director, the Group Financial Centrolier, the Group Assurance
Director and the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP ('EY")

In addition, other non-executive directors are welcome to
attend and often join the meetings

The Committee holds at feast part of several meetings each
year alone with the external auditor ang with the Group
Assurance Director The Committee has the power to cali on
any employee to attend The Secretary to the Committee 1s
the Company Secretary, who is also the Group Legal Director.



Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2019 For two
meetings the focus was on the forthcorming resuits reporting
and for the other two the focus was on planning and review
matters All meetings include a review of current accounting
matters within the Group, including in particular a review

of judgmental areas such as restructuring provisions,
impairment reviews and contingencies

The effectiveness of internal finanaal controls continues

to be a key area for the Committee which has welcomed
management's focused efforts to improve and strengthen
the Group's internal financial control and assurance processes.
The processes include Internal Control Declarations ("ICD")
which are submitted biannually by each business unit and cover
internal financial controls, [T, human resources and other key
areas. The process is managed by Group Assurance, which
follows up declarations with on-site visits to oudit resuits and
track appropriate improverment actions. Over recent years
ICD scores have improved reflecting the strengthening of

the internal financial control erwironment. The Committee
therefore supported the proposal from the Chief Executive
thot for ligh achieving business units the ICD process should
be completed once annually frem 2020 This change is being
monitored by Group Assurance and regular reports are made
to the Committee. Further information on Internal and
External Audit is given below

The Cornmittee continues to seek cut with management
constructive opportunities for improverment A number of
further control initiatives were implemented in 201% including
the Group-wide adoption of evidence binders for key financial
and IT controls A rewised Groug policy on inventory provisioning
was implemented in 2019 to update, clanfy and 1mprove
consistency in this important area. The IT investment and
infrastructure programme is continuing ond its implementation
facilitates improverments in external audit efficiency as well as
in internal controls.

Additionally, we reviewed the implermentation in 2019 of the
new accounting standard relating to leases (IFRS 16), the
impact on the Group's balance sheet and the approprigteness
of the disclosures in the financial statements.

An update on tax policy and compliance from the Head of Group
Tax was received by the Committee. Treasury motters, ncluding
a positive external report on the effectiveness of internal
controls in that areq, were discussed with the Group

Treasurer by the Cormmittee.

The Committee monitors changes in semior finance roles and
recognises continuity of financial reporting standards following
team changes os a key requirerment It was pleased to see
management achieve successful internal transitions to key
leadership roles in finance during the year, as well as the
changes made to strengthen the finance function at

several cperating companies.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to
the Board the statements on going concern and viability,
which are in the Directors' Report on pages 94 to 101

The Committes advises the Board on the fair, balanced and
understandable reguirements for the Annual Report and half year
results statement. The Cormmittee has made positive reports to
the Boord agamst these criteria. The Committee's review included
in particular the consideration of alternative performarnce
measures and the classification and presentation of adjusting
iterns in accordance with the Group accounting policy. The
Cornmittee receved a detared account of the restructuring costs
disclosed as adjusting tems and was satisfied that these were
appropriately categorised given the nature, scale and purpose of the
relevant prejects. In respect of the Annual Report, the forr, balanced
and understandable criteria are also a review area for the external
auditor, 1n relation to which it did not report any exceptions.

The statement of Directors’ respensibilities on page 101 includes
confirmation by the Board that it considers the Annual Report,
taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable.

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role m respect of the Annual
Report and other announcements with financial content, all of
which are prepared by management The Committee receved
reports on the annual and half year financial staterments from
management and the external auditor.

The Cormmmittee reviewed and approved the revisions made

to the format of our financial statements and the Annual
Report generally ond for the new accounting standard for leases,
IFRS 1é. The changes are described m more detail on pages 116
and 1471 to 143,

Significant judgements related to the
financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are a number of areas requiring
the exercise by manogement of judgement and estimation.
These matters were the subject of appropriate detailed analysis
and commentary in papers and reports to the Committee

by management and the external auditor. The Commttee
reviewed the most significant accounting areas invelving such
judgements and estimates and these are described below.

Acquisition accounting for Bimba and PBM

There is a 12-month measurement period after the date

of acquisitien to finalise the accounting for an acquisition.
Management exercises jJudgement on the types of intangible
assets acquired and estimates are made of the foir value of all
assets and habilities. Provisional values in respect of Bimba were
included in the 2018 interim finonoial statements and adopted
at that year end subject to an adustment of £1.9m reported

in the 2018 finonciol staterments and Audit Committee Report.
As set out in Note 23 to the financial statements on page 166,
provisional values in respect of PBM are reflected in the 2019
financiat statements. The Commuttee reviewed the judgement
made by management in this respect, including the assumptions
used to value the acquired intangibles and confirmed they are
appropriate. The external auditor provided cenfirmation that
the judgements made, including the assumptions used to value
the ccguired customer relationships and the PBM brand, were
considered to be appropriate.



Audit Committee Report

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising
from acquisitions

The Committee considered the level of goodwill and intangible
assets held on the Group's balance sheet in respect of
number of post acquisitions and whether, given the future
prospects of these businesses, the carrying value in each

case remained appropricte

The year end balance sheet includes goodwill of £444 1m

and intangible assets ansing on acquisitions of £84.5m. The
Commuttee reviewed the assumptions and calculations used by
rmanagement in the assessment of any impairment of goodwill
and intangble assets and agreed that no imparrment of
goodwill was required. Impairment was also a key audit matter
for EY which reported its findings to the Committee. Note 11
to the financial statements on poge 137 provides details
regarding the Group's Intangible gssets and goodwill

Revenue recognition

The Commuttee discussed the timing of revenue recognition on
some of the Group's larger controcts. In addition, this is a key
audit matter on which EY reported to the Committee.

Having reviewed management’s process ond EY's report, the
Committee concluded that revenues were appropriately reflected
in the financial statements Note 2 to the financicl statements on
page 117 provides further information.

Inventory valuation

The year end balance sheet includes inventories of £280.8m
after £35.4m of provisicns The Committee reviewed the
judgernenits apphed to standard costing valuations and
provisions ogainst excess and absolete inventory and concurred
with monagement's assessment. The restated Group
methodolegy on inventory provisioning introduced in 2019 has
further improved the clarity regarding the judgerments and
estimates made by management in this connection, aithough
this has not maoterially impacted the provisions. This was a
key audit matter for EY, in respect of which it reported to

the Committee that inventory valuation across the Group is
considered appropriate. Note 15 to the financiol statements
on page 151 provides details of inventory vaiuation.

Other judgement areas

The Committee reviewed the gpproprnateness of the accounting
treatment in respect of pension scheme kabilities, Incleding the
actucrial assumptions used and the impact of one-off special
pension events. The Committee also received a report reflecting
appropriate expert ingput from the external auditor, which
concurred with the accounting for pensions proposed by
management. The Committee supported monogement's
on-going efforts te de-risk the Group's pension obligations.
Further details can be found In Note 14 on page 144

In addition the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of
restructuring costs disclosed as adjusting itemns, property sales
and the adequacy of taxation provisions. Further details on
these matters can be found in Notes 3 and 9 respectively,

on pages 120 ond 132.
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Internal audit

The Committee receved reports from and monitored the
work of the Group's internal audit function, known as Group
Assurance. Group Assurance reports through the Finance
Director to the Chief Executive. Group Assurance also has a
direct reporting line to the Committee. Group Assurance work
is pnmarly directed towards financial control audits but also
covers other selected areas including project plenning and
implementation for major business changes ond internal
control declarations. The principal projects reviewed in 2019
were major IT system implementations in each of the three
divisions and a financial control improvement review at
Bimba and a project margin review in part of IMI Critical.

During the year 41 internal audit reviews were completed
with 34 of these supported by divisional finance managers
Centrally the Group Assurance team is led by experienced,
senior internal audit professionals and across the Group there
are over 100 staff trained to conduct internal financial control
audits. Locations to be reviewed each year are selected on a
risk assessed basis, discussed with the Audit Committee and
take account of the external audit plan. In 2019, the plan
included the cudit of the Group treasury function which

was executed with the support of third party treasury audit
expertise. The completion of actions ansing from interncl audits
and reviews 1s monitored by the Committee and the track
record s excellent.

Group Assurance works closely with the dwisions to implement
monitonng and review processes to complement the internal
and external audit coverage. The annual plan and rescurcing
for internal audit were approved by the Committee and take
account of the enhanced monitoring and review activity within
the dwisions, The scope of internal cudits covers certain
operational and commercial risks 1n addition to financial
controls. To achieve this expenenced financial managers

from the divisions work on combined Gudits covering financial,
operational and commercial matters. Group Assurance has
trained divisional finance managers in financial control auditing
skills and provided a toolkit to enable them to carry out
financial control audits at other sites in thewr division. Financial
control evidence binders have been intreduced across the
Group to help improve internal controls and to make interna!
audits more efficient. The binders also support transition

and continuity in the event of any changes in finance staff

The Commuttee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance
with management and received input from the external
auditor. The Committee supports the co-sourcing model

with the Group Assurance Tearn and experienced financial
managers from the divsions working together to enhance the
effectiveness of assurance processes. An area for improverment
which was identified 1s for Group Assurance to continue to
develop its capability to carry out operational and cormmercial
risk reviews. The improvement action for 2019 was to do more
to share best practice and progress has been made, most
notably with the creation of evidence binders including best
practice examples for key controls and how the best

sites operote.



External audit independence and
performance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit
approach and its scope based on the size and levet of risk of
the entities concerned. The Group and EY take a risk based
approach to qudit and other assurance activity. The key audit
maotters identified by EY are set out in its report on peges 104
to 111 and were reviewed hy the Committee in approving the
audit scope and plan.

The Comimittee considered the independence and chjectivity
of the external auditor to be setisfactory. In assessing auditor
independence the Committee had regard to the Financial
Reporting Council's best practice guidance for audit
committees, In addition, the external auditor confirmed

that its ethics and independence policies complied with the
requirements of the Institute of Chartered Accountonts in
England and Wales.

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work takes
account of developments in regulatory requirements and ethical
guidelines for the audit profession. The policy requires approval
by the Committee Chair for any non-audit engagement for
which the estimated fees exceed £10,000. The Finance Director
monitors any proposed non-audit engagements of EY and
refers to the Chair for approval as appropriate. The policy

does not allow work to be placed with the auditer if it could
compromise auditor independence, such as functicring in

the role of management or auditing its own work. Non-audit
fees paid to the cuditor were £0.1m (2018; £0.1m), which
represents 3% of the audit fee and demonstrates the tight
control which is maintained in this area. The most significant
nen-audit engagement during the year was in respect of the
intenm results reviews which s technically not statutory audit
work and was approved by the Committee The Committee
considers the level and nature of non-audit work to be modest
and not to compromise the Independence of the external
ouditor. We are satisfied that EY 1s fully independent from

the management and free of conflicts of interest.

Benchmorking of the audit fee was conducted in the context
of the full qudit tender process carried out In 2018 and the fee
1s considered by the Committee to be appropriate. Pursuant
to the power granted at the 2019 Annugt General Meeting,
the Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
fee payable to EY.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit pracess, the external
audrt partner responsible for the Group is rotated within the
audit firm at least every five years and the current Senior
Statutory Auditor, Sirmon O'Neill, was first appeointed in
respect of the 2018 cudit.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit
process. As in other years, a questionnaire, sent to 30 business
unit finance directors, and interviews with members of the
Committes and selected executives were used to review the
external auditor's performance. Based on the results of the
questionnaire and feedback receved, the Committee believes
the external quditor’'s performance has been good and
effective To enhance further the external audit process,

certain iImprovernent actions were identified and plans have been
put in place by EY to address these. These included EY providing
more insight mto lessons learned and best proctices at other
audit chents and more feedback on the guality of the finance
tearmns around the Group The Committee has been pleased to
see progress with the action areas identfied after the 2018
audit: action to imprave continuity of jumor level staff on the
oudit and more nigorous structure in the qudit process, especially
in relation to audit deliverable requests and progress meetings

In September 2019, the Financial Reperting Council's Audit
Quality Review Team ("AQRT") completed a review of EY's
audit of the Company's financial statements for the period
ended 31 December 2018 The Committee considered the final
inspection report, which did not raise any significant findings,
and discussed the results with the lead cudit partner The
Committee agreed with the overall assessment by the AQRT,
which was consistent with Its own positive view of the quality
and effectiveness of the external audit in respect of 2018,
The Committee also considered the FRC's audit guality report
on the audit profession and noted the improved audit guality
score achieved by EY as ¢ firm.

Audit tendering

A formal cudit tender process led by the Committee was
completed i 2018 leading to the re-appointment of EY at the
2019 Annual General Meeting. The tender process complied
with the Competition and Market Authority’s Order. Current
legislation will require a change of ouditor by not later than
2029 and the Company retains the freedom to make a change
earher. The Committee considers it would be cppropriate to
conduct an external gudit tender process commencing the
year before any change of auditor is made and therefore

not later than 2028 in any event.

Committee attendance and evaluation

Director Audit Committee % attended where

meetings eligible
Carl-Peter Forster 474 100
Birgit Nergoard 44 100
isobel Sharp 444 100

The Commuittee reviewed its own performance and terms of
reference and received positive feedback frorm the evaluation
exercise carried out in relation to the Board and each of its
standing committees. As a result of the evaluation in 2018,
the meeting c¢ycle for future years was adjusted to improve
efficiency. The Committee reviewed how it had worked In
7019 and recommended no matenal changes for 2020,

The Committee approved this report on its work.

Yours faithfully

Isobel Sharp
Chair of the Audit Committee

27 February 2020
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Nominations Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to make my report as
Chair of the Nominations Committee.
This report is intended to give an
account of the Committee and its
activity. The core responsibilities of
the Committee are succession planning
and appointments at Board level and
oversight of appointments to the
Executive Committee, The full terms
of reference of the Committee can

be found in the IMI Corporate
Governance Framework on the
Company's website.
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Composition

Thomas Thune Andersen, Carl-Peter Forster, Katie Jackson,
Birgit Nergoard, lsobel Sharp and | were members of the
Committee throughout the year Caroline Dowlding joined the
Committee on 1 January 2020. For the purposes of the Cade,
all of the non-executive directors on the Committee are
regarded as independent non-executive directors.

Attendance

Director Nominations % attended

Commi?tee whare eligible

meetings

Thomas Thune Andersen 414 100
Carl-Peter Forster 474 100
Katie Jacksen 414 100
Birgit Nergaard 4fh 100
tsobel Sharp 474 100
Lord Smith 4/4 100

Main areas of activity

Chief Executive succession

Following a rigorous selection process supported by Russeli
Reynolds, in February 2019 the Board agreed on the
recommendation of the Committee to appoint Roy Twite
as IMl's next Chief Executive with effect from 2 May 2019

Following Roy's prormotion, the Committee recommended the
appeintment of Jackie Hu os the new Divisional Monaging
Director for IMI's Critical Engineering division, which was
confirmed by the Board and anncunced in March 2019,

Board changes and recommendations for
election and re-election

In response to Birgit Nergaard's decision to step down on

29 February 2020, the Committee engaged Russell Reynolds
to undertake a full search process to find a new non-executive
director. The Committee recornmended the appointment of
Caroline Dowling which was approved by the Board and the
appointment was made with effect from 1 January 2020.




Followang Birgit's retirement, Carl-Peter Forster will become
Chair of the Rernuneration Committee and Thomas Thune
Andersen will become non-executive director for employee
engagement and for ESG matters. Carcline Dowling bas joined
the Remuneration Commuttee and, from 1 March 2020,
Thomas will join the Audit Comrrittee ond step down from
the Rermuneration Committee These appointments were also
recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board.

All of the directors standing are recommended for re-election
or election at the Annual General Meeting following Board
approval of the recornmendations made by the Committee
in this connection.

Succession planning

The Commuttee reviews Board composition and has
foermulated a structured, medium-term plan for
Board succession.

During the year the Committee reviewed talent development
and succession planning for the top 212 roles in the Group
with the support of the Chief Executive and Group Human
Resources Director. We were encouraged to see that significant
progress continues to be made in terms of cultivating @
stronger pipeline of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by
the internal appointments of the new Chief Executive ond
new Divisional Managing Director for Critical Engineering.
Further 2019 examples of senior internal prormotions are

the appointees to the Divisional Finance Director roles in

IMI Precision and 1M1 Critical. Details of our leadership
development and succession planning processes are set
outinthe Environmental, Social & Governance section

on pages 29 and 30.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairman and non-executive
directors are made on the basis of o formal letter of
appointment including a stated mimimum time commitrnent
wdged appropriate by the Committee. All significant external
commitments of directors are approved by the Board

The Committee considers that the time given to IM! by each
non-executive director 1s sufficient. The Board is satisfied thot
| have the necessary time te devote to my role as Chairman.

Diversity and inclusion

The Committee recognises the benefits a dverse pool of
tatent can bring to a boardroom and remains committed to
increasing diversity across IMI. We will continue to review the
compesition of our monggement teams and the Board to
ensure that we have the right mix of skills and experience
while maintaining our effectiveness and execution capabilities.
The Cornmittee’s terms of reference and activity reflect its
responsibility under the Code for promoting broader diversity
at Beard and sentor management: level.

At Board level, half the directors ore non-British and there gre
five nationalities. Three of the continuing non-executive
directors are fernale, representing 37.5% of the Board, and
there is o broad mix of backgrounds and experience as detailed
on pages 62 and 63.

The Committee and management dre supportive of the need
to improve gender diverse representation ot senior executive
levels and are working hard to this end. Further information
about the initiotives we are implementing to increase
diversity and inclusion acrass the Group are detailed in the
Environmental, Social & Governance section on pages 27 to 30

The Committee reviewed its own performance and terms of
reference and received positive feedback from the evaluation
exercise carried out in respect of the Board and egch of

its committees,

The Cornmittee approved this report on its work.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Normingtions Committee

27 February 2620




bl Directors’ Re

Annual Statery
from the Chair of the Commnttee

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased

to present the Annual Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year

ended 31 December 2019. As previously
announced, this will be my last as Chair
of the Remuneration Committee before
| stand down from the Board. Carl-Peter
Forster, a mmember of the Committee
since 2012, will take on the role of Chair.

Remuneration in 2019

Context

As | reported last year, Mark Selway stepped down as Chief
Executive at the 2019 Annual General Meeting before retiring
on 31 July 2019. Roy Twite, having served on the M Board as
a director since 2007, most recently as Divissanal Managing
Director of IMI Critical Engineering, was appointed Chief
Executive from the end of the 2019 Annua! General Meeting.
The remuneration arrangements relating to both Mark
Selway's retirerent and Roy Twite's appointment complied
weith our Directors’ Remuneration Policy {"Policy”) approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in May 2018.
The Committee was pleased to see that 27 3% of shareholders
at the 201% Annual General Meeting supported the
Committee’s implementation of the Policy. Full details

of the remuneration grrangerments for both Mark Selway
and Roy Twite can be found on page 82.

Pay for performance

Notwithstanding the change in leadership and strotegy,

the Commmuttee’s focus in 2019 continued to be on maintaining
o strong pay for performance relationship between the Policy
and its implementation.

The Committee aims to ensure that executive pay reflect IMl's
desired culture and key stakeholder interests through strong
alignment between individual performance and business
performance. A high proportion of our executive directors’
remuneration Is closely tred to business performance and the
Committee sets targets having considered several factors
including the strateaic plan, annual budget, analysts’ forecasts
and economic conditions. Qur chjective is always to set
stretching targets while at the seme time ensuring that
underlying performance takes into consideration external
factors such as macro econemic conditions.
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Further information about the process we follow when setting
torgets and assessing performance 1s set out on page 84.

Key strategic and performaonce highlights in 2019 include:

» Results were ohead of expectations given the mixed
economic and market headwinds

» Group adjusted profit before tox remained flat at £250 7m
while adjusted revenue decregsed by 2% to £1,873m.

» Cash conversion increased to 112% in 2019 and sharebaiders
will receive a total dividend of 41 1p - anincrease of 1% from
last year subject to approval ot the forthcorming Annual
General Meeting.

Incentive outcomes

Annual incentives paid to executive directors in respect of
performance in 2019 were based on achievement of stretching
targets relating to Group adjusted profit before tax, organic
revenue growth, cash conversien and strategic ond persenal
ohjectives. The Committee determined annual incentive
outcomes ranging between 41% and 44% of maximurm

for the executive directors, which fairly reflects business

and individual performance

The 2017 IM} Incentive Plan (*lIP") award which was subject
to stretching Return on Capital Empioyed, Group adjusted
profit before tax (PBT) growth and relative Total Shareholder
Return (TSR} targets measured over three financial years

will vest at 47 1% in March 2020.

As part of its determination of incentive outcomes, the
Committee considered the impact of the IFRS 16 accounting
change and the underlying performance of the business,
external factors such as macro economic conditions and
shareholder experience during the performance period.

The Committee concluded that the above outcomes were

a fair reflection of performance and cid not consider it
necessary to exercise Its discretion to adjust the level of
incentives payable according to the performance targets.

Full detalls on the targets set and performance against them
can be found on page 85 in respect of the annual incentive
and page 87 for the 2017 IIP award.

Chief Executive pay ratio

The Committee s pleased to present for the first time the
Chief Executive pay ratio in accordance with the new reporting
regutations which can be found on page 92




Employee Engagement

As designated non-executive director with the responsibility
for werkfarce engagement, | have during 2019 had the
opportunity to engage with our employees on items including

{but not limited to) business performance and company culture.

Further details can be found on page 68. | know that the Beard
will continue to be well served in this regard by Thomas Thune
Andersen who succeeds me in this role.

Remuneraticn in 2020

Policy implementation

Consistent with prior years, salary increases effective

1 January 2020 considerad a range of factors including the
increases for the wider workforce, the financial performance
of the Group and prevailing economic conditions. For 2020
the Chuef Executive received no base salary increase and the
Finance Director recetved 2%, which is below the increase
owarded to the wider employee workforce for 2020 of 2.8%
but aligned to the general ncrease applied to UK employees.
The base salary for the Chief Executive wall remain at
£720,000 10 2020 and for the Finance Director will be
£457,650 effective from 1 January 2020

The Charrman and non-executive director fees were also
reviewed and increased by 2%, with effect from 1 January 2020

Following the announcement of the new strategy in Navember
2019, the Committee reviewed the metrics that applied to
the annual bonus and lIP awards and considered whether

any changes were appropriate i accordance with the Policy
To ensure smmedicte alignment with the new strategy and

to incentivise executives to realise the identified value creation
opportunities across our businesses, the Committee has
determined that the 2020 annual bonus will be contingent,

on a PBT growth metric alongside strategic and personal
objectives for each executive director. The weighting of 80% to
financial metrics and 20% o strategic and personal objectives
will remain. The move to a single financial metric n PBT s a
purposeful one to ensure that in 2020 focus is concentrated on
accelerating profitable growth through short-term profitability
initiatives, cost and operational initiatives and margin
improvement. A new underpin will ba introduced to allow for
downward discretion If there is a material underperformance
against budgeted free cash flow. The hecith and safety
underpin wiff also be expanded to take into account any
relevant environmental, secial and governance (ESG) matters
when determining remuneration putcomes. The Committee

is also increasing the weighting on TSR targets for IIP awards
to 1/3, Return on Capital Emplayed (ROCE) to 1/3 and
introducing an adjusted Earnings Per Share (EPS) metric of
equal 1/3 weighting. Note that ROCE will now be calculated

in the same manner as defined in our KP's on pages 52 and 53.

This replaces prior year [IP metrics of 25% Return on Copital
Employed, 25% Relative Total Sharehoider Return and 50%
Group adjusted profit before tax growth. Prior to confirming
these changes to cur incentive glan metrics to align te the
new strategy, in early 2020 the Committee informed and
engaged with our top ten investors.

The Committee believe these changes in metrics will ensure
that executives are only rewarded if underlying earnings
improve, there i1s an acceptable return on capital employed
and shareholder returns outperform peers. The Committee
will continue to regularly monitor the reported KPIs aleng
with the underlying perfermance of the business when it
determines incentive outcomes

Full detail on the PBT growth targets set for the annual bonus
will be disclosed in next year's Annuat Directors' Remuneration
Report The TSR, £EPS and ROCE targets attaching to the 2020
IIP award are disclosed on page 93

The annuat bonus and [IP award level for the Chief Executive in
2020 will remain unchanged, as will the liP award level for the
Finance Director. For 2020 the annual bonus opportunity for
the Finance Director will ncrease from 125% to 150% of
base salary, below the Imit permitted by policy (200%).

The Committee approved the increase 1n recognition of
Daniel Shook's consistently strong performance since jeining
in 2015 and hoving taken into account movement amongst
global industry peers in the five years since.

Policy review

The Committee intends to undertake a full review of current
policy in 2020, before 1ts expiration at the 2021 AGM when ¢
new polcy will be presented for shareholder approval. At the
core of the review will be our new strategy, the remuneration
related provisions of the Code and evolving investor views

The policy review will consider wider workforce remuneration
and policies when making decisions on executive remuneration.
The policy already includes a provision for both unvested and
vested awards to extend post-employment. However, it s

the Committee's intention that it will formally adopt a post-
termination shareholding requirement as part of the new
policy. The Cemmittee will also consider investor sentiment
regarding pension allowance for executive directors noting that
the Chief Executive is already receving the overage global
employee pension opportunity of 11% of base salary.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow Comrmittee members
for their support during my tenure as Chair. | believe that
under its new leadership IMl will continue to prosper and
create value for all its stakeholders.

Yours faithfuliy

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board

27 February 2020



Annual Directors'

Remuneration Report

On behalf of the Board, the Remuneration
Committee {the "Committee™) presents
the Annual Directors’ Remuneration
Report, which will be put to shareholders
for an advisory (non-binding) vote at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on

7 May 2020. The report includes details
of the work of the Committee, the pay
received during the year in accordance
with our current directors’ remuneration
policy, approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting in May 2018.

A copy of the approved Directors’
Remuneration Policy is included in

the 2017 Annual Report which can

be found on the IMI website.
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The Committee

Composition

The members of the Committee throughout the year were
Birgit Nargeard (Chair), Carl-Peter Forster, Thomas Thune
Andersen and Katie Jackson In accordance with the Code,
all the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as
ndependent As previously noted, Birgit Nergaard will stand
dawn from the Board on 29 February 2020 and Cari-Peter
Forster will become chair of the Committee from 1 March
2020. Carcline Dowling, who joined the Board on 1 January
2020, will, from that date, also be a member of the
Committec Thomas Thune Andersen, who joined the
Commuttee in July 2018, will stand down and will be

joining the Audit Committee from 1 March 2020

Responsibility

The Committee determines the remuneration policy and
rewards for the executive directors and other members of
the Executive Committee and the Chairman. The Committee
also considers the levels of pay and benrefits across the Group.
A copy of the Cormmittee’s terms of reference, which has
been updated to reflect the 2018 Code, 1s included in the

IMI Corporate Governance Framewaork ond available on

our website.

Internal advisers to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive,
regarding the packages of members of the Executive Committee.
It also received support from the Finance Director, the Group
Human Resources Director, the Head of Group Reward and the
Company Secretary, who is also secretary to the Committee.
None of these indmiduals were involved in determining ther
own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

independent remuneration consuitant, Willis Towers Watson,
is formally appointed by the Committee and provided advice
on executive remuneration to the Committee in 2019,

The Committee noted that the firm are actuaries and
administrators for IMI's UK Pension arrangements. The
Committee 1s comfortable that these activities do not
represent a confhct of interest and that ebjective and
independent advice continues to be receved by the Committee
from the dedicated teom servicing 1t ot Willis Towers Watson.

The fees charged by Willis Towers Watson in respect of advice
and services to the Committee totalled £93,000 in 2019
Willis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consultants’ Code of Conduct in the UK.




A summary of the Committee’s
activities during 2019

The Commuttee had three formal meetings during the year;
attendance can be viewed In the table adjocent. The principal
agends items were as follows.

» determining the remuneration arrangements reloting to
the retirement of Mark Selway as Chief Executive and the
promotion of Roy Twate as his successor;

» a review of total compensation packages of the membaers
of the Executive Committee afongside a deep dive mto the
wider workforce remuneration and related policies;

» approval of achievements and outcomes for 2018 under
the incentive pians,;

» consideration of the fees for the Chairman,;
» setting the target levels for the 2019 incentive cycle;

» approval of the 2019 share awards to members of the
Executive Committee;

» review of the performance metncs and targets for the 2020
incentive cycle following announcerment of our new strategy
N Novernber 2019 and informing our top ten investors of
the outcome of this review;

» review of IMl's gender pay gap data for 2019 against the
prior years' data;

» review of IMI's pay ratio of the Chief Executive to UK
employees and undertying caiculation methodology;

» further review of the UK corporate governance and
regulatory environment and updated reporting regulctions;

» review of the performance of the independent remuneration
consultants to the Committes;

» review of risks as they relate to executive compensation;

» review of the Committee's own performance, constitution
and terms of reference;

» decided to attach non-compete covenants to performance
share awards under the IP from 2020 including those for
the Executive Committee;

2 review of executwve director's service agreements; and

» agreed themes for discussion and the coming policy
review and agreed a timetable for the review of Directors'
Remuneration Policy in 2020 in advance of its renewal
at the 2021 AGM.

Attendance

Director [ ation %a ded where

Committee meatings eligible
Birgit Nergaard 3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
Themas Thune Andersen 2 &7
Katie Jackson 3 100

Annual General Meeting 2019
voting outcomes

The following table summarises the details of votes cast for
and against the 2018 Annual Directors’ Remuneration Report
along with the number of votes withheld. The Committee

will continue to consider the views of, and feedback from,
shareholders when determining and reporting on
remuneration arrongements.

Voting item Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
Annual Directors’ 97 3% 27% 0 5%
Remuneration

Report




Annval Directors’ Remuneration Report

Executive single figure table (audited)

:,: Long-term |

Annucl Other items in the nature
Fixed pay variable pay " vp'[i_uhle_,puy_ of remunetation
(£000) (£000)° .S (EooD) (£000)
X Dividend
Taxable Annudl incentive M Incentive All-employee equivalent Total

Director Base salary Pension? benefits bonus © - Plan ('HP') share plans payments (EQO0D)
See page Page 83 Page 83 Page 83 Pages B4 to B& Page 87 Page 89

2019 636 212 30 516 409 4 - 1,707
Roy Twite!

2018 475 166 30 405 312 4 - 1,392

2019 4e9 20 41 248 277 4 1,109
Daniel Shook

2018 439 BR 40 409 211 3 1,1%0

2019 617 144 49 389 706 4 1 1,910
Mark Selway*

2018 822 247 &7 1,232 673 4 2 3,047

Roy Twwte served on the Board of Halrg ple during the year and received fees of £58125 inrespect of this appointment which he retained

Danwel Shook served on the Boaro of Littro Electronics Holdmgs ple from 1 Septermber 2019 ond recewed fees of £21,166 68 in respect of his appointment

whsch he retaned

- Amounts for 2019 reflect Roy Twite serving as Divisional Managing Director up to @ May 2019 and Chief Exacutwe thereotfter

From the date of his appointment o5 Chief Executwe Ray Twite's comnpany pension contributions were reduced from 35% to 11% of base salary which s consistent
wth the aversge global employvee pensian opportunity for crmployees

For Roy Twite, the 2019 pnnual bonus was pre roted to reflect the incregse in maximum opper tunily on his oppointment as Chief Executive

* As disclosed in the 2018 Directors Remuneration Report, Mark Selway stepped down os Chief Executwe at the 2019 AGM and retired from the Board on 31 July 2019
Baze solory tor 2019 includes payment in heu of notice for two months Vesting mn respect of the 2019 annual bonus and 2017 HP award which were both pro-rated to
reflect time se-ved by Mark Selway during the year

These figures have been calculaoted gs follows:

Base salary and fees:

Pension:

Taxabie benefits:

Annval incentive bonus:

{MI Incentive Plan (“IIP"):
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the actual salory recevable for the year mcluding Share price assumgptions:

any payment in heu of notice made

the cash allowance pand i ligw of pension

the gross votue of all taxable benefits {or benefits
that woutd be toxable for a person tax resident in
the UK} receved in the year

All-employee shore plans:
the value of the annual incentie pavable for
performance in respect of the relevant financial year
(up to half s automatically delivered in the form of
deferred bonus share awards when the executive
director does not meet ther share ownership
requirement) however the plan rules permit
poyments to be made wholly in cosh Dividend payments:
the value on vesting of the nil cost opticns that
were subject to performance conditions over
the three-year penad ending on 31 December
in the relevant financicl year (see shaie price
assurnptions adjacent)

for shares vesting in 2020, that reloted te
perforrmance in the thrae years to 31 December
2017, the average share price over the final three
months of 2019 (1,075 75 pence) 1s used to
estimate the value of shares on vesting The value
of the oward shown in the table that 1s attnibutable
to share price appreciation s nil

the value of free shares at aword and dividends
under the Employes Share Owrerstup Plan i the
refevant financial year and the intrinaic value of Save
as You Earn share options an the date of grant in the
relevant financial year {applying a 10% discount as
permitted under the Save as You Earn Share Plan),

Far the P an addtienal number of shares
proportional to the dwvidends pard between the date
of the award and the date of vesting are delivered
on the vesting date {no further divaidends are accrued
after the vesting date) This appbes to both the
parformance share awards and deferred bonus
share awards under the 1P Dhwidend equvalent
payments anse from unexercised awards under

the legacy Performance Share Plan



Executive remuneration received in respect of 2019

Base salary

Salary increases effective 1 January 2019 tock into account
a range of factors including the increases for the wider
waorkforce, the finanaal performance of the Group and
prevalling economic conditions, The average increase for
employees in 2019 was 3.0%, compored te an average
incrense for executive directors of 1 2% On appointment
as Chief Executive the Committee set Roy Twite's salary
at £720,000 which is 12% lower than his predecessor.
Daniel Shook's salary was increased by 2.2% effective

1 January 2019 to £448,650. Mark Selway was not
awarded o salary increase for 2019

Pension

Effective from the date of his appointment as Chief Executive,
Roy Twite receved a cash allowance equivalent to 11% of
bose salory which is consistent with the overoge global
employee pension opportunity for employees.

Daniel Shook recerved a cash allowance of 20% of salary
and the Commuttee intends to review the appropriateness
of this ievel as part of the policy review in 2020

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previously an active member of the defined
benefit IM! Pension Fund, the assers and liabilities under which
were transferred to either the MI 2014 Pensioner Fund or
the IMi 2014 Deferred Fund ("the Fund') in 2014. He opted
out with effect from 1 February 2007, before he becarme an
execuUtive director, and as a result he retains past pensicnable
service up to that date in the Fund.

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are
summarised below:

» the normal retirement age under the Fund s 62 and Roy
Twite rmay retire from employment with 1Ml any time after
age 60 without an actuaria! reduction applied to his pension.

» on death after retirement, a dependant's penston is provided
egyal to 50% of the member's pension.

» shauld he die within the first five years of retirerent, the
dependant's pension is Increased to 100% of the member's
pension for the remainder of the five-year period,

» pensions In payment more than any guaranteed minimum
pension, are increased each year in line with price inflation
up to a maximum of 5% in respect of pension built up before
1 January 2006, and 2 5% in respect of pension buitt up
after 1 January 2006,

Accrued pension in the Fund Accrued pension in the Fund

as ot 31 December 2019 os at 31 December 2018

£000po £000pa

Roy Twite 76 74

Benefits

During the year the executive directors received several
benefits, which are summmarised below

Roy Twite Daniel Shook

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Mark Selway

Non-cash 11 i3 27 24 16 22
benefits (£000)
Company 19 17 14 14 1i 20
car and fuel

allowance

(£000)

Allowances and - - - - 22 25
reimbursement
{£000)

Total 30 30 41 40 49 &7

Note: Mark Sehway received no benefits following his retirement

In addition to the above benefits and aliowances that are
included in the single figure table (refer to table on page 82),
the executive directors are alse beneficiaries of company
policies that have no taxable value, including directors’ and
officers’ insurance, death in service cover, travel INsurance
and personal accident cover
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Annual incentive bonus

In setting targets and assessing performance the following process 1s adepted by the Committee.

2. Set stretching
performance
targets

1. Set performaunce
measures aligned

with strategy
and budget

As per the Policy, the Committee reviews and selects
performance measures, targets and ranges annually,
which teke account of the economic conditions, strategy
and the prionties of IM| at the time.

1. Set performance measures aligned with
strategy and budget

The Comrmttee reviewed and selected performance
measures for 2019 that were fully aligned to the business
strategy and the annual budget as approved by the Board
in December 2018 The 2019 annual incentive bonus
focused on several financial metrics and non-financial
metncs ond the fingncial metrics were consistent with
the prior years These included:

» Group adjusted profit before tax (40%)
» Organic revenue growth (20%)

» Cash conversion {20%)

» Strategic and personal objectives (20%)

There was also a health and sofety underpin to allow
bonuses to be pad only when minimum standards
were achieved.

For 2020, see page 93 for information regarding the
financial metrics to align to the new strategy that
was announced in November 2019

2. Set stretching performance targets

in setting stretching performance targets the Committee
considered a range of influencing foctors that included the
strategic plan, the apnual budget, analysts' forecasts,
economic conditions, individuals’ areas of responsibilities

and the Committee's expectations over the relevant period.

The performance target range itself was established
based on the annuai budget and required significant
outperformance for executive directors te achieve
the maximum

3. Assess performance

Resuits were ahead of expectations given the mixed
economic and market headwinds,

» Group adjusted profit before tox remained flat
at £250.7min 2019,

3. Assess
performance

&

5. Apply discretion
if required

4. Take account
of wider
circumstances

» Group revenue decreased te £1,873m in 2019 from
£1,907m in 2018, representing ¢ 2% decrease;

» Cash conversion was 112% in 2019, compared
with 83% n 2018;

» Adjusted Basic EPS remained at 73 2p,

» The total dividend for the year increased by 1%
compared to 2018.

Take account of wider circumstances

The Committee believes that the range of measures
used to assess performance of the annual incentive
bonus ensures that performance is assessed using

a balanced approach, that 1s fully aligned with the
business strategy The Committee also considers

the wider workfarce remuneration and palicies when
making decisions on executive remuneration, Given
the performance noted above and wider operationat
achievements, the Cormmittee is comfortable thot the
2019 annual incentive banus outcomes represent a Tomr
reward for performance detivered.

Discretion to override formulaic outcomes
and to apply malus and clowback

Depending on the circumstances, the Commuttee may
exercise judgement in assessing perfermance and
determining the level of achievement. The Committee has
full discretion to override formulaic cutcomes and to reduce
the amount of any annual bonus, to reduce the number of
shares subject to any form of share award and/or to require
a repayment to the Company in the event it is discovered
that the Company has misstated its financial resuits,

there hos been an error or miscalculation in respect of an
award, there has been gross misconduct or in any other
circumstances as the Committee sees fit. Such other
circumstances may include, but are not limited to,

serious reputational damage or corporate faifure

The broad discretiorn would allow the Committee

to make a downward adjustment for ESG reasons.

The Committee has considered the position and determined
that for 2019 1t is not appropriate for any reason to exercise
the discretion to override formulaic outcormes or recover
amounts previcusly awarded.
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Surmmarised in the table below 15 the achievement against Group targets applicable for Daniel Shook ond Mark Selway (pro-rated
toretirement in July 2019) and from @ May 2019, for Roy Twite

Director Measure Maximum opportunity Performance Targets Actual

(% of bonus opportunity) performance

Threshoid Target Maximum (£my*

Al Executive Group adjusted profit before tax- G0% £2359m £2621m £288 3m E£244m
Directors

Group organic revenue growth’ 20% £1,845m £1.915m £1.984m £1,842m

Group cash conversion 0% 4% 87% 6% 107%

20% See table on page 86

Strategie and persono! objectives

100%

+ Adusted Group profit befare tax, as set out in the income Statement on poge 112, adjusted for the impact of IFRS 16, fareign exchange and acquisitons
- Growth of organic rovenue, as set out In Note 4 on page 123, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange
‘This s coiculated s management operating cash flow divded by management agerating profit ot the stated exchange rates used in the targets

* Actual performance is stated ot the exchange rates used in the Largets

Strategic and personal objectives

As part of the strategic growth plan, the Committee sets each executive director severat strategic and personal objectives
each year. Upon Roy Twite's appointment to Chief Executive, his strategic and personal objectives were updated in iine with
expectations of the role and as summarised in the table below.

Performance against these abjectives 1s assessed using a combination of quantitative and qualitative reference points to ensure
@ robust assessment process. Mid-way through the year the executive is reviewed against therr pregress towards achieving the
strategic and personal objectives with a full review undertaken by the Committee at the end of the performance period. As well
as performance against strategic and personal objectives, the Committee considers the wider performance of the Group

- - o ) BS
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A summeary of the strategic and personal objectives set for 2019 and the performance ogainst them is provided in the table below.

Directer  Stretegic and personal objectives for 2019 Commentary Weighting  Performance
(% of achieved
maximum) (% of

maximum)

Roy Strategic growth: review market segments for each dwision Market segment review fully developed for the disions 207, 17 6%

Twite foriang-term profitoble growth, drive P&L accountan ity and presented ta mvestars as part of strategic review ond

and focus the argansotion on profitable growth cod cosh significant progress made to leadership ond monogement
generatian, continue to deveiop acguisition ophions and accountability to drve long-term growth Incentive structure
reintionships. present the strategic plan to the Board, simpkfied and aligned with new strategy Strategic plan and
‘nvestors and employees, ensure the Group's values (including volues sucressfutly communicated to key stakeholders including
new custorner focus volue] ore communicateo and understood the Bocrd, nvestors and emplayees in Novenber 2019
Strengthen organisation: Optimise divisional performonce Busimness impravernent mitiatives successfully delvered i the
tocusing an bookings, SGRA reduction, smart pricing m the second helf of the year resulting m imaroved margins and
afterrrarket, matenal cast reduction ond execution of the order hook at the year end Rationalisation projects gelvered
2019 rationdisation projects Actvely sponsor and support on trme and Group and Divisions rermain actvely engaged with
the Group's diversity agenda  Drive HSE improvernents Dwersity plans Robust HSE improvernent plans delvered
across the business with o reduction in lost-time acadents and hand mjunes
Deliver projects: Continue with customer led. new product Introduction of growth accelerater programme creating a
development and introguction, develop pian to review and culture of market led innovation now errbecded in strotegy
optimise rmanufactunng footprnt Continue to refine angd Plan to review ond optirmise manufacturing footprint presented
b relationships vath acquistion targets to the Board inlate 2017 PBM successfully acquired n Q3 2019

Daniel Strengthen finance orgdnisation: execute strohg planning Key internat transitions successfully completed with marimal 20% 17 8%

Shook and robust transition arrangements for key mtarnal disruption and mmproved performance ocross finance, tax and

succession movemnents far bath finance and 1T, continue IT. Internal contrals continue to alga to Industry best practice

tomprove internal controls and support the process and improvements made now resulting in efficiences across

improvements and subsequent changes to internai the drvisions Consistently strong perforrmance from tox and

audit, treasury and tax to ochieve this treasury functions

Defiver projects: continuse to strengthen (Ml capatihties Successtul detvery of 1T projects including Security

through enhanced IT mprovernent plans @ g ERPIT Enhancerment Progremme and loT advoncerment, ensuring

advancements, desktop collaboration standords, and that divisions continue to effectvely develup focused Ininatives

the secunty enhoncement programme Suppart MEA to ndvance IMI 1T agenda and manage associated nsks

Integration projects and develop relationships Ful support provided for successful PBM acquisition end
cont:nuing welb with post acquisition mtegration

Mark Organisation: Engage and support divisiens with Successful delrvery of crganisational plans ond footprint 20% 14 2%

Selwoy  orgensctional design for opt:mal per farmance gong anatysis Continual support to mprove diversity plans and

fosward Continue to sponsor diversity plans throughout comrmitrment (g the WISE ten steps initiotive Commenced
the dwisions and develop and refine diversity roadrrap mplementation of roodmap to ochieve compiance with
Fulty transition Chief Executive responsibirirties ro Roy Hampton Alexander Fuli transmon of responsibiities completed
Twite ncluding employes engagement octvities, execut ive on time and with ol key stakeholders including Investors
rmeetings, Mvestor relat:onships, accountabivty and strategy
Deliver projects: Ecrablishinternal control ana improvement Internal control and declaration process iImprovements
pians and manitoring of progress Oversee successful estabbshed, strengthening the finance team rhythms
hondover for the new Divisional Manaaing Director for IME New Drasional Managing Director for iMI Criticol Engineening
Creica: Engmeening ensunng robust and seamless transition successfully transiconed with no loss of business continuity
Continue to reduce the Group's balance sheet exposure Seccassiully completed the pionned pension habity
nregards person hobilties Reviews key gichal operating units maragement related exercises os per the ogreed strategy
and report findings and recommendations Robust reviews of key operating units reviewer with findings
ona recommendations made to the Executrve .n Q3 2019
Based on the performance described above, the annual Incentive bonus outcomes for 2019 are set out below:
Director 2019 maximum 2019 maximum  Total bonus Totad benus Achievermnent of share  Bonus deliverad Bonus delivered
banus opportunity bonus achievad awarded awarded ownership guidelines in form of cash in form of share
{% of salary) (% of maximum)? (£000Y (% of salary)? ot 31 Dec 2019 (£000) awards (£000)

Roy Twite 182%" 43%, 516 B1% 9h% 354 162

Daniel Shook 125% 4£4% 248 S5% 5% 186 62

Mark Selwoy 200% 419, 389 81% . 389

- Retlects the pro-rating of annual ncentive apporturity for 201 for Roy Twite

Prior to his appoirtment as Chief Executive o @ May 2019, the 2019 annuel benus for Roy Twite was to be determined partly on the basis of strategic ond personal objectwes
ond partly on the basis of finanaial performance of IME Critical Engineening, of which Roy was previously Managing Birector, in determining the bonus achigved for Roy, the
Committee conaderad the profit, revenue and cash corversion porformance of IME Crinicai Engineerng agamst the targets ornigma'ly set and what his bonus outcome woia
have been had be remained in that role. The total bonus awarded to Roy reflects this determination by the Cormmmittee and Roy's contributon to the finanaial performance

of both Group and IMI Criticat Engineering during the year Mark Selwaoy's bonus was calculoted as a percentage of his base salory until bis retirement on 31 July 2019

Deforred bomus share awords are riade where the executive ditector 1 yet to reach therr share cwnership gudance Details of the share ownership guidelines can be found on page B8

* Mark Sehway's pro-rated 2019 onnual bonus was paid in cosh gs he was not eigible far a deferred bonus share award
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Awards vesting under the liP

In March 2017, performance share awards were made to the executive directors under the lIP. The vesting of the awards was
subject to the achieverment of three independent performance cenditions as described below, measured over the three-years
ending 31 Decernber 2019. The 2017 {IP award will vest in March 2020 at 47.1% of masximumn.

Director Initiol oward Value on date of Number of initial Additional dividend Total shares Value of shares on

award' (E000) shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (£000)
Roy Twite 72287 926 34,047 3994 38.043 409
Daniel Shook 48 946 627 23,054 2,705 25,759 277
Mark Selway 156,323 2,002 58,714 6,891 65,605 706

- The three-day average mid market price on the date of owaord was 1,281 00 pence

The price on vesting 1s Lnknown ot thes e ond 5o the totai number of shares vesting is valued at the average price over the last quarter of 2019 (1,075 75 pence)

Pro rated for time served during the performance period (to 31 July 2019)

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

25% of the oward was sybject to the cchievernent of ROCE.
This measure is defined as segmental operating profit as a
percentage of the capital employed during the financial year
ended 31 December 2019 Capital employed being Intangible
Assets (excluding Acquired Intongibles and Goodwill), Property
Plant and Equipment and Working Capital. This colculation
excludes nght-of-use assets recognised under IFRS 14 in 2019 for
the first time. It compares the earnings of the Group with the
Capital nvested. ROCE was chosen as a measure as It represents
how well the Group has used its investment made by shareholders
and capttal from creditors to generate a profit.

The portion of the share award that will vest related to ROCE
depends on ROCE in the fingl year of the performance period.
For ROCE of less than 40% no award under this element wall
vest, 25% of the award will vest for ROCE of 40%, rising on

a straight-line basis to full vesting for ROCE of 50%. At the
end of the performance period return on caprtal employed
was 40 1% resulting in this element vesting at 6.4%

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

25% of the oward was subject to the achievernent of a relative
TSR performance measure aganst o defined group of companies
adjusted during the perfarmance period to take account of
merger and acquisition activity during the performance penod in
line with the Committee’s established guidelines, TSR is defined
as the movement in share price during the performance peried,
measured in local currency, with adjustment to take account of
changes in capital structure and dividends, which are assurmed
to be reinvested in shares on the ex-dividend dote, TSR was
chosen as a measure as it s an external, relative benchmark for
performance thot aligns executives’ rewards with the creation
of shareholder value.

The portion of the award that will vest related to TSR depends on
where Ml ranks in the comparator group. For a TSR rank that is
below median, no award under this element will vest 25% of the
award will vest for median TSR, rising on a straight-line baosis to
full vesting for upper quartile TSR. At the end of the three-year
performance perod, the Group ranked 15th of the peer group.
The resultant vesting outcome for this element of the award 1s il

Group adjusted profit before tax growth

50% of the award was subject to the achieverment of the Group
adjusted profit before tax growth measure, This measure 1s
defined as the profit before tax before adjusting tems as shown
in the audited gccounts of the Group, adjusted for any exceptional
items, including sigrificant acquisition and disposal and foreign
exchange movements, at the Committee's discretion.

Adjusted profit before tax growth is a key measure for IMl as it
gives an mdication of the strength of the Group's financial
performance and shows the amount available to reinvest into
the business and pay a return to sharehelders through dividends.
Fer growth of tess than 2.5% per annum, no award under this
element will vest. 25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5%
per annum rising on a straight-line bosis to full vesting for growth
of 7.5% per annum

Qver the three-year performance period ending 31 December
2019 Ml delivered group profit before tax growth of 6 3% The
resulftant vesting outcome for this element of the award s 40 7%

Deferred bonus share awards

In March 2017, deferred bonus share awards were also made
under the |IP which vest in March 2020. These are the form of
share award used for mandatory bonus deferral inte shares of
up to 50% of annual bonus payable where the executwe director
15 yet to reach their shore ownership guideline,
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Discretion to override formulaic
outcomes and to apply malus
and clawback

Depending on the circumstances, the Committee may exercise
judgement in assessing performance and determining the level
of achievermnant. The Committee has full discretion to override
formulaic cutcemes and to reduce the amount of any [IP
award, to reduce the number of shares subject to any form

of share award and/or to impose an obligation to make a
payment to the Company in the event it is discovered that the
Company has misstated its financial results for any reason,
there has been an error or miscalculation in respect of an
award, gross misconduct or in such other circumstances

as the Committee sees fit. Such other circumstances may
include, but are not limited to, serious reputational damage

or corporate faillure.

The Committee has considered the position and determined
that for 2019 1t is not appropriate for any reason to exercise
the discretion to override the formulaic outcome of the 2017
fIP awards or recover amounts previously awarded

Share ownership guidelines

It 15 a requirement of the Policy that executive directors are
subject to guidehnes which require them to build ¢ shareholding
in IMworth at least 250% of salary for Roy Twite ond 150%
of saiary for Daniel Shook The Policy permits the Committee
discretion to determine that up to 50% of any annual bonus
earned is deferred into shares until the share ownership
guideline 1s achieved together wath 50% of any vested share
awards. Each executive is then required to maintain this share
ownership guideline (subject to allowances for share price
fluctuations ond changes in base salary thereafter). When
assessing compliance with this guidebne the Committee
reviews both the level of beneficial share ownership and vested
but unexercised share incentive awards on a post-tax basis.
Prior to his appointrment as Chief Executive Roy Twite had
already exceeded the shareholding requirement of 200% that
applied to his former role. On appeintment as Chief Executive
the shareholding requirement was increased to 250% and

the Cammittee has determined that up to half of the annual
bonus poyable to Roy Twite and Daniel Shock as outlined on
page 86 will be delivered in the form of deferred bonus share
awards which must be held for o period of at least three years
and until the share ownership guideiine has been met.

Further, the Committee has determined that half of the
performance share awards rmade to Roy Twite and Danel
Shogk in March 2017, and due to vest in March 2020, should
be retained (net of sales required to meet tax liabilities arsing
on vesting) unti the share ownership requirernent is met.

Mark Selway did not dispose of any shares in IMI plc while
employed but was not required to retain shares he beld in
IM! plz after leaving the Company in ine with the 2018
Directors' Remuneration Policy.
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Share interests granted to executive
directors during 2019 (audited)

Grants made under the lIP

Performance share award grants under the 1P were made on
18 March 2019 in the form of mi-cost options. Awards are due
to vest on 18 March 2022, subject te performance in three core
areas ahgned to our ionger-term strategic priorities: ROCE
(25%), relative TSR (25%) and Group adjusted profit before
tax (50%). After vesting a holding period of two years applies
subject to the sale of shares as required to meet tax habilities
arising on vesting

The performance targets, which consider the Group’s approach
toimplementing accounting changes under IFRS 14, and
vesting scale that apply to the 2019 IIP awards are as follows:

ROCE Relotive TSR Group Level of
adjusted vesting
profit before
tax growth?
Thresheld 40% Median 2 5% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper cuartife 7 5% 100%
Weighting 25% 25% 50%

- Annualised Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years

Further details of the above performance targets can be found
in the awards vesting under the lIP section on page 87. The
following performance share award grants were approved and
made in 2019,

P shares Valve on date of Award as ¢

awarded award?® percentage of

(£000) satary?

Roy Twite 120,/58 1,214 250%
Danief Shook 66,962 673 150%

- The three doy average mid-market price on the date of award wors
1.00S 00 pence

- Based on Roy Twate's salary as Divisienal Managing Director for
Mt Crivical Enganeerng

Mark Selway was not granted an P award in 2019

The IIP 15 aiso used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable
after three years to satisfy bonuses delivered in the form of
shares. Details of these additional lIP awards made in 2019
are shown in the table on page 90 under the 'without
performance conditions' column. No perfermance

conditions apply to these awards.



For share awards granted in 2019 the TSR group included 17 companies to ensure complete alignment with our peers and
comparison to companies with simitar products, customers and global spread. The 2019 peer group includes the following
companies which 15 consistent with our 2018 peer group, and in line with the Committee's guideiines

TSR comparator group companies

1 ArTAC 7 Ingersoff-Rana

2 Beume 8177

3 Cortiss-Wright 9 Morgan Advanced Moterals
4 Eotgn 10 Parker Hanmifin

Emerson Flectnc 11 Rockwell Automation

L

12 Rotork

o

Flowserye

13 smC

14 Smeths Group
15 Spectrs

16 SPX

17 The Weir Group

All-employee share plans

Executive directors are eligible to participate in the oll-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees at IMI

All Emplayee Share Ownership Plon

IMi Shoresave Scheme

Number of shares Value of free Number of aptions Value of Total value under the
awarded share award® awarded optrons Dividends all-employee share
{£000) (£000) (£000) plans {£000}
2019 359 4 4
Roy Twite

2018 336 A 4
2019 359 4 4

Daniel Shook
2018 304 3 3
2019 359 & 4

Mark Selway
4 4

2018 336

Tn 2019 free shares were awarded at a share price of 1,000 64 pence (1,071 00 pence mn 2018)

Payments to past directors (audited)

Other than those relating to the departure of Mark Selway
as Chief Executive there were no payments to past directors
during the year. Dividend equivatent payments for vested but
unexercised nil-cost option awards will continue to be made
to past directors under the terms of the orginal grant.

Payments for loss of office

Mark Selway stepped down as Chief Executive immediately
following the Company's Annual General Meeting on ¢ May
2019 and retired on 31 July 2019, The remuneration
arrangements relating to his retirement as determined

by the Committee were in full compliance with the Policy
and are set out below.

Base salary

Muark Selway continued to receive his base salary of £822,000
payable in equal monthly instalments in arrears up to 31 July
2019. He also recewed g payment in ey of notice in respect of
the two months' notice period of £137,.000.

Annual incentive bonus

Mark Selway was eligible for an annudl incentive payment,
for 2019 subject to performance conditions and pro-rated
to reflect the time served in 2019 Details of Mark Selway's
bonus for 2019 are set out on page 86.

Awards vesting under the P

The Committee determined to treat Mark Selway a good
leaver for reason of retirement and agreed that unvested
performance share awards would continue until their normai
vesting date, subject to pro-rating ond achieverment of the
performance conditions attaching to them. Detanls of Mark
Selway's awards vesting in respect of the IP awards made
in March 2017 are set out on page 87. The performance
share awards made under the IIP in March 2018 will continue
to the normal vesting date again subject to pro-rating and
the achievement of applicable performance conditions.

No performance share awards were made under the lIP

to Mark Setway in 2019,

Unvested deferrad bonus share awards maode under the [IP
vested on retirerment and remain exercisable for 12 months
from retirement.

All Employee Share Ownership and SAYE plan awards held
by Mark Sebwvay at retirement were released to him on
31 July 2019,
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Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive directors In respect
of the financial years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 Decermnber 2018,

Director 2019 (£000) | 2018 (£000)

Bose fees Additional Taxabie Total 1 Base fees Additional Taxable Total

fees benefitst ‘ fees benefitst

Lord Smith of Kelvin 327 7 334 320 - 5 325
Carl-Peter Forster? b6 11 10 87 .2 11 B a3
Birgit Nergaard® b6 21 10 97 b 16 3 ag
Isobel Sharp* b6 14 2 84 | -1 16 5 85
Thomas Thune Andersen® b& 8 74 | 32 5 37
Katie Jockson® &4 4 70 l 32 1 33

- Taxoble benef ts wicliudes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs ossocioted with Board meetings held at M HQ

- Includes fee for Senor Independent Director

Includes fee for beang Chair of the Rermuneration Committes ond the non executive director with responsibility for employee engogement

“cludes fee for bang Chorman of the Audit Comrmittee

- Pro-roto fee from date of appomtment on 1 July 2018

Directors' shareholdings and share interests (audited)

The following table surmmarises the share interests of any director who served during the year as at 31 December 2019

or at the date of leaving the Board.

During the period 31 December 2019 to 27 February 2020 there were no changes in the interests of any current director

from those shawn save for purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan en 14 January 2020 of 10 shares
each on behalf of Roy Twite and Daniel Shock at 1,183 .00 pence per share, and 11 February 2020 of 12 shares on behalf
of Roy Twite and 11 shares on behaif of Danel Shook at 1,115.50 pence per shore.

Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
interests interests Nil-cost options All-employee
. i . . shore plans
With performance conditions Without performance conditions
(deferred bonus share awords)
Unvested! Vested but Unvested Vested but
unexercised unexercised
Roy Twite 445,702 140,087 297 416 - 8,204
Daniel Shook 2728791 27,323 187410 56,351 - 1807
Mark Selway? 556,952 10,125 229,569 86,727 229,498 2,633
Lord Smith of Kelvin 14,300 14,300 - -
Carl-Peter Forster 2,625 2,625 -
Birgit Nergaard 2625 2625 -
Isobel Shorp 3,000 3,000
Thomas Thune Andersen 26325 2,625 - - -
Katie Jackson 2,618 2418

-Vesting dates of share awards are shown in Nate &, page 127

- Shareholding as at the date of stepping down from the Board on 31 July 2019
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following informeation is intended to provide additional
context regarding the total remuneration for executive
directors

2019 2018 Change
(Em) {Em)
Dividends 1108 1079 2 7%
Total employment costs for Group 5880 46158 -4 5%

{see Note 5 on page 126)

In 2019, the total dvidend for the year of 41.1 pence
represented an increase of 1 2% over last vear's 40.6 pence.

Relative percentage change in
remuneration for the Chief Executive

The Commuttee actively considers any increases in base pay
for the Chief Executive relative to the broader IMI employee
population. Benefits and bonus payments are not typically
comparable given they are driven by a broad range of factars,
such as geographical location, local practices, eligibility,
indnidual circumstances and role

Chief Executive® Employees®
Base salary -12% 1%
Benefits -55% 10%
Annual bonus -58% -47%;

- The percentage change tokes into accaunt the appointment of a new Chiel
Executwen 2019

All UK head oftice employees This comparison excludes our international
warkforce which we believe wou'd not provide a true comparison given differing
local market factors

Historical performance and
remuneration

In addition to considering executive remuneration in the
context of internal comparisons, the Committee reviews
histornce! outcomes under the voriable pay plans

The graph below compares IMI's TSR to the FTSE100 and
FTSE250 over the last ten years, We compare performance

to the FTSE100 as IM has been included in the mdexin the
past and it is a position where IM| aspires to be TSR measures
the returns that a company has provided for s shareholders,
reflecting share price movements and assuming renvestment
of dmidends (source: CaplQ), with data averaged over the final
30 days aof each frrancial year. As the graph below illustrates,
IMI's absolute and relative TSR performance has been strong
over the last ten years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment
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The following table summarises the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the lost ten years, and the outcomes of short
and long-term incentive plans as a percentage of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 December 2010° 2011 o 2013 20142 2015 2016 20177 2018? 2019?
Total remuneration (single figure, £000) 4,439 12,289 7954 6,688 1567 1667 1,901~ 2,773 3047 1707
Annual varioble pay (% of maximum} 95% B5% 47% 2% 36% 40% 50% P5% 75% L3%
Leng-term variable pay (3 of maximum) @7 95% 100% 100% -

- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) 100% 100% 100% 82 6% - . 35% - -
- Perfarmance Share Plan

Long-term verioble pay (% of maximum) - - - - - 6 55% 29 2% 47 1%
- IMt Incentive Plon

Represents remuneration for Martin Lormb, who was Chief Executve from betore 2010 unti 31 December 20132
* Represents remuneration for Mark Selway, who wos appointed Chief Executive on 1 January 2014

Represents remuneration for Roy Twate, who was oppointed Chief Executive on 9 May 2019

Pay ratio reporting

This reporting year legislation has come into force which reguires quoted companies with 250 or more employees to publish
information on the pay ratio of the Group Chief Executive to UK employees. In line with the new regulatory requirements, the table
below sets out the ratic at median, 25th and 75th percentile of the total remuneration received by the Group Chief Executive
compared to the total remuneration received by our UK employees - as well as comparing to base salary only. Total rermuneration
reflects all remuneration received by an indmdual in respect of the relevant years, and includes salary, benefits, pension, and value
receved from incentive plans.

Total remuneration

Financial year Methodology P25 (Lowsar Quartle) PO (Madian) P75 (Upper Quartiie)

2019 Cption C 831 621 451

» The 2019 Chief Executive single figure is calculated considering the Chief Executive succession on @ May 2012, The remuneration
for Mark Selway Is reported for the period from 1 January 2019 to 9 May 2019 and Roy Twite's remuneration from @ May 2019
to 31 Decernber 2019. The remuneration calculation includes base salary, fees, pension, taxable benefits, annual bonus and
shares pand during this period.

» As1s permitted by Option C of the regulations the Gender Pay Gap data for 2019 based on a snapshot in April 2018 was
used to identify our three quartile employees, P25, P50 and P75, Howving identified P25, PSO and P75, we chose to review
the single figure data for an odditional 10 employees at each of the guarties for the full year ended on 31 December 201%.
The remuneration calculation included base salary, allowances, pension, taxable benefits, annual benus and shares.

This method proviges a like for like comparison with the Chief Executive's single figure total for the 2019 calendar year.
Gathering data on more than 3 employees provides a better opportunity to capture all pay and benefits of employees
to get a true median value ot each of the three bandings.

» Qur principles for pay setting and progression n our wider workforce are the same as for our executives — total reward being
sufficiently competitive to attract and retain high-calibre individuals without aver-paying and prowviding the opportunity for
individual development and career progression to attract and retain great talent. The pay ratios reflect how remuneration
arrangements differ as accountability increases for more senior roles within the orgonisation and the ratios reflect the
weighting towards long-term value creation ond alignment with shareholder interests for the Chief Executive.

» We are satisfied that the median pay ratio reported this year s consistent with our wider pay, reward and progression
polictes for employees. All IMI employee’s receive competitive pay and benefits and have the opportunity for annual pay
increases and career progression and development opportunities.
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The regulations require the total pay ond benefits and the salary component of tetal pay and benefits to be set out as follows:

Base salary (£) Total pay and benefits (£)
Chief Executive remuneration 758.550 2353014
25th Percentile emplayee 25000 28,415
50th Percentile empioyee 26607 38,070
75th Percentile employee 48,552 51,812

Application of the Policy for 2020

Executive director fixed pay

Consistent with prior years, salary increases effective

1 January 2020 considered o range of foctors including the
increases for the wider workforce, the financial performance
of the Group and prevailing economic conditions. For 2020
the Chief Executive received no base salory increase and

the Finance Director received 2% which is below the increase
awarded to employees for 2020 of 2.8% but aligned to the
general increase applied to UK employees. The base salary
for the Chief Executive will remain at £720,000 0 2020

and for the Finance Directar will be £457,650 effective
from 1 Jonuary 2020

Other elements of fixed pay (benefits and allowances) will
remain unchanged, although pension allowances are a fixed
percentage of salary.

Incentive pay

Annual bonus

Following the strategy onnouncement made in November
2019 the Commitiee reviewed the appropriateness of
continuing with the metrics that applied to the 2019

annual bonus to ensure alignment with the new strategy.

The Committee determined that the 2020 annuai bonus waill
be contingent on ¢ Profit Before Tax growth target alongside
strategic and personal objectives for each executive director.
The weighting of 80% to financial metrics and 20% to
strategic and personal obyectives will rernain unchanged.

Free cash flow, if 1t should materially underperform aganst
budget, will be added as an explicit reason for the Committee
to apply downward discretion. The health and safety underpin
will be expanded to take into account any relevant ESG matter
when determining remuneration ocutcomes. Revenue wili
remain a critical key performance indicator for the business
and the Committee will monitor performance of this areq,

as it will the underlying performance of the business, when
determining bonus outcomes. Due to the commercially
sensitive nature of the Group adjusted Profit Before Tax
target and strategic and personal objectives, they will be
disclosed retrospectively in next year's report along with
performance against them.

The maximum bonus opportunity will remain at 200% of
saiary for Roy Twite As noted earlier in the Annual Statement,
the annual bonus opportunity for the Finance Director will

increase from 125% to 150% of base salary in recognition of
Daniel Shook’s consistently strong performance since jomning
in 2015 and having taken inte account movement amongst
global industry peers in the five years since. On-target bonus
is set at 50% of maximum bonus opportunity.

Performance share awards under the HIP

At the some time os the review of annual bonus metrics,

the Committee also reviewed those ottaching to ItP awards
The Commuttee, also considering shareholder feedback,

has decided to increase the weighting on TSR and ROCE to
1/3 and introduce an EPS metnic of equal (1/3) weaighting.
This, the Committee believes, will ensure that executives are
only rewarded if underlying earnings ¢re increased over the
performance pericd and shareholder returns cutperform peers.

2020 awards will remain at 250% for Roy Twite and 150%

for Daniel Shook and will be subject to a two-year post-vesting
holding period, extending the total time horizon to five years
from grant.

The performance targets thot will apply to the 2020 1IP
awards are as follows

Relative TSR Adjusted ROCE Level of

EPS vesting

Threshold Median 39 115% 25%,

Maximum Upper quartde 10% 14 5% 100%
Weighting 1/3 1/3 1/3

Service contracts

The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors’ service
contracts can be reviewed in the Board's Corporate
Governarice Report on page 66.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors’ remuneration
mcreased by 2%, with effect from 1 January 2020 and
compares with a 2.8% increase across the wider workforce.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Cormmmittee
for and on behalf of the Board

27 February 2020
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Directors' Report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements,

for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report 1s incorporated by reference and includes
the content on pages 8 to 60.

Results and dividend

The Group consolidated income statement 15 shown on page
112 Adjusted operating profit cmounted to £266 1m {2018:
£265.5m), adjusted profit before taxation and discontinued
operations amounted to £189.3m (2018 £212 m).

The directors recommend a final dvidend of 26.2p per share
(2018 26 Op per share) on the ordinary share capital payable,
subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 7 May 2020, on 15 May 2620 to shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 3 April 2020, Together
with the interim diwidend of 14.9p per share pard on 13
September 2019, this final dividend will bring the totat
distribution for the year to 41 1p per share (2018: 40.6p

per share).

Research and development
See Note 5 to the financial staterments on page 126,

Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders’ funds increased from £666 2m at the end
of 2018 to £709.9m at 31 December 2019.

Share capital

As at 31 Decernber 2019, the Company's share capital
comprised o single class of share capital which was divided
into ardinary shares of 28 4/7p each. Details of the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements on page 165. The Company's ardinary shares are
listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The Company has a Level 1 American Depositery Receipt

('ADR" programme for which Crtibank, N A acts as depositary.

See page 180 for further details.

As at 31 December 2019, 1,079,189 shares were held In an
employee trust for use in relation to certain executive mcentive
plans representing 0.6% of the ssued share capital {excluding
treasury shares) at that time The independent trustee of the
trust has the same rights as any other shareholder other than
as spectfically restricted in the governing trust deed. The trust
has agreed to waive any right to all dvidend payments now
and in the future Participants in option schermes do not hold
any voting rights on the shares until the date of exercise.

During 2019, 104,297 new ordinary shares were issued under
ernployee share schemes: 104,297 ynder save @s you earn
plans and nil under executive share plans. Shares acquired
through Company share schemes ond plans rank equally
with the shares in issue and have no special rights
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Pursuant to the Company's articles of associotion a tracing
exercise was conducted which matched certain beneficiaries
with shares held by shareholders who had been out of contact
for over 12 vears A balance of 17,376 heid in the names of
other such out of contact sharehclders were not matched with
beneficiaries and were forfeited and sold with sale proceeds
being retained by the Company.

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company's
ordinary shares are set out In the Company's articles of
association, copres of which can be obtained from Companies
House in the UK, from the Company's website or by writing to
the Company Secretary. Changes to the artictes of association
must be approved by o special resolution of the sharehclders
{75% majarity required) in accordance with the legisiationin
force at the time. Subject to applicable statutes, shares ray
be issued with such rights and restrictions as the Company
may by ordinary resolution decide or (+f there is no such
resolution or so far as it does not make speafic pravision)

as the Board may decide.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve the
Company's report and accounts, to attend, speak and vote
at generai meetings of the Company, and to appeaint proxies
to exercise their rights. Holders of ordinary shares may receve
a dividend and on a hguidation, may share in the assets of
the Company.

Subject to meeting certam thresholds, holders of ardinary
shares may requisition a general meeting of the Company or
propose resolutions at Annual General Meetings. Yoting nghts
for ordinary shares held in treasury are suspended and the
treasury shares carry no rights to receive dividends or other
distributions of assets.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares
in the Company other than:

» certain restrictions as may from time to time be imposed by
laws and regulations (for example insider trading faws); and

» pursuant to the Company's share dealing code whereby the
drrectors and certain employees of the Company require
approval to deal in the Company’s shares.

The Company is not aware of any arrangements between
shareholders that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
ordinary shares or on voting rights. None of the ordinary shares
carry any special rights with regard to control of the Company
The only restrictions on voting nghts are those that apply to
the ordinary shares held in treasury. Electronic and paper proxy
appointments and voting instructions must be received by the
Company's registrars not later than 48 hours {excluding any
non-working days) before a general meeting, or (subject to the
Company's articles of association} any adjournment thereof,




Treasury shares

The Company was granted authority at the Annual General
Meeting held on ¢ May 2019 to purchase up to 27,210,271 of
its ordinary shares. This nuthority will expire at the conclusion
of the next Annua! General Meeting to be held on 7 May 2020,
where shareholders will be asked to give a similar authority,
details of which will be given in the Notice of Annual

Genercl Meeting.

As at 31 December 2016, 14,248,836 ordinary shares (norminal
volue £4,071,096) were held in treasury representing 5% of
the 1ssued share caprtal (excluding treasury shares} at that
tirne. The maximum number of shares held in treasury during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was 14,248,836

Substantial shareholdings

information provided to the Company pursuant to the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules is published on a reguiatory
information service at www imiplc. com. As at 31 December
2019, the following voting interests in the ordinary share capital
of the Company, disclosable under the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules, had been notified to the Company

% Held"
Artisan Partners Limited Partnership 1037
Massachusetts Financial Services Company @ 8o
Ameriprise Financial inc 501
Standord Life Investments (Holdings) Limited 497
tegol & General Group ple 302

- As of the date in the notification to the Company

Subsequent to 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
Annual Report., no changes in the voting interests have been
notified to the Company in accordance with the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules save that Artisan Partners
Limited Partnership notified the Company en 10 January 2020
that its voting interest was 9.90%. As far as the Company is
aware, there are no persons with substantial holdings i the
Company other than those noted above.

Statement on corporate governance

The required disclosures are contamned in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 61 to 93 and are incorporated
into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Employee matters

Every effort s made to ensure that applicotions for
emplayment from disabled employees are fully and fairty
considered and that disabled employees have equal
opportunity in tramning, succession glanmng and promotion.
Further disclosures relating to employee diversity, employee
engagement ond related policies are set out on pages 27
to 31

Details of employee share schemes are set out 1n Nate 6
of the financial statements on poges 127 to 129,

Health, safety and the environment

it is Group policy to improve continuously safe and healthy
working conditions and more details appeor on page 32,
It 1s Group policy to operate always in an envircnmentally
responsible manner

Our carbon reporting statistics demonstrate that our recent
performance of CO.e has continued to improve. On a lke

for like basis, we achieved our target to keep ermissions at

or below 2018 levels for 2019. We ochieved a 2 5% reduction
in ernisstons compared to 2018 Of the 2019 total, our direct
(Scope 1) emissions of CO;, essentially gas, diesel and fuel ol
consumed amounted to 16,000 tonnes. Curindirect (Scope 23
emissions of CO;, essenticlly the emissions generated on our
behalf to provide our electricity, amounts te 41,500 tonnes.

in addition to gross tonnes of CO,, we report COse intensity
relative to £million sales; our result for 201915 31.2 and s
comparable to the 2018 performance

Cur COze accounting methodolegy follows the DEFRA
guidelines and includes off material emissions across 1ML,
See page 34 for further CO e and energy efficiency details.

Political donations
No poltical donations were made during the year

Directors

The membership of the Board and biographical details of the
directors are given on pages 62 and 63 and are incorporated
into this report by reference.

The rules for the appointment and replacement of directors
are set out 10 the Company's articles of association Each new
appointee to the Board is required to stand for election at the
next Annuat General Meeting following their appointment. In
addition, the Company's artuicles of association require each
director to stand for re-election every year

Qualifying indemnity provisions and
liability insurance

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ ioblity
insurance and alf directors of the Company benefit from
qualifying third party indernnity provisions which were in piace
during the finonciol vear. At the date of this Annual Report
there are such indemnity arrangements with each director in
respect of the costs of defending civil, criminel and regulatory
proceedings brought against thern, as a director or employee,
subject always to the imitations set by the Companies

Act 2006,



The Group operates pension schemes in the UK which provide
retirement and death benefits for employees and former
employees of the Group The corperote trustee of the pension
schemes is IM! Pensions Trust Lirmited, a subsiciary of the Cornpany
Qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions, as defined in
section 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force for the
financial year ended 31 Decernber 20192 and remain in force for
the benefit of each of the directors of the corporate trustee of the
pension schemes. These ndemnity provisions cover, to the extent
permitted by law, certain losses or labilities incurred as a director
or officer of the corporate trustee of the pension schemes.

The Group also hasin place third party qualifying indemnity
orovisions, as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006,
in favour of certan employees who discharge responsibihties
for various wholly-owned subsidiary companies and these
indemnities are given on a similar basis te the above.

Role of the Board
The role of the Board is:

» to promote the leng-term success of the Company for the
benefit of its members;

» to understand the views of key stakeholders and review
engagement meachanisms,;

» to set and monitor the Company's values, purpose and strategy
and ensure that these and its culture are aligned;

» to select ond appoint the Executive Committee and ensure
that the necessary resources are gvailable to thern;

» to ensure thot the Company's cbligations to shareholders
are understood and met;

» to dernonstrate ethical leadership ond high standards of
behaviour ond to oversee governance, risk and the control
environment; and

» to ensure that the Board has the policies, processes,
information, time and resources it needs to function
effectively and efficiently.
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The Board provides leadership, direction and governance for the
Company and oversees business and management performance.
The Boord has adopted a corparate governance framework
which defines Board roles and includes the fist of matters
reserved to it and written delegations of authority for its
committees and the Executive Committee Board reserved
matters include strategy and key areas of policy, rajor
operaticnal and strateqic risks, significant investment decisions
and material changes in the organisation of the Group.

In the tMI Corporate Governance Framework (updated in 2019),
the Board has clearty defined in writing those matters which are
reserved to it and the respective delegated authorities of its
committees and it has alse set written imits of authority for the
Chief Executive The Group has a clear orgonisational structure
and well-established reporting and controt disciplines Managers
of operating units assume respoensibility for and exercise a high
degree of autonomy in running day-te-day trading activities, They
do this within a frarmework of clear rules, policies and delegated
authorities regarding business conduct, approval of proposals for
investment and matenial changes in cperations and are subject
to regular semor management reviews of performance.

Division of responsibilities amongst directors
Chairman:

» setting the Board agenda ond shaping the culture in the
booardroom;

» charing meetings and encouraging the active engagerment
of all Board members;

» bulding @ Board with a mix of people, skills, knowledge and
experience and ensuring its effectiveness, including the quality
of debate and decisions,

» developing a productive working relotionship with the
Chief Executive;

» seeking regular engagernent with rajor shareholders; and

» getting the nght executive leadership and succession
plans in place,



There is a clear division of respensibiity between the Chairman and
Chief Executive, which is reflected in the IMi Corporate Governance
Frarmework approved by the Board. In summary, the Chairman is
responsible for the leadership and effectiveness of the Board but
does not have any executive powers or responsibilities. The Chief
Executive leads the Executive Comimittee in running the businesses
and implementing operational and strategic plans under authority
delegated by the Board.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring thot the Board
meetings cperate to an appropriate agenda, and that adequate
information ts provided sufficenty in advance of meetings to
allow proper consideration. He 1s supported by the Company
Secretary, whao aiso assists in ensuring that the Beard operatesin
accordance with goed corporate governance under the Code ond
relevant regulatory requirements. The Company Secretary acts
as secretary 1o all of the standing committees of the Board.
The Board has a recognised procedure for any director to obtain
independent professional advice at the Company's expense

and all directors have access to the Company Secretary who

15 a solicitor.

Chief Executive:
» leadership of the Executive Comrmittee;

» developing business plans and strategy for consideration
of the Board and implementing the same;

» communicating to the people within the Company the
expectations of the Board in relation to the Company's culture,
values and behavicurs, including ensuring the highest
compliance and governance standards;

» building an effective operational managerment team and
developing the organisation structure; and

» resourcing, talent developrment and succession plans

Directors' powers

The powers of the directors are determined by UK legislation ond
the articles of associotion of the Company in force from time to
time. The directors were authorised to aflot and issue ardinary
shares and to make market purchases of the Company's ordinary
shares by reselutions of the Company passed at its Annual
General Meeting held on @ May 2019 by the possing of new
resolutions. The current authorities will expire at the conclusion

of the next Annual General Meeting to be held on 7 May 2020,

at which new authorities will be sought.

Further detarls of authonties the Company is seeking for the
allotrment, 1ssue and purchase of its ordinory shares will be set
out in the separate Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Directors' interests

The interests of the persons {including the interests of any
connected persons) who were directors at the end of the yeaor,
in the share capital of the Company, and their interests under
share option ond incentive schemes, are shown on page 90.

Monagement of conflicts of interest

The Company's articles of association include certain provisions
relevant to the actmty of the Board and 1ts committees and con
be viewed on the Company’s website. These provisions include
requirements for disclosure and approval by the Board of
potential conflicts of interest. These procedures apply, inter alia,
to external directorships and it s the Board's view thot they
operated effectively durng 2019

Each director has a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid
a situation in which they have or may have a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts or possibly moy conflict with the interests
of the Company. This duty s in addition to the duty that they
owe to the Company to disclose to the Board any interest in

any transaction or arrangement under consideration by the
Company. If any director becornes aware of any situation which
rmay give rise to a conflict of interest, that director informs the
rest of the Board and the Board 1s then permitted under the
articles of association to decide to authorise such conflict The
information is recorded in the Company's register of conflicts and
a conflicts authorisation letter 1s issued to the relevant director.

Change of control

The Cormnpany and its subsichanes are party to a number of
agreements that may allow the counterparties to alter or
termingte the arrangements on a change of control of the
Company following @ takeover bid, such as commercial contracts
and employee share plans. Other than as referred to in the next
paragraph, none of these s considered by the Company to be
significant in terms of its likely impact on the Group as a whole.

In the event of a chonge of controf of the Company, the Group's
main funding agreements atlow the lenders to renegotiate terms
or give notice of repayment for ol cutstanding amounts under
the relevant facilities.

The Cormpany does not have agreerments with any director or
emplayee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment specifically resulting from a tokeover, although the
provisions of the Company's share schemes include a discretion
to allow awards granted to directors and employees under
such schemes to vest in those circumstances.

information to be disclosed under Listing Rules
9.8.4R

Listing Rule statement Detail Neote reference of financial
stotements/page number

9.8.4R (1-2)(5-14) Not applicable

@.B.4R (4) Long-term 4/ page 227

incentive schermes
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Internal control

The Board has responsibility for oversight of the Group's system
of internal control and confirms that the system of internal
control takes into account the Code and relevant best practice
gudance including the Financial Reporting Council's September
2014 publication, 'Guidance on Risk Management, Internal
Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting'

All operating units prepare forward plons and forecasts which are
reviewed I detait by the Executive Committee and consolidated
for review by the Board Performance against forecast is
continuously monitored at monthly meetings of the Executive
Committee and, on a quarterly basis, by the Board Minmurm
standards for accounting systems and controls, which are
documented and monitored, are promulgated throughout the
Group, Certified annual reports are required from senior
executives of operating units, confirming compliance with Group
financial reporting requirements. The internal audit function,
Group Assurance, operates a rolling programme of internal
assurance on site reviews at selected operating units. Addraonatly,
visits to operations are carried out by senior Group finance
personnel. These internat assurance processes are co-ordinated
with the actiity of the Company's external auditor.

Caprtal investments are subject to a clear process for investment
appraisal, authorisation and post-investrment review, with major
investment proposals referred for consideration by the Executive
Committee and, according to ther materiality, to the Board In
addition, the Executive Committee reguiarly reviews the
aperation of corporate pohcies and controls including those
relating to ethics and compliance matters, treasury activities,
environmental issues, health and safety, human resources and
taxation. Compiliance and internal audit reports summaenes are
mode available to the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee, te enable controf Issues and developments
to be monitared.

Control processes are dynamic and continuous improvements
are made to adapt them to the changing risk profile of
eperations and to implement proportionate measures to
address any identified weakness in the internal control system,
More information in relation to nsk is given on pages 54 to 59.
The internal control declaration process is fully embedded and
enables improvernent in control. Action plans to improve controls
as a result of these assessments are being tracked and reported
to the Audit Committee.

Through the procedures eutlined here, the Board has considered
the effectivensess of all sgruficant aspects of internal control
for the year 2019 and up to the date of this Annual Report.
The Board believes that the Group's systern of internal control,
which is designed to manage rather than eliminate nisk, provides
reasonable but not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or lass.
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Financial reporting processes

The use of the Group's accounting manual and prescribed
reporting requirements by finance teams threughout the Group
are important in ensuring that the Group's accounting policies are
clearly estoblshed and that nformation 1s appropriately reviewed
and reconciled as port of the reporting process. The use of @
standard reporting package by all entities in the Group ensures
that infermation is presented in @ consistent way that facilitates
the production of the consolidated financial statements

Compliance hotline

During 2019 the Board reviewed the operation of the independent
compliance hothne for reporting concerns, reviewed the more
significant reports recenved and considered how these are investigated
and foliowed up. The Board believes that the hotline process and
Imvestigations are effective and that proportionate action ts taken by
management in response. In line with the Code, this responsibility
was transferred to the Board from the Audit Committee at the
start of 2019

Viability statement

in accordance with the Code, the directors have acssessed the
viability of the Company over a relevant period, taking into account
the Group's finanaial and trading position as summarised in this
Annual Report, the principal risks and uncertainties set out on
pages 54 to 59 and the five-year business plan reviewed by the
Board in Septermber 2019 Based on this assessment, and other
ratters considered and reviewed by the Board, the directors
confirm that they have ¢ reascnable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue In operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period from the date of this
Annual Report to 31 December 2024

The directors have determined that the penod to 31 December
2024 consbitutes an appropriate period over which to make its
assessment of viability. Whilst the directors have no reoson to
believe the Company will not be viable over a longer tirming honzon,
the five-year peried to 31 December 2024 was chosen as 1t aligns
with the Company's business and strategic planning timing
henzon and is a sensible period for such an assessment. {tis
believed this period provides readers of the Annual Report with
an appropriately long-term view with which to ossess the
Company's prospects although future outcomes cannct be
predicted wath certainty.

in making its assessment, the Board recognised the principat
risks facing the Company, including these that would threaten
its business model, future performance, solvency or liguidity.

A summary of these risks can be found on pages 54 to 59.

The five-year business plan was used to assess the headroom
on the Company's focilities and to stress test ongeing covenant
compliance under scenarios where its principal risks matenalise.
The analysis considered both runming business’ risks, such as
reducing revenues and margins, as well as one-off ‘event’ risks such
as product recalis. The Board also considered the Cormpany’s ability
to raise capitatin the future, as well as both the ongoing actions
undertaken to prevent occurrence and the potential actions to
mitigate the impact of any particular nisk.



The directors also recognised a number of key features of the
Company's operations. The Company's wide geographical and
sector diversification, and the lack of ¢ single major production
site, help minimise the risk of serious business interruption.
Furthermore, aur business model is structured so that the
Company 1s not overly reliant on a few large customers.

Our largest customer constitutes onty 2% of Group revenue and
our top 20 customers acesunt for just over 16% of Group revenue
In addition, our abiity to flex our cost base reduces aur exposure
to sudden adverse ecocnomic conditions.

Going concern

Accounting standards require that directors satisfy themselves
that its reasonable for them to conclude whether it is
appropriate to prepare financial statements on o going concern
basis. The Group's business activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Strategic Report. Principal risks are
detailed on pages 54 to 59 The financial position of the Group,
its cash flows, liguidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the finoncial statements. In addition, Note 18

to the financial statements includes the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial
risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments
and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and
hquidity risk. Note 14 to the financial statements addresses
the management of the funding risks of the Group's employee
benefit cbligations.

The Group has considerable finoncial resources together

with long-stonding relotionships with a number of customers,
suppliers and funding prowviders across different geogrophic
areas and industries The Group's forecasts and projections,
taking account of potential and realistic changes in trading
performance, incdicate that the Group is able to operate within
the leve! of facilities either in ploce on 31 Decernber 2019, or
renewed since, without the need to renew any further facilities
before 1 March 2021. As a consequence, the directors believe
thaot the Group is well-placed to manage its business risks
successfully despite the uncertamties inherent in the current
econormic cutlook. Such uncertainties as have been wentified
are not regarded as matenal uncertainties for the purpose of
the going concern assessment.

After moking due enquiry, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adeguate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the financial statements.

Non-financial information statement

We aim to comply with the Nen-Financial Reporting
requirements contained in sections 414CA and 414CB of

the Companies Act 2006. The table set out on page 100, and
the information it refers to, is intended to help stakeholders
understand our position on key non-financial matters
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Reporting requirement Policies and standards which govern our approoch Additional information
£nvironmental matters Environmental policy poge 33
Employees Code of Conduct poge 24
Haothne for reporting concerns poge 25
Heoith ord Sofety policy page 32
Diversity and Inclusian palicy page 27
Human rights Madern Siavery Act poge 25
Social matters M Way Day page 35
Our purpose page 01
Cantributing to cormmurities page 35
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery Complignce polcies incfuding anti-bnibery poley page 25
Description of principal risks pages 54 - 59

Description of the business mode!

pages 12 and 13

Stakeholder engogement

pages 37, 70 and 71

QOutcome of nen-financial policies and standards

Employee engagement survey results
Gender aiversity reporting

Health and safety reporting

Carbon emissions reparting

poge 95

puge 30 and 52
poges 27 and 78
page 32 and 52

Due diligence pr mp d in pur of
; & RN

P g ial policies and st s

Customer satistaction surveys

Carbon emissions reporting and monitoring

Scrap and waste reduction

Monitonng of expenses, hospitality and entertainment

Monitoring employes engagement surveys

All ernployees recaive the Code of Conduct

Hotline reports reviewed by the Board

Health and safety reporting and monitoring

Modern slavery troimng and nsk assessments

Cormplance tranming

Compliance risk assessments and talored programmes by drision

Compliance implermentction reviews gnd internat audits

Know vour customer po! oy and due dingence reviews

Third party cgent ond distnibuters policy and due diligence reviews

Internal contrel declarations and comphance declorations

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each director confirms that, se far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit nfermation of which the Company’s
auditor 1s unoware and each director has token all the steps
that he or she cught to have taken as a director to make
himnself or herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of

that information.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held ot Crowne Plaza
Hotel, Pendigo Way, Marston Green, Birmningham B40 INT
on 7 May 2020 at 10am_ Notice of the Annual General
Meeting will be published on the Company's website.

By order of the Board

John O'Shea
Company Secretary

27 February 2020

Ml is registered in England No. 714275
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Statement of directors’

responsibilites

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the

financial statements.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
which includes the Directors’ Report, the Strotegic Report,
Remuneration Repert and Corporate Governance Staternent,
and the Greup ond porent cormpany finanaial statements in
acceraance with opplicable low and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the Group financiol
statements in accordance with those International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unien and
the parent company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable fow).
Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
present fairly the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows for that period. In preparing those financict
statermments, the directors are required to:

» sefect suitable accounting policies and then cpply
them consistently;

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable;

» present infermation, :ncluding accounting policias, In a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

» state that the Group financial statements have comphed
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

» state for the parent company financial statements whether
gpplicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards hove been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at ony time
the financial position ef the Group and the parent company
and enable them to ensure that the Group ond parent
company financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation as appropriate.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Group and the parent company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website Legiskation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors' responsibility statement under
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, as at the date of this report,
confirms that:

» the Group and parent company financict statements in this
Anrual Report, which have been prepared in accordance with
applicable UK law and with the applicable set of accounting
standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities,
financial position and profit of the Group, and

» the Annual Report {which includes the Directors’ Report
and the Strategic Report) includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the Group token as a whole,
tegether with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repert
Iin accordance with applicable laws and reguiations. Having
taken advice from the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable and provide the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's performaonce, business
model and strategy.

By order of the Board

John O'Shea
Company Secretary

27 February 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMl plc

Opinion

In our apinion:

« IMl pic's Group financial statements and parent company financial staterments + the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in
(the “financial statermnents”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group’s , the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
profit for the year then ended; requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, os regards the Group

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

We have audited the financial statements of IMI plc which comprise:

Group Parent company

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 Balance sheet as at 31 December 2019

Consolidated statement of comprehensive incomne for the year then ended Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended Related notes C1 to C10 to the finoncial statements including o summary

of significant accounting policies
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
Consclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019

Related notes 1 to 28 to the financial stotements,
including a summery of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financiol statements is applicoble law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework thot has been applied in the preporation of the parent company financial
staternents is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in nccordance with International $tandards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs {UK)) and applicabie law. Our respensibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financicl statements section of our report below. We are independent of the Group and parent
company In accordance with the ethical requirermnents that are relevent to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in cccordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit ewidence we have obtained is sufficient and oppropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have nothing to report in resgect of the following information in the Annual Report, in relation to which the 1SAs (UK} require us to report to you whether

we have anything material to add or draw attenton to:

« the disclosures in the Annual Report set out on pages 56 to 59 that describe the principal risks and expiain how they are being managed or mitigeted;

+ the directors’ confirmation set out on page 98 in the Annuat Report that they have carried out a rebust assessment of the principal risks facing the entity,
including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or hiquidity;

. the directors’ statement set cut on page 99 in the financial stotements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the entity's ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve
months from the date of approval of the financial stotements;

- whether the directors’ statement in relation to geing concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent
with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

« the directors' explanation set out on page 99 in the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity, over what period they have done
s and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they hove a reasonable expectation thot the entity wilt be able to
continue in operation and meet its liobilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary gualifications or assurnptions.
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Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters - Revenue recognition - Cut off in Critical Engineering and nsk of management override

- Inventory valuction
o ) - Carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
Audit scope - We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 15 comiaonents (including the pcrenrt company} and audit
procedures on specific balances for o further 23 compenents (including four corparate entities)
- The components where we performed full or specific oudit procedures accountad for 83% of Adjusted profit before tax,
B 80% of Revenue and 84% of Total assets o o
Materiality - Overall Group materidlit)_r of £12,5m which re'prresewnt's 5% of odiusted profit before tax

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in eur audit of the financial statements of the current period and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greotest effect on: the overalt audit strategy, the ollocation of resources in the audit; ond directing the efforts of the engagement tegm. These matters were addressed
in the context of our oudit of the financial stoterments as o whole, and in our opinien thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk . Our response to the risk

Revenue recognition (£1,873m, ' Cut-off

PY comparative £1,907m) We performed the following oudit procedures at 9 full and 8 specific scope Critical Engineering locations where
revenue is in scope. Revenue ot these locations represents 88% of the total Critical Engineering revenue balance

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 723,
Accounting pelicies {(pages 117); and Note 4 of the
Consolidated Finoncial Statements (page 122). We performed waikthroughs of revenue ot the 9 full and B specific scope tocations and assessed the design
effectiveness of key controls. For 15 compenents we tested the operating effectiveness of contrais.

of E651m.

There is a risk in the Critical Engineering division
of inapprapriate revenue recognition if deliveries We performed cut-off testing by tracing a sample of transactions around the period end to third party delvery
are recorded within the wrong accounting period. note docurnentation and customer acceptance.
The cyclical nature and value of deliveries results
in significant shiprments near the December period We performed tests of detail for o sample of revenue transactions to confirm the transactions had been
end and an associated cut off nisk, " appropriately recorded in the income statement with reference to IFRS 15 and corroborated that control

of the products had been transferred teo the customer by:
There is a risk in oll three divisions of inappropricte = onalysing the contract and terms of the sale to determine that the Group had fulfilled the requirements
revenue being recognised if there js manggement  of the contract;
override through manual topside journal entries. - confirming revenue could be reliably measuread by reference to underlying decumentation; and

« confirming collectability of the revenue was reasonably assured by agreeing to collection history.

RISK MOVEMENT @ For the 18 Critical Engineering components considered as not significant to the Group we performed
specified procedures for a sample of transactions within these entities to test cut-off.

: Management override

. At 14 full and 19 specific scope locotions we obtained support for unusuai and/er material revenue journals.

" Revenue at these locations represents 63% of the total revenue balance. For the components we considered
as not significant to the Group we analysed the monthly gross margin recorded and obtained ond corroborated
explanations for movements in margin that we considered unusugk,

Cut-off and management override

For ol locations we performed analytical procedures to compare revenue recognised with our expectations
~ from past experience, menagement's forecosts and, where possible, externgl market dota.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

Qur audit procedures did not identify evidence of material misstatements in revenue recognition arising from the risk of cut-off in the Criticaf Engineering division or
managerment override through manual topside journal entries in any of the three divisions.
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Risk . Our response to the risk

Inventory valuation (£281m, PY " We performed the foilowing audit procedures ot 14 full and 15 specific scope locations where inventory
comparative £273m) is in scope. Inventory at these locations represents 74% of the total inventory baionce.

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 72); We performed walkthroughs of inventory at 14 full and 15 specific scope locations and assessed the design
Accounting policies {pages 117 and 151); effectiveness of key controls. For 18 components we tested the operating effectiveness of controis. We

and Note 15 of the Consolidated Financial performed tests of detail for a sample of inventory items ta check the accumuiation of cost within inventary
Statements (page 151). and te confirm the valuation reflected the products’ stage of completion. We alsc agreed our samples from

the physical inventory counts which we attended to the inventory subledger and performed rofiforward

The valuation of inventory across the Group is
' procedures to year end.

dependent on establishing appropriate valuation

pmcesses.rThis incluées the appropriate design We obtoined evidence to support the standard cests used ond performed procedures to assess whether oniy
and effective operutions of controls. Manogement norma! proctuction variances had been capitalised in the year end inventory balance and material abrormal
performs formulaic coleylations for standard inefficiencies had been appropriotely expensed. This included comparing actusl production rates to budget.

costing and excess and absolete inventory

provisions and then applies judgement te adjust We obtained evidence to support inventory is held at the lower of cost and net realisable value by cuditing the

these calculations. If these judgements are not adequacy of excess and obsclete provisions held against inventory. This included comparing forecast product
appropriate then this increases the risk that usage to custorner orders, considering histerical usage, historicat accuracy of provisioning and understanding
inventory 15 ncorrectly valyed. rmanagement’s future plans to utilise the inventory.

: We performed clerical procedures on the formulaic caleulations to evaiuate the accuracy of the inventory
RISK MOVEMENT @ provisjoning, We performed procedures to validate the appropriateness of any manogement cdjustments
to the formulaic calculation.

For the components we considered as not significant to the Group we:

_ «investigated any significant standard to octual cost variances posted to the income statement or recorded
| within inventory and obtained supporting evidence for the adjustments; and

: - onolysed the management judgement applied to the excess and obsolete provision and obtained supporting
i evidence where this wos significant.

|

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

Inventory valuation across the Group is considered appropriate including the adequacy of the excess and obsolete provisien. Our audit procedures confirmed variances
between standard and actuai costs and the overheads absorbed in the inventory valuation had been appropriately calculated and accounted for.
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Risk

. Qur response to the risk

Carrying value of goodwill and acquired
intongible ossets

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 72);
Accounting policies {(pages 117, 137 and 138); and
Note 11 of the Consolidated Financici Statements
(page 137).

As a consequence of the Group's growth strotegy
a significent value of goodwill and intangible
assets has arisen from aequisitions.

There is a risk that cash generating units (‘CGUs")
may not achieve the anticipated business
performance to support the carrying voive of
these assets leading to an impairment chorge
that has not been recognised by management.
Significant judgement is required in assessing the
future cash flows of the CGUs, together with the
rate at which they are discounted.

<>

RISK MOVEMENT

We examined management'’s methodology os detailed in Note 11 of the consolidoted financial statements,
the models for assessing the voluaticn of significant goodwill balonces to understand the composition
of management's future cash flow forecasts, and the process undertaken to prepare themn. This included
confirming the underlying cash flows were consistent with the Board approved budgets and assessing
the identified CGUs for completeness. We aiso re-performed the calcuiations in the model to test the

" mathematical integrity.

For alf CGUs we calculated the degree to which the key ossumptions would need to fluctuate before
an impairment was triggered and considered the likelihood of this occurring

In respect of the CGUs identified as having imparrment indicators or lower levels of headroom we performed

detailed testing with support from our valuation specialists to critically assess and corroborate the key inputs

of the forecast cash flows including:

» ussessing the discount rate used by obtaining the underlying data used in the calculation and benchmarking
it against an EY range derived from comperable organisations and market doto;

- considering the growth rates assumed by comparing them to economic and industry forecasts;

« analysing the historical accuracy of budgets to actual results to determine whether forecast cash
flows are reliable based on past experience; and

- assessing the sales multiple used to determine fair value less costs to sell and benchmarking it against
market data.

We audited the disclosures in respect of goodwill and intangibles with reference to the requirements
. of IAS 36 and confirmed their consistency with the audited impairment models,

. The audit procedures performed to address this risk have been performed by the Group audit team.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

Qur year end audit procedures did not identify evidence of material misstatement regarding the carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible cssets

in the Group.

In the prior year, our ouditor's report included key audit matters in relation te "Accounting for the acquisition of Bimba Manufecturing” and "Profit recognition”.

Accounting for the ocquisition of Bimba Manufacturing

in the absence of further acguisitions of the scale of Bimba Manufacturing in the current year, the risk with respect of “acquisition accounting” was not evalucted
as a Key Audit Matter in the current year audit. All procedures with respect of the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba Manufacturing were completed during
the prior year audit, with only one immaterial fair value adjustment being recognised in the current year,

Profit recognition

Following changes implemented over recent years by manogement of the Critical Division designed to change the type of contracts entered into, ensure appropricte
pricing and tracking of costs to complete for contracts and identify and record foss making contracts as appropricte (as evidenced by no prior year audit findings
nor heightened risk identified ot the audit planning stage), we conciuded that the likelihood of material misstatement had reduced and this area was no longer

a Key Audit Matter.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit scope for each entity within the
Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinien on the consolidated
financial statements. We take into occount the contribution to Group revenue
and pre-taxincome, risk profile (including country risk, risk determined to be
associated based on the grading of internal audit findings, controls findings,
historical knowiedge and risk arising from change in the period including
changes to 1T systems and key management persannel), the number of
significant accounts based on performance matenality and any other known
factors when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity.

In assessing the risk of material misstaterment to the Group financial statements,
and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of significant accounts

in the financial stoatements, of the 156 reporting components of the Group, we
selected 38 components covering entities within Austric, Bermudao, Brazi, Ching,
Czech Republic, Germany, Indig, italy, Jopan, South Korea, Poland, Singagore,
Sweden, Switzerland, UK and USA, which represent the principal business units
within the Group.

Of the 3B components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financicl
information of 15 companents {"full scope components”) which were selected
based on their size or rigk characteristics. For the remaining 23 components
(“"specific scope cemponents™), we performed audit precedures on specific
accounts within that compaonent that we considered had the potential for the
greatest impact on the significant acceunts in the financial statements either
because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted
for 83% (2018: 88%) of the Group's Adjusted profit before tax measure used
to calculate materiality, §3% (2018: 61%) of the Group's Revenue and B4%
(2018: 78%) of the Group’s Total ossats.

For the cusrent yeor, the full scope components contributed 45% (2018: 36%)

of the Group's Adjusted profit before tax measure used to calcuiate materiality,
45% (2018: 41%) of the Group's Revenue and 6% (2018: 63%) of the Group's
Tetal assets. The specific scope components contributed 38% (2018: 52%) of
the Group's Adjusted profit before tax measure used to calculate materiality,
18% (2018: 20%) of the Group's Revenue and 18% (2018: 15%) of the Group's
Total assets. The audit scope of these components may not hove included testing
of all significont accounts of the component but will have contributed to the
coverage of significant accounts tested for the Group.

Of the remaining 118 components that together represent 17% of the
Group's Adjusted profit before tax, nene are individually greater than 4% of
the Group's Adjusted profit before tax. For these components, we performed
other procedures, including analytical review, testing of canselidation journals,
intercompaony eliminations, foreign currency translation recolculatiens, and
enquiries of management to respond to any potential risks of material
misstatement to the Group financiat statements.

The charts opposite illustrote the coverage obtained from the work performed
by our audit teams.

Group Adjusted profit before tax

45% (28B%)
Full scope
components

17% (24%)
Cther procedures

38% (48%)
Specific scope
components

Group Revenve

£5% (38%)
Full scope
components

18% {20%)

Specific scope
components 17% £19%3
Procedures on
marketing companies

20% (23%)
Qther pracedures

Group Total assets

66% (57%)
Full scope
components

18% (17%)
Specific scope
compaonents

16% (26%)
Other procedures

Changes from the prior year

The nurber of full scope entities has increosed to 15 (2018: 14). This change
reflects the unpredictability incorporated into our audit scoping and a change
in the size and risk profile of certain entities.
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Involvement with component teams

In establishing our ovérall approach to the Group gudit, we determined the type
of work thot needed to be undertaken gt each of the components by us, as the
Group oudit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY global
netwark firms operating under our instruction. Of the 15 full scope components,
audit procedures were performed on one of these (the Parent Company) directly
by the Group audit team. Fer the 23 specific scope components, audit procedures
were performed on four of these directly by the Group audit team. Where the
work was performed by component auditors, we determined the appropricte level
of invelvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence had been
obtained as o bosis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

The Group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has
been designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory Auditor or his delegate visit the
majority of full and specific scope locations at least once every three years. During
the current year's audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the Group audit teom to
the component teams in Germany, Singapore, South Koreqa, Sweden, UK and USA.
These visits involved meeting with our local component team, where applicable,

ta discuss and direct their audit approach, reviewing ond understanding the
significant oudit findings in response to the key audit motters including revenue
recognition and inventory valuation, holding meetings with local management,
undertaking factery tours and obtaining updates on locai regulatory motters
including tax, pensions and legal. The Group team interacted regularly with the
component tearns where appropricte during various stages of the audit, reviewed
key warking papers and were responsitle for the scope and direction of the audit
process. This, together with the additienal procedures performed at Group level,
gave us appropriote evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and perfarming the audit, in
evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the gudit and in forming
our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually of i the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to infivence the economic decisions
of the users of the financial statements. Materiglity prowides a basis for
determining the nature and extent of our gudit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be £12.7 million (2018: £12.6
million}, which is 5% (2018: 5%) of Adjusted profit before tax. We believe that
Adjusted profit before tax provides us with the most relevant performance
megsure to the stakeholders of the entity and therefore hove determined
materiality based on this number.

We determined materiality for the porent compaony to be £11.5 million
(2018: £11.8 million), which is 2% {2018: 2%) of equity shareholders' funds.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and concluded
that our planned materiolity rematned appropricte.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set
ot an amount to reduce to on appropriately low level the probability that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality,

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the
Group's overali control environment, our judgement was that performance
materiality was 75% {2018: 75%) of our planning materiality, namely £9.5m
(2018: £9.5m). We have set performance materiality ot this percentage due
to the level of uncorrected misstotements in recent years being low, the level
of control effectiveness remaining high, there being no significant changes in
circumstances of the business, and that there are no events outside of the
normai course of business.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage
over significant financiol stotement accaunts is uhdertaken based on a
percentage of total performance materiglity. The performance matericlity

set for each companent is based on the relative scale and risk of the component
to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that
component. In the current year, the range of performance materiolity allocated
to components was £1.72m to £2.15m (2018: £1.30m to £2.16m).

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as
being clearly trivigl.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all
uncorrected avdit differences in excess of £0.5m (2018: £0.5m), as well
as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on qualitotive grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative
measures of materiakty discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information incivded in the Annual Report
set out on pages 1 to 102, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financicl statements, our responsibility

is to read the other information and, in doing so0, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financiol stotements or our
knewledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstotements,
we are required to determine whether there is 0 material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matericl
misstetermnent of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

Woe have nothing to report in this regard.




Independent Auditor’'s Report
to the Members of IMI pic

In this context, we qiso have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to
specifically address the following items in the other informotion and to report as
uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude
thot those iterns meet the following conditions:

» Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 101
the statement given by the directors that they consider the Annual Report and
financial statements token as a whole is fair, balanced ond understandable
and provides the infoermation necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business model and strategy, is motenally inconsistent with our
knowledge obtained in the audit; or

« Audit Committee reporting set out on poges 72 to 75
the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address rmatters communicated by us to the Audit Committee / the explanation
s to why the Annual Report does not include a section describing the work
of the Audit Committee is moterially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit; or

« Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code set out on page 66
the parts of the directors’ statement required under the Listing Rules reiating
to the company's compiiance with the UK Carporate Governarce Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with
Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not praperly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the port of the directors' remunerotion report to be oudited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, bosed on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial stotements; and

+ the strotegic report and the directors' report have been prepored in accordance
with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
i the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent

company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We hove nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relotion to
which the Companies Act 20046 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
» adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent campany,
or returns adequate for our oudit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or
« the parent company financial stotements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; ar
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As exploined more fully in the directors’ responsibilities stotement set out on
page 101, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and

for such internal centrof os the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group and parent company’s ability to continue os a geing concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend te liguidate the Group or the parent
company or to cease operotions, or have no reclistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain recsenable ossurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opiniar,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that

on audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) wili always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bosis of
these financigl statements.

Explanation as to whaot extent the oudit was
considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain
syfficient appropriate oudit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses; and to respond appropriately to froud or suspected fraud identified
during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governonce of the entity
and management.

Qur appreach was as follows:

« We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory fromeworks that
are applicable to the Group and determined that the most significant are
framewaorks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial
statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (IFRS, FRS 101,
the Companies Act 2006 and UK Corporate Governance Code). In addition, we
concluded that there are certain significant lows and regulations which may
have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements being the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority, end
those lows and regulations relating to health and safety and employee matters.

- We understood how IMI plc is complying with those framewarks by making
enguiries of management, internel gudit, those responsible for legal and
compliance pracedures and the company secretary. We corroberoted our
enquiries through our review of Board minutes, popers provided to the
Audit Committee and correspondence recetved from regulatery bodies.
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- We assessed the susceptibility of the Group’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by meeting with management
from various parts of the business to understond where it considered there
was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance targets and their
infivence on efforts made by management to rmanage earnings or influence the
perceptions of unalysts. We considered the programmes and controls that the
Group has established to address nisks identified, or that otherwise prevent,
deter and detect fraud; and how senior management monitors those programs
and controls. Where the risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit
procedures te address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included
testing manual journals and were designed to provide reascnable assurance
that the financial statements were free from froud or error,

» Based on this understanding we designed aur audit procedures to identify
non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved
journal entry testing, with a focus on manual consolidation journais and journals
indicating large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the
business; enquiries of legal counsel, Group management, internal audit, divisional
management and full and specific scope management; and focused testing,
as referred to in the key audit matters section obove.

- Component teams reported any non-complionce with laws and regulations
through their gudit deliverables based on the procedures detgiled in the
previous paragraph. Further, the Group team communicated any instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations to component teams through
regular interactions with lacal EY teams. There were no significant instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Finencial Reporting Council's website at
https://www.fre.org.uk/ouditorsresponsibilities. This descrigtion forms
part of our auditor's report.

Other matters we are required to address

« Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed as
auditors by the shareholders and signed an engagement letter on 27 July 2017.
We were appointed by the company at the AGM on ¢ May 2019 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. The pericd of total
uninterrupted engagement including previous renewats und reappointments is
11 years, covering the years ending 31 Decemper 2009 to 31 December 2019.

» The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethica! Standard were not
provided to the Group or the parent company end we remain independent of
the Group and the parent company in conducting the audit.

+ The audit opinion is consistent with the additional repert to the Audit
Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in occordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compuanies Act 2006. Our oudit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or ossume responsibility
to anyone other than the compoany and the company's members as a body,

for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLF, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham
27 February 2020

Simoen O'Neill
Senior statutory auditor

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the IMI plc website is the responsibility
of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept nio
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
stotements since they were inttially presented on the website.

2. Legslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiction
in other jurisdictions.




Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2019

iIFRS 16 was adopted on 1 Junuary 2019 without restating prior year figures. As a result, the primary statements are shown on an IFRS 16 basis for 2019 and on an
IAS 17 basis for 2018. Note 13 provides a reconciliation of the two megsures.

2019 ' 2018
Adjusting Adjusting

Adjusted items Statutory Adjusted items Statutory

Notes £m £m £m £m fm £m

Revenue 4 1,873 1,873 ; 1907 1,907
Cost of soles (1,059) (1) (1.060)" (1,089) (4) (1093)
Gross profit 814.4 (1.1) 8133 : 817.6 3.7) 813.9
Operating costs , - 5___(5883) (0.7  (6090):  (5521) (307 (582.3)
Operating profit 266.1 {61.8) 204.3 265.5 {339 231.6
Financial income 8 4.5 13.4 17.9 58 16.1 219
Financial expense 8 19.4) (13.0) (32.4) {18.7) (20.5) (39.2}
Met financial expense relating to defined benefit pension schemes 14 (0.5) o ... to5)y (1.4) . (1.4)
_Net financial expense (15.4) Oﬁ (15.(7)7)} 7 (143) (4.4) - (187
Profit before tax 250.7 (61.4) 189.3 2512 (38.3) 212.9
Taxation - S 9 (528 186 (360) ‘ (528) 93 (43.5)
Profit of continuing operations after tox 198.1 (4i.8) 1533 198.4 (29.0) 169.4
Profit from discontinued operations ofter tax 8 ) 28 28 ) -
Total profit for the year 198.1 (42.0) 156.1 198.4 (29.0) 169.4

Earnings per share 7 1

Basic - from profit for the yeor 57.6p 62.5p
Diluted - from profit for the yeor 57.6p ! 62.4p
Basic - from continuing operations 56.6p 62.5p
Diluted - from continying operations 546.5p 62.4p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
£m £m im im
Profit for the year o o o o Eé_l , _169,4
Items that may be reciassified to profit and loss '
Change in fair value of effective net investment hedge derivatives 2.4 ! 1.9
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operotions net of hedge settlements and funding revaluations {15.4) ' (4.5)
Fair vaiue gain on available for sale assets 0.2
Related tax effect on items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss o &0 0.3}
- ) . _ 8y - @n
items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss i
Re-measurement (Joss)/goin on defined benefit plans (0.1) | 11.6
Fair value loss on available for sale financigl assets not held for troding - : (9.8
Related toxation effect o . T ' (3.5)
B L o o . _ R ___an
Other comprehensive expense for the yeor, net of taxation - 6.8 (4.4)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation 149.3 165.0
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Share Capital
Share premium  redemption Hedging Translation Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
Notes £m Em £m £m £m £m £fm
As at 1 January 2018 g81.8 12.7 174.4 1.0 298 3077 407.4
Profit for the year 16%9.4 16%.4
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 18 (4.5) an (44
Total comprehensive income/{expense) 1.8 (4.5} 167.7 145.0
Issue of share capital 22 - 0.4 b
Dividends paid 10 (107.9) (107.9)
Share-based payments (net of tax) & 7.0 7.0
Shores ocquired for:
empleyee share scheme trust o o ) 5.9 - (59
As at 31 December 2018 _ o ele T 333 s 28 253 386 6662
Changes in equity in 2019
Profit for the year 1556.1 156.1
Other comprehensive incomey/(expense) _ o S 26 G - 8
Total comprehensive income/{expense) 2.6 {9.4) 156.1 149.3
Issue of share capital 22 - 0.8 0.8
Dividends paid 10 (110.8) (110.8)
Share-based payments (net of tax) ) 8.6 8.6
Shares acquired for:
emplayee share scheme trust R N e D) .2)
As ot 31 December 2019 o 81.8 14.1 174.4 5.4 15.9 4183 709.9




Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 December 2019
2019 2018

Notes £m £m
Assets
Intangible assets 11 618.8 I 606.7
Property, plant and equiprnent 12 271.3 - 284.4
Right of use ossets 13 90.1 | -
Employee benefit assets 14 479 | 278
Deferred tax assets ? 22.2 17.0
Other recevables 2.3 3.2
Total non-current assets 77 ) T T T S T T L0526 T 9301
Inventories 15 280.8 2725
Trade ond other receivables 16 389.7 | 450.3
Other current financial assets 17 6.2 - 1.0
Current tax 4.0
Investments 17 3.7
Cash and cash equivalents 19 132.2
Total current assets ’ ' - 863.7
Totalassets i i " 18028
Liabilities .
Trade and other poyables 21 (359.4) ' (390.9)
Bank overdraft 19 (&0.1) ' (B2.8)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 19 (17.6) {78.8)
Lease liobilities 13 (25.4}| -
Provisions 20 (39.8) ‘ (12.5)
Current tax 7.7 (62.5)
Other current finoncial liabilities 17 (1.9) | (4.0}
Total current licbilities T o T T 7 Wimi.l); 6313y
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 19 (357.9) (375.3}
Lewse liabilities 13 (64.8) -
Employee benefit abligations 14 (79.2) i (80.1)
Provisions 20 (13.0)" (14.6)
Deferred tax liabilities 9 @8 (298
Qther payables 21 (9.2) {5.5)
Total non-current fiabilities T T T Y T WS (505.3)
Total habilities S T S QT (11368)
Net assets ' ' ) 7099 6662
$hore capital 22 81.8 818
Share premium 14.1 i 13.3
Other reserves 195.7 ‘ 202.5
Retained earnings 418.3 368.6
Totalequity o T T T T T I [ X) t “666.2

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Qperating profit for the year from continuing operotions 2043 231.6
Cperating profit for the year from discontinued operotions 28, -
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amartisation 11,12,13 110.7 797
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 11,12 15" 3.2
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (0.8)
Other acquisition items 3 1.1 3.7
Gain on special pension events 14 {8.6) (6.8)
Profit on sale of property, piont and equipment 12 (0.7); (3.0)
Equity-settied share-bosed payment expense & 88 8.2
(Increqse)/decrease in inventories 15 {14.7) 5.5
Decrease/ {increase) in trade and other receivables 16 44,9 ‘ (8.4)
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other poyables 21 (17.3); (47.3)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions e¢nd employee benefits 14,20 o 29_2_ (7.8)
Cash generated from operations 3620 258.2
Income taxes paid g (£|0.2)i 41.1)
Cuash generated from operations after tax 3218 2171
Additional pension scheme funding 14 (7.0)j (10.1)
Net cash from operating activities . _ _ N 314.8 207.0
Cash flows from investing activities i
Interest received 8 4.5 ‘ 5.8
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12 7.7 j 128
Net sale of investments - 0.1
Settlement of transactionel derivetives 17 (3.5 (1.3)
Settlement of currency derivotives hedging balance sheet 17 196 (17.1)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries net of cash 23 {68.0). (137.6)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and non-acquired intangibles 1,12 (65.8)i (58.4)
Net cash from investing activities 1 l a9es7
Cash flows from financing activities L . - - B B l )
Interest paid 8 (19.4): (18.7)
Shares acquired for employee share scheme trust 22 (4.2)' {59
Proceeds from the issue of share capital for employee share schemes 22 0.8 0.6
Net (repayment)/drawdown of borrowings 19 (63.9) 100.9
Principal elements of lease payments 13 (31.3) -
Dividends paid to equity sharehelders 10 (110.8)? (107.9)
Net cash from financing activities EE— T T T T ame, 3io)
Net decreose in cash and cash equivalents 19 {19.5)i (19.7)
Cash and cosh equivalents at the start of the year 19 49.6° 67.6
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (2.0) 1.7
Cosh and cash equivalents at the end of the yem;-*" o - - o T 281 49.6

* Net of bonk overdrafts of £60.1m (2018: £82.6m).




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Basis of preparation

Introduction

IMI plc (the ‘Company’) is & compeny incorporated and domicited in the United
Kingdem. The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the 'Group'). The Company
financiol statements present information about the company as a separate
entity and not about the Group. The consclidoted financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU and applicable law (IFRSs"). The Company Financiat
Statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 and these are
presented on poges 168 to 172, The financial statements were approved by

the Board of Directors on 27 February 2020,

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (which is the
Companry's functional currency), rounded to the nearest hundred thousand,
except revenues and cost of sales, which are rounded to the nearest whole million.
They are prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments; financial assets classified os fair value through profit and loss or
other comprehensive income; assets and liabilities acquired through business
combingtions which are stated at fair value and retirement benefits. Non-
current assets ond liabilities held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying
amounts and their fair values less costs to sell.

The accounting policies described in the notes to the financial staternents
have been applied consistently throughout the Group for the purposes of these
consolidated financial statements.

Ouring 2019, management has reviewed and amended the format of the income
statement from that used in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts. Changes have
been made to the presentation of the income stotement which enhance the users
understonding of the Group's financial performuance by presenting grass margin
information on the foce of the income statement and removing the additional
disclosure of non-adjusting restructuring costs. This is a change in presentation
only ond has ne impact on the prior year operating profit and profit after tax.

New or amended EU Endorsed Accounting Standards

adopted by the Group during 2019

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 'Leases’, effective from 1 January 2019, the
Group amended its accounting policies. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16
‘Leases’ and the new accounting policies is set out in Note 13.

Noted below are the other amended and new International Finrancial Reporting
Standords which become effective for the Group as of 1 January 2019, none of
which has a material impoct on the financial statements:

+ IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty aver income Tax Treatments’

-« IFRS @ ‘Financial instruments’ - amendments to Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

- 1AS 28 ‘Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' -
minor amendments

+ 1AS 19 'Employee Benefits’ - amendments
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2. Significant accounting policies

Where appropriate the significant accounting poticies are presented in the note to which it opplies to aid the reader's understanding of their application.

Set out below are the significant accounting policies which do not have a specific note.

A. Subsidiaries

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of IMi ple
and the entities it controls {its subsidiaries} for the year to 31 Decermber 2019.
The Group hos no significant interests which ore accounted for as associotes
or joint ventures.

Subsidiaries are consohdated from the date of their acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains centrol, end continue to be consolidated until the dote
that such contral ceases. Control comprises the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the investee so 0s to obtain benefit from its activities and
is achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voting rights; currently
exercisable or convertible potentiai voting rights; or by way of contractual
agreement. The financial statemnents of subsidiaries used in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting
year as the porent company and are based on consistent accounting policies.

All intragroup belances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising
fram them, are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without foss of contraof,

is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a

subsidiary, it:

- derecognises the assets (including any gaodwill relating to the subsidiary}
and ligbilities of the subsidiary;

- derecagnises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

- derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

- recagnises the fair value of any investment retained;

» recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; ond

- reclossifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained eornings, as appropriate.

Taxation on the above accounting entries would also be recognised
where applicable.

B. Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of finoncial statements requires management to make
judgernents, estimates and assumptions thot effect the epplication of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

i, Key judgements
The key judgements are disciosed in Notes 3 and 13.

ii. Key estimates and assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date are described below. The Group bases
its assumptions and estimates on information available when the consolidated
financial statements are prepared. Market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the contral of the Group are refiected in the assurnptions and estimates
when they occur, Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The key
estimates are disclesed in Notes 11, 14, 15, 14, 20 and 23.

iii. Changes in judgements, estimates and assumptions

Management has reassessed the key judgements ond estimates presented
in the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts and concluded that, in the current
vear, the following change to the estimates and judgements applied in 2019
are required:

- Addition of a key judgement relating to the assessment of lease terms
following the adoption of IFRS 16.

C. Revenue recogniticn

Revenue is recognised when obligations under the terms of o controct with our
customer are satisfied. This generally occurs when the goods are transferred, or
the services are provided, to our customer. Revenue is measured as the amount
of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for transferring goods or
providing services. Sales and other taxes collected from customers are excluded
from revenue. The nature of the equipment, velve and other contracts into which
the Group enters rmeans that:

- the contrgcts vsuaily contain distinct performance obligations, each of which
transfers control of the goods to the customer. Where such distinet performaonce
obligations are present, revenue s recognised on each element in occordance
with the policy on the sate of goods.

» the service element of the contract is usualty insignificant in relation to the
total contract value and is often provided on o shert-term or one-off basis.
Where this is the case, revenue is recognised when the service is complete.

As a result of the above, the significant mojority of the Group's revenue is
recognised on o sale of goods basis. Each of the divisional revenue streams

set cut in Note 4 cen consist of the sole of goods, the provision of services or

a combination of the twao. The specific methods used to recognise the different
forms of revenue earned by the Group are set out below:

i. Sales of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement net of
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates when control has been transferred
to our customer. No revenue is recognised where recovery of the consideration s
not probable or there are significant uncertainties regarding associated costs,

or the possible return of goods. In Hydromnic, the amount of consideration received
and the revenue recognised varies in line with discounts and promatiens offered
to our customers and their custorners.

The timing of the transfer of control to our customer varies depending on the
nature of the products sold and the individual terms of the contract of sale. Sales
made ungder internationally accepted trade terms, Incoterms 2010, are recognised
as revenue when the Group hos completed the primary duties required to transfer
control os defined by the International Chomber of Commerce Official Ruies

for the Interpretation of Trade Terms. Sales made outside Incoterms 2010 are
generolly recognised on delivery to the customer. In limited instances, a customer
may request that the Group retains physical possession of an asset for a peried
after control has been transferred to the customer. In these circumstances,

the Group provides this storoge as o service to the customer and therefore
revenue is recognised prior to delivery of the asset.




2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

ii. Rendering of services

As noted above, revenue from the rendering of services is usually insignificont
in reletion to the totol contract value ang is generally provided on ¢ short-term
or one-off basis. Accordingly, revenue is usuclly recognised when the service

is complete.

Where this is not the case, revenue from services rendered is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service ot the balonce sheet date.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the contractual performance
obligations with each separate customner and the costs incurred on the contract
to date in comparison to the total forecast costs of the contract. Revenue
recognition commences only when the outcome of the contract can be reliably
measured. Installation fees are simiorly recogrised by reference 1o the stage of
completion on the installation unless they are incidental to the sole of the goods,
in which case they are recognised when the goods are sold.

iii. Combined services and goods

When a transaction combines a supply of goods with the provision of a significant
service, distinct performance chligations are identified ond recognised in line

with the applicable policy. If the service is essential to the functionolity of the
goods supplied then combined performance obligations, including the provision

of goods and services, are identified at the lowest level and the transaction price

is allocated to each performance obligation on an appropriote basis. Revenuve
from a service that is incidental to the supply of goods is recognised at the

same time os the revenue from the supply of goods.

D. Foreign currencies

i. Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been
tronslated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchonge differences arising on translating transactions at the exchange
rate ruling an the transaction date are reflected in the income statement. Non-
monetary assets ond habilfties that are measured at histarical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate ot the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated ot fair value are transloted into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date.

ii. Foreign operations

The income statements of overseas subsidiary undertakings are transloted at the
appropriate average rate of exchange for the year and the adjustment to year end
rates is token directly to reserves.

The assets and liakilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair valve
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated ot foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly
as o separate component of equity. Since 1 January 2004, the Group's date of
transition to IFRSs, such differences have been recognised in the translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part orin full, the relevant
amount in the translation reserve is transferred to profit or loss.
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E. Financial instruments and fair value hedging

Financia! instruments are initially recorded at feir value plus directly attributable
transaction costs unless the instrument is a derivative not designated as a
hedge (see below). Subsequent measurement depends on the designation

of the instrument, which follows the categories in IFRS 9:

+ Short-term borrowings and overdrafts are classified as financial ligbifities at
amortised cost.

« Derivatives, comprising interest rate swaps, foreign exchange contracts and
options, metals futures controcts and any embedded dervatives, are classified
as 'fair value through profit or l0ss” under IFRS 9, unless designated as hedges.
Derivatives not designated as hedges are initially recognised at fair value;
ottributoble transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, changes in fair value of such derivatives
and gains or losses on their settlement are recognised in net financial
INCOME or expense,

Long-term loans and other interest bearing borrowings are generally held at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Where the long-term
loan is hedged, generally by an interest rate swap, and the hedge is regorded
as effective, the carrying value of the leng-term loan s odjusted for chonges
in fair vaiue of the hedge.

Trade receivobtes are stated at cost os reduced by appropriote impairment
allowances for expected irrecoverable amounts.

« Trade payables are stated ot cost.

« Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the bolance sheet only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

- Available for sale financial assets are carried at fair value with gains and losses
being recognised in equity, except for impairment losses which are recognised
in the income statement.




F. Other hedging

i. Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities, financial commitments
or forecast transactions

Where o derivative financial instrument is used as an ecenomic hedge of the
foreign exchange or metals commodity price exposure of a recognised monetary
asset ar liabifity, financial commitment or forecast transactien, but dees not meet
the criteria te qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS ¢ no hedge accounting is
apphed ond any goin or lgss resutting from changes in fair value of the hedging
instrument 1s recogrised in net financial income or expense.

Where such a derivative is o formaily designated hedge of a forecast transaction
for accounting purposes, movements in the value of the derivative are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income to the extent the hedge is effective.

The Company assesses the effectiveness of the hedge based on the expected
fair volue of the amount to be received and the movement in the fair value of

the derivative designated as the hedge.

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic hedges
thot are not designated hedges, which relote to current year trading, together
with the gains and losses on their settlement, are oliocoted to the operoting
protit of the relevant business segment.

ti. Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

Where a foreign currency liability or derivative financial instrument is a formally
designated hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the foreign currency liability or changes in the
fair vatue of the finonciol instrument are recognised directly in equity via other
comprehensive income to the extent the hedge is effective. The Group ossesses
the effectiveress of its net investment hedges based on fair value changes of its
net assets, including relevant goodwill designated as foreign currency assets, and
the fair value changes of both the debt designated as a hedge and the relevant
financial instrument.

G. Investments not held for trading

Investments thot are designated as being not held for trading are inttially
recognised at fair value. Subsequently the feir value of the investment is
reassessed ot each balance sheet dote with movements in the fair vaive
recagnised in other comprehensive income.

H. Discontinued opercations

When the Group has assets and iiabilities that have been seld in the year or

are likely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assets and
ligbilities are inciuded in current assets and liabilities and denoted “held for

sale’ rother than in their usual categories. They are recognised ot the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to seil. Impairment losses on the initial
classification of assets as held for sale are included in the Income Statement,
even for assets measured ot foir value, as are impairment losses on subsequent
remeasurement and any reversal thereof. Once classified as held for sale,
assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

If they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are atso
treated as discontinued operations. A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group's business thot represents a separote major line of business that has
been disposed of, is held for sale or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to re-sale. This means that their frading performonce, i.e. their revenues, costs
and other items of income and expense, are no longer reported within the headline
figures in the Income Statement and are instead reported in o separate line,

net of tax, colted 'discontinued operations’. These amounts no longer form part

of continuing earnings per shore. Comparative figures are restated to be shown
on the same basis.

This enables the Income Statement for the current and grior year to be presented
on a consistent basis and to convey a more forword-locking version of the results
for the year.

In 2019 there was g profit after tax of £2.8m (2018: £nil} from discontinued
operations in 20192, See Note 28 for further details.
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3. Alternative Performance Measures ('APMs')
& adjusting items

Key judgement

Management has opplied judgement in the selection of the Alternative Perfermance Measures ('APMs'} used in the Arninual Report and Aceounts. The APMs
presented are used in discussions with the investment analyst community and by the Boord and manogement to monitor the trading performance of the Group.
We consider that the presentation of APMs aliows for improved insight to the trading performance of the Group. We consider that the term Adjusted, tegether
with an adjusting items category, best reflects the trading performance of the Group.

The adjusting items in the income statement include restructuring costs, special pension events, gains/losses on disposais of subsidiaries, impairment losses,
the reversal of goins/losses on economic hedges, goins on property disposals, acquisition costs, acquired intangible amortisation and other acquisition items.

Movements in adjusted revenue and adjusted operating profit are given on an arganic besis (see definition below) so that performence
is not distorted by acquisitions, disposals and movements in exchonge rotes.

The table below detoils the definition of each APM and a reference to where it can be reconciled to the equivalent statutory measure.

APM : Definition ‘ Reconciliation to statutory measure
Adjusted revenue i i
Adjusted profit before tax See income statement on page 112.

Adjusted net interest cost These meosures are as reported to management and do not include the impact
of adjusting iterms described in this note.

1 H
Adjusted earnings per share | : See Note 7.
Adjusted effective tax rate ' See Note 9.
Adjusted EBITDA This measure reflects adjusted profit after tax before interest, tax, depreciation ' See Note 19.
and amortisgtion.
i
. . ) | . . I
Adjusted operating profit | These measures are as reported to menagement and do not include the impact | See income stotement on page 112 ond
and margin ' of adjusting items described in this nate. ! segmental reporting note in Note 4.
Crgonic growth This measure removes the impact of adjusting items, acquisitions, disposals,
movements in exchange rates and, in 2019 only, the impact of IFRS 16.
Adjusted operating cash flow This measure reflects cash generated from operations as shown in the statement \ See Note 19.
! of cash flows less cash spent acquiring property, plant and equipment, non-
" acquired intangible assets and investments; plus cash received from the sale of
. property, plant and eguiprment, the sale of investments less the repayment of
" principal amounts of lease poyments excluding the cash impact of
adjusting items.,
Opercting cash flow These measures ore sub-totais in the reconciliotion of adjusted EBITDA to See Note 19.

Net Debt and are presented to assist the reader to understand the nature

Free cash flow befare of the current year's cash flows,

corporate octivity
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Impoct of IFRS 16

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 Januory 2019 end applied the modified retrospective approach (please see Note 13 for more details). For this reason, the Group's
operoting profit s not comparable against prior year for this reporting period onfy, mernorandum results for 2019 excluding the impact of IFRS 16 have been included in

Notes 4 and 13.

The adjusting items category in the income statement inciudes those items which are removed from statutery measures to provide insight as to the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, adjusting items are included in a separate column on the face of the income statement. Qutlined below are the adjusting items impacting the current resuits.

2019 2018

Key £m £m
Recognised in arriving at operating profit from continuing operations
Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses a) 4.0 19
Restructuring costs b) (51.8) (12.4)
Gains on speciol pension events c) 8.6 6.8
impairment losses d) (1.5) (2.0}
Acquired intangible gmortisation and other acquisition items e) (21.1) (28.8)
Gan of disposol of subsidiaries f) - 0.6
Gain on disposal of properties ) - 3.2
Indirect taxes arising on recrganisation h) - (3.2)
Recognised in net financiol expense
Financial income a) 12.4 161
Financicl expense a) (13.0) (20.5)

) Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses/gains - For segrmental reporting
purposes, changes in the fair value of economic hedges which are not designated os

hedges for accounting purposes, together with the gains and losses on their settlernent,

are inciuded in the adjusted revenues and cperating profit of the relevant business
segment. The adjusting items at the operating leve! reverse this treetment. The net
financing adjusting items reflect the change in value or settiement of these contracts
with the financial institutrons with whom they were transacted.

b) Restructuring costs - The restructuring costs treated as adjusting items total
£51.8m (2018: £12.4m) are as o result of a number of significant restructuring projects
across the Group. This includes o restructunng of cur Eurepeen business totalfing
£24.4m in IMI Precision, £4.6m in the Americas and £1.2m in the divisional central
team. In IMI Critical, adjusted restructuring costs related to a divisional reorgunisation
of £9.2m ond restructure of the EMEA region of £9.5m. In IMI Hydronic, there were
restructuring costs of £0.3m due to the finalisation of the Global Restructuring
Progromme initiated in 2018 and there were restructuring costs of £2.6m relating

to the Corporate head office.

Adjusting restructuring costs in 2018 included £8.6m relating to the closure of one of
our IMi Critical sites ' Sweden and right sizing of operations, the Giobal Restructuring
Programme within IMI Hydronic of £2.5m, the finalisation of restructuring projects
related 1o the Swiss Controls & Nuclear business in IMI Critical of £0.7m and the
Evrgpean business in IMI Precision of £0.6m.

) Gains on special pension events - During 2019, a gain in respect of an accounting
edjustment for Swiss disability benefits was recognised for £4.7m. A gain wos
recognised in respect of a restructure of the pension benefits in Switzerland resulting
in a gain of £2.8m. A curtailment gain of £0.8m was recognised in relation to o
restructyring event in Switzerland. A settiement gain of £0.5m was recognised in
respect of the buy-out of retirees in Switzerland, Professional fees of £0.2m have
been recognised as adjusting asscciated with ongoing de-risking projects

During 2018, de-risking activities relating to our defined benefit schemes continued
including the conversion af certain pension benefits to being non-inflation linked,
occurning in the UK which resulted in net gains of £1.4m. Reguiatory changes and
the completion of a buy-out in Switzerland resulted in goins totaliing £3.0m. The
completion of the transfer of £409m of habilities covered by insyrance policies to the
insurance companies through a formot buy-out transaction resulted in a net gain of
£2.8m. An expense of £0.4m, arising from the equelisation of the UK defined benefit
schemes, has been recognised following the ruling on the test case on Guaranteed
Minimum Pensions.

d) Impairment losses - in 2019, £1.5m impairment losses were recorded as adjusting
items relating to impairments of fixed assets associated with the restructuring projects
discussed in (b} above.

In 2018 the Group recorded on edjusting impairment charge of £2.0m against the
goodwili ossociated with the Hydronic service compemes CGU. The carrying value
of the goodwit was reassessed after a sales process for the CGU was cancelled.

) Acquired intangible omortisation and other acquisition items - For segmental
purposes, acquired intangible amortisation is excluded from edjusted profit, to allow
for better comparability of the performance across divisions. This allows users of
the financial statements to gain a clearer understanding of the performance of the
business, with the impact of amortisation identified separately in line with internal
reporting to monagement. Acquired intangible amartisction in 2019 totalled
£168.5m (2018: £25.1m).

The decrease in 2019 reflects the one-off full amortisation of the Bimba order book
which contributed £3.9m to the charge in 2018. An analysis by segment of acquired
intangible amortisation is included in Note 4.

In 2019 the acquisition of PBM resulted in a fair value uplift to inventory of £1.1m
recogrised in accordonce with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ as en adjusting ftemn
to cost of sales and professional fees of £0.5m.

In 2018 the release of the fair value uplift to inventory, recognised as part of the
Bimba acquisition accounting in accordonce with IFRS 3 'Business Combinations),
of £3.7m was recogrised as an adjusting item to cost of soles.

) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - No subsidiaries have been disposed of in 2019,
A gain of £0.6m was recognised in 2018 following the expiry of an indemnity provided
on a historical disposat.

9) Gain on disposal of properties - No adjusting gains were realised on the sale of
properties in 2019, A gain of £3.2m was recagnised in 2018 following the disposal of
the IMI Critical site in Seishin Japan. The proceeds of the sale will be used to construct
a purpose built facility n Japan which will ollow IMI Critical to better meet customner
dernand in this regicn.

h} Indirect taxes arising on reorganisation - Following a retrospective change to
European tax law in 2018 on the transfer of assets a provision of £3.2m to reflect the
probable exposure has been recognised. The provision is recognised as ap adjusting
itern in operating profit as it relotes to indrrect taxes.

The tax effects of the above items are included in the adjusting itemns column of the
income statement.

Adjusting items associated with discontinued operations are disclosed in Note 28,
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4. Segmental information

Segmental information 1s presented in the consalidated financial statements for each of the Group's operating segments. The operating segment reporting format
reflects the Group's monagernent and internal reporting structures and represents the information that wos presented to the chief operating decision-maker, being
the Executive Committee. As described on poge 3, each of the Group's three divisiens has ¢ number of key brands acress its main markets and cperational locations.
For the purposes of reportable segmental information, operating segments are aggregated into the Group's three divisions, as the nature of the preducts, production
pracesses and types of custormer are similar within each division. inter-segment revenue is insignificant.

IMI Precision Engineering

IMi Precision Engineering specialises in the design and manufacture of motion and fluid controtf technologies where precision, speed and reliability are essential to the

processes in which they are involved.

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is a world-leading provider of flow control solutions that enable vital energy and process industries to operate sofely, cleanly, refiably and mere
efficiently. Our products control the flow of steam, gas and liquids in harsh environments and are designed to withstand temperature and pressure extremes as well
as intensely abrasive or corrosive cyclical operations.

IMI Hydronic Engineering
IM{ Hydronic Engineering is a leading prowder of technologies that deliver operational and energy efficient woter-bosed heating and cooling systems for the resident:al

and commercial building sectors.

Performance is measured by the Executive Committee based on adjusted operating profit and erganic revenue growth which are defined in Note 3. These two measures
represent the two short-term key performance indicators for the Group.

Businesses enter into forward currency and metai contracts to provide econamic hedges against the impact on profitability of swings in rotes and values in accordance
with the Group's policy to minimise the risk of volatility in revenues, costs and margins. Adjusted operating profits are therefore chorged/credited with the impact of
these contracts. In accordance with IFRS 9, these contracts do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting and goins and losses are reversed out of operating
prafit and are recarded in net financiat income and expense for the purposes of the consolidated income statement.

The following table illustrates how the results for the segments reconcile to the overall results reported in the income statement.

Revenue Operating profit Operating margin
2019 : 2018 201% \ 2018 2019 z0ls
£m £m £m E£m % | %
Continuing operations
IMI Precision Engineering 907 916 1480 153.2 163% 18.7%
IMI Critical Engineering 651 | 482 90.1 88.3 13.8% 12.9%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 315 309 56.7 520 180%  16.8%
Corperate costs® | (28.7)I (28.0)
Tatal adjusted revenue/operating profit and margin T 17 1907 2661 2655 142%  139%
Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses 4.0 1 19
Restructuring costs : (51.8) . (12.4)
Gains on special pension events ‘ 8.6 6.8
Acquired intangible amortisation and other aeguisition items : (21.1) (28.8) }
Gain on dispesal of subsidiaries - 0.6
Goin on disposal of properties - 3.2
impairment losses . (1.5) (2.0)
Indirect taxes on reorganisation B - [ e e ] Gy o
Statutory revenue/operating profit 1,873 1,907 204.3J 231.6
Net financial expense 1 ¢15.0): (18.7) )
Stutl;t-;ry pro-fi_tbefore-i:-ux fro""l continuing ﬂpErﬂtié:g o - T - o 189.3 ' ' 2129 o o

* Non-adjusting restructuring costs ¢f £0.8m for the year ended 31 December 2018 which were previously disclosed separotely in 2018 are now included
in Corporate costs,
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The fallowing table ilustrotes how revenue ond operating profit have been impacted by movements in foreign exchange, the impact of IFRS 16, acquisitions and disposals.

Year ended 31 December 2018 Year ended 31 December 2019
As As Adjusted Organic
adjusted Exchonge  Acquisitions Organic adjusted  Acguisitions IFRS 16 Organic growth (%) growth (%)

Adjusted revenue

IMI Precision Engineering 216 11 Q 936 207 - - 907 -1% -3%

IM{ Critical Engineering 682 3 - 685 651 (8} - 643 -5% -5%
_ IMi Hydronic Engineering 39 (2) - 307 315 - - 315 2% 3%
Total 1,967 12 9 1,928 1,873 (8) - 1,865 -2% -3%
Adjusted operating profit

IMI Precision Engineering 153.2 22 0.3 1557 148.0 - 2.0 1456.0 -3% -6%

IMI Criticat Engineerning 883 0.8 - 8ol 90.1 (1.1) (11) 87.9 2% -1%

IMI Hydronic Engineering 520 08 - 528 56,7 - (1.0) 55.7 9% 5%

Corporote costs** 27.2) i - (27.2) (28.7)_ o - 3 (26.54)
Totoal 2663 38 03 2704 2661 (1.1) (1.8) 2632 0 0% 00 3%
Adjusted operating profit morgin (3%) 14.0% 14.0% 14.2% 14.1%
**Corporate costs for 2018 excludes £0.8m non-adjusting restructuring costs.
The following tabie illustrates how the segmental assets and liabilities reconcile to the overall total assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet.

Assets Liabilities
2019 ! 2018 2019 2018
£m | £m £m £m

iMI Precision Engineering 667.0 669.7 1658 1358
M Critical Engineering 7714 723.7 2411 . 186.6
iMIHydronic Engineering B o 2068 . 2158 69.9 66.8
Totat segmental assets/liabilities (including lease liabilities) 1,645.2 | 1,609.2 4768 3892
Ceorporate items 14.0 . 11.4 36.9 ‘ 43.3
Employee benefits 479 27.8 79.2 ‘ 80.1
Investments 3.6 3.7 - -
Net debt items (excluding lease liabilities) 882 | 132.2 435.6 5357
Net taxation end others . 247 185 85.2 87.3
Total assets and liabilities in Group balonce sheet 1,823.6 : 1,802.8 1,113.7 1,136 6

Impact of IFRS 16 on segment disclosures

Segment assets and segment liobilities for 2019 olf increased os a result of the change in accounting palicy. The 2018 IM! Precision Engineering, IMI Critical Engineering
and IMI Hydronic Engineering segments have been restated below to include the impact from this change as ot 1 Jenuory 201%.

Segment Assets
Impactof Post(FRS 16 | PrelFRS 16

Segment Liobilities

Pre IFRS 146 Impact of Post IFRS 16

{31 Dec 201B) IFRS 16 (1 Jan 2019) !(31 Dec 2018) IFRS 16 (1 Jan 2019

£m £m Em . fm £m Em

IMI Precision Engineering 669.7 42.4 7121 ! 135.8 42.6 178.4
M Critical Engineering 7237 38.7 7624 186.6 38.4 225.0
1M! Hydronic Engineering 2158 128 2286 66.8 128 79.6
Other 193.6 6.5 200.1 1 1574 6.6 754.0
Total 1,8028 100.4 1,903.2 . 1,136.6 100.4 1,237.0
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4, Segmental information (continued)

The following table includes other information to show how certain costs are allocated between the segments of the Group.

restructuring costs”

Capital expenditure Amgortisation*™

Depreciation

2019 2018 | 2019 2018 2019 2018 , 2019 2018

£m £m £m £m £m £m Em Em

IMI Precision Engineering 30.2 0.7 21.5 286 . 11.0 164 . 355 20.6
iMI Critical Engineering 18.7 9.2 ! 27.3 185 17.4 16.7 ! 24.7 135
IMi Hydronic Engineering 0.3 25 10.9 11.2 5.8 33 i 14.8 8.2
I 1% 124 657 58.3 34.2 364, 750 423
Corporate costs 2.6 - 0.1 0.2 0.3 05 12 0.5
Totad O T T T T T Tmm - sig 1_2-.4“‘_ 858 585 345 369 | 76.2 428

* In 2018, £0.8m of restructuring costs were included within adjusted operating profit that are not included in the table above.

** The amartisation figures above includes the amortisation of acquired intangibles. £7.5m (2018: £13.2m) is in¢luded in respect of IMI Precision,
£12.0m (2018: £11.9m) is included in respect of IM! Critical and £nil (2018: £n#l) is included in respect of IMI Hydrenic.

*** The depreciation figures aobove include the impact of IFRS 16 in 2019 of £31.8m, 2018 has not been restated as described in Note 13. £0.7m is included in

respect of Corporate, £13.2mis included in respect of IMI Precision, £11.6m is included in respect of IM/ Critical and £6.3m is included in respect of IM{ Hydronic.

The following table shows a geographical analysis of how the Group's revenue is derived by destinat:on.

2019 08
Revenue ; Revenye™
£m | £m
T
UK 90 | 90
Germany 234 ; 288
Rest of Europe o 719!.!‘ 519
Total Europe 818 897
usa &40 427
Rest of Americas o B - . ) 98 88
Total Americas 5381 515
China 158 169
Ref_t o_‘F_Asi_c_x Pcﬁﬂg:__ e o S 246 248
Total Asia Pacific i 404 357
Middle East & Africa 113 ¢ 138
Total statutory revenue 1873 1,907
* 2018 has been restated following a change in the classification of geographica! destinations.

The following table shows a geagraphical analysis of the location of the Group's intongible assets, property, piant and equipment, and right of use assets.
2019 2018
Revenue Revenue
£m £m

T

UK 84.1 . 76.6
Germany 234.2 l 2511
Rest of Europe 265.1 : 219.7
USA 309.3 | 2635
Asia Pacific 517 60.4
Restof World e B ) 358 19.8
Total 9802 | 8911

Right of use assets are included in 2019 of £90.1m (2018: nil),

124 IMI pic Annual Report & Accounts 2019



Adjusted revenue by destination (2019)

Total
Asia Pacific
21%

Middle East & Africe

&%

Total Europe

Adjusted revenue by destination (2018)

Total
Asia Pacific
19%

Middle Eost & Africa

7%

Total Europe

44% 1%
Total Americas
29% Total Americas
27%
The Group's revenue streams are disaggregaoted in the table below. For details of the performance ebligations reloting to these revenue streams
please refer to Note 2C,
2019 2018

Revenue Revenue
Sector £m £m
Industrial Automation® 509 525
Commercial Vehicle 194 196
Energy 81 77
Life Sciences 81 77
Rail 42 41
IMI Precision Engineering ) _79701: ' ) 916_
New Construction 277 361
Aftermarket 374 321
1M Critic_c_ll Engineering N o B B . - - 651771 682
TA 152 151
Heimeier 97 98
Pneymatex™ 50 . 47
Other 16 13
IM! Hydronic Engineering S 315, 309
Total revenue 1,873 1,907

* 2019 Industrial Automation sales disaggregate as Factery Autemation of £369m and Process Fluid Controf of £140m.

** The Pneumatex service sales of £5m (2018: £4m) have been reclassified from Other te Prieumatex.
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5. Operating costs

Operating costs by function

The following table is included to show how much of the operating costs
disclosed in the Income Statement relate to selling and distribution
costs and administrative expenses.

019 2018
£m £m
Selling and distnbution costs (253.5); (242.2)
Admi[\istruﬁ]ve expenses B B o (ggﬁﬂ)‘ "(309.97)
(548.3) | (552.1)
Employee information
The average number of people employed by the Group during the year was:
2019 | 2018
IM! Precision 5,979 ‘ 5,933
IMi Critical 3,217 3,274
IMI Hydronic 1,770 1,790
Corporote 108 109
Total Group 11,074 11,106

The decrease in 2019 is due to the results of restructuring, offset by the
acquisition of PBM.

The aggregate employment cost charged to operating profit for the year was:

2019

2018

£m ; £m

Wages and salenes 499.5 51%.4
Share-based payments B8 - 8.2
Social security costs 82.8 877
Pension costs* (3.1). [
Totol I " Y )

* Pension costs include the £8.6m gain (2018: £6.8m gain) on special pension
events which are disclosed as adyusting itemns, see Note 3.

The aggregate gains made by directors on the exercise of share optiens was
£3.7m (2018: £0.1m). The remuneration, as defined in the Componies Act 2006
Schedule 5, for the executive directors' comprises fixed and annual variable

pay as set out in the table on poge 82 of the Remuneratian Report. Fer details
of the non-executive directors' remuneration please refer to page 90 of the
Remuneration Report.

Research and tevelopment expenditure

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure charged directly to the
incomne statement was £42.9m (2018: £41.2m}, included within this is amortisation
of capitalised intengible development costs which amounted to £2.6m (2018: £3.5m)
and across the Group o further £5.7m (2018: £7.1m) was capitalised in the year.

Exchange on operating activities net of hedging arrangements

The transactional foreign exchange gains in the Group were £1.8m
(2018: gains of £2.2m).

Audit fees

The Group engages its auditor, EY, to perform other assurance assignmentsin
addition to their statutory audit duties where their expertise, experience and
knowledge of the Group should enable them to perform these assignments
meore efficiently than octher similar service providers.

The Group's policy on such ossignments is set out in the Audit Cornmittee Report
on page 75. Fees earned by EY and its associates during the year are set out below:

2019 . 2018
£m i £m
Fees earned by the Company's auditor for the audit of '
the Company's annual accounts 0.2, 0.2
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries,
pursuant te legislation 2.8 2.6
Other assurence services 0.1 a1
Total 31 2.9
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6. Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity and equity-related compensation benefits to reward its employees. The estimated cost of awarding these share options is
charged to the income statement over the period that the Group berefits from the employees’ services. This cost is then added back to retained earnings, to reflect
that there is no overall impact on the Group's balance sheet untit the shares are issued to the employees when the options are exercised.

The individual share option schemes, the number of options outstanding under each of them, the estimated cost of these options recognised in the income staterment

and the assumptions used in orriving at this estimated cost are described below.

Accounting policy

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised os an expense each year. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is deterrined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any nen-market vesting conditions (for exarnple,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. The fair value of the options is determined based on the Monte Carlo and Black-Scholes option-pricing models.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that ore expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income stotement.

For newly issued shares, the proceeds received net of any directly ottributable transection costs are credited to share capital (neminal value} and share premium

when the options are exercised.

Outstanding share options

At 31 Decarnber 2019, options to purchose ordinary shares had been granted to, but not yet exercised by, participants of IMI share option schemes as follows:

Date of Number
grant of shares Price Cates from which exercisable
1MI Sharesave Scheme 06.05.14 4,929 1384.02p 01.08.17 or 01.08.19
05.06.15 16,274 107532p 01.08.18 or 01.08.20
29.04.16 56,159 845.10p 01.08.19 cr 01.08.21
21.04.27 30,103 1104.00p 01.08.20 0r 01.08.22
04.04.18 68,500  1012.68p 01.08.21 or 01.08.23
04.04.19 182,633 884.18p 01.08.22 0or 01.08.24
T © 358598 ) o ) '
Global Employee Share 1508.18 £7,534 104931p 15.08.20
Purchose Plons 16.08.1%9 33,269 902.72p 12.08.21
- -7 g0g03 - -
IMI Incentive Plan 07.05.15 2,969 - 07.05.17 or 07.05.18
09.03.146 48,535 - 09.03.18 or D9.03.19
09.03.17 634,129 - 09.03.19 or 09.03.20
12.03.18 429,396 - 12.03.200r12.03.21
18.03.19 736,335 - 18.03.21 or 1B.C3.22
T 2051384 T T T
IM| Share Option Plan 22.03.10 4,500 445.00p 22.02.13
23.03.11 95,000 97183p 23.02.14
040512 190,750 980.67p 04.05.15
27.11.12 12,200  1007.33p 27.11.15
12.03.13 228,150  1322.70p 120316
22.10.13 14000  1518.33p 221016
11.03.14 264,050 1467.00p 11.03.17
T T o 808,650 o
Total - T 3,299,415 B 7
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6. Share-based payments (continued)

Schemes under which options
are outstanding

The optians in the table on page 127 relate to the following share-based
poyment schemes:

IMI Sharesave Scheme ('SAYE")

This scheme is open te the majority of the Group's UK emgployees, inciuding

the executive directors, and allows the grant of options to all participants at a
discount of up to 20% below the market price. Such schernes are not subject to
performance conditions and offer tax incentives te encourage employees to use
their own money to purchase IMi shares. SAYE options may be exercised within
six months of the date they first become exercisable.

Global Employee Share Purchase Plans ("GESPP')

These plans were intreduced in 2011 for the US and Germany. The Germaon and
US GESPP's offer the opportunity to buy shares in IMI ot o fixed price at a future
date. The German GESPP mirrors the UK Sharesave Scheme, with a minimum/
maximum savings limit per month and contract duration of three to five years.
The US GESPP also operates in a similar way to the UK Sharesave Scheme, with
a minimum/maximum savings limit per month, but the contract duration is for o
fixed period of two years and different taxation conditions apply for the exercise
period. No further awards are intended to be granted under the German GESFPP.

IMI Share Option Plan ('SOP")

Share option owards were made from 2009 to selected senior managers
and certain other employees under the SOP. These owards are not subject
to perfarmance conditions, but are subject to a three yeor vesting geriod.
The purpose of the SOP 1s to give selected IMI employees (who are not
executive directors of the Company) the opportunity to share in the benefits
of share price growth and to increase their IMI shareholding.

Options granted during the year

Other share-based payment arrangements
The Group also operates the following employee share plans:

Share incentive Plan {'SIP’)

The SIP is open to the mojority of the Group's UK employees, including the

executive directors. This scheme covers two separate opportunities for

employees to share in IMI's success as follows:

+ Partnershp shares — ailow employees to invest up to the statutory maximum
from pre-tax pay, which is used to buy IMI shares.

« Free shares - allows a grant of shares to employees each year, up to the
statutory maximum.

Shares acquired or awarded under the SIP are not subject to performance
conditions and offer tax incentives to encourage empioyees to build up their
shareholdings with the Company.

The 1M1 Incentive Plan (‘ItP')

in light of the expiry in 2015 of both the PSP and SMP, the IIP was introduced to
act as the Company's sole senior executive long-term incentive plan. The IIP acts
as an umbrella plar which aliows the Compaony to grant different types of award
to different employee groups in an efficient way. The lIP is to be used annually to
gront ‘Performance Share Awards' in respect of ordinary shares to the executive
directors and other members of senior management subject to performance
conditions. The IIP will also be used annuaily te grant ‘Bonus Share Awards’ below
Board level. The IIP also gives the Company the ability to grant 'Restricted Stock
Unit Awards’ and ‘Share Options’. It is currently intended that Restricted Stock
Unit Awards and share options will only be gronted in response to specific
business requirements.

Number of Weighted

options average Normal
gronted option exercisable
(thousand) price date
SAYE
2018 100 1013p 2021-2024
2019 200 884p 2022-2025
GESPP
2018 54 140%p 2020
2019 33 903p 2021
ne
2018 835 - 2020-2021
2019 845 -~ 2021-2022
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Movement in outstanding options in the year

Qptions
granted ot
Optons not granted ot nil cost? nil cost ? Total
Number of Number of Number of
cpticns Range of options options
{thousand) cpticn prices (thousand) ({thousand)
Outstanding ot 1 January 2018 1,718 441-1538p 2,802 4,520
Exercisable at 1 January 2018 1,340 441-1518p 118 1458
Graonted 153 1013-104%p 1,222 1375
Exercised 164 441-1322p 68 232
Lapsed 153 845-1467p 499 852
Outstanding at 31 December 2018 1,555 645-1518p 3,257 4,812
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 1,156 645-1518p 128 1284
Granted 233 884-903p 1,194 1,427
Exercised 189 445-1067p 455 Bad4
Lapsed 109 845-1384p 1,105 1,214
Outstanding ot 31 December 2019 1,490 645-1518p 2,692 4,181
Exercisable at 31 December 2019 1,067 645-1518p 202 1,269

Share-based payment charge for the year

The total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payments
was £8.8m (2018: £8.2m) which comprises a charge of £13.8m (2018: £13.9m)
for the year offset by a credit of £5.0m (2018: £5.7m) in respect of lapses.

£3.5m (2018: £4.7m) of the total charge and £3.4m (2018: £2.3m) of the
total credit is in respect of options granted to directors,

Share-based payment valuation methodology

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted are
measured by reference to the farr velue of share options granted, based on
Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo option pricing models. The assumptions used for
grants in 2017 included o dividend yield of 3.7% (2018: 4.3%), expected share
price volatility of 24% (2018: 26%), o weighted average expected life of 3.3 years
(2018: 3.2 years) and a weighted average interest rete of 0.6% (2018: 0.8%).
The expected velatility is whally based on the historical volatility (calculated based
on the weighted average remaining kfe of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

* Options not granted ot nit cost include options granted under the following schemes: IMI Sharesave Scheme, Global Employee SHdr({ Pd'rjchus.e Plans and
IMi Share Option Plan. S

2 Options grented at nil cost are those granted under the Performance Share Plan, Share Matching Plan and 1M1 incentive Plan.
P g g 9

Other share-based payment disclosures

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding
as at 31 December 2019 is 6.18 years (2018: 6.48 yeors) and the weighted
average fair value of share options granted in the year at their grant date

was £8.66 (2018: £10.11).

The weighted overage share price at the date of exercise of share options
exercised during the yecr was £9.98 (2018: £11.83).
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7. Earnings per ordinary share

Earnings per share ('EPS') is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share (excluding those held in the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).

Basic EPS measyres are calculated as the Group profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

during the year. Diluted EPS takes :nto account the dilutive effect of all outstanding share options priced below the market price, in arriving at the number of shares

used in its calculation.

Both of these measures are also presented on an adjusted basis, to assist the reader of the financial statements to get a better understanding of the performance
of the Group. The note below demonstrates how this calculation has been perfarmed.

2019 | 2018
Key million million
Woeighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share A 270.8 i 2710
Dilutive effect of employee share options 0.4 0.3
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share B 271.2 271.3
Key £m i Em
Statutory profit for the year c 1561 | 169.4
Egﬁg}ﬂgrow@m dijcﬁorrjrtirnued operations, net of tax . o - o (2.8)| -
Continuing statutory profit for the year D 153.3 ' 1694
Total adjusting itemns chorges included m profit before tax 61.4 | 383
Total adjusting items credis included in taxction e J!.fb): 93
Earnings for adjusted EPS E 198.1 i 198.4
]
o L . L L
Stotutory EPS meosures o _ 0
Stotutery basic EPS c/A 57.6p 62.5p
Statutory diluted EPS C/B 57.6p 62.4p
Stotutory basic continuing EPS D/A 56.6p 62.5p
Statutory diluted continuing EPS _ N D/B ~ 565p: ~b2.4p
Adjusted EPS measures |
Adjusted bosic EPS E/A 73.2p 73.2p
Adjusted diluted EPS E/B 73.0p 73.1p

Discontinuved earnings per share

Stotutory bosic discontinued earnings per shere were 1.0p {2018: nil). Statutory diluted discontinued earnings per share were 1.0p (2018: nil).

impact of IFRS 16 on earnings per share

Earnings per share decreased by 0.1p per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16.

130 IMI plc Arnnual Report & Accounts 2019



8. Net financing costs

Accounting policy

Financial income comprises interest receivable on funds invested, income from investments and gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income
statement. Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset. Dividend income is recognised

in the incomne statement on the date that the dividend is declared.

Financial expense comprises interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate methed, the interest related element of derivatives and

lesses on financial instruments that are recognised in the income statement. The interest expense component of lease payments is recognised in the incame

statement applying territory specific incremental borrowing rates.

Net finance expense relating to defined benefit pension schemes represents the assumed interest on the difference between employee benefit plan liabilities

and the ermployee benefit plan assets.

The finance income or expense on mark-to-market movements on interest and foreign exchange derivatives and other financing costs are excluded from

adjusted earnings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantiol period of time to get

ready faor its intended use or sole are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. Afl other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thot an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2019 | 2018
Financial 5 Financial
Interest  instruments Total * Interest  instruments Total

Recognised in the income statement £m £m £m : £m £m £m
Interest incorme on bank deposits 4.5 4.5 58 5.8
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss:

Other economic hedges

- current year trading 7.5 139 139

- future year transactions 5.9 2.2 22
Financiclincome o o - a5 136 5.8 161 219
interest expense on interest-bearing iogns and borrowings {17.1) (18.7) {(18.7)
Interest expense on lease arrengements [¢5)] -
Financial instruments at fair vaive through profit or lass:

Other economic hedges

- current year trading (9.3) (159 (15.9)

- future year transactions 3.5 (4.6) (4.6)
Finoncial expense (19.4) (13.0} (18.7) (20.5) (39.2)
Net finoncial income relutj'hg to defined benefit ﬁéﬁsion schemes T B T (14) (1.8)
Net financial expense o B } 0.4 (15.0) (143) (44  (1B7)

Included in financial instruments ere current year trading gains and losses on economically effective transactions which for management reporting purposes are inciuded
in adjusted revenue and ogerating profit (see Note 4). For statutory purposes, these are shown within net financial income and expense above. Gains or losses for future
year transactions are in respect of financiol instruments held by the Group to provide stability of future trading cash flows.

2018

Recognised in other comprehensive income £m Em
Change in fair value of effective portion of net investment hedges 2.6 ‘ 19
Foreign currency translation differences (15-4)i (4.5)
Change in fair value of other financial assets -1 0.2
Income tax on items recognised in ather comprehensive income 6.0 (0.3
Total items recognised in other ccmpféﬁeﬁr{ive income (net of tax) B i ) (2.7)

Recegnised in:

Hedging reserve 2.4 ‘ 1.8
Translation reserve (910)‘ (4.5}
T T T T T (6.3)‘r (2.7)
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9. Taxation

Ml operates through subsidiary companies all areund the world thot poy many
different taxes such os corporate income toxes, VAT, payroli withhotdings, social
security contributions, customs import and excise duties. This note aggregates
only those corporate income taxes that are or will be levied on the individual
profits of IMI pic and its subsidiary comparnies for periods leading up to and
including the balance sheet date. The profits of each company are subject to
certoin adjustments as specified by applicoble tax kiws in each country to arrive
at the tax liability that is expected to result on their tax returns. Where these
adjustments have future tax impact then deferred taxes may aiso be recorded.

Accounting policy

Current tax payable/receivable represents the expected tax payoble/
receivable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet dote and taking into account
any adjustrments in respect of prior years.

Deferred tox is provided, using the balance sheet method, on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financiol reporting purpeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the
initiol recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or ligbilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the timing of the reversal of the differences
con be controlled and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tex is meoasured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse, based on the
tax laws that hove been enocted or substentively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be availoble against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Tax governance, risk and strategy

IMI recognises its carporate responsibility to ensure thot all businesses within
the IMi Group follow resgonsible tax practices. Accordingly, the IM( Tax Palicy
sets the core principles of comgliance, fairness, volue and transparency for the
management of the Group's tax affairs.

This Policy has been approved by the Board, fully communicated to subsidiary
businesses and is reviewed to ensure responsible business practices ocross the
Group are mamtained. The Group Finance Director hos vitimate responsibility for
all tax matters ond keeps the Boord approised of any significant issues or changes
to the Tax Policy. A robust tax governance fromework has also been established
under which the Executive Committee and the IMI Boord are appraised on a
regular hasis of any material or significant tax matters, so that appropriate

action can be effected, Through the IMI Global Intranet, the Group communicates
policies, procedures, guidance and best practices to improve the management of
taxation across its subsidiary companies worldwide.

Compliance: IMI seeks to manage its taxation obligations worldwide in comphance
with cll applicable tax laws and regulations, @s well as fully in line with the Group's
Code of Conduct. Accordingly, the tax contribution by the individual businesses

is monitored and robust standard tax compliance processes operate together
with appropriate financial controls ta ensure that all tox returns are complete,
accurate and filed on a timely basis with the tax authorities around the world and
the declared toxes poid on time. UK legislation regarding third party tax evasion
has also been incorporated in to the Group's prevention procedures, including
employee training. Furthermore, the preparation and filing of the corporate
income tax returns for IMI subsidiary companies worldwide have been largely
outsourced to one tax advisory firm.
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Tox lows are often complex, which can lead to inconsistent interpretations

by different stakeholders. Where this occurs, iIMI may reduce uncertainty and
controversy through various octions, including proactive discussion with the fiscal
authorities to obtain early resolution ond securing external tax advice to ensure
the robust interpretation of tax laws and practices.

Fairness: IMI seeks to record its profits across the subsidiary companies around
the world or an arm’s length basis in accordance with internationally uccepted
best practices, recognising the relative contributions of peopie, assets, intellectual
oroperty and risks borne by the verious businesses. The resulting aliecation

of profits is regularly tested fer complionce with this standard. IMI has taken
action to ensure that it meets the enhanced transfer pricing disclosures end
documentation requirements by tax euthorities os a result of the Base Erosion

& Profit Shifting (commonty referred to as BEPS) initiative by the CECD.

Value: IMI manages the impact of taxation on its businesses in a responsible
manner by only adopting legitimate, commercial and generaily acceptable
positions. In particular, IMI seeks to foliow not only the law itself but the
intention of the local laws where this can reasonably be ascertained. As a UK
Heodquartered group, IM¥'s profits are ultimately subject te UK taxation,
although as the Group pays significant toxes overseas, the overall effective
tax rate for the Group is margmnally above the UK statutory tax rate.

Transparency: IMI gims to build positive working relotionships with tox authorities
by co-operating in a constructive, open and timely manner. IM| seeks to disclose
1ts tax affairs in its published accounts and taxation returns fully in accordance
with the applicable standards and, where appropriate, will supplement its tax
disclosures with further information teo better inform, and to be transparent to,
its stakeholders.

Risk: IMI engages external support to manage tax risks and achieve the strategic
objectives outtined above. Tax nisks are requiarly assessed for all companies within
the Group, promptly addressed and reported so that they may be appropriatety
provided and disclosed in the relevant accounts and tax returns. Te the extent that
identified tax risks are material they will be reported to the Executive Committee
through the Group's process for strategic risk management as described at

page 54,

UK Corporation tax

The average weighted rate of corporation tax in the UK for the 2019 calendar
year was 19.0% (2018: 19.0%). Changes to the rate of UK corporation tax were
substantively enacted in 2015 to reduce the rate to 19% from 1 April 2017

and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The budget of 16 March 2016 then proposed to
further reduce the rate to 17% from 1 Aprit 2020. This additionat change was
substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. UK deferred tux assets and liobilities
hove therefore been calculeted using o rate of 17% (2018: 17%).



Tax payments

During the year, the Group made payments of corporate income tax of £40.2m
(2018: £41.1m), principally arising as follows:

Jurisdiction of companies making corporate income tax payments:

Germany £3.3m
us £(0.6)m

Other £5.8m
Australia £1.0m
South Korea £1.7m
Czech £1.4m

China £1.1m
Austria £0.8m
Sweden £0.9m

Italy £6.9m
2019 £40.2m

Japon £2.2m

Switzerland £1.8m

UK £13.9m

Gther territories (<£1m), £5.4m

Czech £1.4m Germany £9.5m
Poland £1.2m E e
Austria £1.1m g US £0.3m
Sweden £0.7m 2018 £41.1m
Italy £2.7m
Japan £1.7m

UK £12.2m
Switzerland £4.9m

There 1s normally an element of volatility in the annual payments of corporate income
taxes due to the timing of assessments, acquisition and disposals, adjusting items and
payments on account in the many countries in which the Group operates. Changes

in the jurisdictions in which profits are earned can have an impact on cash flow fevels
which may take time to be reflected in the tax cash flow.

The leve!l of payments made during 2019 decreased slightly compared to 2018,
The Group continued to recover tax debtors in Germany, Switzerland and the US.
Qther territorial movements in payments largely reflect shifts in trading.

In addition, the Group mokes substantial other tax poyments relating to employment,
comnsumption, procurement and investment to focal autharities around the world.

Recognised in the income statement

This section sets cut the current and deferred tax charges, which together
comprise the total tax charge in the income statement.

2019 ‘ 2018
£m £m

Current tax charge :
Current yeadr charge 41.4 " 46.1
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.4 ; (4.3)
7 T ss 418

Deferred toxation 1
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences (5.8) 17
Total income tax éﬁurge T 360 435

The above income tax charge is apportioned between continuing and discontinued
operations in the income statement os follows:

2019 | 2018
£Em | fm
Current tax charge ‘
Continuing aperations o 41.8 ‘ 418
Deferred tox (credit)/charge }
Continuing operations 3 ,J}i)‘ . 71.?
Total income tax charge
Continuing operations 346.0 435
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9. Taxation {(continued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

As IMI's head office and porent company is domiciled in the UK, the Group references its effective tax rate to the UK corporation tox rate, despste only o small pertion
of the Group's business being in the UK, Therefore, the following tax reconciliation applies the UK corporation tax rate for the year to profit before tax, both before and
after adjusting items, The resulting tax charge is reconciled to the actual tax charge for the Group, by taking account of specific tax adjustments as folfows:

2019 ) 2018
Adjysting ' Adjusting
Adjusted items Stotutory ; Adjusted items Statutory
Sectron £m £m fm ’ £m £m £m
Profit before tax from continuing operations. 250.7 (61.4) 189.3 | 251.2 (38.3) 2129
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 28 - 2.8 28 ; - - -
Profit before tax 2507 (586) @ 1921 2512 (383 2129
tncome tax using the Company's domestic rate of tax of 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) 47.6 (111) 36.5 : 47.7 (7.3) 40.4
Effects of: |
Non-deductible iterns 0.7 0.2 0.9 0.7 07 1.4
Non toxable impairment / loss on disposal of businesses / discontinued operations - €0.5) 0.5) ; - 0.3 0.3
Utilisation of losses on which no deferred tax had been recognised (0.5) - (0.5) (0.4) - (C.4)
Current year losses for which no deferred tox asset has been recognised 0.2 - 02 3.0 - 3.0
Recognition of deferred tax asset on previously unprovided timing differences (1.8} - (1.8} - - -
Differing tax rates 6.1 (5.2) N 52 (3.0 2.2
Under/(Over) provided in prior years 0.3 - 0.3 {(3.4) - (3.4)
Totoltaxinincome statement TUTTTTTTT s T (es) 360, 528 9.3) 435
trcome tox expense rebortéd in the consolidated income statement 524 _(16.3) T 380 I 528 *.3) 43.5
Effective rate of tax - continving operctions: 21.0% 12.0% : 21.0% 20.4%
{ncome tox attributoble to discontinued operations 28 ’
Effective rate of tax - discontinued operations: '
Total tax in income statement 52.6 (16.8) 3560 528 (2.3) 43.5
Effective rate of tax - total Grodﬂp: o T T L0% ] T 0%

Recognised outside of the income statement

In addition to omounts charged to the income statement, some current tax and deferred tax s (credited)/charged directly to equity or threugh cther comprehensive

income, which can be analysed as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m
Deferred tox: '
On equity-settied transactions - : 01
On re-measurement gains and on defined benefit plans {0.1) | 3.5
On change in value of effective net investment hedge derivatives S o _(_250)5 B
_ e 34
Current tax: :
On change in value of effective net investment hedge derivatives {4.0) . 03
On equity-settled transactions 0.2 1.1
_ . ) - T - B __(_5:9); 5.0
Of which the following amounts are charged/(credited): i
to the statement of comprehensive income {6.1) . 38
to the statement of changes in equity 0.2 1.2
) T o ] 59 5.0
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Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred taxes record the tax consequences of temporary differences between the accounting and taxation recognition of certain items, as explained below:

Assets Liabilities Net

2019 1 2018 09 2018 2019 2018

£m £m £m . Em £m Em

Non-current assets 5.2 0.9 (35.6) (34.8) (31.4) 339
Inventories 3.6 3.9 (2.2} (2.8) 1.4 11
Qn revaluation of derivatives 0.4 : 0.2 (1.0) (3.1) (0.6) (2.9)
Employee benefits and provisions 36.0 303 (12.4) i (8.6) 236 ‘ 21.7
Other tax assets - ) I T 1z - - 1.7 1.2
4.9 365 (52.2) (49.3) {5.3) (12.8)

Offsetting within tax jurisdictions . L o (24.7); - (19.5) 24.7 i 185 T
Total deferred tax assets and liahilities 222 170 (27.5)} (29.8) {5.3) (12.8)

The movernent in the net deferred tax balances has been recognised in the financial stotements as onalysed below:

Recognised  Recognised
inthe  outside the

Balance at income income Balance ot
1Jan1? Exch 31Dec1?
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-current ossets (33.9) 15 1.0 (314
tnventories 11 0.3 - 14
On revoluation of derivatives (2.9 0.3 2.0 - (0.6)
Employee benefits and provisions 21.7 2.5 0.1 0.7) 23.6
QOther tox assets 1.2 1.2 (0.7) 1.7
Net deferred tax liability ' ’ (128) 58 21 (0.4) (5.3

Recognised Recognised
inthe  outside the

Balante at income income Balance ot

1tan 18 statement statement Exchange 31 Dec 18

£m £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets (33.0) 0.2 - (1.1 (33.9)
Inventories 0.7 0.6 - {0.2) 11
On revaluation of derivatives 3.1 0.2 - - 2.9
Employee benefits and provisions 26.6 (1.8} (3.6) 0.5 217
QOther tax assets 20 (0.9} - 0.1 1.2
Net deferred tax liability B (6.8) @ (36  ©N 28

All exchange movements are taken through the translation reserve.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets of £48.4m (2018: £50.2m) have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of £62.2m (2018: £69.4m), interest of £37.3m (2018: £32.3m) and capital
losses of £117.3m {2018: £118.0m). The majority of the tax losses have no expiry dote. No deferred tax asset has been recognised for these temporary differences due to
the uncertainty over their offset agoinst future toxable profits and therefore their recoverability. In some instances, these balances are clse yet to be accepted by the tax
autharities and could be chalienged in the event of an audit.

it is likely that the magjority of unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries would qualify for the UK dividend exemption. However, £35.3m (2018: £36.2m) of thase earnings
may still resuit in a tax liability principally as a result of withholding taxes ievied by the cverseas jurisdictions in which those subsidiaries operate. These tax habilities are not
expected to exceed £3.8m {2018: £2.9m) of which £3.3m {2018: £2.7m) has been provided on the basis that the Group expects to remit these omounts.




10. Dividends

Accounting policy

Fina! dividends payabte ore recognised as a liability ot the date ot which they are approved by the Company's shareholders or by the subsidiary’s shareholders in
respect of dividends to non-controlling interests. Interim dividends payable are recognised on the date they are declared.

Dividends

After the balance sheet date the following dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income
tox consequences,

201% 2018

Em . £m

Current year final dividend - 24.2p per qualifying ordinary share (2018: 26.0p) 7.0 704
The following dwvidends were declared and paid by the Group during the year:

2019 I 2018

£m ! £m

Prier year final dividend paid - 26.0p per qualifying ordinary share (2017 final year dividend: 25.2p) 70.4 l 683

Current year interim dividend paid - 14.9p per gualifying ordinary share (2_013_:_14.6;)) o ) o o 401&_ o ____39.6

110.8 107.9

Dividend policy and share buybacks

As part of the capital monagement process, the Group ensures that adequate reserves are avoilable in [MI plc in order to meet proposed shareholder dividends,
the purchase of shores for employee share scheme incentives and any on-market share buyback programme.

Whiist the Group does not have a formal dividend policy or payout ratio, the Group's aim is ta continue with progressive dividends, which typically increase at o steady
rate for hoth the interim and fingl dividend payments, with an aim that the dividend should, through the cycle, be covered by at least twe times adjusted earnings.

{n the event that the Board cannot identify sufficient investment opportunities through copital expenditure, orgenic growth initiatives and acquisitions, the return

of funds to shareholders through share buybacks or special dividends will be considered. It should be noted that a number of shares are regularly baught in the
market by an employee benefit trust in arder to hedge the exposure under certain management incentive plans. Details of these purchases are shown in Note 22

to the financial statements.
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11. Intangible assets

Accounting policy

Intangible assets are disclosed os acquired intangible assets and non-acquired intangible assets. Amortisation of acquired intangible assets is treated as an
adjusting itern as described in Note 3 of these accounting palicies, because of its inherent volatility.

i. Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred over the net
identifioble amounts of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed for the business combination. After initiol recognition, goedwili is measured ot cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The vatue of the goodwill can arise from a number of sources, but in relation to our more recent acquisitions,

it has been represented by post-acquisition synergies and the skills and knowledge of the workforce.

it. Research and Development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospact of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the
income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are opplied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and
processes, is capitalised provided henefits are probable, cost can be reliably measured and if, and only if, the product or process is technically and cormmercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour
and directly attributable overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development
expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy ‘Impairment’) and is included in the other
acquired or other non-acquired category of intangible ossets depending on its origin.

iii. Software deveiopment costs

Softwaore applications and systems that are not an integral part of their host computer equipment are capitalised on initial recognition as intangible assets at
cost. Cost comprises the purchose price plus directly attributable costs incurred on development of the asset to bring it into use. Following initial recognition,
softwara development costs are carried at cost less any accurnulated amortisation (see below) and accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy
"Impairment’) and are included in the other acquired or other non-acquired categury of intangible assets depending on their origin.

iv. Customer relationships and other acquired intangible assets

Customer relationships and other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group as port of a business combination are stated at their fair value caleuloted
by reference to the net present value of future benefits accruing to the Group from utilisotion of the asset, discounted at an gppropriate discount rate.
Expenditure on other internally generated intangible assets is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

v. Amortisation of intangible assets other than goeodwill

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis {(other than for customer relationships and arder book, which are charged on a sum
of digits basis) over the estimated useful tives of the intangible assets. Amortisation commences from the date the intangible asset becomes available for use.

The estimated useful lives for:

« Caopitolised development costs are the life of the intangible asset (usually a maximum of 15 years)

« Software development costs are the life of the intangible asset {up to 10 years)

« Customer relationships are the life of the intongible asset (up to 10 years)

« Other intangible assets (including order books, brands and software) are the life of the intangible asset (up to 10 years)

The Group splits its intongible ossets between those arising on acquisitions end those which do not, because the amortisation of acquired intangibies is
recognised as an adjusting item in the income statement.
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11. Intangibile assets (continued)

Analysis of intangible assets

Non-acquired

Acquired Other Total Cther non- intangibles
customer acquired acquired acquired under
Goodwill  relationships intangibles ntongibles intangibles  construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £fm £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2018 420.4 195.4 99.9 715.7 1114 251 B52.2
Exchange adjustments 14.0 70 4.6 27.6 2.6 0.1) 301
Acquisitions 391 34.2 20.0 233 34 - 967
Additions - - - - 6.7 13.7 204
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 214 (21.4) -
Disposals ) - ) - - {2.2) (2.2) (¢85 - (4.1)
As at 31 December 2018 4755 234.6 122.3 834.4 1436 173 9953
Exchange adjustments (20.9) (12.0) (5.8) {38.7) (8.1) @.3) (47.1)
Acquisitions (see Note 23) 25.8 15.7 13.3 54.8 - - 54.8
Additions - - - - 7.6 11.2 18.8
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 12.6 (12.6) -
Disposals - - - - (0.8) - (0.8)
Asgt31December2019 S 4804 2403 1298 8505 1549 156 10210
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2018 361 161.0 899 2870 562 - 3432
Exchange adjustments 0.2 33 28 63 3.0 - 93
Dispesals - - (2.2) (2.2) (1.9) - (o))
Impairment 2.0 - - 20 12 - 3.2
Amertisation for year - 14.2 8.9 251 11.8 - 369
As at 31 December 2018 38.3 180.5 Q9.4 318.2 70.4 - 388.6
Exchange adjustments (2.0) (9.3) {4.5) {15.8) (4.6) - (20.4)
Disposals - - - - (0.5) - {0.5)
Amortisation for year - 15.2 4.3 19.5 15.0 - 34.5
As at 31 December 2019 T T 3863 T 1ses 992 3219 803 - 4022
Net book value at 31 December 2018 ) i C 4372 561 229 sle2 732 173 s067
Net book value ot 31 December 2019 4441 7539 304 52846 74.6 15.6 618.8

Goodwill impairment testing

Accounting policy

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units (or groups of 'CGUSs™, The composition of CGUs reflects both the way in which cash inflows are generoted and the internal reporting structure. Where our
businesses operate closely with each other we will continue to review whether they should be treated as a single CGU. Each unit or group of units to which goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest levef within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for interncl management purposes and shall not be larger than an
operating segment before aggregation.

Where goodwill forms part of o CGU and part of the aperation within thet unit is disposed of, the goodwili associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstonce is measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Impairment ~ The carrying vaiues of the Group's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether impairment indicators exist.

i indicators exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or ot assets within its CGU is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or its CGU unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
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For goedwill and assets that are not yet availoble for use, the recoverable amount is evoluated at each balance sheet date.

The recoverable amount of non-financial ussets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, an individual assessment
is made of the estimated future cosh flows generated for each CGU derived from the Group's long-term forecasts for the next five years. These are discounted
to their present valve using a pre-tax discount, rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rigks specific to the osset.
Management befieve that this approach, including the use of the indefinite cash flow projection, is appropriate based upon both historical experience and because
it is one of the bases management utilise to evaluate the fair volue of investment opportunities. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash

inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impoirment

Impairments of goodwill or available for sale financial ossets are non-reversible. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if ot the balance
sheat date there are indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists following @ change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,

net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Key estimate

The value in vse is based on a discounted cash flow model. The principal key estimate reflects the assumptions in these calculations are the long-term
growth rates and the discount rate applied to forecast cash flows in cddition to the achievement of the forecasts themselves. The assessments performed
were materially insensitive ta changes in the underlying growth and discount rate assumptions which were not significantly revised in the current year.
Further information on the assumptions adopted for materiat cash generating units and the assets affected is included below.

The Group hes 19 {2018: 20) cash generating units to which goodwill is allocoted.

The recoverable amount of @ CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. Volue in use is determined using cash flow prejections from
finencial budgets, forecasts and pians approved by the Board covering a five-year
period and include a termingl value multiple. The projected cash flows reflect the
latest expectation of demand for products and services.

The key assumpticns in these calculatiens are the long-term growth rates and

the discount rates applied to forecast cash flows in addition to the achievement
of the farecasts themselves. Long-term growth rates are based on long-term
economic forecasts for growth in the manufecturing sector in the geogrophicol
regions in which the cash generating unit operates, Pre-tax discount rates specific
to each cash generating unit are calculated by odiusting the Group post-tax
weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC") of 7.0% (2018: 7%) for the tax rate
relevant to the jurisdiction before adding risk premia for the size of the urit,

the charactenstics of the segment in which it resides, and the geographical
regions from which the cosh flows are derived.

This exercise resulted in the use of the following ranges of values for the
key assumptions:

2019 2018

% | %

Pre-tax discount rate 83-11.0 : 89-148
Ltong-term growth rate 0.7-20, 08-31

For the purpose of assessing the significance of CGUSs, the Group uses a threshold
of 20% of the total goodwill balance. Goodwill of £90.2m (2018: £93.2m)
asscciated with the Contro! Valves CGU in IM] Critical is considered to be
significant. The recoverable amount of the CGU 1s determined from a value in use
calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use valuation are the discount
rate, growth rate and operating cashflows. These estimates are determined
using the methodology discussed above, The discount rate applied for Control
Valvesis 9.4% (2018: 9.5%) and a growth rate of 2.0% (2018: 2.1%) 1s opplied
into perpetuity.

The Directors do not consider that any reasonably possible changes to the key
assumptiens would cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount
of the CGU.

No other CGUs have goodwill that is considered significant in the context of the
Group's totol goodwill balance, neor do any CGUs use the same key assumptions
for the purposes of impairment testing in either this year or the last.

In 2018 the Group recorded an adjusting impairment charge of the carrying value
of £2m against the goodwill associated with the Hydronic service companies CGU.
The carrying value of the goodwill was reassessed ofter a sales process for the
CGU was canceiled.

The aggregate amount of goodwill ansing from acquisitions prior to 1 January
2004 which had been deducted from the profit and loss reserves and incorporated
inte the IFRS transitional balance sheet as at 1 January 2004, omounted to
£364m. The cumulative impairment recognised in relation to goodwill is

£41m (2018: £41m).
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12. Property, plant and equipment

This note details the physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits, in addition to those disclosed in Note 13. These assets include manufacturing,
distribution and office sites, ang equipment used in the manufacture of the Group's products. The cost of these assets represents the amount initrally paid for them.

Accounting policy
Freehold land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.
ttems of property, plant and equipment are stated ot cost less accumulated depreciation {see below) and impairment Josses (see Note 11).

Where an item of property. plant and eguipment comprises major components hoving different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment. Costs in respect of tooling owned by the Group for clearly identifiabie new products are capitalised net of any contribution received from
customers and are included in plant and equipment,

Depreciation is charged to the income statement, from the date the asset is brought in to use, on a straight-line basis {unless such a basis is not aligned with
the anticipated benefit) so os to write down the cost of assets to residual values over the period of their estimated vseful lives within the following ranges:

- Freehold buildings - 25 to 5Q years
- Ptant and equipment - 3 to 20 years

Assets in the course of construction comprise assets which are not currently ready to be brought in to use. Assets under construction are not depreciated.

If there has been a technological change or decline in business performance the directors review the value of the assets te ensure they have not falien below their
depreciated value. If an asset's value falis below its depreciated value, a one-off impairment charge is made against profit.

Assetsin the

Land & Plont & course of
buildings equipment  construction Total
Em Em £m £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2618 1849 6325 211 8385
Exchange adjustments 144 347 1.7 47.4
Acquisitions 7.4 110 0.4 188
Additions Q.7 16.3 211 381
Transfers from ussets in the course of construction 1.6 20.0 (21.8) -
Disposals (15.07 (27.0) ©1) (42.1)
As ot 31 December 2018 ’ 194.C 687.5 19.2 900.7
Exchange adjustments (9.8) (31.5} (1.2) (42.5)
Acquisitions (see Note 23} 2.0 2.1 11 5.2
Additions 6.6 18.2 22.2 &£7.0
Tronsfers from assets in the course of construction 59 15.5 (21.4) -
Disposals (18.8) (23.0} (0.3) (42.1)
Asat 31 December 2019 oo T T T 799 6688 196 8683
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2018 96.2 471.9 - 5681
Exchange adjustments 129 248 - 377
Dispasals {6.2) {26.1) - (32.3)
Depreciation 2.9 39.9 - 42.8
As ot 31 December 208 T S T 1058 | 5105 I 616.3
Exchange adjustments (5.3) (24.6) - (29.9)
Disposals (13.9) (21.4} - (35.3)
Impairment charge - 15 - 1.5
Depreciation as 40.6 . Ly 4
As at 31 December 2019 o %04 5066 - 5970
NBV at 31 December 2018 S T T T T T T T T T ey T 1770 T 182 2844
NBV at 31 December 2019 i i o T T T e 1622 194 2713

Animpairment charge of £1.5m relating to continuing operations occurred during the year (2018: £nil). The recoverable amount of these assets has been determined
using their fair value less costs to sell, estimated by both internal and external voluation specialists.

Group contracts in respect of future capital expenditure which had been placed at the balance sheet date relating to the continuing business amounted to £12.3m
(2018: £4.3m).
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13. Leases

Accounting policy

The Group leases vorious properties, plant, equipment and cors. Rental contracts are negoticted individually and have a range of initiol terms ond may have
extension options, The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of -use asset and a correspending liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is ollocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the income staternent over the leose period so as to produce o
constant periodic rate of interest on the rernaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on o stroight-line bosis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially reasured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of:
i. fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

ii. variable lease payment thot are based on an index or a rate;

iii. amounts expected to be payabie by the Group under residual value guarantees;

iv. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

v. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

The lease payments ore discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the entity's incrementel borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the entity would hove to pay to borrow the funds necessory to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising:

i, the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

ii. any lease poyments made at or before the commencement dote less any lease incentives received; and
iii. restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recegnised on a stroight-line basis os an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise [T-equipment and small items of office furniture,

Extension and termination options - Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisobie only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Key judgement

In determining the lease term, management considers all focts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options {or periads after terminaticn options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to
be extended {or not terminated). Potential future cash cutflows of £nil have not been included in the {ease liability because it is not reasonably certain that
the leases wiil be extended (eor not terminated).

The ossessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstonees accurs which affects this assessment and that is within the control
of the Group. During the current financial year, the financial effect of revising lease terms to reflect the effect of exercising extension and termination options
was on increase in recognised lease liobilities and right-of-use ossets of £7.8m.

On adoption of IFRS 16, with effect from 1 Jjanuary 2019, the Group hos adopted the accounting standard using the modified retrospective approach to transition
ond hos accordingly not restated prior periods. The Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as operating leases
under the principtes of IAS 17 ‘Leases’. These licbilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 Jonuary 2019 which ranged from 0.72% to 6.06% which reflects the range of territories that leases are held in.
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13. Leases (continued)

For leases previousiy classified os finance leases the entity recognised the carrying emount of the lease asset and lease liability immediately before transition as the
carrying amount of the right of use asset and the lease lability at the date of initiol application. The measurement principles of IFRS 16 are only applied ofter that dote.
This resulted in no measurement adjustments to the finance leases held ot 1 January 2019. The reconciliation set cut below demonstrates the movement from the
operating lease commitments disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts to the opening lease liobility recognised on 1 Januery 2019.

2019

£m

Operating lease commitments drsclosed as at 31 December 2018 12460
Discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at the dote of initial apglication (9.6)
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised os at 31 December 2018 0.3
(Less): changes arising from review of critical lease terms (18.1)
Add: adjustments as g result of a different treatment of extension and termination options 1.8
Lease liability recognised as ot 1 January 2019 S S i S 100.4

OF which are:

Current leose liabilities 27.9
Nan-current lease liobilities 725
S T T T T 100.4

Afl right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liabiity. There were no onerous lease controcts that would have required on adjustment to the

right-of-use assets at the date of inftial application.

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 were £126.0m. Operating lease commitments for Land and Buildings were £88.1m (of which £21.6m
was due within one year, £54.2m was due within years two to five and £12.3m was due after five years) and for Others were £37.9m (of which £13.6m was due within

one year, £24.3m was due within years two to five ond nil was due after five yeors).

The chonge in accounting palicy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 1 Januory 2019:

31Dec
2018
{pre
IFRS 16)
Em
Right-of-use assets -
Total non-current assets o o o 9391
Lease liabilities -
Total current ligbilities LELR Y
Lease liabilities -
Total non-current liabilities R (505.3)
Net assets G66.2
The net impact on retained earnings on 1 January 2019 was nil.
Set out below ore the carrying amounts of nght-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:
Land & Plant &
buildings equipment Total
£m fm fm
As at 1 January 2019 83.2 17.2 100.4
Additions B.O 7.2 15.2
Extensions 132 0.6 13.8
Payment changes {18 (0.4) (2.2)
Terminations {5.3) 0.7 {6.0)
Depreciation expense (22.5) (9.3) (31.8)
Exchange 0.5 0.2 Q.7
As at 31 December 2019 75.3 14.8 201
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans ond borrowings) and the movements during the period:

Land & Ptont &
buildings equipment Total
£m Em £m

As at 1 Jonuary 2019 832 17.2 1004
Additions 80 7.2 15.2
Extensions 13.2 a6 13138
Payment changes (1.8) (0.4) (2.2)
Terminations {5.5) [{oJr)] (6.2)
Accretion of interest 2.0 03 23
Payments (23.9) 9.7) (33.6)
Exchange a5 0.7
As ot 31 December 2019 0T - ) 757 147 904
Current 18.7 &9 2546

o o © 570 78 648

Non-current

The following are the amounts recognised in the income statement:

2019
£m
Depreciation expense of nght-of-use ossets (31.8)
Interest expense on leose licbilities (2.3)
Expense refating to short-term leoses -
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ’ (34.1)

Practical expedients applied

In applying RS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the stendard:

i reliance on previous assessments on the identification of a iease (per IAS 17)
for all existing controcts on the date of initiol application;

ii. the use of a single discount rote to a portfolio of leases with reasenably similar
characteristics;

iii. reliance on previous assessments on whether leoses are onerous;

iv. the exclusion of initiol direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at the dote of initial appheation; and

v.the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

No practical expedient has been applied in relation to short-term leases and iow
value gssets and is not expected to be used in subsequent periods.

Changes to accounting policies

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant ond equipment were classified
as either finance or operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
{net of ony incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss

on & straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use gsset and a
corresponding liability ot the date at which the leased osset is availuble for use by
the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or joss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life ond the lease term on o straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initiolly measured on o present

velue basis. Lease liebilities include the net present value of the following

tease payrnents:

- fixed payments less any leose incentives receivable;

« variable lease payment that are based on cn index or a rate;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Greup under residuc| volue guarantees;
and

« the exercise price of o purchase option if the Group is reasenably certain to
exercise that option.

The lease payments ore discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rote,
being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of similar volue in a similor economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initiol measurement of lease liability; and

« any lease payments made ot or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property

and equipment leases across the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operationa! flexibility in terms of managing centrocts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Future cash outfiows that the Group is potentially exposed to in relation to
the measurement of lease liabilities which have not been reflected s £nil.



14. Retirement benefits

Accounting policy
i. Defined contribution ('DC') pension plans

Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions into an external fund on behalf of the employee (who is responsible for making the investment
decision and therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance).

Centributiens to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statemnent as incurred.
ii. Defined benefit ('DB") pension plans

A defined benefit pension plan is a pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specified annual benefit on retirement that is pre-determined by a
formula based on the employee's earnings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investment returns. In some cases, this
benefit is paid 4s a lump sum on leaving the Company or while in the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group underwrites one or more risks
in meeting these obligations and therefore any net fiability or surplus in these arrangements is shown on the Group balance sheet.

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any plan assets are deducted. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plon amendment or curtailment, and the date
that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs. The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds of the appropriote
currency that have durations approximating those of the Group's obligations. The calculetion is parformed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a net asset te the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan and restricted by any relevant asset ceiling. Any deduction made by the tax authorities in the event of a refund

of o surplus would be regarded by the Group as an income tax.

When the berefits of a plan are improved, the expense is recognised immediately in the income stoternent. Re-measurerment gains and losses are recognised
immediately in equity and disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income.

tii. Long-term service and other post-employment benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service and other post-employment benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior pericds. The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is
discounted to its present value ond the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balanca sheet date on high quality
bonds of the appropriate currency that have durations approximating those of the Group's obligations.

Key estimate

The present valye of the Group's defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valugtion :nvolves making various assumptions that may differ from actual devetlopments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
inflation, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. The assumptions used and analysis of their sensitivity is set out on subsequent
pages. Due to the complexity of the valuction and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
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Summary information

Net pension deficit: £31.3m (2018: deficit of £52.3m)

The ossets and liabilities of the defined benefit schemes are aggregated, recognised in the conselidoted balance sheet and shown within non-current liabiiities
or in non-current assets if a scheme is in surplus and it is deemed recoverable.

Number of DB arrangements: 71 (2018: 67)
The number of defined benefit arrangements increased in the year due to the identification of four new plans.
The following table shows a summary of the geographical profile of the Group's defined benefit schemes:

Quantity | Guantity Assets Liability

2019 | 2018 £m fm

Australia 3 2 0.4
Austria 5 & 3.6
France 3 3 0.2 11
Germany 30 28 6.7 61.4
India -] -] 0.8
Italy 3 5 3.0
Mexico &' 6 05
Spain 2 | 2 -
Switzerland 5 5 69.3 78.8
UAE 1 1 0.9
us* 2 2 4.9
UK i 5474 499.5
T T R 67 8236 654.9

* The US deficit above excludes £2.6m of assets relating to unqualified plons classified os investments (see Note 17).

The Group provides pension benefits through a mixture of funded and unfunded DB and DC arrangements, although its strategy is to move away from defined
benefit arrangements towards defined contribution arrangements wherever possible ta mirimise the liability of the Group. Assessments of the obligations

of the defined benefit plans are carried out by actuaries, based on the projected unit credit method. An historical split of the types of defined benefit schemes
in eperation is as follows:

* Final saiory scheme: The pension availatle to a member in a final salary
o . ) . -
% % arrangement will be a proportion of the member's salary ot or around their

oty poe o;::::sl Labirey II:L:::S’ retirerment date. This proportion will be determined by the mamber's length

Type of scheme Ne. £m % £m % of pensionable service, their (_]ccrucll rate and any particular circumstonces
under which the member retires {for exampte early ill-health retirement).

2019 ** Cash balance: A cash balance scheme is a form of defined benefit
Final salary * 26 s47.9 88% 550.9 84% pension under which the member has the right ¢ a defined lump sum on
Cash balance ** i 9.3 11% 818 12% retirement rather than a defined amount of pension receivable. For exomple
Jubilee *** 15 - 0% 33 1% a cash bolance plan may have minimum or guaranteed rates of return on
Dthgr . I, 1,'?, e '5" 1%~ 18% 3% pensian contributions. The amount of pension to which that lump sum
Total . 6236 100% 6569  100% maoy be converted is determined by the annuity rates prevailing at the

- time of conversion.
Asset ceiling -

Revised assets 623.6 N *** Jubilee: Jubilee plans provide for cash award poyments which ore based on
completed lengths of service. These payments are often made on cessation

2018 : - ; o
) of service with the Company, subject to a minimum peried of service.
Final salary * 25 4735 87% 4949 83%
Cash batance ** 10 643 12% 80.4 14%
Jubilee *** i4 - 0% 3.2 0%
Other 18 69 1% 18.3 3%
Totah &7 5447 100% 5968 100%
Asset ceiling 0.2
Revisedassets 5445 o
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14. Retirement benefits (continued)

Asset profile of schemes

The foliowing table sets out the profile of the overall assets of the schemes

{to give on indication of their risk profile), the comparative omeunts of the funded
and unfunded defined benefit liabilities (' DBOs') and a split of the balance sheet
impact between schemes with a net pension surplus ond a net pension deficit.

2019 2018

Em ! £m

Quoted equities 25.1 21.0
Quoted bonds 385.9 299.2
Total quoted assets o T 4110 : 320.2
Private equities 1132 1139
Insurance policies™ 208 | 17.9
Hedge funds 12 | 0.8
Property 17.8 ; 17.8
Other*™ 59.6 74.2
Total unquoted ossets 212.6 { 2245
Fuair volue of ossets 623.6 I 544.7
Restriction due to osset ceiling (0.2)
DBQs for funded schemes {589.9) (532.8)

DBOs for unfunded schemes (65.0} (64.0)

Net surplus/(deficit) for DBOs B T B B -7 3|

T

Schemes in net pension deficit {719.2); (80.1)
Schemes in net pension surplus 47.9 27.8

* The values assigned to the insurgnce policies are estoblished by a third party
actuary hoving regard to the liakilities insured and in particular the 1AS 19
discount rate, the expected pension increases and the assumed life expectoncy
of the members covered.

**'Cther’ assets primarily consists of cash, currency swaps and UK commercial
real estate debt.

The oversens assets of £76.3m (2018: £71 2m) comprise equities of £25.1m (2018:
£23.3m), bonds of £24.0m (2018: £25.2m), insurance of £6.9m (2018: £1.4m),
property of £15.8m (2018 £14.6m) and other assets of £4.5m (2018: £6.7m).

Funded: The majority of the Group defined benefit and other post-employment
benefit arrangements are funded, which means they are linked to specific plan
assets that have been segregated in a trust or foundation.

Unfunded: Plans that are not funded are those that are not backed by segregated
assets, These include some pension plans but clso o number of other long-term
arrangerments for the benefit of our employees, with benefits payable while they
are employed by the Group but more than 12 months ofter the related service

is rendered. Actuarial gains and losses on other long-term orrangements are
recognised in the income statement in the peried in which they arise.

Average duration by geogrophy

The following table shows the weighted average number of years (or duration)
over which pension benefits are expected to be paid:

\
|
Location 2019 | 2018
UK 220 ; 215
Switzerlond 17.4 17.4
us 6.5 &5
Eurozone 155 ' 15.5
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The UK and overseas pension funds

The UK Funds

The United Kingdom constitutes 76% (2018: 75%) of total defined benefit
liabilities and 88% (2018: 87%) of total defined benefit assets. Historically the
iMi Pension Fund offered final salary benefits to UK employees until it closed to
new entrants in 2005 and to future accrual on 31 December 2010. In December
2014 winding-up procedures commenced and those members whe were not
eligible or did not take up the offer of a single cash lump sum transferred to one of
two new Funds {IMI 2014 Pensioner Fund or the IM! 2014 Deferred Fund — ‘the UK
Funds’). Ongoing pension benefits in the UK are provided via the Trustee’s defined
contribution plan - The M Retirement Savings Plan. All UK pension assets are

run on behalf of the Trustee by the Board of the IMI Commoen Investment Fund.

The Trustee has determined an investment objective to achieve, over time,
a position of self-sufficiency, defined using o discount rate of gilts + 0.25%.

Asset allocation

The Trustee has, over recent valuations, continued to reduce asset volatility and
sensitivity to UK interest rates, inflation and foreign currencies. In December 2018
£409m of liabilities covered by insurence policies were permanently transferred
£o the insurance compaonies through a formal buy-out transaction. This resulted in
the pension osset and corresponding DBO being removed from the balance sheet.
These activities yielded gains of £2.8m which were classified as adjusting items

in 2018. Following completion of the buy-out transfers, no beneficiaries remain

in the 2014 Pensioner Fund and the fund has been wound-up in 2019.

Liobility management

The Trustee has continued to undertake, where practicable, liaobility monagement
progrommes. During 2018, de-risking activities continued including the conversion
of certain pension benefits to be non-inflation linked, in the UK, which resulted

in net goins of £1.4m which were clagsified as adjusting items. An expense of
£0.4m, arising from the equalisation of the UK defined benefit schemes,

was also recognised in 2018 following the ruling on the test case on

Guaronteed Minimum Pensions.

Contributions

The March 2018 Valuation was compieted in December 2018 and the Funds’
Actuary certified that no deficit funding contributions would be required over and
above the projected investment returns and the scheduled payments, of £7.0m
per annum, due from the Scottish Limited Partnerships until the earlier of fuil
funding of the UK Deferred Fund or 2030,

Overseas pension funds

During 2019, a gain in respect of an accounting adjustment for Swiss disability
benefits was recognised for £4.7m. A goin was recognised in respect of a
restructure of the pension benefits in Switzeriand resuiting in a gain of £2.8m.

A curtailment gain of £0.8m was recognised in relation to a restructuring event in
Switzerland. A settlernent gain of £0.5m was recognised in respact of the buy-out
of retirees in Switzerland, These events led to the special pension events which
are classified as adjusting items {See Note 3).




Specific effect on financial statements

The corresponding entries for increases and decreases in the net pension deficit
reported in the balance sheet are reflected as follows. Other movements includes

The table below reconciles the movement in the UK and overseas net defined
benefit surplus/{obligation} between 1 January 20179 and 31 December 201%.

foreign exchange: UK Overseas Total
i. Cash flow statement: When the Group makes cash contributions to fund the Em £m £m
F!eficit they are reflected in the cash flow stotement and reduce the ret deficit/ Net defined benefit surplus/{obligation)
increase the net surplus. ot 1 Junuary 2019 278 {80.1) (52.3)
i.. Income statement: Movements in the overali net pension deficit are recegnised Movement recognised in:
in the income stotement when they reiate to changes in the overall pension Income statement 0.9 2.5 3.4
promise, due to either an additional period of service (known as ‘current aci 12.2 (12.3) 0.1
service cost), changes te pension terms in the scheme rules (known os ‘post Cash flow statement 7.0 58 13.8
serwcje cost'}, or clo.sure of all or part of a scheme (RHOWﬁ as sett!ement? Flnd Other movements 3.9 3.9
curtailments). The interest charge/income on the net deficit/surplus position - . - - -
ie also recognised in the income statemant Net defined benefit surplus/(obligation)
9 ) at 31 December 2019 479 (79.2) (31.3)
iii. Gther comprehensive income (QCI): Movements in the overafl net pension
deficit are recognised through OCI when they relate to chonges in actuarial
assumpticns or the difference ('experience gain or loss’) between previous
assumptions and actuel results,
Cash flow impacts
2019 ' 2018
UK Overseas Totat UK Overseas Total
£m £m £m | £m f£m £m
I
Amounts from empioyees - 2.1 2.1 - 21 21
Amounts from employers 7.0 2.4 2.4 10.1 23 12.4
Benetits and settlements paid directly by the Group R . . &1 42
Total S 7.0 8.9 159 10.1 g5 18.6
The expected contributions to the DB arrangernents in 2020 are £2.4m of nermal employer contributions and £1.9m of normal employee contributions,
both in relation to overseas pension funds. Additional contributions of £7.0m will be made in the UK in 2020
Other comprehensive income
Movements in pension assets and liabilities that arise during the year from changes in actuarial assumptions, or because actuci experience is different from
the actuarial assumptions, are recognised in equity via other comprehensive income. These movements are enalysed below:
2019 . 08
Overseas Overseas Overseas Overseas
post non-post . post nonR-post
UK employment employment Total * UK  employment employment Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m fm
Change in discount rate (72.8) {12.4) {85.2) ; 43.3 23 - 45.6
Chaonge in inflation 19.3 (3.5) 158 3.0 {0.5) - (3.6)
Change in other assumptions 2.4 0.7 3.1 (6.8) 1.4 - (5.4)
Actuarial experience {1.1) (4.3) 5.4) 19 0.2 - 23
Asset experience .19 70 s (23.1) - (40) - (7.1
Actuarial gains/{losses) in the year 12.2 (12.5) - 0.3) 12.2 {0.4) - 116
Change in the osset ceiling 0.2 0.2 - - . -
Exchcxnge gaiqs/(losses} - 35 o E_Jc____ B 3.9 - (1.9) (0.2} (z2.1)
Guins/(losses) recognised through equity 12.2 (8.8) 0.4 3.8 12.2 (2.5) (0.2) 9.5
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14. Retirement benefits {(continued)

M takes advice from actuaries regarding the appropriateness of the assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligations.
These assumptions include the discount rate applied to the assets and liabilities, the life expectancy of the members, their expected salary and pension increases
and inflation. The assumptions used for this purpose in these financial statements are summarised below:

Weighted Averages
31 Dec 2019 1 31 Dec 2018 i 31 Dec 2017
| i

UK Overseas | UK Overseas UK Overseas
% pa %pa | % pa %po % pa % pa
Inflation - RPI 11 nfa 33 nfa 33 n/a
{nflation - CPI 2.1 14 2.3 14 23 1.3
Discount rate 2.0 0.7 ‘ 2.7 1.5 - 2.4 13
Expected salary increases nfa nfa i n/a 18 n/a 1.4
Rate of pension increases 3.1 0.6 | 3.3 0.6 33 0.5
2019 2018 2017
Years Years Years

Life expectancy at age 65 (UK Funds only) ‘
Current mate pensioners 21.8 ' 213 20.9
Current female pensicners 24.8 | 24.3 2346
Future male pensioners 23.4 230 22.6
Future female pensioners 26.6 26.2 255

The mortality assumptions used for the UK Funds above reflect its scheme specific experience, together with an allowarnce for improvements over time. The experience
was reviewed as part of the farmal triennial actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 March 2018, and the assumptions used as at 31 December 2019 reflect the results
of this review.

The table below illustrates how the UK Funds' net pension surplus would decrease The table below shows how the net pension deficit for IMI's non-UK plans
(excluding the impact of inflation rate and interest rate hedging), as ¢t 31 December  would increase, in the event of the following reasonable changes in the key
2019, in the event of the following reasonable changes in the key assumptions above.  assumptions above.

UK Non-UK

Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £11.0m Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £2.7m
Inflation-linked pensicn increases 0.1% pa higher* £9.0m Salary increases 0.1% higher £0.4m
increase of one year in life expectancy frorn age 65 £21.0m Increase of one year in life expectancy ot cge 65 £4.0m
10% fall in non-bond-like essets '™ £44.4m

In each cose all other assumptions are unchanged.
* Thig is an in-payment pension increase sensitivity.

** Fund assets excluding cash, bonds, insurance policies and the Funds’
interest in the IMi Scottish Limited Partnerships.
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Income statement

In accordance with tAS 19, pensicn costs recorded through the income statement primarily represent the increase in the DBO based on employee service during the
year and the interest on the net liability or surplus for DBOs in respect of employee service in previous years. The table below shows the total cost reported in the income
stotement in respect of pension obligetions and therefore also inciudes the cost of the defined contribution schemes.

2019 2018

Querseas Overseas ' Overseas Qverseas

post non-post post non-post
UK  employ 14 play Total WK employment  employment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Current service cost - 41 1.4 55 - 4.3 08 51
Past service cost/{credit} - (7.5) - (7.5) : 0.4 (1.0) - {0.6)
Settlement/curtailment gain - (1.8) - a8 (4.2) (2.0) - 6.2)
Recognition of (losses)/gains o - ws s, - - 08 0.8
Pension (income)/expense - operating costs - (4.8) 0.9 3.9 (3.8) 1.3 1.6 0.9
Interest an DBO 118 1.7 0.2 13.7 20.4 19 0.2 225
Interest on assets (27 sy C(13.) (20.5) {0.6) - (21.1)
Interest (income)/expense - financing costs 0.9 1.2 0.2 0.5 (0.1) 13 0.2 1.4
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14, Retirement benefits (continued)

Qverall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/(liability) for DBOs

2019 2018
!
Net DB , Net DB
Asset asset/ Asset asset,/
DBO Assets ceiling Chabifity) ' DBO Assets ceiling (hobility)
£m £m £m £m | £m £m £m £m
!
Brought forward at start of year (5968) 5447  (0.2) (52.3), (L0798 1,002.1 ©.2) (77.9)
Income statement (charges)/credits |
Current service cost (5.5) (5.5) ' (5.1) - G.1n
Past service cost - plan amendments 7.5 7.5 0.6 - 0.6
Past service cost - curtailment 0.8 08 . . - -
Settlement 2.1 (1.5) Q.6 4369 (430.7) 6.2
Net interest (cost)/income on net DB (liobility)/asset (13.7) 13.2 (0.5) : (22.5) 21.1 (1.4)
Immediote recognition of gains/(losses) - |
Other long-term benefits o Q.5 o _.FE__{ [(0X:2H] S 0.8}
Tatal charged to income statement (8.3) 11.7 - 3.4 J 409.1 (409.6) - (0.5)
Remeasurements recognised in other |
comprehensive income S B e e
Actuaricl gain due to octuarial experience 5.3 - - (5.3 2.2 2.2
Actuarial (Joss)/gain due to financial i
assumption changes (69.5) - - (69.5) | 461 - 461
Actuarial gain/{loss) due to demographic \
assumption changes 3.1 - - 3.1 1 (7.5) - - (7.5)
Return on plan” assets less than discount rate - 714 714 - (27.1) - 27.1)
Change in effect of asset ceiling - - 0.2 0.2 | ) - - .
Total rer Jrements recc d in other ) .
comprehensive income (71.7) 71.4 0.2 0.1) 388 (27.1) 117
Cash flows in the year ‘
- [ e 4 o
Employer contributions - 9.4 - 9.4 - 12.4 - 12.4
Employee contributions {2.1) 2.1 - - 2.1) 21 - -
|
Benefits and settlements paid directly by the company ib - - H.4 4.1 - - 4.1
Eenefiﬁs pc\d from plan assets 14.4 ) (1450) o - . _38.4 (38.4) - -
Net cosh inflow/outflow 16.7 2.9 - 138 40.4 (23.9) 16.5
T
pt_l_\er_movements o - ‘1 o o
Changes in exchange rates o 52 (1.3) ___31_ (5.3) 32 (2.1
Total ather movements 5.2 (L3 - 39 (5.3 3.2 - 2.1
Carried forward at end of year {654.9) 623.6 - (31.3) (596.8) 5447 (03] {52.3)

*Net of monagerent costs.
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15. Inventories

Accounting policy

Inventories are valued ot the lower of cost and net reqlisable value. Due to the varying nature of the Group's operations, both first in, first out and weighted
averoge methodologies are employed. In respect of work in progress and finished goods, cost includes oil direct costs of production and the appropriate
proportion of production averheads.

Key estimate

The Grougp sells a wide range of highly technical products and whilst they are designed and engineered to @ high degree of precision ond to customer specifications,
there is @ rick of products requiring modification, which can lead to excess or obsolete inventory.

Mgonagement makes estimates based on:
- historical sales trends and management’s view of future sales ferecasts: and
- forecast costs to complete

The degree of dependence on future events mokes the estimate inherently subjective. The amount of the inventory provision
recoghised is disclosed below.

Inventories

2019 } 2018
£m ! £m
Raw materials and consurnobles 95.6 1018
Work in progress 111.2 ¢ 104.6
Finished goods o o ) ) - 7h0 66,3
o o 2808 2725

Inventories are stated after: .
35.4 333

Allowance for impairment

In 2019, the cost of inventories recognised as an expense {being segmental cost of sales) amounted to £1,058.8m (2018: £1,089.4m). The Group's inventory increased
by £7m following the acquisition of PBM and there were trading movements of £15m portly offset by foreign exchonge of £14m.

in 2019, the write-down of inventories to net realisable value omounted to £11.9m (2018: £6.9m). The reversal of write-downs amounted to £2.3m (2018: £3.5m}.
Write-downs and reversals in both years relate to on-going ossessments of inventory obsolescence, excess inventory holding and inventory resale values across all
of the Group's businesses.




16. Trade and other receivables

Accounting policy

The recoverable armount of the Group’s receivables other than financial assets held at fair value is caleulated as the present value of expected future cosh flows,
discounted ot the original effective interest rate inherent in the asset. Receivables with a short duration of less than ane year are not discounted.

Key estimate

The Group selis a wide range of highly technical products and whilst they ore designed and engineered to a high degree of precision and to customer specifications,
thete is a risk of products requiring modification, which can lead to collection risk regarding receivables. Manogement makes estimates based on the identification
of customers and territories for which there is a current heightened coflection rigk or where historical issues have arisen.

The degree of dependence on future events makes the estimate inherently subjective.

Trade and other receivables

Exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables

Carrying amount

zo;: ! mﬁl: 2019 2018
£m | £m
Current UK 147 16.2
Trade recewabies 3255 370.2 Germany 208" 261
Other receivables ' 4.6 i 58.1 Rest of Europe 85.5 | 1095
Prepoyments and accrued income 196 ! 220 USA 2.6 66.0
o e 3T 803 pdaPacific 785 849
Receivables are stated after: | Rest of World 63.4 : 67.5
Allowance for impairment 13.7 13.2 " 3255 370.2
The Group's trade and other receivables decreased by £61m during the year The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting
due to foreign exchange movemeants of £20m and trading movements of £45m date by segment was as follows:
partially offset by £4m for the acquisition of PBM.
LCarrying amount
Credit risk 2019 2018
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if o customer or counterparty Em i
to o financial instrument feils to meet its contractual obligations, and arises IMI Precision 118.9 135.8
principally from the Groug's receivables from customers, cash and cash IMI Criticat 165.1 188.5
equivalents held by the Group’s banks and other financial ossets. At the 1M1 Hydronic 41.5 45.9
end of 2019 these totolled £421.5m (2018 £503.4m). - - - 3255 3702

Managing credit risk arising from customers

The Group's exposure to credit risk ts influenced mainly by the individuat
chargcteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's customer base,
including the defoult risk of the industry ond country in which customers operate,
have less of on infiuence on credit risk. Our largest single customer accounted
for 2% of our 2019 revenues (2018: 2%).

Geographically there is no unusual concentration of credit risk. The Group's
controct approval procedure ensures that large contracts are signed of f at
executive director level at which time the risk profile of the contract, including
potential credit and foreign exchange risks, is reviewed. Credit risk is minimised
through due diligence on potential customers, appropriate credit limits,

cash flow management and the use of documentary credits where appropriate.
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impairment provisions for trade receivables

The cgeing of trade receivables ot the reporting date was:

2019 ! 2018

Gross  Impairment Gross  Impairment

£m £m £m fm

Mot past due 265.0 Q1) 299.9 (0.1)
Past due 1-30 doys 30.4 0.5 3460 (0.5)
Past due 31-9C days 16.9 0.8) 227 9N
Past due ove(f?() days 269 {12.3) 24.8 ) (1:!..7)
Total 339.2 (13.7), 383.4 (13.2)

The net movement in the alowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables
during the year was as follows:

201% 2018
£m - £m
Net balance ot 1 January 13.2 12.5
Acquisitions . 01
Utilised during the year {1.8) (.7
Charged to the income statement 36 2.6
Released (0.8) (0.3)
Exchange (0.5). -
Net balance ot 31 December a7 132

The net impairment charge recognised of £2.8m (2018: chorge of £2.3m)
relates to the movement in the Group's assessment of the risk of non-recovery
from a range of customers across all of its businesses.

Managing credit risk arising from counterparties

A group of relationship barks provides the bulk of the banking services, with
pre-approved credit limits set for each institution. Financial derivatives are
entered into with these core banks and the credit exposure to these instruments
is included when considering the ¢redit exposure to the counterparties. At the end
of 2019 credit exposure inciuding cash deposited did not exceed £13.8m with any
single inststution (2018: £18.9m),

Exposure to credit risk in respect of financial assets

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets is represented by their
carrying value and is analysed below:

Cerrying amount

2019 2018
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 88.2 ! 1322
investments o 36 37
918] 1359
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17. Financial assets and liabilities

Finanaial instruments included in the financial statements are measured at either fair value or amortised cost. The measurement of this fair value can in sorne
coses be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the calculations. The Group generally caleuiates its own fair values using comparable observed market
prices and a valuation model using the respective and relevant market data for the instroment being valued.

The table below sets out the Group's aceounting clossification of each cless of financial assets and liabilities, and their fair values at 31 December 2019 and
31 Decernber 2018. Under IFRS 9, alf derivative finoncial instruments not in a hedge relationship are classified as derivatives at fair value through the income
statement. The Group does not use derivatives for speculative purposes and transacts all derivatives with suitoble investment grade counterparties.

All tronsactions in derivagive finoncial instruments are undertoken to monoge the risks orising from the Group’s business activities,

Fair vaive I
Qther Finoncial ! At Total
Designated dervatives assetsat | amortised carrying Fair value
at fair value  at fair value far value* cost value if different
£fm £fm £m | £fm £m £m
2019
Cash and cash equivalents 88.2 88.2
Bank overdrafts (60.1) (60.1}
Borrowings due within one year (17.6) (17.6)
Borrowings due after one year (357.9) (357.9) (377.3)
Lease liabilities (90.4) (90.4)
Trode ond other payables ** (368.6) (368.8)
Trode receivables 3255 3255
Investments 2.6 1.0 3.6
Other current financial assets/(liabilities)
Derivative assets *** 21 4.1 6.2
Derivative liabifities *++* {1.9) (1.9)
Total 7 721 T 7227 908 (568.1)  (473.0)
2018
Cash and cash equivelents 132.2 132.2
Bank overdrafts (82.6) (82.6)
Borrowings due within one year (78.8) (78.8) (79.8)
Borrowings due after one year {375.3) (375.3) (379.9)
Trade and other poyables ** (396.4) (396.4)
Trade receivables 370.2 370.2
Investrments 29 08 37
Other current financiol assets/(liabilities)
Derwative assets *** 1.0 10
Derivative liabilities **** {0.5) (3.8) (4.1
Total o TTwEn T e 1351 (5623) (4301}

* This clossification inciudes items for which the movernent in fair value will be recegnised in both profit and loss and other comprehensive incorme.

** Trade and other payables exclude corporetion tax and other tax liabilities end include fiabilities of £9.2rm (2018: £5.5m) falling due after more than one year.

*** includes £0.2m (2018; nil) falling due after more than one year.

**** Derivative liobilities include liabilities of £0.2m (2018; £0.4m) falling due ofter more than one year: £0.2m in 1-2 years and nil in 2-3 yeors (2018: £0.4min 1-2
years and nil in 2-3 years). Derivotive habilities designated ot fair value represent the fair volue of net investment hedge derivatives. The increase in volue of net
investrment hedge derivatives in the year of £2.6m is shown in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income (net of tax).

There are no other financial liobilities included within payables disclosed above and leased licbifities are disclosed in Note 13.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the foir value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities.

Level Z: other techniques for which all mputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on cbservable market data.
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The following table shows the Group's financial instruments held at foir value,

Quoted prices in

active markets Significant
for identical ather
assets and observable  Unobservable
habilities inputs inputs
Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
fm fm £m £m
As at 31 December 2019
Financial assets measured at foir value
Equity instruments™ 3.6 - 3.6
Cash ang cash equivalents 88.2 88.2
Foreign currency forward contracts ) 6.2 4.2
a 918 S Y
Financiol liobHities measured at fair volue
Foreign currency forward controcts [¢R)) (1.9}
7 T T e w9 - a9
As at 31 December 2018
Financial essets measured at foir value
Equity instryments” 2.9 - 29
Cash and cash equivalents 1322 13272
Foreign currency forward contracts 1.0 1.0
' S T B T T 1.0 - 1361
Financial hebilities meosured at foir value
Foreign currency forward contracts [(AD)] (4.0)
e B o (4.0) )

* Equity instrurnents prirmarily relate to investments in funds in arder to satisfy long-term benefit arrangements.

Valuation techniques for level 2 inputs

Derivative assets and habilities of £6.2m and £1.9m respectively gre valued by level 2 techrigues. The vaiuations are derived from disceunted contractual cash flows
using observable, and directly relevant, market interest rotes and foreign exchange rates from market dota providers.

Valuation techniques for level 3 inputs

At 31 Decemnber 2019, the Group held one external investment ot fair value using significant unobservable (level 3) inputs. The valuation is derived using the cash
fiows of the investment which indicate a fair value of nil.

Valuation methodology

Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, trade poyables ond trade receivabies are corried at their book values as this approximates to their fair value due to the
short-term nature of the instruments.

Long-term and short-term borrowings, aopart from any which are subject to hedging arrangements, are carried ot amortised cost as it is the intention that they wili not
be repaid prior to maturity, where this option exists. The fair values are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rotes and relevant credit spreads.

Long-term borrowings which are subject to hedging arrangements are valued using appropricte discount rates to value the relevant hedged cash flows.

Derivative assets and liabilities, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and metal hedges, are valued using comparsble observed market
prices ond a valuation medel using fereign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rote curves and forward rate curves for the underlying commaodities.



18. Financial risk management

Overview

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate, foreign
exchange and base metal price movements in addition to funding and fiquidity
risks. The financiol instruments used to manage these risks themselves introduce
exposure to rmarket risk ond liquidity risk.

The Boord has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk manogement framework. As described in the Corporate Governance
Report on page &6 the Executive Committee monitors risk and internal controls
and the Audit Committee moniters financial risk, while the other Board
committees also pioy a part in contributing to the oversight of nsk.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Group's financial risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framewark in relation to the financial risks
faced by the Group. The Group Assurance department undertakes both regular
and ad-hec reviews of risk monagement controls end procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The following sections discuss the management of specific financial risk factors in
detail, including market risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, commodity
risk and liquidity risk. The monagement of credit risk is disclosed in Note 16,

Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that charges in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rotes and commodity prices will affect the Group's income and
cash flows or the value of its financial instruments. The cbjective of market risk
management is to manage and controf market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters.

Under the management of the central Treasury function, the Group enters into
derivatives in the ordinary course of business ond also manages financial Hobilities
in arder to mitigote market risks. All such transactions are carried out within

the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken anly if they relate to
underlying exposures.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consalidated acceunts in sterling but cenducts much of it
global bustness in other currencies. As a result it is subject to the risks ossociated
with foreign exchange movements affecting transaction costs ("transactional
risk'), tronsiation of foreign profits (‘profit transiation risk”) and translation of
the underlying net ossets of foreign operations ('asset tronslation risk’).
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Management of transactional risk

The Group's wide geographical spread both in terms of cost base and customer
locations helps to reduce the impact on profitability of swings in exchonge
rates as well as creating opportunities for central netting of exposures. itis the
Group's policy to minimise risk to exchange rate movements affecting sales and
purchases by economically hedging or netting currency exposures at the time of
commitment, or when there is a high probability of future commitment, using
currency instruments (primarily forword exchange contracts). A proportion of
forecast exposures are hedged depending on the level of confidence and hedging
is periadicolly adjusted following regular reviews. On this basis over 50% of the
Group's annual exposures to transactional risk are likely to be hedged at any
point in time and the Group's net transactional exposure to different currencies
varies from time to time.

Management of profit translation risk

The Group is exposed to the translation of profits denominated in foreign
currencies into the sterling-based income statement. The interest cost related
to the currency liabilities hedging the asset hase provides a partial hedge to this
exposure. Short-term currency option contracts may be used teo provide limited
protection against sterling strength on an opportunistic basis. The translation
of US dollar and euro-based profits represent the most significant transiation
exposures for the Group.

Management of asset translation risk

The Group hedges its net investments in its majer overseas operations by way
of external currency loans and forward currency contracts. The intention is to
manage the Group's exposure to gains and losses in Group equity resulting
from retranslation of currency net assets at balance sheet dates.

To the extent that an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation is determined to be an effective hedge, the gain or loss arising is
recognised directly in the translation reserves. Any ineffective portionis
recognised immediately in the income statement.



Currency profile of assets and liabilities

Assets

subject
Lease Exchange tointerest Other Total Total
Cash* Debt Liabilities contracts rate risk net ossets netassets . netassets
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m | Em
Sterling 0] - 5 340 31 56 377 515
Us dollar 1 (180) (16) - (195) 397 202 5¢
Euro 11 (196) (35) (161) (381) 477 96 B84
Other 20 - (24) {179 {183) 218 35 4
Total T 28 _“_"._-(?76)- e -(90-) - 77'7'77”7{‘58) 1,148 710 | 664

* Cash is stated net of overdrafts.

** Other net assets mcludes leased assets; £14m sterling, £16m US dollar, £35m Eure and £25m other.

Exchange contracts and non-sterling debt are financial instruments used as currency hedges of overseas net assets.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to o number of giobal interest rates through assets and liabilities denominated in jurisdictions to which these rates are applied, most notably US,
Eurozone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these becouse market movements i these rates will increase or decrease the interest charge recognised in the Graup

income statement.

Monagement of interest rate risk

The Group adopts o policy of maintaining @ portion of its kabilities at fixed interest rates and reviewing the balance of the floating rate exposure to ensure that if
interest rates rise globally the effect on the Greup's income statement is manageakle.

Interest rates are managed using fixed and floating rate debt and finanaial instruments including interest rate swaps. Floating rate liabilities comprise short-term debt
which bears interest ot short-term bank rates and the liability side of exchange contracts where the interest element is based primarily on three month inter-bank rates.

All cash surpluses are invested for short periods and are treated as floating rate investments.

Neon-interest bearing financiai assets and labilities including short-term trade receivabies and payobles have been excluded from the following analysis.
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18. Financial risk management {continued)

Interest rate risk profile

The following table shows how much of our cash, interest-bearing liabilities and exchange cantracts attroct both fixed and floating rate interest charges,

and how this is analysed between currencies:

Assets Weighted

Debt ond Cosh and subject Weighted average

exchonge exchange to interest Floating Fixed average period

controcts* contracts rate risk* rate rate fixed for which

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 interestrate rateis fixed

£m £m £m £m £m % years
Sterting (15) 335 320 335 (15)

US dollar {196} 1 (195) {16) {179 4.1 6.4

Euro {392) (381) (150) (231) 1.4 6.3
Other (202) (158) (24)
Total ST B (305}_ ! {44%)

" Net of IFRS 16; £15m sterling, £16m US dollar, £35m Euro and £24m other.

Assets Woeighted

Dabt and Cash and subject Weighted average

exchange exchange tointerest Floating Fixed averoge period

controcts contracts rote risk rate rate fixed far which

2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 interestrate  rateis fixed

£m £m £m £m £m Yo years
Sterling - 526 526 526 -

Us dollar (2593 - (25%9) 12 (248) 52 5.2

Evro (423} 11 (434) (226) (207) 1.4 7.3
Cther (258) 20 (238) (238) -
Totol o - (940 535 405) 50 (455)

Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

In estimating the sensitivity of the financial instruments cil other variables are held constant to determine the impact on profit before tax and equity. The analysis is for

illustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarely change in iselation.

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the imgact on financial instruments only. Actual results in the future may differ matericlly from these estimates.
As such this table should not be considered as o projection of likely future gains and losses in these financial instruments.

Financial derivatives sensitivity table

The outputs from the sensitivity cnalysis ore estimates of the impact of market risk assuming that the specified changes occur enly to the financial derivatives
and do not reflect the opposite movement from the impact of the specific change on the underlying business that they are designed to hedge.

1% 1% 18% 10%
decrease increase 10% 10% decrease in increase in
ininterest ininterest weokening strengthening bose metol base metal
rates rates in sterling n sterhing costs costs
£m £m £Em fm fm £m
At 31 December 2019
Impact on income statement: (loss)/gain - - (5.4) 5.4 (0.4) G4
Impact on equity: {less)/gain B - - 678 678 - -
At 31 December 2018
Impact on income statement: (loss)/gain - - (7.1) 71 (0.4) 0.4
Irmpact on equity: (loss)/gain - - (92.5) 92.5 - -
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Commedity risk

The Group's operating companies purchase metal and metal components and
are therefore exposed to changes in commadity prices,

The Group manages this exposure through a centralised process hedging copper,
zinc and aluminium using a combination of financial contracts and focal supply
agreements designed to minimise the volatility of short-term margins.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

Management of liquidity risk

The Groug's spproach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will alwoys have odequate resources to meet its liabilities when they fall due,
with sufficient heodroom to cope with abnermal market conditions. This position
1s reviewed on a quarterly basis.

Funding for the Group is co-ordinated centrally by the treasury function and
comprises cornmitted bilateral facilities with a core group of banks, and o series
of US lean note 5sues. The level of facilities s maintained such that focilities and
term loans exceed the forecast peak gross debt of the Group over a roliing 12
month view by an oppropriate amount taking into account market conditions
and corporate activity, inciuding acquisitions, organic growth plans and share
buybacks. in addition, we undertake regular covenant compliance reviews to
ensure that we remain fully within those covenant limits, At the end of 2019
the Group had undrawn committed facilities totalling £283m (2018: £300m)
and was holding cash and cash equivalents of £88m (2018: £132m). There are
no significant seasonal funding requirements or capital intensive investment
areas for the Group.

Capital management

Overview

Capital manggement concerns the decision as to how the Group's activities are
financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by borrowings
(or debt} and how much of it is financed with equity raised from the issve of

share capitai.

The Board's policy is to maintain a balance sheet with g broad capital base and the
strength to sustaim the future development of the business including acquisitions.

The capital base of the Group includes totol equity and reserves and net debt.
Employee benefit obligations net of deferred tax form part of the extended
capital base. Monagement of this element of the capitai base is discussed further
in Note 14 of the finonciol statements. Undrawn commatted funding facilities

are maintained os described in Note 19 to provide additional capital for growth
(including acquisitions and organic investrents) and liguidity requirements as
discussed above.

Capital base

2019 2018

£m £m

Total equity 710 466
Gross debt sncluding overdrafts 526 537
Gross cosh o , S es 43y
Capital base 1,148 | 1,071
Employee benefits and deferred tax assets 70! 45
Extended capital base To1218) 1116
Undrawn funding facilities 283 | 300
Avallable capitalbase 1,501 1416

Part of the capital base is held in currencies to broadly match the currency base
of the assets being funded as described in the asset translation risk section.

Debt or equity

The balonce between debt and equity in the capital base of the Groupis
considerad regularly by the Board in light of market conditions, business forecasts,
growth opportunities and the ratio of net debt to continuing adjusted EBITDA.
Funding covenants currently limit net debt to a maximum of 3.0 times EBITDA.
The net debt to EBITDA ratio at the end of 2019 was 1.2 times (2018: 1.3 times).
Through the life of our five year plan, the Board would consider appropriate
acquisitions that could take ret debt up to 2.5 times EBITDA on acquisition,
provided that a clear plan exists to reduce this ratio back to under 2.0 times.

it is expected that at these levels our debt would continue to be perceived as
investment grade. The potentic! benefits to equity shareholders of greater
leverage are offset by higher risk and the cost and availability of funding.

The Board will consider raising additional equity in the event thatit is

required to support the copital base of the Group.

Weighted averoge cost of capital

The $Group currently uses o post-tax weighted average cost of capital {'WACC")
of 7% (2018: 7%) as a benchmark for investment returns. This is reviewed
regularly in the light of changes in market rates. The Board tracks the Group's
return on invested capital and seeks to ensure that it consistently delivers returns
in excess of the WACC.
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19. Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key megsure used to evaluate total outstanding debt, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group's borrowings {and cash) ore held n
foreign currencies. Movernents in foreign exchonge rates affect the sterling value of the net debt. Cash ond cash equivalents comprise cash balonces and call deposits.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
far the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Movement in net debt

2019 2018

£m £m
|

Adjusted EBITDA* from continving operations 357.3 ¢ 3201
Working capital movernents 129 | (50.3)
Capitel and development expenditure (65.8): {58.4)
Provisions and employee benefit movements** 4.5 ; 23
Principal elements of lease payments (31.3)! -
Other _ _ L o ) 3 S o S 19.2 ) 7.8
Adjusted operating cash flow *** 298.8 2215
Adjusting items**** ) ) ) (26.2) B9
Operating cash fiow 2726 212.6
Interest (14.9) {12.9)
Derivatives 16.1 . (18.4)
Tax paid 7 7 o o N - i - (40.2) (61.1)
Cash generation 2336 140.2
Additionel pension scheme funding } 3 o .0 (100
Free cash flow before corporate activity 226.6 1301
Dividends paid to equity shareholders {110.8) {107.9)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (6%.0) {122.6)
Net purchase of own shares B o o __(3#) o (5.3)
Net cash flow (excluding debt movements) 43.4 ' {105.7)

* Adjusted profit after tax (£198.1m) before interest (£15.4m), tax (£52.6m), depreciation (E76.2m) and emeortisation (£15.0m).

** Movemnent in provisions and employee benefits as per the statement of cosh fiows (£29.2m) adjusted for the movement in the restructuring and discontinued
operation provisions (£22.7m).

*** Adjusted operating cosh flow is the cosh generated from the operations shown in the statement of cash flows less cash spent acquiring property, plont and
equipment, non-acquired intangible assets and investments; pius cash received from the sale of property, piont and equipment and the sale of investments,
excluding the cash impact of adjusting items. This measure best reflects the operating cash flows of the Group.

**** Cash impact of adjusting items.

Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net borrowings

2019 l 2018

£m l £m
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents excluding foreign exchange (19.5) . (19.7)
Net repayment/(drawdown) of borrowings excluding foreign exchange and net debt disposed/acguired 629 (846.0)
Decrease/(increase} in net debt before acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchonge 434 (105.7)
Net cosh/{debt) acquired 1.0 | (15.0)
Currency translation differences 12.7 (18.6)
Moverment in lease creditors o o ) o ) i (90.#)! -
Movement in net borrowings in the year (33.3) {139.3)
Net borrowings at the start of the yeor (1;045)4 (265:2)
Net borrowings ¢t the end of the year (432.8): {404.5)
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Reconciliation of ¢cash and cash equivaients

me

2018
£m Em
Cash and cash equivalents in current assets 882 1322
Bank overdraft in current liobilities (60.1) (82.6)
. - . — - — — - [, obbape 2
Cash and cash equivalents 28.1 : 49.4
Anaiysis of net debt
Borrowings and
finance laases due
Cash and cash within after more Lease Total
equivalents one year thancne year Creditors net debt
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Jenuary 2019 49.6 (78.8) (375.3) - (404.5)
Opening lease Ligbilities per IFRS 16 - - - (100.4) (100.4)
Leose additions, extensions, terminations and payment chonges - - - (20.4) (20.6)
Lease payments and interest - - - 31.3 313
Cash flow excluding settlement of currency derivatives hedging belance sheet
and net cash disposed of /acquired (40.1) 58.6 5.3 - 23.8
Cash acquired 10 - - - 1.0
Settlement of currency derivatives hedging balance sheet 19.6 - - - 19.6
Currency translation differences N 77(2.9277 ) 777””27.67””" B 121 (0.7) 12.Q
At 31 December 20179 28.1 (17.8) {(357.9) (90.4) {437.8)
Borrowings and
finance leases due
Cash and cash within after more Total
equivalents one year than one yeor net debt
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2018 67.6 (113.8) (219.0) (265.2)
Cash flow excluding settlement of currency derivatives hedging balance sheet
and net cash disposed of /facquired (3.4) 36.6 (121.8) (88.6)
Net debt acquired 0.8 - {15.8) (15.0)
Settlement of currency derivatives hedging balance sheet (17.1) - - 17.1)
Currency tronslation differences o T A ¢ %) B €+ ) (18.6)
At 31 December 2018 49.6 (78.8) (375.3) (404.5)
Undrawn committed facilities
The Group has various undrown committed borrewing facilities. The facilities available at 31 December in respect of which all conditions precedent had been
met were as follows:
|
2019 | 2018
£m ! £m
Expiring within one year 75.0 | 5c.0
Expiring between one and two years 57.6 1250
Expiring after more than two years ) N 1500 125.0
282.6 300.0

The weighted average life of these facilities 1s 1.6 years (2018: 1.8 yeors).
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19. Net debt (continued)

Terms and debt repayment schedule

The terms and conditions of cash and cash equivalents and outstanding loans were as foliows:

Effective Carrying  Contractual Oto lto 2ta 3to 410 S years
interest rate value cash flows <1 year <2 years <3years <4 years <5 years and over
% fm £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
2019
Cash ond cash equivalents Floating 88.2 88.2 88,2
Revolving bank facilities Floating {17.6) (17.6) €17.6)
US loan notes 2022 7.17% {11.4) (13.8) (0.8) (0.8) (12.2}
US loan notes 2025 1.39% (127.1) {134.7) (1.8) (1.8) {1.8) (1.8) (1.8) (127.7)
U5 loan notes 2026 3.86% (94.7) {118.1) (3.7} (3.7 (3.7) 3.7 (3.7 (99.6)
US ioon notes 2027 3.92% (56.8) (73.0) (2.2) (2.2) 2.2) @2 (2.2) (62.0)
US logn notes 2028 1.53% 67.9) (76.2) (1.0) (1.0} (1.0 (1.0} (1.0) (71.2)
Baonk overdrafts Floating {60.1) (60.1) (60.1)
Lease liabilities floating ~ Vaorious 90.4) (90.4) {35.3) (13.73 (10.93 (7.9} (6.1} (16.5)
Total e Tty e (36.3) (23.2)  (31.8)  (16.6) (14.8) 377.0)
2018
Cash and cash equivalents Fleating 132.2 1322 1322
US loan notes 20192 7.61% (78.4) {84.1) (84.1)
US loan notes 2022 717% (117 {15.1) (0.8) (0.8} (0.8) {12.6)
US loan notes 2025 1.39% (135.1) {147.3) (1.9} (1.9) (1.9 (1.9) (1.9 (138.0)
US loan notes 2026 3.86% (97.7) (125.9) (3.8 (3.8) (3.8) (3.8 (3.8} (107.1)
US lean notes 2027 3.92% {58.6) (78.1) 23 (2.3) (2.3) 2.3 2.3 (66.6)
US loan notes 2G28 1.53% (72.1) (82.5) (1.1} (1.1) (1.1) {1.1) (1.1) (77.0)
Finance leases Varioys (0.3) (0.4) (0.2) (0.2)
Bank overdrafts Floating (B2.6) (82.5) (82.58)
Total - (404.5) 483.8)  (448) | (10.1) (9.9) 217 9.1y (388N

Contractual cash flows include undiscounted committed interest cash flows and, where the amount payable is not fixed, the omount disclosed is determined by

reference to the conditions existing ot the reporting date,

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group borrows maney from financial mstitutions in the form of bonds ond other financial instruments. These generally have fixed interest rates and are for a fixed
term or are drawn from committed borrowing facilities that generally have floating interest rotes. For more information obout the Group's exposure to interest rate and

foreign currency risk, see Note 18.

2019 2018
£m £m
T
Current liabilities |
Unsecured loon notes and other loans 17.6 - 78.6
Lease liabilities - N 238 02
o 432 788
Non-current liabiltties
Unsecured loan notes and other loans 357.9 3752
Lease liabilities 64,8 01

427 375.3
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20. Provisions

Accounting policy

A provision is recorded insteod of o payable when uncertointy exists over the timing and amount of the cash outflow. Provisions are recognised when: the Group
has a present lega! or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are valued ot management's best estimate of the amount required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detoiled and formai restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either commenced
or has been announced publicly.

The recognition of a provision requires estimation. The principal estimates made in respect of the Group's provisions concern the timing and amount of payments
required to:

- cover the costs of known restructuring projects;

- reimburse customers for potential product warranty claims;

- ensure that current and former manufacturing sites meet relevant environmental standards;

- reflect the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes; and

- provide against indemnities following the disposal of subsidiaries.

Analysis of the Group's provisions:

Environmental,
Trode legal &
Restructuring warrgnties indemnity Total
£m £m £m £m
Current 4.3 5.0 3.2 125
Non-current 0.4 71 7.1 14.6
At 1 Jonuary 2019 4.7 12.1 103 271
Arising/(released) during the yeor 51.3 6.1 {3.3) 54.1
Utilised during the yeor (25.6) (1.5) - 27.1)
Exchange adjustment ) (1._@)_ L {0.3) . (1.3}
At 31 December 2019 S ' 29.4 16.4 g
Current 29.2 10.2
Non-current 0.2 6.2
T o ’ e 29.4 16.4

The Group sells a wide range of highly technical products and whilst they are designed and engineered to o high degree of precision and to customer specifications,
there is a risk of products requiring modification, which can lead to warranty claims. Trade warranties are given in the normal course of business and cover a range
of periods, typically one to two years, with the expected amounts falling due in less than and greater than one year separately analysed above

Key estimote

Management makes estimates based on past experience of warranty ciaims and the associoted costs of similar claims. Amounts set aside represent the directors’
best estimate regarding the amount of the settlements and the timing of resolution with customers. The degree of dependence on future events makes these
estimates inherently subjective.

The restructuring provision reflects residual amounts committed but not spent in relation to a number of specific projects.

Environmental and fegal provisions recognise the Group'’s cbligation to remedicte contaminoted fand at a number of current and former sites, together with current
legal cases for which a settlement is considered probable. Because of the long-term nature of the liabilities, the timescales are uncertain and the provisions represent
the directors' best estimates of these costs.

Prawisions for indemnities included in the agreed terms of disposals of subsidiaries are provided for based on the expected probkability of indemnified losses that may
be suffered by the purchaser.
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21. Trade and other payables

2019 2018

£m £m
Current
Trode payobles 182.3 198.4
Social security and other taxation 28.9 28.4
Other payables 6.2 8.2
Accruals and deferred income 142.0 155.9
- ’ ] . - - - © 3594 3909
Non-current
Other payables o o o , L 520 5.5
368.6 396.4

The Group's trade and other payables decreased by £28m due to an increase of £3m following the acqussition of PBM more than offset by foreign exchonge
movements of £14rm and trading rmovements of £17m.

ncluded within accruals and deferred income are progress billings and advanced payments from customers of £62.6m (2018: £47.3m).
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22. Share capital

The movement in the number of ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each issued by iMI ple is as follows:

Number and value of shares

2019 7 2018
Ordinary . Qrdinary
Shares ' Shares
28 4/7p per 284/7p per
share share

Number (m} Value (Em) Number(m) Value {fm}

In issue at the start of the yeor 2856.3 818 ‘ 2862 818
Issued to sct[sfy employee share scheme; o o B ~ 0.1 - 01 -
Inissue at the end of the year 286.4 BL8 286.3 818

All issued share capitol ot 31 December 2019 is fully poid ond conveys the same rights.

Share movements in the year

Movements in shares due to share issues ond purchases during the year were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each {million)

Employee
Benefit Trust Treasury Other Total
Inissue at 31 December 2018 14 143 2706 2B4.3
New issues to satisfy employee share scheme awards - - 0.1 0.1
Market purchases 0.5 - (0.5) -
Shares allocated under employee share schemes {0.8) - 0.8 -
At 31 December 2019 ) o 11 143 2710 1864

During the year 0.1m (2018: 0.1m) shares were issued under employee share schemes realising £0.8m (2018: £0.6m).

Employee Benefit Trust

The Employee Benefit Trust made market purchases of o total of 0.5m (2018: 0.6m) shares with an aggregate market value of £5.0m (2018: £7.0m) and a nominal
value of £0.1m (2018: £0.2m). Associated tronsaction costs amounted to £nil (2018: £nil).

Share options exercised in 2019 were settled using the shares in the Group's Employee Benefit Trust, In 2019, 0.8m (2018: 0.2m) shares were issued for cash
of £0.8m (2018: £1.0m).

Of the 15.4m (2018: 15.7m) shares held within retained earnings, 1.1m (2018: 1.4m) shares with an aggregate market vaiue of £12.7m (2018: £10.4m) are held
in trust to satisfy employee share scheme vesting.
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23. Acquisitions

Key estimate

In accounting for business combinations, the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired have to be measured at their fair values.
In particular, an estimate has been made of the forecast future sates under
pre-existing commerciol refationships which have been discounted ot an
appropriate discount rate to value the commercial relationships and

brand intangibles.

On 20 September 2019 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital, and
associated voting rights, of PBM Inc. (PBM} for cash consideration of £6% 0.
PBM is a market leading manufacturer of ball valves and flow control solutions
based in Morth America,

This acquisition has been accounted for 0s a business combination. The provisional
fair value amounts recognised in respect of the identified assets acquired and
lighilities assumed are set cut in the table below:

Fair value ot

20 September 2019

£m

Intengible assets 29.0
Property, plant and equspment 5.2
inventeries 7.1
Trade ond other receivables 3.8
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0

Trade and other payables 2.9
Total identified net assets at fair value T T T 432
Goodwilt afising on oéqm isition T 25.8
Purchase consideration transferred 69.0

The goodwill recogrised above includes certoin intangible assets thot cannot

be separately identified and measured due to their nature. This includes control
over the acquired business, the skills ond experience of the assembled workforce,
the increase in scale, synergies and the future growth opportunities that the
businesses provide to the Group's operations. The goodwill and all intangible
assets recognised are amortisable for tox purposes. Acquisition costs of £0.5m
were recognised in the income statement in 2019.
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The adjusted revenue and adjusted operating profit included in the income
statement for 2019 contributed by PBM were £7.5m and £1.1m respectively.
If the acquisition had taken piace on 1 Januvary 2019 PBM would have
contributed revenue and operating profit of £26.1m and £4.1m respectively.

Acquisitions in 2018

In danuary 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital, and associated
voting rights of Bimba Manufecturing Company (Bimba) and its subsidiaries
for cash consideration of £138.4m. Bimba is a market leading manufacturer
of pneumatic, hydraulic and electric moticn solutions based in North America.

This acquisition has been accounted for as a business combination. The finalised
fair value emounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets ocquired and
liabilities assumed are as set outin the table below.

Fair value at
31 january 2018

£m
intongible assets 57.6
Property, plant and equipment 18.8
Inventories 243
Trade and other receivables 93
Cash and cash equivalents 08
Trade and other payables (10.1)
Provistons (1.4)
Totat identifiable net assets 99.3
Goodwill arising on acquisition =R Y
Total purchase consideration 138.4

The goodwill recognised above includes certain intangible assets that cannot

be separately identified and measured due to their nature. This includes contrel
over the acquired business, the skills and experience of the assembled workforce,
the increase in scale, synergies and the future growth epportunities that the
businesses provide to the Group's operations. The goodwill and all intangible
assets recognised are amortisable for tax purposes.



24. Disposals

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2019 or 2018.

25. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is o liability that is not sufficiently certasn to qualify for
recognition as a provisien because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome.

Group contingent hiobilities relating to guarantees in the normal course of
business and other items aomounted 1o £125m (2018: £132m).

26. Related party
transactions

Related parties are solely the key management personnel. The Board 1s considered

to be the key monagement personnel of the Group.

27. Subsequent events

Events thot occur in the period between 31 December and the date of
appraval of the Annuai Report can be cotegorised as adjusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December. if the event is an
adjusting event, then an adjustment to the results is made. if @ non-adjusting
event ofter the year end is material, non-disclosure couid influence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, far each material

2019
£m
Short-term employee benefits * 33 I
Share-based payments ** 0.5
Total 3.8,

* Shart-term employee benefits comprise salary, including employers' social
contributions, benefits earned during the year and bonuses awarded for
the year.

** For details of the share-based payrment charge for key management personnel,

see Note 6.

There are no other related party transactions.

non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financiat effect, or a statement that such an
estimgte cannot be made.

There were no adjusting subseguent events after the balance sheet dote of 31
December 2019.

28. Discontinued
operations

Accounting policy

When the Group has assets and liabilities that hove been sold in the year
or are likely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these
assets and liabilities are included in current assets and liobilities ond
denoted ‘held for scle’ rather than in their usual cotegories.

If they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are

also treated as discontinued operations. This meons that their trading
performance, i.e. their revenues, costs and other items of income and expense,
are no longer reported within the headline figures in the income staternent
and are instead reported in a separate line, net of tax, colled 'discontinued
operations’. These amounts no longer form part of continuving earnings per
share. Comparative figures are restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the income statement for the current and prior year to be
presented on o consistent basis and te convey o more forward-locking
version of the results for the yvear.

A gain of £2.8m, pre and post tax, was recognised in the current year relating
to the release of an indemnity provision for a historical discontinued operation.
There was no cash impact of this,

There was no profit or loss fram discontinued operatiens in 2018.
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2019
2019 2018

Note £m £m
Fixed assets .
Investrments - ) - B 132 1732
Current assets
Debtors Cé 398.8 418.1
Deferred tox ussets cr 2.7 2.2
Coshatbonkondinhand o2 03
o B o o B . 4044 4206
Creditors: amounts faliing due within one year
Other creditors cs _54_0)_ L a3
Net current assets o o e 400.4 416.3
Total assets less current liabilities ) B B - . 573.6 589.5
Net assets 5736 589.5
Capital and reserves I
Called up share capital ce 818 81.8
Share prermium account 141 133
Capita! redernption reserve 174.4 . 174.4
P_rofit and loss account B 7777”3793.3”7 3200
Equity shareholders' funds 573.6 - 589.5

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2020 and signed on its behaif by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2019

Share Share  Redemnption Retained Parent
capitol premum reserve e0rnINgs equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2018 818 127 174.4 189.4 458.3
Retained profit for the year 2375 237.5
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (107.9) {107.9}
Shores issued in the year - 0.6 Q.6
Share-based payments 70 70
Shares acquired for;
ermployee shore scheme trust (6.0) (6.0}
At 31 December 2018 - ) 818 133 1744 3200 5895
Retained profit for the year 89.5 89.5
Dividends paid on ordinary shares” {110.8) {110.8)
Shares issued in the year 0.8 0.8
Share-based payments 88 8.8
Shares acquired for*:
employee share scheme trust ) o Y] - {eD)
At 31 December 2019 T 14.1 174.4 303.3 573.6

* Details of treasury and emplayee trust share scheme movements are contcined in Note 22 of the Group financial statements and details of dividends paid and

proposed in the year ore shown in Note Cé4.

All of the retained earnings held at both 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are considered to be distributable reserves,



Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
itemns considered material in relation to the financial statements, except where
otherwise noted below:

Basis of accounting
The financial staterments were prepared in accordance with Finoncial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' ('FRS 101°).

The Company has not presented o seporate profit and loss account as permitted
by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Compony has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under

FRS 101

a) the requirements of paragraphs 45 (b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 'Share-based
Payment’;

b) the requirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments’;

¢) the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of iIFRS 13 ‘Fair Volue Messurement’;

d) the requirement in paragraph 38 of 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial
Stoterments’ to present comparative information in respect of paragraph 7%9{a)
(iviof IAS 1;

e) the requirements of paragraghs 10(d), 10(f) and 134-134 of IAS 1;
f) the requirements of IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows";

g) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’;

h) the requirements of paragroph 17 of IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'; and

=

the requirements in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ to disclose related
party tronsactions entered into between two or more members of the Group,
provided that any subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly
owned by such a member. Reloted party transactions with the Company's key
management personnel are disclosed in the Remuneraticn Report on poges 78
to 93 and in Note 24 on page 147 of the Group financial statements.

Judgerments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions thot affect the amounts reported for
assets ond lickilities as ot the bolance sheet date ond the amounts reported for
incorme and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means
that actusl cutcomes could differ frem those estimates.

Foreign currencies

The Company's functionat currency and presentation currency is sterling.
Transactions in forelgn currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of transaction.

Manetary assets and ligbilities denominated in foreign currencies have been
transiated into sterling ot the rotes of exchange ruling ot the balance sheet date
and the gains or losses on translotion are included in the profit and loss account.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less any provision for
impairment. The Company's cost of investments in subsidiary undertakings is
stated at the aggregate of (a) the cash consideration and either (b) the neminal
value of the shares issued as consideration when Section 612 of the Companies
Act 2006 applies or {¢) in ali other cases the market value of the Company’s shares
on the dote they were issued as consideration.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account
taxation deferred because of temporary differences between the treatment of
certaén items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tox is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which have
arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by
IAS 12 'Income Taxes" Deferred tax 1s measured ot the tax rates that ore expected
to apply when the temporary differences reverse, based on the tox lows that have
been enacted or substontively enocted by the balunce sheet date. A deferred tax
asset is recognised to the extent thet it is probable that future taxable profit will
be avoilable against which the temporary difference con be utilised.

Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Company operates a number of equity and equity-related compensation
benefits s set out in Note 6 to the Group financial statements. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recharged in full to the principal employing company and accerdingly, there is
no net charge recorded in the Company's financial statements. The recharged
amount is recognised as a debtor falling due for payment within one yegr.

The total smourt rechorged over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options gronted, excluding the impact of any nen-market
vesting cenditions (for example, profitability and soles growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. The fair value of the options
ot the date of grent is determined based on the Mente Carlo and Bluck-Scholes
option-pricing model.

At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the number
of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the amount recharged to subsidiary undertakings.

For newly issued shares, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal vaiue) and share premium
when the optiens are exercised.

Treasury shores

The consideration paid by the Company on the acquisition of treasury shares

is charged directiy to retained earnings in the year of purchase. Consideration
received for the sale of such shares is alsc recognised in equity, with any difference
between the proceeds from sale and the original cost taken to share premium.

if treosury shores are subsequently cancelled the nominal value of the cancelled
shares is transferred from share capital to the capital redemption reserve. No gain
or loss is recognised on the purchase, sale or cancellation of treasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date cre only recognised as a liability

ot that date to the extent that they are autherised and are no longer at the
discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

C2. Remuneration of directors

The detailed information concerning directors’ emoluments, shareholdings ond
options are shown in the audited section of the Remuneration Report on pages 78
to 93, Note 5 and Note 22 of the Group financial stotements.

C3. Staff numbers and costs

The number of people employed by the Company, including directors, during the
year was 19 (2018: 26) ail of whom were employed in administrative roles. The
costs associated with them were borne by a subsidiary undertaking.

The Compony participates in the IMI UK Funds, which are defined benefit schemes
in which the assets are held independently. The total net defined benefit costs of
these Funds are borne by a subsidiary undertaking ond therefore in accerdance
with |AS 19, no net defined benefit costs are recognised in the Company's
financial statements. Note 14 to the Group financial stotements provides

further details regarding the defined benefit schemes.

170 IMl plc Annual Report & Accounts 2019



Cé4. Dividends

The oggregate amount of dividends comprises:

2019

2018

£m £m

Prior year final dividend paid - 26.0p per qualifying ordinary share (2018: 25.2p} 704 683
Current year interim dividend paid - 14.9p per qualifying ordinary share (2018: 14.6p) . ) ) ) ) 404 - 3%6
Aggregote amount of dividends paid in the financial year 1108 ' 107.9

Dividends paid in the year of £110.8m represent 40.9p per share (2018: 39.8p).

After the balance sheet date the following dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

2019 | 2018
£m | £m
Current year final dividend - 26.2p per qualifying ordinary share (2018: 26.0p) 710 70.4

Dividends proposed after the balance sheet date may differ from the final dividend paid. This is a result of the final number of qualifying shares entitled to dividends

differing from those in issue at the balonce sheet date.

C5. Fixed ussets - investments

Subsidiary undertokings
2019 2018
£m £m
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 cost and net book value 173.2 | 1732
Details of subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2019 are shown on pages 173 to 176,
Cé. Debrors
2019 2018
£m Em
T
Falling due for payment after more than one year: |
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings . 3899 3139
Falling due for payment within one year: ;
Amounts owed by subsidiory undertakings & = 1042
3988 | 418.1
C7. Deferred tax
2019 2018
£m £m
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows: !
Empioyee benrefits and share-based payments ) o ZJIJ 2.2
Deferred tax asset included in the balance sheet a7 i 2.2
Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax asset: |
At 1 january 2019 22 2.7
Deferred tax credit/(charge) in the profit and loss account 0.5 (0.4}
Deferred tox charge in equity - (0.1)
At 31 December 2019 27 2.2

Changes to the rate of UK corporation tax were substontively enacted in 2016 to reduce the rate to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17% from 1 April 2020.
The deferred tax balance has been calculeted based on the rates applicable when the balances are expected to reverse, which is mainly 17% (2018: 17%).
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Company notes to the financial statements

C8. Other creditors falling due within one year

2019 2018
£m - £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3.0 28
Other poyobles o o S o o B 1.0 - 1.5
40 : 4.3
C9. Share capitat
2019 2018
£m £m
Issued and fully paid )
286.4m {2018: 286.3m} ordinary shares of 28 4/7p eoch g1.8 81.8
C10. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities relating to guarantees in the normal course of business and other items omounted to £30.7m (2018: £42 7m).
There is a right of set-off with three of the Company's bankers relating te the bolances of the Company and a number of its wholly-owned UK subsidiaries,

Where the Company enters inte financial guorantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group, the Company considers these to
be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the Company wilt be required to make o payment under the guarantee.
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Subsidiary undertakings

A fulllist of the Group's subsidiary undertakings ond registered/principal offices as at 31 Decemnber 2019 is included below. Except where indicated, the share

capital consists of ordinary shares only. The principal country in which each subsidiary operates and has its registered/principal office is the country of incorporation.
IMI plc's effective interest in the undertakings listed is 100%, except where indicated, and is held in each case by a subsidiary undertaking, except for IMI Group Limited,
IMI Deutschiand Verwaltungs GmbH and IMi Lokeside Austrafia Pty Ltd which are held directly by IMI ple.

The Group has an interest in a partnership, the IMI Scottish Limited Partnership, which is fully consolidated inte these Group accounts. The Group hos teken advantage
of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulotions 2008 and has, therefore, not appended the accounts of this quolifying pertnership
to these accounts. Separate accounts for the partnership are not required to be and have not been filed at Companies House.

Charles Baynes Netherlands BV Netherlands, Lakeside, Solihull Parkway, Birminghar Business Park, Birminghom,
FCX Pension Trustees Limited, West Midlands B37 7XZ, United Kingdom

Holford Estates Limited,

IMI CIF Trustee Limited,

IMI Deutschland Limited,

IMI Euro Finance Limited,

IMI Fluid Controls (Finance) Limited,
IMI Germany Limited,

IMI Group Limited,

1M} Kynoch Limited,

{M! Marston Limited, :
{M} Overseas |nvestments Limited, '
IM! Pensions Trust Limited, i
M1 ple,

M| Precision Engineering Limited,

IMI Property Investments Limited,

IMI Refiners Limited,

IM| Retirement Savings Trust Limited,
IM| Sweden Finance Limited, :
{M! Vision Limited, |
Liguick 211 Limited, |
Truflo Grougp Limited, I
Trufle International Limited, :
Trufle Investments Limited

IMI Critical Engineering Holding GmbH, Bruckstrasse 93, 46519 Alpen, Germany
M) Deutschland | GmbH & Co KG,

IMi Deutschiand Verwaltungs GmbH, !

IM! Germany Holding BV. & Co. KG, !

Norgren GmbH ‘

IMi Americas, Inc. ' 5400 South Delaware Street, Littleton, CO 80120, United Stotes
IMI Fluid Controls Heldings, Inc. )
Nargren, Inc.

IMI Holding italy S.R.L., : Via Stendhal, 65, 20144 Milane, Italy

Crton SRL., }

Truflo Rona S.R.L. )

Bimba Manufocturing Company, 25150 S. Governors Hwy, University Park, IL 60484, United States
Bimba Properties, Inc.

Heimeier GrbH, | Voellinghauser Weg 2, 59597 Erwitte, Germany

M| Hydronic Engineering Deutschland GmbH i

M| Aero-Dynamiek BVBA, ‘ Boomsesteenweg 28, B 2627 Schelle, Belgium

IMI Hydronic Engineering NV ‘

IMi Australia Pty Ltd, "33 South Corporate Avenue, Rowville VIC 3178, Australia

IM! {_akeside Australia Pty Ltd

IMi Compenents Limited, . Westwood Road, Birmingham, Bé 7JF, United Kingdom

Truflo Marine Limited

{Mi Fingnce SA, Route de Crassier 19, Lake Geneva Business Park, 1262 Eysins, Switzerland

IM! Hydronic Engineering A/S,  Vesterlundvej 18, 2730 Herlev, Denmark

I
|
I
M| Hydronic Engineering International SA |
I
|
Norgren A/S '

IM! Hydrenic Engineering BV, ' Rontgenweg 20, Alohen aan den Rijn, NL-2408 AB, Netherlands
IMi Netherlands Holdings BY '

IMI Scotland Limited, ‘ 15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh EH3 8HA, United Kingdom
The IMI Scottish Limited Partnershig '




Subsidiary undertakings

Lakeside Finance Unlimited Company,
Lakeside Treasury Unlimited Company

Norgren Co Limited,
Norgren Manufacturing Co Ltd

Valves Holding GmbH,
Z & JTechnologies GmbH

Acro Associates, Inc.

AFA Controls LLC

Bopp & Reuther Valves GmbH

Brookvale International Insurance Limited
Buschjost GmbH

CCIAG

CCl America do Sul Comercio de Equipamentos Industriais Ltda

CCICzech Republic s.r.o.

CCl Flow Control (Shanghai) Co Ltd
CCl International Limited

CClitaly S.R.L.

CCl Valve Technoiogy AB

CClValve Technology GmbH

Cantrol Component India Pvt Limited

Control Components inc

FAS Medic SA

Fluid Automation Systerns GmbH

Herion Systemtechnik GmibH

iMt Aero-Dynomiek BV

IM| Critical Engineering (APAC) Pte. Ltd

IMI Critical Engineering {Shanghai} Company Limited
IM{ Critical Engineering Korea

IMI Critical FZE

IMI Deutschlang BV.

IMi Energi & VVS Utveckling AB

IM! Enginegring Sdn. Bhd.

IMI France SARL

IM[ Hidronik Muhendislik Iklimlendirme Sisternleri Ltg Sty
IM| Holdings LLC

IM| Hydronic Engineering AB

IMI Hydronic Engineering AS

IM| Hydronic Engineering China

IM| Hydronic Engineering France S.A.
IMI Hydronic Engineering FZE

IMI Hydronic Engineering GesmbH
1M Hydronic Engineering Inc

IMI Hydronic Engineering Limited

IMI Hydronic Engineering Ltda

IM| Hydronic Engineering QY
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1 Stokes Place, St Stephens Green, Dublin 2, Ireland
Building 3, Ne. 1885, Duhvi Read, Minhang District, Shanghai, Ching
i
" Bertramsweg 6, 52355 Diren, Germany
1

‘ 1990 Olivere Rd., S5ta. A Concord, CA 94520, United States

' CSC, Corporate Services Company, 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808, United States
Carl-Reuther Str. 1, 68305 Mannheim, Germany

‘ Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamiiton, HM11, Bermuda

i Detmolder Strasse 256, 32545 Bad Qeynhausen, Germany

i Fabrikstrasse 10, 8370 Sirnach, Switzerland

% Ruc Itapeva, 286 cjs 95/96/97, Sao Paulo, 01332-000, Brazil

K Letidti 1804/3, Slaponice, 62700, Czech Republic

1 Room 108, Uit 15, 159 Tian Zhou Road, Cao He Jing Development Zone, Shanghai, 200233, China
‘ Unit A3 Brookside Business Park, Greengate, Middleton, Manchester, M24 1GS, United Kingdom

i Via Stendhal, 65, 20144 Milano, Italy
|

i Industrigatan 1-3, Box 603, 661 29 Stffle, Sweden
1 Lembéckgasse 63/1, 1230 Wien, Austria

Ground, 1st & 2nd Floor, Tower 4, SJR i park, Plot # 13 14&15, EPIP Zone Phase 1, Whitefield Road,
' Bangalore 560064, [ndic

1 22591 Avenida Empresa, Rancho Santa Margarita CA 92688, United States

1 Route de Bossonnens 2, 1607, Palézieux, Switzerland

1 Stuttgarter StraBe 120, 70736 Fellbach, Germany

1 Untere Talstrasse 65, 71263 Weil der Stadt, Germany

" Havenstraat 9, 3861 VS, Nijkerk, Netherlands

i 29 International Business Park, ACER Building, Tower A, #04-01, Singapore, 639923, Singapere
! B3-2, No. 303, Xinke Road, Qingpu District, Shanghoi, 201707 China

i 14 Dongdong 2-ro, Munsan-eup, Paju-si, Gyeonggi-do, 10816, Republic of Korea

\ Office No. FZJ0A1308, FZJ0A1310, FZI0A1307A, Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
| Versterkerstraat 6,1322 AP Almere, the Netherlands

’ Annedalsviigen 9, 22764, Lund, Sweden

K-7-5 & K-7-6, Solaris Kirara, Soho, Jalan Soleris Mont Kiara, 50480 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
‘ 52 Boulevard de Sébastopol, 75003 Paris, France

; Atasehir Bulvari Ato Carsi no. 50-59, Atasehir, Istanbul, Turkey

3 101 Broadway Street West, Suite 204, Osseo, MN 55349, United States

" Annelund, SE-524 80, Ljung, Sweden

j Glynitveien 7, Ski, N-1400, Norway

. Room 3460, Xin Mao Buitding, No 2 Toi Zhong Nen Road, Pilot Free Trade Zone,
‘ Shanghai, 200131 China

1 13, rue de la Perdrix - Les Fiamants 8, 93290 Tremblay-en-France, France

1 Office 1307-10 Jafza One, JAFZA (PG Box 262611), Dubai, United Arab Erirates

‘ Industriestrasse 9, Obhjekt 5, 2353, Guntramsdorf, Austria

8908 Governors Row, Dallas, TX 75247, United States

Unit 3 Nimbus Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Bedfordshire, LUS SWZ, United Kingdom
i Av Fagundes Fithe, 134 ¢j 43, S. Judas, Sao Poulo, 04304-010, Brazil

|

‘ Robert Huberin tie 7, Vantaa Fi-01510, Finland




{MI Hydronic Engineering Pte Ltd

{MI Hydronic Engineering S.A.

IMI Hydronic Engineering (Spain} SAU
iMI Hydranic Engineering S.R.L.

iMI Hydronic Engineering Switzerlend AG
IMI Hydrenic Engineering UAB

IMl International Co Srl

IM! International d.c.0.

IM! Internotional d.0.0.

iMI International d.o.c. Beograd

IMI Internationai Kft.

IMI International LLC

IM! International s.r.0.

IMI internotional Sp. z.o.0.

M| Japan KK

iMI Norgren Herion PVT Limited

M| Norgren Limited

1M} Norgren SA (Sociedad Unipersonal)
IMi Soudi industry LLC

IMI Webber Limited

industrie Meconigque Pour Les Fluides SA

tntek Products, Inc.

Interativa Industria Comércio e Representagdes Ltda

Kynoch Sweden Helding AB

Liguick 213 Limited

Mead Fluid Dynemics, Inc.

Newmnan Hattersley Limited

Norgren AG

Norgren AS

Norgren Autometion Solutions LLC
Norgren BV

Norgren Co Limited

Norgren Finlend OY

Norgren Ges.m.b.H

Norgren GT Development Corporation
Norgren Kloehn, tnc.

Norgren Limited

Norgren Limited

Norgren Limited

MNorgren Ltda

Norgren Manufacturing de Mexico S.A. de CV.

Norgren S.A. de CV.

Norgren NV
Norgren Pte. Limited

‘ 223 Mguntbatten Rood #03-01, Singopore 398008, Singapore
: 9. rue des 3 Cantons, Windhof, L-8399, Luxembourg
.‘ Cornplejo Europa Empresarial, C/Rozabella, 6, Las Rozas, 26290, Madrid, Spain
I Via dei Martinitt 3 cap, 20146, Milan, Italy
Mihterainstrasse 26, 4414 Fullinsgorf, Switzerland
: A.Juozdpaviciaus 27-5, Kaunas, LT - 45258, Lithuania
; Str. Aristide Poscal nr.36, Sector 3, Bucuresti, 031445, Rormania
Alpska cesta 37b, Lesce, 4248, Slovenia
, Slovenska avenija 17, Zagreb, 10040, Croatic
. Miutina Milankovica 1b, Novi Beograd, 11070, Serkia
i Kunigunda Utjo 6Q, Budapest, HU-1037, Hungary
I Leninskaya Slobada Street 19 b2, 115280, Moscow, Russian Federation
Central Trade Park D1, c.p.1573, Humpolec, 394 01, Czech Republic
" Olewin 50 A, PL-32300, Olkusz, Poland
! 7-3-6 Minatojima Minamimachi, Chuo-ku, Kobe, Hyego 650-0047, Japan
f B-30A Sector 85, Neida, Uttar Pradesh 201305, India
1370 Sianey Close, Dublin Industrial Estate, Finglass Read, Dublin 11, Ireland
! Calle Colom, 391, 2 Edif Tecne, 08223, Terrasso, Spain

; Al-Nakhlah Tower, Kind Fahad Road, As Sahafah, PO Box 52681, Riyadh 11573, Saudi Arabia
|

! 15 Avenue des Cures, 95580, Andiily, France

City Business Park, Easton Rood, Easton, Bristol, BS5 0SP, United Kingdom

: 230 Executive Drive, Suite 127, Cranberry Township, PA 16046, United States
- Avenida Garabed Genanian, 3846 Bairre Aparecidinha, Sorocaba, Sdo Paulo, 18.087-340, Brazil
i c/o IMI Bydrenic Engineering AB, 52 480 Ljung, Sweden
E 2 Cornwall Street, Birmingham, West Midlands, B3 2DL, United Kingdom
i 4114 North Knox Avenue, Chicago, i 60641, United States
: 151 Superior Blvd, Mississauga ON LST 2L1, Canada
Fabrikstrasse 10, 8370 Sirnach, Switzerland
' Karihaugveien 89, Oslo, 1086, Norway
2871 Bond Street, Rochester Hilis, Ml 48309, United States
| Versterkerstraat 6, 1322 AP Almere, Netherlands
! 120/34 M.12, Rachadhewa, Bangplee, Samutprakarn, 10540, Thailand
. Robert Huberin Tie 7, 015 10 Viantaa, Finland
I Industriezentrum NG Sid, Stralle 2a, Objekt M39/1, A-2355, Wiener Neudorf, Austria
I 425 "C" Street NW, Suite 100, Auburn, WA 98001, United States
10000 Banburry Cross Drive, Las Vegas, NV 89144, United States
: &/F Bensan Tower, 74 Hung To Road, Xwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
I 15A Vestey Drive, Aucklond, 1060, New Zealand
Blenheim Way, Fradley Park, Lichfield, Staffordshire, W513 BSY, United Kingdom
: Av. Eng. Alberto de Zagottis, 696-B, Sao Paule SP, 04675-085, Brozil

. Avenida de ta Montofa # 120, Pargue industrial Guerétaro, Santiage De Guerétaro,
. Querétaro, CP 76220, México

Avenida de la Montana # 120, Santa Rosa Jauregui, Santiage De Querétaro,
| Guerétaro, CP 76220, México

% F Woalravensstraat 84, B.1651 Lot, Belgium

16 Tuas Street, Singapore 638453, Singapore
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Subsidiary undertakings

Norgren SAS

Norgren Srl

Norgren Sweden AB

Norgren Taiwan Co Limited

PBM, Inc.

Preumadyne, Inc.

Remosa S.R.L.

SAIC CCiValve Co Ltd (44%)"

Shanghai CCt Power Control Equipment Co Ltd
STISRL

TA Regulator d.o.0.

TH Jansen Armaturen GmbH

THJ Holding GmbH

Thompson Valves Limited

Truflo Rona S.A.

Vaccen Company, Inc,

Z & J High Tempercture Equipment {(Shanghai) Co Ltd

Zimmermann & Jansen, Inc.

* Treated as external investrments

Subsidiary audit exemptions

iMI pic has issued guarantees over the licbilities over the following companies at 31 December 2019 under Section 479C of Companies Act 2006 and these entities

I 1, rue de Lamirault 77090 Collégien, France
i Via trieste 16, Vimercate, 20871, Milan, Haly
| Box 14001, Ventilgatan 6, $-200 24 Malmao, Sweden
3F, No. 540 Sec. 1, Minsheng N. Rd., Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City , 333, Taiwan
1070 Sandy Hill Road, Irwin, Westmoreland County, PA 15642, United States
1 14425 23rd Ave North, Plymouth, MN 55447, United States
i Viale Pula 37, 09123 sede e stobilimento stradario, 03608, Cagliori, Sardinia, Italy
. Block B, 123 Chongming Xiushan Road, Chongming County, Shanghai, 20215C China
229C, 2F, No 11, Lane 445, Tengyue Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai 200090, China
" Via dei Caravaggi 15, 24040, Levate (BG), Italy
f Orliska Ulical3, Brezice, 51-B250, Slovenia
I Otto-Kaiser Str. 6, 66386 Sankt Ingbert, Germany
Pianiger Str 34, 55543 Bad Kreuznach, Germany
' 17 Balena Close, Creekmoor, Pocle, Dorset, BH17 7EF, United Kingdem
| 3e avenue, 16, Porc Industrial des Houts Sorts, 4040 Herstal, Belgium
i 9 Industrial Park Road, Madway, MA 02053, United States
! 819 Yinchun Road, Minhang District, Shanghat, 2061109, China
|
i 4525 Kennedy Commerce Drive, Houston, TX 77036, United States

are exernpt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of Section 4794 of the Act:

Compuny name

HoffordEstatesLimted 01181406
IMI Deutschiand Limited ' 07843551
IMI Eure Finance Limited 07929408
IMI Fluid Controls (Finance) Limited ‘ 08528502
IMI Germany Limited ;07843576
IM{ Marston Limited 00155987
IM{ Refiners Limited 00148305

I
Campany number

Company hame ! Compuny number
’ iMI Sct-)tlcmd Limited | SC378424

IMI Sweden Finance Limited , 07272731

IMI Vision Limited I 04421176

Trufio Group Limited 04430846

Truflo International Limiteg 00164822

Truflo Investments Limited ! 04430927
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Geographic distribution of employees

The following table shows the geographic distribution of employees as at 31 December 2019 and is not required to be audited.

United Kingdom 1,205
Continental Europe 5,484
Americas 2,630
Asia Pacific 1,321
Rest of Warld &7
Total o T o B ) T o T T 10,707
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Five year summary

Adjusted revenue £m

Adjusted profit before tax* £m

Adjusted Group revenue by geography 2019

Total Middle East &
APAC Africa
21% 6%
8 B
2 l ~
& ks :
5 3 - 8
5 5 &
R 3
Tatal
Europe
44%
w ES T R e I N m o Total Americas
& g & g ] g g S g g 269,
* On on adjusted bosis.
Income statement
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
Statutory revenue 1,567 1,657 1,751 1,907
Adjusted revenue 1,557 1,649 1,751 1,907
Adjusted operating profit 234.9 224.2 2392 265.5
Adjusted profit before tax 218.7 208.0 224.1 251.2 250.7
Special pension events 91 28 108 6.8 8.6
Restructuring costs (27.1) (18.8) {34.6) (12.4) (51.8)
Acquired intangible amortisation and impairment (32.2) (25.5) {(17.5) (27.1) (21.0}
Other acquisition items - - (2.0) 3.7 (1.6)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries (8.4) - (2.3) Q.6 -
Financiol instruments excluding economic hedge contract guins[iosses ) ) ) 2.6 (12) 2.4 25 44
Profit before tax from continuing operations - 1627 16533 1809 2129 1893
Adjusted EBITDA 263 273 288 320 357
Group sales by destination
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
£m £m £m £ £m
UK 90 75 79 90 %0
Germany 219 240 260 288 234
Rest of Europe 472 494 519 519 494
Tetol Eurepe 781 BO? 858 897 818
Total Americas 390 403 405 51% 538
Total Asia Pacific 326 334 355 357 404
Middle Eost ond Africa i i o B i 80 103 133 1 113
AdustedRevenve o ass? o dess | A7s: 1907 1873
Reversal cf net economic hedge contract Ios_ses_/(gain_s) o 10 B - - -
Statutory Revenuve 1,567 1,657 1,751 1,907 1873
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Earnings and dividends

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Adjusted basic earnings per share 62.2p 59.9p 65.3p 73.2p 73.2p
Statytory basic earnings per share (continuing) 44.7p 48.3p 53.6p 62.5p Sé.6p
Ordinary dividend per share 38.4p 38.7p 39.4p 40.6p 41.1p
Balance sheet

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

£m £m Em £m £m

Segmental net assets (including lease liabilities} 26 1041 1,027 1,220 1,168
Other net non-operating licbilities exciuding borrowings (gross) {100 (175) (155) (149) (111}
Netrdebrt (exdud}ng quse Ilqbiiif;les) o (237} (283) (265) (405) o 7(376]2
Net assets 58¢ 583 607 666 710
Statistics

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of revenue 15.4% 13.8% 13.8% 14.0% 14.2%
Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of segmental net assets 259% 21.9% 23.4% 21.8% 22.8%
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax 22.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Net assets per share {excluding treasury and EBT shores) 217.3p 215.1p 224.0p 2458p 262.2p
Net debt as ¢ percentoge of shareholders’ funds 40.2% 48.5% 43.7% &0.7% 48,9%
Net debt: Adjusted EBITDA 0.9 1.0 09 1.3 1.2
Adjusted EBITDA: Interest 15 16 20 25 24
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Shareholder and general information

Announcement of trading results
The trading results for the Group for the first half of
2020 will be announced on 24 July 2020. The trading

results for the full year ending 31 December 2020 will
be announced in February 2021.

Interim managernent statements will be
issued in Moy and Novermber 2020.

Dividend payments
Final: 15 May 2020

Interim: September 2020

Share prices and capital gains tax

The closing price of the Company's ordinary shares
on the London Stock Exchange on 31 December 2019
waos 1,179.0p {2018: 944.0p). The market value of
the Company’s ordinary shares on 31 March 1982,

as calcvlated for capital gains tax purposes,

was 53.5p per share.

The Company's SEAQ number is 51443.

Enquiries about sharehaldings

For enquiries concerning shareholders’ personal
heldings, please contact the Company's Registrar:
Equiniti (contact details appear to the right).

Please remember to tell Equiniti if you mave house,
change bank details or if there is any other change
to your account information.

Managing your shares on-line

Shareholders can manage their holdings on-line

by registering with Shareview, the internet based
platform provided by Equiniti. Registration is a
straightforward process and aliows shareholders to:

« help us to reduce print, paper and postuge costs
and the associoted environmental impact of these;

- cast your AGM vote electronically;

« receive an email alert when important sharehoider
documents are available on-line such as Annual
Reports and Notices of General Meetings;

- access details of your individual shareholding
quickly and securely;

- set up a dividend mandate on-hne; and

- change your registered postol oddress or your
dividend mandate details.

To find out more information about the services
offered by Shereview and to register, please visit:
www.shareview.co.uk.
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Cerporate website

The IMI plc website provides a wealth of useful
information for shareholders and should be your

first port of call for general queries relating to the
Company and your shares. As well as providing share
price data and financial history, the site also provides
background information about the Company.

Shareholders are alse encouraged to sign up to
receive news alerts by email in the Investors section
of the website. These include ali of the financial
news releases from throughout the year that are
not sent to shareholders by post. You can access
the corporate website ot www.imiplc.com.

Annuol General Meeting 2020

This year's AGM will be held at the Crowne

Plaza NEC, Pendigo Way, Birmingham B4Q INT
on Thursday 7 May 2020 at 10am. For further
information, please refer to the Notice of Meeting
which is on the corporate website.

Individual Savings Account (15A)

IMI's ordinary shares can be held in an 1SA. For
information about the ISA operated by our Registrar,
Equiniti, please cail the Equiniti ISA helgline on 0345
300 0430. Lines are open from 8.300m to 5.30pm,
Mondoy to Friday (excluding public holidays in
England and Wales).

Share dealing service

Managed by Equiniti, the Company's registrar, the
IMi plc Share dealing service provides shareholders
with a simple way of buying and selling iMI ordinary
shares, Telephone: 0345 603 7037, Full written
details can be obtained from Equrniti {contact details
appear to the right).

Share fravd

Share froud includes scams where investors are
called out of the blue and offered shares that often
turn ocut to be worthless or non-existent, or an
inflated price for shares they own. These calls come
from fraudsters operating in ‘boiler roorms’ that are
mastly based abroad. Further information on how
to spot share fraud or report a scam can be found
on our corporate website.

American Depository Receipts

IMI ple has an American Depository Receipt ('ADR")
programme that trades on the Cver-The-Counter
market in the USA, using the symbal IMIAY. ADR
enquiries should be directed to Citibank Shareholder
Services, PO Box 43077, Providence, RI 02940-2077,
USA. Toll-free number in the USA is 1-877-CITI-ADR
(877-248-4237) and from outside the USA is
1-781-575-4555. You can also email
citibank@shareholders-oniine.com

Headquarters and registered office

Lakeside

Solihult Parkway

Birmingham Business Park
Birminghom

B37 7XZ

Telephone: +44 121 717 3700

IMI plc is registered in England Ne 714275

Registrars
Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone: 0371 3B4 2916 or from overseas
+46121 415 7047

Lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday
(excluding public holidays in England and Wales).

Stockbrokers

JPMorgan Cazenove
Bank of America

Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP

Cautionary statement

This Annual Report may contain forward-iooking
statements that may or may not prove cceurcte.

For examgle, statements regarding expected revenue
growth and operating margins, market trends and
our product pipeline are forward-looking statements.
it is believed that the expectations refiectedin

these statements are reasonable but they may be
aoffected by a number of risks and uncertainties

that are inherent in any forward-locking statement
which could cause actual results to differ matenially
from those currently anticipated. Any forward-
locking statement is made in good faith and based
on information available to IMI plc as of the date of
the preparation of this Annual Report. All written

or oral forward-leoking statements gitributehle to
IMi plc are qualified by this coution, IM} plc does not
undertake any cbligatien to update or revise any
forward-locking statement to reflect any change

in circumstances or in IMI plc's expectations.




